### TOKYO MATHEMATICAL BOOK SERIES

VOLUME III

## TOPOLOGY

AND

## LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES

BY

HIDEGORÔ NAKANO

1951

MARUZEN CO., LTD.

NIHONBASHI, TOKYO





The purpose of this book is to pick up theo. retical points in the book of S. Banach:

Théorie des opérations linéaire, and to arrange them by modern method. I made a course of lectures on Banach spaces at Tokyo University during 1947-48 and had a great mind to write this book. I finished the manuscript in 1947 by the valuable help of Messra T. Shibata, A. Saito, F. Shirai, H. Kuroda and O. Takenouchi to take notes of my lectures, but I had to correct some points after by kind remarks of Messra I. Amemiya and O. Takenouchi. To these I express my warmest thanks.

The reader need only be aquainted with elementary properties of real numbers, which are to be found in most books on elementary analysis. I went this book will be a good introduction to modern analysis.

Tokyo, November, 1951 Histogrio Nakano

D 14/54

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	TOPOLOGY
	Chapter I. Topological sets
§1 §2	Topology conditions
\$2	Open basis, neighbourhood system
\$3	Opener, closure
\$4 \$5	First category sets, second category sets
§6	Baire sets, Borel sets
\$7	Compact sets
	Chapter II. Classification of topologies
§8	Comparation of topologies
§9	Relative topology
\$10 \$11	Regular topologies
\$12	Compact topologies
\$13	Separative topologies
§24	Sequential topologies
	Chapter III. Continuous mappings
§15	Mappings
§16	Continuous mappings
\$17	Open mappings, closed mappings
\$18	Partition topologies
\$19. \$20	Continuous functions
§21	Fields of functions
\$22	Weak topologies by functions
§23	Completely regular topologies
§24	Compectification
	Chapter IV. Uniform spaces
§25	Connectors
§26	Uniformities
\$27	Induced topologies
§28	Comparation of uniformities
§28	Relative uniformitles
§30 §31	Uniformly continuous mappings
931 §32	Uniformly continuous functions
33	Totally bounded sets
§34	Weak uniformities
§35	Completeness
§36	Sequential uniformities
\$37	

Chapter V. Metric spaces	
\$38 Quasi-metric	)4
LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES	
Chapter VI. Linear spaces	_
\$42 Fundamental definitions	12 14 17
Chapter VII. Vicinities	
§48 Fundamental definitions	127 130
Chapter VIII. Linear topology	
\$53 Definitions	143 145 147 149 151 154 159
Chapter IX. Adjoint spaces	
\$64 Adjoint topology	.174 .175 .177 .181
Chapter X. Normed spaces  71 Induced linear topologies  72 Adjoint spaces  73 Quotient spaces  74 Weak convergence	19:

§75 §76 §77	Regularity
	Chapter XI. Modulared spaces
\$78 \$79 \$81 \$881 \$883 \$885 \$885 \$889 \$889 \$889	Modular conditions.       204         Modular bounded linear functionals       206         Modular adjoint spaces       208         Modular norms       212         Quotient spaces       214         Associated norms       216         Simpleness       218         Uniformly simple modulars       221         Finiteness       224         Uniformly convex modulars       226         Uniformly even modulars       230         Lp(*)       spaces         234         Lp-o, Lp+o spaces       240
	Chapter XII. Combination of linear topological spaces
9934567 99934567 99999999	Product spaces       244         Product norms       246         Product of modulared spaces       248         Bilinear functionals       250         Biadjoint spaces       252         Cross spaces       258         Cross topologies       258         Cross norms       261         Biadjoint modulars       264         Cross modulars       267
Note	I Definition of linear topologies271
Note	II Linear quasi-metrics272
Note	<u>III</u> (C) spaces274
Note	IV Inequalities274
BIBL	IOGRAPHY277
INDE	K

For a set A we define a e A or A > a to mean that a is an element of A, and we shall write  $a \in A$  or  $A \ni a$  if a is not contained in A. For two sets A and B we define  $A \supset B$  or  $B \subset A$ to mean that 8 is a subset of A, that is, A includes 8

We shall make use of the notation

to denote the set consisting of all  $\chi$  satisfying the condition  $\mathcal{C}(x)$ . We denote by  $\{a_1, a_2, \dots\}$  the set composed of elements  $a_1, a_2, \dots$ , and the empty set will be denoted by O.

For a system of sets  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) we denote by  $\sum_{A} A_{\lambda}$  the union of all  $A_{\lambda}$ , and by  $\prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}$  their <u>intersection</u>, that is,  $\prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda} = \{ x : x \in A_{\lambda} \text{ for all } \lambda \in A \},$ 

$$\prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda} = \{z : x \in A_{\lambda} \text{ for all } \lambda \in A\}$$

$$\sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda} = \{x : x \in A_{\lambda} \text{ for some } \lambda \in A\}$$

For a sequence of sets  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) we may write

A set R may be called a space, if we shall be concerned only with subsets of R, and then every subset of R may be called a point set, while every element of R may be called a point. For every point set A in R we denote the complement of A by A', that ís,

$$A' = \{x : x \in A\}.$$

Then we have obviously

$$(\sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda})' = \prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}', \quad (\prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda})' = \sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}'$$

for any system of point sets  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ). For two point sets A and B, if  $A \supset B$ , then we denote AB' by A - B, that is,

$$A-B=\{x: x\in A, x\in B\}.$$

As a method for infinite process we are permitted to make use of the following axiom due to Zermelo:

For any space R we can find a correspondence of Choice Axiom. a point  $a_a \in R$  to every point set  $A \neq 0$  such that  $a_a \in A$ .

0

By virtue of Choice Axiom we will prove the following theorem dus to Zorn, which will be applied often in this book instead of the transfinite induction.

Maximal Theorem. Let C be a condition for a finite number of points in a space S. If a point set A, satisfies the condition C, that is, if the condition  $C(x_1, x_2, \ldots, x_N)$  is satisfied for every finite number of points  $x_1, x_2, \ldots, x_N \in A$ , then there exists a maximal point set A which include A, and satisfies the condition C, that is, there is no other than A which includes A and satisfies the condition C.

Proof. We can assume by Choice Axiom that to every point set  $X \not= 0$  there is determined a point  $x \in X$  corresponding to X. Let  $\mathscr{L}_{o}$  be the totality of point sets which include  $A_{o}$  and satisfy the condition C. For a point set  $A \in \mathscr{L}_{o}$ , if there is a point  $x \in A$  for which  $\{A, x\} \in \mathscr{L}_{o}$ , then we obtain a point  $a_{A}$  corresponding to the totality of such points x and we have

We need only prove that there is a point set  $A \in \mathcal{K}_o$  for which there is no such corresponding point  $a_A$ .

We suppose that corresponding to every point set  $A \in \mathcal{K}$ , there is determined such a point  $a_A$ . We shall consider subsets  $\mathcal{K} \subset \mathcal{K}$ , which satisfy the conditions:

- \*) & ∋ A.,
- \*\*) & A implies & A A A A,
- mutually <u>comparable</u>, that is, if for every two elements  $\lambda_1, \lambda_2 \in \Lambda$  we have  $A_{\lambda_1} \supset A_{\lambda_2}$  or  $A_{\lambda_1} \subset A_{\lambda_2}$ .

 $\tilde{K}_0$  satisfies obviously these conditions. Let  $\tilde{K}_0$  be the intersection of all subsets  $\tilde{K} \subset \tilde{K}_0$  satisfying these conditions. Then we see easily that  $\tilde{K}_1$  also satisfies these conditions, that is,  $\tilde{K}_1$  is the least subset of  $\tilde{K}_0$  satisfying these conditions.

Let  $\mathscr{A}_{2}$  be the totality of point sets in  $\mathscr{A}_{1}$  which are comparable

with every point set in  $\mathcal{A}_1$ . Then we have obviously  $\mathcal{A}_2 \ni A_0$  and we see easily that  $\mathcal{A}_2$  satisfies the condition \*\*\*). Now we shall prove that  $\mathcal{A}_2$  satisfies the condition \*\*). For any  $A_2 \in \mathcal{A}_2$ , if we put

 $K_3 = \{A: A_2 \supset A \in K, \} + \{A: \{A_2, \alpha_{A_2}\} \subset A \in K, \}$ , then we have obviously  $K_3 \ni A_0$ , and we see easily that  $K_3$  satisfies the condition \*\*\*). Because, if  $K_3 \ni A$  but  $K_3 \ni \{A, \alpha_{A}\}$ , then, since  $A \in K$ , implies  $\{A, \alpha_{A}\} \in K$ , and since  $A_2$  is comparable with every point set in  $K_1$ , we must have

and consequently  $A = A_2$  or  $A_a = \{A, a_A\}$ , contradicting the assumption  $\{A, a_A\} \in \mathcal{K}_2$ . Therefore  $\mathcal{K}_3$  satisfies the conditions \*), \*\*), \*\*\*), and hence we obtain  $\mathcal{K}_3 = \mathcal{K}_4$ , since  $\mathcal{K}_4$  is the least subset of  $\mathcal{K}_5$  satisfying the conditions \*), \*\*), \*\*\*). Consequently  $\{A_2, a_{A_2}\}$  is comparable with every point set  $A \in \mathcal{K}_4$ , that is,  $\{A_2, a_{A_2}\} \in \mathcal{K}_3$ . Thus  $\mathcal{K}_2$  also satisfies the conditions \*), \*\*), \*\*\*), and hence we obtain likewise  $\mathcal{K}_2 = \mathcal{K}_4$ . Accordingly  $\mathcal{K}_4$  is a system of mutually comparable point sets, and hence putting

$$A_1 = \sum_{A \in A} A$$
,

we obtain  $A_1 \in \mathcal{K}_1$  by the condition \*\*\*). For such  $A_1$  we have  ${}_1A_1, a_{A_1} \notin \mathcal{K}_1$  by the condition \*\*), and consequently we obtain  $\{A_1, a_{A_1} \notin A_1, \text{ contradicting the assumption } a_{A_1} \notin A_1$ . Therefore there exists a point set  $A \in \mathcal{K}_0$  for which there is no point  $\mathbf{z} \in A$  such that  $\{A_1, \mathbf{z}\} \in \mathcal{K}_0$ . Such a point set A is obviously a maximal point set which includes  $A_0$  and satisfies the condition C.

### TOFODOG

## CHAPTER I TOPOLOGICAL SETS

### §1 Topology conditions

Let R be a space. A collection of point sets T in R is said to be a topology, if T satisfies the topology conditions:

- 1) 7 = 0, R;
- 2) 7 7 A, B implies 7 + AB;
- 3)  $7 + A_1 (\lambda \in \Lambda)$  implies  $7 + \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A_{\lambda}$ .

For instance, all point sets of R constitutes obviously a topology. This topology is called the <u>discrete topology</u> of R. Two point sets R and O also constitutes a topology on R. This topology is called the <u>trivial topology</u> of R.

A space associated with a topology is called a topological space.

On the other hand, a space without topology may be called an abstract space.

Let R be a topological space with a topology T. Every point set of T is said to be open, i.e., T is the collection of all open sets. A point set A is said to be closed, if the complement A' is open. If we denote the totality of closed sets by T', then we have by definition

and we see easily by the topology conditions that T' satisfies the conditions:

- 11) 7' > 0, R;
- 21) 7'3 A, B implies 7'3 A+B;
- 3')  $\gamma' \ni A_{\lambda} (\lambda \in \Lambda) \text{ implies } \gamma' \ni \gamma A_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A_{\lambda}$ .

Because we have

$$(A+8)' = A'B', \quad (\prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda})' = \sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}'.$$

Furthermore, we see easily that if a collection of point sets  $\Im'$  in a space R satisfies the conditions  $1^{\circ}$ ),  $2^{\circ}$ ), and  $3^{\circ}$ ), then there exists

uniquely a topology  $\gamma$  on R such that  $\gamma'$  is the totality of closed sets by the topology  $\gamma$ .

### \$2 Open basis, neighbourhood system

Let R be a topological space with a topology 7. A collection of open sets & is called an open basis, if we have

 $A=\sum_{A\supset X\in Z}X$  for every  $A\in T$ . For each open basis G we see immediately by definition that  $H\subset T$  and H satisfies the basis conditions:

1) % 30;

§1, §2)

- $\sum_{X \in \mathcal{L}} X = R;$
- 3)  $\mathscr{L} \ni A$ , B implies  $AB = \sum_{AB \supset X \in \mathscr{L}} X$ .

Conversely we have:

Theorem 1. For an abstract space R, if a collection of point

sets Y in R satisfies the basis conditions 1), 2), and 3), then there

exists uniquely a topology 7 on R such that Y is an open basis of T.

Proof. Putting  $\gamma = \{ \chi : \chi = \sum_{\chi \supset \gamma \in \mathcal{L}} \gamma \}$ , we see easily that  $\gamma$  satisfies the topology conditions, that is,  $\gamma$  is a topology on  $\mathcal{R}$ . For this topology  $\gamma$ , it is obvious by definition that  $\mathcal{L}$  is an open basis of  $\gamma$ . Furthermore such topology  $\gamma$  is determined uniquely. Because, if  $\gamma_s$  is another topology such that  $\mathcal{L}$  is an open basis of  $\gamma_{or}$  unen we have obviously by definition that  $\gamma_s < \gamma$ . On the other hand, from  $\gamma_s > \mathcal{L}$  we conclude  $\gamma_s > \gamma$  by the topology condition 3).

For a topological space  $\mathcal R$  with a topology  $\mathcal T$ , a collection of open sets  $\mathcal M$  is called a <u>neighbourhood system</u>, if  $\alpha \in A \in \mathcal T$  implies  $\alpha \in X \subseteq A$  for some  $X \in \mathcal M$ . With this definition, we see immediately that a collection of open sets  $\mathcal M$  is a neighbourhood system, if and only if  $\{\mathcal M, o\}$  is an open basis. Consequently we see by the basis condition 3) that if  $\mathcal M$  is a neighbourhood system, then for any A,  $B \in \mathcal M$ ,  $\alpha \in AB$  implies  $\alpha \in X \subseteq AB$  for some  $X \in \mathcal M$ .

Conversely we have:

Theorem 2. For a collection of point sets M in an abstract

(Chapter I

space R, 1) if for each a & R we can find X & M such that a & X, and 2) if for any A, B & M, a & AB implies a & X < AB for some X & M, then there exists uniquely a topology 7 on R such that M is a neighbourhood system of 7.

Putting  $\mathcal{L}=\{\mathcal{N},0\}_{\sim}$  we see easily by assumption that  $\mathcal{L}$ Proof. Thus, there exists by Theorem 1 satisfies the basis conditions. uniquely a topology  $\gamma$  such that  $\mathscr L$  is an open basis of  $\gamma$ .  $\gamma$  ,  $\mathcal M$  is obviously by definition a neighbourhood system of  $\gamma$  . topology  $\gamma$  is uniquely determined. Because, if  $\gamma_s$  is another topology such that  $\pi$  is a neighbourhood system of  $\mathcal{I}_{\sigma}$ , then  $\mathscr{G}$  is by definition an open basis of  $\gamma_o$  , and hence we obtain  $\gamma_o = \gamma$  by the uniqueness of the topology for which & is an open basis.

### §3 Opener, closure

Let R be a topological space with a topology  $\Im$ . Corresponding to every point set A we define the opener  $A^s$  to mean

 $A^\circ = \sum_{A\supset X\in Y} X \ .$  The opener  $A^\circ$  may be also denoted by  $A^{T^\circ}$ , if we need indicate the topology 7.

We see immediately by the topology condition 3) that the opener  $\mathcal{A}^{\circ}$ is open, that is,  $A^* \in \mathcal{I}$  for every point set A. Therefore we can say that the opener  $\mathcal{A}^{\circ}$  is the greatest open set included in  $\mathcal{A}$  . an open basis  ${\mathscr L}$  we have obviously by definition also

 $A^{\circ} = \sum_{X \in \mathcal{X}} X.$ 

For an arbitrary point set A, every point of the opener A° 1s called an inner point of A. With this definition we have obviously:

For a neighbourhood system M, a point a is an in-Theorem 1. ner point of a point set A if and only if a & X < A for some X & R.

Corresponding to every point set A we define the closure A to mean

 $A^{-} = \prod_{A \in X \in \mathcal{I}'} X$ 

for the totality of closed sets T'. The closure A may be also denoted by  $A^{\mathcal{T}^-}$  , if we need indicate the topology  $\mathcal{T}$ .

By virtue of the condition 3') in  $\S1$ , we see that the closure  $A^-$  is closed; that is,  $A^- \in \mathcal{I}'$  for every point set A. Thus we can say that the closure A is the least closed set including A.

For an arbitrary point set A, every point of the closure  $A^-$  is called a contact point of A. With this definition we have:

For a neighbourhood system M, a point A is a con-Theorem 2. tact point of a point set A, if and only if  $a \in X \in \mathcal{H}$  implies  $AX \neq 0$ .

If there is an open set X such that  $a \in X$  but AX = 0, then we have naturally  $a \in X'$  and  $A \subset X'$ . As X' is closed, we have then by definition  $A^- \subset X'$ , and hence a is not a contact point of A.

Conversely, if a is not a contact point of A, that is, if  $a \in A^-$ . then we have naturally  $a \in A^{-\prime}$ . As  $A^{-\prime}$  is open, we can find  $X \in \mathcal{H}$ such that  $a \in X \subset A^{-1}$ , that is,  $a \in X \in \mathcal{R}$ ,  $AX \subset A^{-}X = 0$ .

A point  $\alpha$  of a point set A is called an isolated point of A, if there is an open set  $\nabla$  such that  $A\nabla = \{a\}$ . A contact point of a point set A is called a limiting point of A, if it is not an isolated point of A. with this definition we see easily that a point a is a limiting point of a point set A if and only if for every open set  $X \ni A$ the intersection AX contains a point different from the point a.

From the definition of opener and closure, we conclude immediately that a point set A is open if and only if  $A^{\circ} = A$ ; and that a point set A is closed if and only if A = A. Thus we see that a point set A is closed if and only if A contains all limiting points of A .

### §4 Calculus of topological notations

From the definition of opener and closure we conclude immediately

 $A^{\circ} \subset A \subset A^{\circ}$ (1)

and furthermore

$$0^{\circ} = 0, \quad 0^{-} = 0,$$
 $R^{\circ} = R, \quad R^{-} = R.$ 

Since we have for the topology 7 of R

$$\left(\sum_{A \in X \in Y} X\right)' = \prod_{A > X \in Y} X' = \prod_{A' \in Y \in Y'} Y$$

 $(\prod_{A \subset X \in \mathcal{T}'} X)' = \sum_{A \subset X \in \mathcal{T}'} X' = \sum_{A' \supset Y \in \mathcal{T}} Y,$  we obtain by definition

$$A^{\circ}' = A'^{-}, A^{-}' = A'^{\circ}.$$

As  $A^{\circ}$  is open and  $A^{-}$  is closed, we have naturally

$$(4) \qquad A^{\circ \circ} = A^{\circ} \,, \qquad A^{--} = A^{-} \,,$$

and further we obtain by the topology condition 3) and 3') in §1

(5) 
$$\left(\sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}^{\alpha}\right)^{\circ} = \sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}^{\circ}$$
,  $\left(\prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}^{-}\right)^{-} = \prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}^{-}$ . We see easily by definition

(6) 
$$A \supset B$$
 implies  $A^{\circ} \supset B^{\circ}$  and  $A^{-} \supset B^{-}$ .

For two point sets A and B we have by the formula (6)

$$(AB)^{\circ} \subset A^{\circ}B^{\circ}$$
.

On the other hand we have  $AB > A^{\circ}B^{\circ}$  by the formula (1), and hence we obtain by the formulas (4) and (6)

$$(AB)^{\circ} \supset (A^{\circ}B^{\circ})^{\circ} = A^{\circ}B^{\circ}$$

Therefore we have  $(AB)^{\circ} = A^{\circ}B^{\circ}$  for every point sets A and B.

From this relation we conclude  $(A + B)^- = A^- + B^-$  by duality, i.e.

$$(A+B)^- = (A+B)^{\prime \circ \prime} = (A^{\prime}B^{\prime})^{\circ \prime}$$
  
=  $(A^{\prime \circ}B^{\prime \circ})^{\prime} = A^{\prime \circ \prime} + B^{\prime \circ \prime} = A^- + B^-.$ 

Thus we have for every point sets A and B

$$(7)$$
  $(AB)^{\circ} = A^{\circ}B^{\circ}$ ,  $(A + B)^{-} = A^{-} + B^{-}$ .

Since we have obviously by the formula (1)

we obtain by the formulas (5) and (6)

$$(AB)^- \subset (A^-B^-)^- = A^-B^-.$$

As  $A = AB + AB' \subset AB + B'$ , we have by the formulas (6), (7), and (3)

$$A^{-} \subset (AB + B')^{-} = (AB)^{-} + B^{-} = (AB)^{-} + B^{\circ}'.$$

Therefore we obtain

(8) 
$$A^{-}B^{\circ} \subset (AB)^{-} \subset A^{-}B^{-}$$
.

From this relation we conclude by duality

9) 
$$A^- \downarrow B^\circ \supset (A \downarrow B)^\circ \supset A^\circ \downarrow B^\circ$$
.

For an arbitrary point set A we have

$$(10) \quad A^{-\circ-\circ} = A^{-\circ} , \quad A^{\circ-\circ-} = A^{\circ-}$$

Because, we have  $A^{-e^-} > A^{-e}$  by the formula (1), and hence by the formulas (6) and (4)

$$A^{-\circ-\circ} > A^{-\circ\circ} = A^{-\circ}$$

On the other hand we have  $A^{-\circ} \subset A^{\circ}$  by the formula (1), and hence by the formulas (6) and (4)

Therefore we obtain the first relation. We can conclude the second from the first by duality.

For every point sets A and B we have

(11) 
$$(A^{\circ}B)^{-\circ} = A^{\circ-\circ}B^{-\circ}, \quad (A^{-}B)^{-\circ} = A^{-\circ}B^{-\circ}.$$

Because, we have by the formulas (8) and (4)

$$A^{\circ -}B^{-} > (A^{\circ}B)^{-} > (A^{\circ \circ}B^{-})^{-} > A^{\circ -}B^{-\circ}$$

and hence by the formulas (4) and (7)

64)

$$A^{\circ-\circ}B^{-\circ}\supset (A^{\circ}B)^{-\circ}\supset A^{\circ-\circ}B^{-\circ}.$$

Therefore the first relation is proved. Similarly, we have by the formulas (4) and (8)

$$A^{-}B^{-} > (A^{-}B)^{-} > A^{-0}B^{-}$$

and hence by the formulas (6), (4), and (7)

$$A^{-\circ}B^{-\circ} > (A^{-}B)^{-\circ} > A^{-\circ}B^{-\circ}$$

Thus the second relation also is proved.

From the formula (11) we conclude by duality

(12) 
$$(A^- + B)^{\circ -} = A^{\circ -} + B^{\circ -}, \quad (A^{\circ} + B)^{\circ -} = A^{\circ -} + B^{\circ -}$$

For two point sets A and B, we define A > B to mean  $A \circ \supset B$  With this definition we see easily by the formula (6)

$$A > B > C$$
 implies  $A > C$ ;

$${}^{\prime}C \supset A > B$$
 implies  $C > B$ .

Furthermore we see easily by the formula (4) that A > 8 is equivalent to each one of the relations

$$A > B^-$$
,  $A^\circ > B$ ,  $A^\circ > B^-$ 

Recalling the formulas (7), (8), and (9), we can conclude easily further that  $A_1 > B_1$ ,  $A_2 > B_2$  implies

$$A_1 A_2 > B_1 B_2$$
 and  $A_1 + A_2 > B_1 + B_2$ .

§4, §5)

A point set V is said to be <u>regularly open</u>, if  $V^{\circ} = V$ . By virtue of the formula (10),  $A^{\circ}$  is regularly open for every point set A. For every pair of regularly open sets V and V, the intersection V elso is regularly open by the formula (11). But the union  $V^{\perp}$  V is not necessarily regularly open. Thus we define the <u>regular sum</u>  $V \oplus V$  to mean  $V \oplus V = (V + V)^{\circ}$  for regularly open sets V and V.

## \$5 First category sets, second category sets

Let R be a topological space with a topology  $\Im$  in the sequel. For two point sets A and B we shall say that A is dense in B, if we have  $(AB)^- \supset B$ . Especially, if a point set A is dense in the space R, that is, if  $A^- = R$ , then A is said to be dense. With this definition we can say that a point set A is dense if and only if  $A \cup \# O$  for every open set  $O \oplus \# O$ . Because, if  $A \cup \# O$  for an open set  $O \oplus \# O$ , then we have by  $\S 4(B) \cup \# O \oplus \# O$ .

A point set A is said to be nowhere dense, if  $A^{-\circ} = 0$ . With this definition, it is evident by the formula §4(6) that if a point set A is nowhere dense, then every  $B \subset A$  also is nowhere dense. Furthermore, if both A and B are nowhere dense, then A + B also is nowhere dense. Because we have by §4(7), (8)

$$(A + B)^{-\circ} = (A^- + B^-)^{\circ} \subset A^{-\circ} + B^-.$$

As  $A^{-\circ} = 0$  by assumption, we obtain hence by §4(6), (4)

$$(A + B)^{-\circ} \subset B^{-\circ} = 0$$
,

and consequently  $(A + B)^{-\circ} = 0$ .

Theorem 1. For any point set A, both  $A^{\circ} - A^{\circ}$  and  $A^{-} - A^{-\circ}$  are nowhere dense.

Proof. By virtue of the formulas §4(3), (4), (11) we have  $(A^{\circ -} - A^{\circ})^{-\circ} = (A^{\circ -} A^{\circ \prime})^{-\circ} = A^{\circ -\circ} A^{\circ \prime -\circ} = A^{\circ -\circ} A^{\circ -\prime} \subset A^{\circ -} A^{\circ -\prime} = 0,$   $(A^{\circ -} - A^{\circ})^{-\circ} = (A^{\circ} A^{-\circ \prime})^{-\circ} = A^{-\circ} A^{-\circ \prime -\circ} = A^{-\circ} A^{-\circ \prime -\circ} \subset A^{-\circ} A^{-\circ \prime} = 0.$ 

A point set A is said to be of the first category or a first category set, if there is a sequence of nowhere dense sets  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2,...$ ) such that  $A = \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} A_{\nu}$ . With this definition, we see easily that if a point set A is of the first category, then every B < A also is of the first category; and for a sequence of first category sets  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) the union  $\sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} A_{\nu}$  also is of the first category.

Theorem 2.(Banach) For a system of open sets  $U_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), if  $A = U_{\lambda}$  is of the first category for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , then  $A = U_{\lambda}$  also is of the first category.

<u>Proof.</u> By wirtue of Maximal Theorem, we can find a maximal system of open sets  $\nabla_{i}$  ( $f \in \Gamma$ ) such that  $\nabla_{f_1} \nabla_{f_2} = 0$  for  $f_1 \neq \delta_2$ , and for any  $f \in \Gamma$  there is  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  for which  $\nabla_{f_2} \subset \nabla_{\lambda}$ . For such a maximal system of open sets  $\nabla_{f_1} (f \in \Gamma)$ , we see easily that we have

$$\sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathbb{V}_{\lambda} \subset \left(\sum_{\ell \in \Gamma} \mathbb{V}_{\ell}\right)^{-}$$
.

As  $A \cup V_{\lambda}$  is by assumption of the first category for every  $\lambda \in A$ ,  $A \cup V_{\delta}$  also is of the first category for every  $Y \in \Gamma$ , and hence corresponding to every  $Y \in \Gamma$  we can find by definition a sequence of nowhere dense  $A_{\lambda_{\lambda} \nu}$  such that

$$A \nabla_{\nu} = \sum_{i=1}^{n} A_{\nu,\nu}$$

For such  $A_{S,\nu}(S \in \Gamma)$ ;  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ), as  $A_{S,\nu} \subset V_{\Gamma}$  for every  $S \in \Gamma^{\nu}$ , we have  $V_{\Gamma} A_{S,\nu} = 0$  for  $\Gamma + S \in \Gamma$ , and hence we have by §4(1), (4), (11)  $V_{\Gamma}(\sum_{S \in \Gamma} A_{S,\nu})^{-\alpha} \subset V_{\Gamma}^{-\alpha}(\sum_{S \in \Gamma} A_{S,\nu})^{-\alpha} = (V_{\Gamma} \sum_{S \in \Gamma} A_{S,\nu})^{-\alpha} = A_{\Gamma,\nu}^{-\alpha} = 0$  for every  $\Gamma \in \Gamma$  and  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$  Thus we obtain for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ 

and consequently by the formulas §4(2), (8)

$$\left(\sum_{r\in r} \nabla_r\right)^- \left(\sum_{r\in r} A_{r,\nu}^*\right)^{-s} = 0.$$

On the other hand we have by the formula \$4(11)

$$\left(\sum_{g \in \Gamma} A_{g,\nu}\right)^{-\circ} = \left\{\left(\sum_{g \in \Gamma} V_{g}\right)\left(\sum_{g \in \Gamma} A_{g,\nu}\right)\right\}^{-\circ}$$

 $= \left( \underset{p \in p}{\succeq} \, \mathbb{V}_p \, \right)^{-\circ} \, \left( \underset{p \in p}{\succeq} \, A_{\tilde{z},\nu} \, \right)^{-\circ} \subset \left( \underset{p \in p}{\succeq} \, \mathbb{V}_p \, \right)^{-} \left( \underset{p \in p}{\succeq} \, A_{\tilde{z},\nu} \right)^{-\circ}.$ 

Therefore  $\sum_{k \in \Gamma} A_{k,\nu}$  is nowhere dense for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$  As

$$A \underset{\text{Teff}}{\succeq} V_{\tilde{v}} = \underset{\text{Teff}}{\succeq} \underset{k=1}{\overset{\sim}{\succeq}} A_{T,\nu} = \underset{k=1}{\overset{\sim}{\succeq}} \underset{\text{Teff}}{\succeq} A_{T,\nu} \,,$$

 $A \lesssim V_s$  is hence of the first category. We have obviously

and  $(\sum_{i \in \Gamma} \nabla_i)^- - \sum_{i \in \Gamma} \nabla_i$  is nowhere dense by Theorem 1. Therefore we

12

10

vii

Fo1

 $\epsilon 1^{1}$ 

no.

Fα

fi

see that  $A \succeq V_{\lambda}$  also is of the first category.

A point set A is said to be of the second category, if AV is not of the first category for every open set V such that  $AV \neq 0$ . With this definition we see easily that if all  $A_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  are of the second category, then  $\sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A_{\lambda}$  also is of the second category. If a point set A is of the second category and  $A \subseteq B \subseteq A^-$ , then B also is of the second category. Because  $BV^* \neq 0$  implies  $AV^* \neq 0$ , since every point of B is a contact point of A. Furthermore, if A is of the second category and B is of the first category, then AB' is of the second category. Because, if  $AB'V^*$  is of the first category and  $AV^* = 0$ 0, then, as  $AV^* \subseteq AB'V^* + B$ 1,  $AV^*$ 2 also is of the first category and  $AV^* = 0$ 2, contradicting the assumption.

Recalling Theorem 2, we conclude immediately:

Theorem 3. If a point set A is not of the first category, then there is an open set V such that AV is of the first category, and AV is of the second category.

We shall also say that the topology  $\gamma$  is of the second category, if the space R is of the second category as a point set.

### · §6 Baire sets, Borel sets

A point set A is said to be a <u>Baire set</u>, if we can find an open set V and two first category sets F, and  $F_2$  such that A = VF, F, F. With this definition we have:

Theorem 1. For every Baire set A, the complement A' also is a Baire set.

<u>Proof.</u> If  $A = \sigma F_1' + F_2$  for an open set  $\sigma$  and two first category sets  $F_1$ ,  $F_2$ , then we have

$$A' = (\sigma' + F_4)F_2' = \{\sigma'^\circ + (\sigma' - \sigma'^\circ) + F_1\}F_2'$$

$$= \sigma'^\circ F_2' + ((\sigma' - \sigma'^\circ) + F_1\}F_2'.$$

Here  $\sigma' - \sigma'$  is nowhere dense by §5 Theorem 1. Therefore A' is a Baire set by definition.

Theorem 2. For every sequence of Bairs sets  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), both  $\stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma}$   $A_{\nu}$  and  $\stackrel{\sim}{\Pi}$   $A_{\nu}$  are Bairs sets.

Proof. We can put by assumption

$$A_{\nu} = \mathcal{T}_{\nu}^{\circ} F_{\nu}' + G_{\nu} \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, \dots)$$

for first category sets  $F_{\nu}$ ,  $G_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ). Then we have  $\overset{\mathcal{Z}}{\underset{\sim}{\mathcal{Z}}} A_{\nu} = (\overset{\mathcal{Z}}{\underset{\sim}{\mathcal{Z}}}, \mathcal{D}_{\nu}^{*}) \left\{ \overset{\mathcal{Z}}{\underset{\sim}{\mathcal{Z}}}, \mathcal{D}_{\nu}^{*} - \overset{\mathcal{Z}}{\underset{\sim}{\mathcal{Z}}}, \mathcal{D}_{\nu}^{*} + \overset{\mathcal{Z}}{\underset{\sim}{\mathcal{Z}}}, G_{\nu} \right\}$ 

As  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} F_i$  is of the first category,  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} V_i \circ - \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} V_i \circ F_i$  also is hence of the first category. Therefore  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A_i$  is a Beire set by definition. As  $\prod_{i=1}^{\infty} A_i = (\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A_i')'$ , we conclude by Theorem 1 further that  $\prod_{i=1}^{\infty} A_i$  also is a Beire set.

A collection of point sets  $\mathcal R$  is said to be totally additive, if  $\mathcal R \ni A$  implies  $\mathcal R \ni A'$  and  $\mathcal R \ni A$ ,  $(\nu=1,\,2,\ldots)$  implies  $\mathcal R \ni \mathcal E$ ,  $A_{\nu}$ . Considering complements, we see easily that if  $\mathcal R$  is totally additive, then  $\mathcal R \ni A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\,2,\ldots$ ) implies  $\mathcal R \ni \mathcal R$ . For every system of totally additive collections  $\mathcal R_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \mathcal A$ ), we see easily by definition that  $\mathcal R$   $\mathcal R$  also is tetally additive. Therefore there exists the least totally additive collection  $\mathcal L$  which contains all open sets. For such  $\mathcal L$ , every point set  $\mathcal R \models \mathcal L$  is called a Borel set. With this definition we have obviously by Theorems 1 and 2

### Theorem 3. Every Borel set is a Baire set.

A collection of point sets  ${\mathscr O}$  is said to be universally additive, if  $\mathcal{M} \ni A$  implies  $\mathcal{M} \ni A'$  and  $\mathcal{M} \ni A_{\mathbb{A}}(\lambda \in A)$  implies  $\mathcal{M} \ni \sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}$ . Considering complements, we see easily that if  ${\mathcal M}$  is universally additive, then  $\mathcal{M} \ni A_{\lambda} (\lambda \in A)$  implies  $\mathcal{M} \ni \prod_{1 \le a} A_{\lambda}$ . Similarly as Borel sets, we see easily that there exists the least universally additive collection of point sets  ${\mathscr U}$  which contains all open sets. Every point set contained in such W is called a topological set. Since every universally additive collection is naturally totally additive, we see by definition that every Borel set is a topological set. Consequently, all open sets and closed sets are topological sets. Furthermore, it is evident by definition that if every point set composed only of a single

§7)

10:

v1:

Fc

no

point is a topological set, then every point set is a topological set.

### §7 Compact sets

A point set A is said to be compact, if for each system of open sets  $U_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) such that  $A \subset \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} U_{\lambda}$  we can find a finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that  $A \subset \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} U_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ . Let  $\mathcal{H}$  be a neighbourhood system. If for each system  $U_{\lambda} \in \mathcal{H}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) such that  $A \subset \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} U_{\lambda}$  we can find a finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that  $A \subset \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} U_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ , then A is compact. Because if  $A \subset \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A_{\lambda_{\lambda}}^{\circ}$ , then for each point  $x \in A$  we can find  $U_{\lambda} \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $x \in U_{\lambda} \subset A_{\lambda_{\lambda}}^{\circ}$  for some  $\lambda_{\lambda} \in \Lambda$ . For such  $V_{\lambda} \in \mathcal{H}$  ( $x \in A$ ), as  $A \subset \sum_{\nu \in A} U_{\lambda}$ , we can find by assumption a finite number of points  $x_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that  $A \subset \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} U_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ , and then we have obviously  $A \subset \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} A_{\lambda_{\lambda_{\nu}}}^{\circ}$  for such  $x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ). Consequently A is compact by definition.

Theorem 1. If a point set A is compact, then AB also is compact for every closed set B.

Proof. If  $AB \subset \sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}^{*}$ , then we have obviously  $A \subset AB + B' \subset \sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}^{*} + B'$ .

As A is compact by assumption, we can find a finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \kappa$ ) such that  $A \subset \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{\circ} + B'$ , and hence  $AB \subset (\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{\circ})B + B'B \subset \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{\circ}$ ,

since  $\beta' = \beta^{-\prime} = \beta''$  by the formula  $\S 4(3)$ .

Theorem 2. If a point set A is compact, then every subset  $B \subset A$  composed of infinite points has a limiting point  $a \in A$  such that BU is composed of infinite points for every open set  $U \ni A$ .

<u>Proof.</u> If for each point  $x \in A$  we can find an open set  $U_x \ni x$  such that  $BU_z$  is composed only of a finite number of points, then, as A is compact by assumption, we can find a finite number of points  $x_* \in A$   $\{v = 1, 2, ..., x\}$  such that  $A \in \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} U_{x_k}$ , and hence

contradicting the assumption that B consists of infinite points.

Theorem 3. In order that a point set A be compact, it is necessary and sufficient that  $A \prod_{\lambda \in \Lambda} B_{\lambda}^- = 0$  implies  $A \prod_{\nu \in \Lambda} B_{\lambda_{\nu}} = 0$  for some finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa$ ).

 $\frac{2 \operatorname{roof}}{\lambda \epsilon_A} = 0 \text{ is equivalent to}$ 

A C (TI Bx")' = \( \Ba'' = \Ba''\),

and similarly  $A\prod_{i=1}^{\infty}B_{\lambda_i}^{-}=0$  is equivalent to  $A\subset\sum_{i=1}^{\infty}B_{\lambda_i}^{'}$ . Thus we see easily by definition that our Theorem 1s valid.

Theorem 4. If a point set A is compact, then for any sequence of closed sets  $B_1 \supset B_2 \supset \cdots$  such that  $AB_r \neq 0$  ( $r = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) we have  $A \overset{\circ}{\prod} B_r \neq 0$ .

Proof. Since  $A \prod_{\mu=1}^{n} B_{\mu} = AB_{\nu} \neq 0$  for every  $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ , we conclude by Theorem 3

v1

Fo:

 $\mathbf{a}\mathbf{F}$ 

nö

to

### CHAPTER II CLASSIFICATION OF TOPOLOGIES

### \$6 Comparation of topologies

Let R be an abstract space. For two topologies 7 and 7 on R, if ToT, then we shall say that T is stronger than T, or that T is weaker than 7.

Let my and my be neighbourhood systems respectively Theorem 1. of topologies & and J on R. In order that & C J, it is necessary and sufficient that Mod vox implies vove for some ver.

If T c 7, then Marvax implies obviously 7 a V az, such that  $\nabla \supset \nabla \ni x$ . Conversely, if  $\mathcal{M} \ni \nabla \ni x$  implies  $\nabla \supset \nabla \ni x$ for some V∈ N, then Y > X > x implies X > T > x for some T∈ M, and hence  $\nabla \supset \nabla \ni x$  for some  $\nabla \in \mathcal{H}$ . Consequently  $\mathcal{T} \ni X$  implies  $\Im \ni X$ , that is,  $\mathcal{T} \subset \Im$ .

From the definition of compact sets we conclude easily:

Theorem 2. For two topologies  $\mathcal{T} \subset \mathcal{I}$  on a space R, if a point set A is compact by ?. then A also is compact by ?.

The discrete topology is stronger than every other topology, because The trivial topoloevery point set is open by the discrete topology. gy is obviously weaker than every other topology.

For a system of topologies  $\gamma_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  on R, we see easily that the intersection T T, also is a topology on R. This topology TT, is obviously weaker than  $T_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ . Furthermore, for any topology  $\gamma$  which is weaker than  $\gamma_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  we have naturally  $T \subset \prod_{\lambda} T_{\lambda}$ . Thus  $\prod_{\lambda \in \lambda} T_{\lambda}$  is the strongest weaker topology of a system of topologies  $\mathfrak{I}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), and will be denoted by  $\bigcap \mathfrak{I}_{\lambda}$ . a neighbourhood system  $\mathcal{N}_{\lambda}$  of  $\mathcal{I}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), we may denote the strongest weaker topology of  $\mathfrak{I}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) by  $\bigcap \mathcal{H}_{\lambda}$ .

We shall prove further the existence of the weakest stronger topology of  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). For a neighbourhood system  $\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}$  of  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), if we

denote by  $\mathcal{H}_o$  the totality of point sets  $\tilde{\Pi}$   $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda_o}$  for every finite number of point sets  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{H}_{\lambda_{\nu}} \lambda_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), then we see easily that M. satisfies the conditions in \$2 Theorem 2. Therefore there exists uniquely a topology  $T_a$  for which  $\mathcal{H}_o$  is a neighbourhood system.  $\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}\supset\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda\in\Lambda$  , this topology  $\mathcal{I}_{\delta}$  is stronger than  $\mathcal{I}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ . If a topology  $\gamma$  is stronger than every  $\gamma_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$ , then we have obviously  $\mathfrak{I} \supset \mathcal{H}_o$ , and hence  $\mathfrak{I}$  is stronger than  $\mathfrak{I}_o$ . Therefore J. is the weakest stronger topology of  $\mathcal{I}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ). of a system of topologies  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

Now we can state:

Let  $\gamma_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a system of topologies on a sapce Theorem 3. R. There exists the strongest weaker topology \( \gamma\_{\lambda} \) and

$$\bigwedge_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \Im_{\lambda} = \prod_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \Im_{\lambda}.$$

There exists the weakest stronger topology U That and for a neighbourhood system  $\mathcal{N}_{\lambda}$  of  $\mathcal{I}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ )

 $\{ \prod_{i=1}^{n} \nabla_{\lambda_{i}} : \nabla_{\lambda_{i}} \in \mathcal{N}_{\lambda_{i}}, \lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda (\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \kappa), \kappa=1, 2, \ldots \}$ is a neighbourhood system of  $\bigcup_{x} \Upsilon_x$ .

If a topology T is weaker than a topology T on R, then for any point set A we have  $A^{ro} \in \mathcal{V} \subset \mathcal{I}$ , and hence  $A^{ro} \subset A^{\mathcal{I}o}$ . obtain further by duality

$$A^{T-} = (A^{(T)})' \supset (A^{(T)})' = A^{T-}$$

Therefore we have that  $\mathcal{T} \subset \mathcal{I}$  implies

Theorem 4. Let  $\mathfrak{I}_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  be a system of topologies on a space R such that for each pair  $\lambda_1, \lambda_2 \in \Lambda$  we can find  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  for which we have  $T_{\lambda} \supset \{T_{\lambda_1}, T_{\lambda_2}\}.$  Putting  $T = \bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} T_{\lambda}$ , we have then for every point set

$$A^{\gamma_0} = \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A^{\gamma_{\lambda^0}}, \qquad A^{\gamma_{\lambda^-}} = \prod_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A^{\gamma_{\lambda^-}}$$

Proof. From assumption we can conclude easily by Theorem 3 that  $\sum_{A\in A} T_A$  is an open basis of T. Therefore we have by definition

(9)

From this relation we conclude the other assertion by duality.

### §9 Relative topology

Let R be an abstract space and S a subspace of R. ponding to every point set A in R we obtain uniquely a point set ASin the subspace S . This point set AS in the subspace S is called the induced set of A into the subsapce S end denoted by  $A^S$ . complement  $A^{S'}$  means the one in the subspace S, namely  $A^{S'} = S - AS$ . As  $S-AS = SA' = A'^{S}$ , we have then

$$A^{S'} = A^{S'}.$$

For any system of point sets  $A_{\lambda}$  (  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) we have obviously

(2) 
$$\left(\sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A_{\lambda}\right)^{S} = \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A_{\lambda}^{S}$$
,

$$(3) \qquad \left( \begin{array}{cc} \overline{A_{k}} & A_{k} \\ \overline{A_{k}} & A_{k} \end{array} \right)^{S} = \begin{array}{cc} \overline{A_{k}} & A_{k} \\ \overline{A_{k}} & \overline{A_{k}} & \overline{A_{k}} \end{array}.$$

Let R be now a topological space with a topology 7, and S a sub-Putting space of R =

$$(4) \quad \gamma^{S} = \{A^{S} : A \in \gamma\},$$

we see easily that  $\gamma^{\, S}$  satisfies the topological conditions in the subspace S , and hence  $T^S$  is a topology on the subspace S . logy  $\Upsilon^S$  is called the relative topology of  $\Upsilon$  in the subspace S .

Concerning the relative topology, we have obviously by (2)

Concerning the relative topourhood system 
$$m$$
 of  $\gamma$ ,

Theorem 1. For a neighbourhood system  $m$  of  $\gamma$ ,

 $m^s = \{ \times^s : \times \in n \}$ 

# is a neighbourhood system of the relative topology TS.

For the totality of the closed sets "" in the subspace S by the relative topology  $\gamma^s$ , we have by definition

and hence by the formula (1)

$$\eta^{s'} = \{\gamma^s : \gamma \in \gamma'\} = \gamma'^s.$$

Thus we have

By virtue of (4) and (5), we obtain at once

A point set  $A \subset S$  is open or closed by the relative Theorem 2. topology  $\gamma^{s}$ , if and only if we can find an open or closed set x by  $\gamma$ respectively such that A = SX.

For a point set A in the subspace S, the opener or closure of Awith respect to the relative topology  $\mathfrak{I}^s$  will be denoted by  $A^{s}$  or  $A^{s}$ But we shall write  $A^{S-o}$ ,  $A^{So-}$ ,  $A^{So}$  instead of  $A^{S-So}$ ,  $A^{S \circ S}$ .  $(A^S)^{S \circ}$  respectively. On the other hand,  $A^{\circ}$  and  $A^{\circ}$  should mean the opener and closure of A with respect to the topology T.

Recalling the definition of the closure, we have by the formulas (3) and (5)

$$A^{S^-} = \prod_{\substack{A^S \subset X^S \in Y^{S'} \\ \text{for every point set } A \text{ in } R.}} X^S = (\prod_{\substack{AS \subset X \in Y' \\ \text{Therefore we have}}} X^S = (AS)^{-S}$$

(6) 
$$A^{S-} = (AS)^{-S}$$
.

Recalling  $\S4(3)$ , we conclude from (6) by (1)

$$A^{S^{\circ}} = A^{S'-1} = A^{(S-1)} = (A'S)^{-S!} = (A'S)^{(S)} = (A + S')^{(S)}$$
 and hence we have

(7) 
$$A^{Se} = (A + S')^{eS}$$
.

From (6) and (7) we conclude immediately

$$(8) \qquad A^{\circ S} \subset A^{S^{\circ}} \subset A^{S} \subset A^{S^{-}} \subset A^{-S}$$

This relation vields at once

(9) 
$$A > B$$
 implies  $A^S > B^S$ .

By virtue of Theorem 2 we have obviously

(10) 
$$A^{\circ S \circ} = A^{\circ S}$$
,  $A^{-S -} = A^{-S}$ .

Theorem 3. If 
$$S \in \mathcal{T}$$
, then we have for every point set  $A^{S \circ} = A^{\circ S}$ ,  $A^{S -} = A^{-S}$ 

Proof. As \$ is open by assumption, we have by (6) and \$4(8)

$$A^{S-} = (AS)^{-S} \supset (A^{-}S^{\circ})^{S} = (A^{-}S)^{S} = A^{-S}.$$

On the other hand we have obviously  $A^{S} \subset A^{-S}$  by the formula (8). We obtain  $A^{S^{-}} = A^{-S}$ . From this relation we conclude  $A^{S^{\circ}} = A^{\circ S}$  by duality

Theorem 4. If S is dense by the topology 7, then we have
$$A^{\circ -S} = A^{\circ S}, \qquad A^{-\circ S} = A^{-S \circ}.$$

By wirtue of (8), we have obviously  $A^{\circ s} \subset A^{\circ -s}$ . Proof.

(Chapter II

§9. §10)

the other hand we obtain by the formulas (6) and §4(8)

nend we obtain by the formulas (6, and 8).

$$A^{\circ S} = (A^{\circ}S)^{-S} \supset (A^{\circ \circ}S)^{-S} = A^{\circ -S}$$

because  $S^- = R$  by assumption. Therefore the first relation is ob-The second will be conclude from the first by duality.

Theorem 5. Let S be dense by 7. If a point set U is retained. gularly open by  $\gamma$  , then the induced set  $v^s$  also is regularly open by the relative topology 7s, and (US) = U. If a subset U < S is regularly open by 75, then we have U.S = U.

If  $\sigma$  is regularly open by  $\tau$ , then we have by Theorem 4 TS-0 = T-05-0 = T-0-08 = TE

and hence  $\nabla^S$  is regularly open by  $\Upsilon^S$ . Furthermore we have by §4(11) (US) - = U - S - = U.

because  $S^- = R$  by assumption. If a subset  $U \subset S$  is regularly open by  $Y^S$ , then we have by Theorem 4 and by the formula (6)

we have by Theorem 
$$T^{-o.S} = T^{S-o.} = T^{S}$$
,

and hence T- S = T.

Theorem 6. If S is dense by 7 and two subsets U, V C S are regularly open by 75, then we have

As S U-o = U , S V-o = V by Theorem 5, we have by the Proof. formula §4(11)

(UV)-0 = (SU-0V-0)-0 = S-0 U-0-0 V-0-0 = U-0V-0 because  $S^- = R$  by assumption.

Theorem 7. A point set A is dense in a point set S by the topology 7, if and only if the induced set AS is dense by the relative topology 75 .

If  $S \subset (SA)^-$ , then we have by the formula (6) Proof.

$$A^{S-} = (AS)^{-S} = S$$
,

Conversely, if and hence  $A^S$  is dense by the relative topology  $A^S$ .  $A^{S}$  is dense by  $T^{S}$ , then we have by the formula (6)

$$S = A^{S-} = (AS)^{-S} \subset (AS)^{-}.$$

and hence A is dense in S by 7.

For two subsets  $S_i \subset S_o \subset R$  we see easily by definition (4) that the relative topology  $\Upsilon^{S_i}$  of  $\Upsilon$  in S, coincides with the relative topology of Ts2 in S, for the relative topology Ts2 of T in S2, that is,

(11) 
$$\gamma^{s_1} = (\gamma^{s_2})^{s_1}$$
 for  $s_1 \in S_2$ .

### \$10 Regular topologies

A topology 7 on a space R is said to be regular, if

$$A = \sum_{A > X \in \mathcal{I}} X$$
 for every  $A \in \mathcal{I}$ .

A topological space will be said to be regular, if its topology is so. with this definition we see easily that if a topology 7 is regular, then for an open basis  $\mathcal{L}$  of  $\mathcal{L}$  we have  $A = \sum_{A \in \mathcal{L}} X$ . We also can say that a topology  $\gamma$  is regular, if and only if  $\gamma \ni A \ni a$  implies  $A > X \ni A$  for some  $X \in \Upsilon$ .

Theorem 1. If a topology 7 is regular, then for each topological set A,  $A \ni a$  implies  $A \supset \{a\}^{-}$ .

Proof. Let  $\mathcal{O}$  be the totality of point sets  $\mathcal{A}$  such that  $\mathcal{A} \ni \mathcal{A}$ implies  $A \supset \{a\}^{-}$  If  $\mathcal{O}(\ni A)$ , then for any  $a \in A$  we have  $\{a\}^{-} \subset A$ , and hence  $\{a\}^{-\prime} \ni \ell$  for every  $\ell \in A$ . As T is regular by assumption, we can find then  $X \in \mathcal{I}$  such that  $\{a\}^{-1} > X \ni \ell$ , and hence  $\{a\}^{-1} > \{\ell\}^{-1}$ . Consequently we have  $A\{\ell\} = 0$  for every  $\ell \in A$ , that is,  $A' \ni \ell$  implies  $A' \supset \{\ell\}^T$ . Thus  $\mathcal{O} \ni A$  implies  $\mathcal{O} \ni A'$ . Furthermore it is obvious that  $\alpha \ni A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) implies  $\alpha \ni \sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}$ . Therefore  $\alpha$  is universally As T is regular, we see easily that Of contains all open Accordingly of contains all topological sets by definition.

If a topology 7 is regular, then every compact to-Theorem 2. pological set is closed.

Froof. Let A be a compact topological set. As A' is a topological set too, we have by Theorem 1 that  $\ell \in A'$  implies  $\{\ell\}^- \subset A'$ . Therefore, for each point  $A \in A$  , corresponding to each point  $x \in A$  we ten find an open set  $X_n$  such that  $x \in X_n < \{\ell\}^n$ . For such  $X_n (x \in A)$ , as  $A\subset \sum_{x\in A} X_x$ , we can find a finite number of points  $x_1,\ldots,x_n\in A$  such (Chapter II

that  $A \subset \stackrel{\Sigma}{\underset{\sim}{\sum}} X_{\pi_{\nu}}$ . Then we have by the formula §4(7) 22

and hence  $\ell \in A^-$  for every  $\ell \in A$ . Therefore A is closed.

If a topology 7 is regular and a point set A is Theorem 3. compact, then its closure A- also is compact.

If  $A^- \subset \sum_{\lambda \in A} X_{\lambda}^{\circ}$ , then for each point  $z \in A$  we can find  $\lambda_{\chi} \in \Lambda$  such that  $\chi \in X_{\lambda_{\chi}}^{\circ}$ . For such  $X_{\lambda_{\chi}}^{\circ}$ , as  $\chi$  is regular by assumption, there is an open set  $Y_x$  for which  $x \in Y_x \prec X_{\lambda_x}$ . obviously  $A\subset\sum_{z\in A}Y_z$  , and hence we can find a finite number of points  $x_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ , ) such that

and hence by the formula §4(7)

Therefore A also is compact.

Recalling the relation \$9(9), we conclude easily

If a topology 7 is regular, then the relative topo-Theorem 4.

logy 7° also is regular for every subspace S.

For a system of regular topologies I, (A & A ), the Theorem 5. weakest stronger topology U 7, also is regular.

If  $\bigvee_{\lambda \in \mathcal{A}} \mathcal{A}_{\lambda} \ni \mathcal{O} \ni a$ , then we can find by §8 Theorem 3 a f1nite number of point sets  $U_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in T_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ ,  $\lambda_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, x$ ) such that ひつ荒びれる.

Since every  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda}$  is regular by assumption, we can find  $V_{\lambda_{\lambda}} \in \mathcal{T}_{\lambda_{\lambda}}$  such that  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \supset \nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{\gamma_{\lambda_{\nu}}} \supset \nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \ni \alpha \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa).$ 

Then, putting  $\nabla = \prod_{i=1}^{n} \nabla_{i}$ , we have  $\nabla \in \bigcup_{i \in A} T_{i}$  by §8 Theorem 3. Furthermore, putting  $\Im = \bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \Im_{\lambda}$ , we have

 $\alpha \in \nabla \subset \nabla^{\gamma_{-}} \subset \overset{\kappa}{\Pi} \ \nabla^{\gamma_{\lambda_{+}}} \subset \overset{\kappa}{\Pi} \ \nabla_{\lambda_{+}} \subset \overset{\kappa}{\Pi} \ \nabla_{\lambda_{+}} \subset U \ .$ Therefore  $\bigcup_{\lambda \in A} \Upsilon_{\lambda}$  is regular by definition.

### §11 Normal topologies

For an open Let R be a topological space with a topology  $\Upsilon$  .

set T, if X < Y < T implies X < Z < Y for some point set Z, then J is said to be normal in an open set V. With this definition, we see at once that if I is normal in an open set U, then I also is normal in every open set V C U.

Theorem 1. If I is regular, then for every open set W such that the closure v - is compact, 7 is normal in V.

If X < Y < V, then we have naturally X' < Y' < U < U'. Proof. Since I is regular by assumption, we have by definition

$$X^{\circ} \subset Y^{\circ} = \sum_{Y^{\circ} \not> Z \in Y} Z.$$

As V is compact by assumption, x also is compact by §7 Theorem 1, and hence we can find a finite number of open sets  $Z_{\nu} < Y''(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ such that  $X \subset \stackrel{\mathcal{X}}{\succeq} Z_{\nu} \prec Y^{\circ}_{\nu}$  that is,  $X \prec \stackrel{\mathcal{Z}}{\succeq} Z_{\nu} \prec Y_{\circ}$ 

Theorem 2. If 7 is normal in an open set U, then for two sequences of closed sets  $A_{\nu}$ ,  $B_{\nu} \subset \nabla (\nu = 1, 2, \dots)$  such that

$$\left( \stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma}_{1} A_{-} \right)^{-} \left( \stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma}_{1} B_{-} \right) = \left( \stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma}_{1} A_{-} \right) \left( \stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma}_{1} B_{-} \right)^{-} = 0,$$

we can find two open sets A, B C U such that

Proof. Since 7 is normal in T by assumption, we can find two sequences of open sets  $X_{\nu}$ ,  $Y_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) consecutively such that

$$A_{\nu}^{-} < X_{\nu} < \mathcal{T}(\sum_{\mu=1}^{2} B_{\nu}^{-})^{-}(\sum_{\mu=1}^{2} Y_{\mu})^{-},$$
 $B_{\nu}^{-} < Y_{\nu} < \mathcal{T}(\sum_{\mu=1}^{2} A_{\nu}^{-})^{-}(\sum_{\mu=1}^{2} X_{\mu})^{-}.$ 

For such open sets  $\chi_{\nu}$  and  $Y_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), if we put

$$A = \stackrel{\sim}{\underset{\sim}{\Sigma}} X_{\nu}$$
,  $B = \stackrel{\sim}{\underset{\sim}{\Sigma}} Y_{\nu}$ ,

then it is evident that

\$10, \$11)

Since we have for every y = 1, 2....

$$X_{\mu} = 0$$
,  $Y_{\mu} = 0$ ,  $Y_{\mu} = 0$ ,

we obtain  $X_{\nu}Y_{\mu} = 0$  for every  $\nu$ ,  $\mu = 1$ , 2,..., and hence AB = 0.

A topology 7 is said to be locally normal, if there is a system of open sets  $\overline{U}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) such that  $\sum_{i \in A} \overline{U}_{\lambda} = R$  and  $\gamma$  is normal in  $\overline{U}_{\lambda}$  for every A & A.

Theorem 3. If 7 is locally normal and every open set A satisfies the condition that  $A \Rightarrow x$  implies  $A \supset \{x\}$ , then T is regular.

For any point z ∈ A Let A be an arbitrary open set. we can find an open set  $T \ni X$  such that  $\Upsilon$  is normal in T, because  $\Upsilon$ is locally normal by assumption. Then we obtain  $A \cup \{x\}$  by assumption, and hence there is an open set X for which we have  $AV > X > \{x\}^{T}$ . Therefore ~ is regular. This relation yields obviously  $A > X \ni x$ .

A topology 7 on a space R is said to be normal, if 7 is normal in R. We also may say that a topological space is normal, if its With this definition we have topology is normal.

In order that a topology 7 be normal, it is neces-Theorem 4. sary and sufficient that for each pair of closed sets A, B subject to AB = 0, we can find two open sets X, Y such that ACX, BCY, and XY = 0.

If  $\gamma$  is normal and AB = 0 for two closed sets A, B, then we have obviously  $A \prec B'$  and hence there is a point set X such that  $A \prec X \prec B'$ . This relation yields  $A \subset X''$ ,  $B \subset X'' = X'''$ .

Conversely, if the stated condition is satisfied and  $\mathcal{A} \prec \mathcal{B}$ , then  $A^-B'^-=A^-B^{\circ\prime}=0$ , and hence we can find two open sets X, Y such that  $A^{-}CX$ ,  $B^{\prime}-CY$ , and XY=0. This relation yields obviously A- CX CX - CY' C B'-' = B°.

Therefore 7 is normal by definition.

Even if a topology I on a space R is normal, the relative topolo-If the relative topology gy  $\P^S$  (S < R ) is not necessarily normal.  $\eta^S$  is normal for every subspace S of R , then  $\gamma$  is said to be completaly normal.

### §12 Compact topologies

A topology 7 on a space R is said to be compact, if R is compact With this definition we have

ъэ 🤼 . In order that a point set S be compact by 7, it is Theorem 1. necessary and sufficient that the relative topology 75 be compact.

If S is compact by  $\gamma$  and  $S = \sum_{\lambda \in A} X_{\lambda}^{S}$  for a system of open sets  $X_{\lambda} \in \mathcal{I}$  ( $\lambda \in \mathcal{A}$ ), then we have  $S \subset \sum_{\lambda \in \mathcal{A}} X_{\lambda}$ , and hence we can find a finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu}\in\mathcal{A}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\times$ ) such that we have  $S \subset \stackrel{\times}{\underset{i=1}{\Sigma}} \times_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ , that is,  $S = \stackrel{\times}{\underset{i=1}{\Sigma}} \times_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{S}$ . Therefore the relative topology 7s is compact by definition.

CLASSIFICATION OF TOPOLOGIES

Conversely, if the relative topology  $\Upsilon^s$  is compact and  $S \subset X_{\lambda}$ for a system of open sets  $X_{\lambda} \in \Upsilon$  (  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ), then we have  $S = \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} X_{\lambda}^{\beta}$  , and hence we can find a finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda$  (  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ×) such that

$$S = \underbrace{\sharp}_{i}^{2} X_{\lambda_{i}}^{2} \subset \underbrace{\sharp}_{i}^{2} X_{\lambda_{i}}.$$

Therefore S is compact by T.

Recalling the formula \$9(11) we conclude immediately from Theorem 1 If a point set A is compact by a relative topology  $T^{B}$  for some point set B > A, then A also is compact by the relative topology for every point set  $S \supset A$ .

A topology 7 on a space R is said to be locally compact, if there is a system of open sets  $\overline{U_{\lambda}} \in \gamma$  (  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) such that  $\sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \overline{U_{\lambda}} = R$  and the closure  $V_{\lambda}$  is compact for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  . We also shall say that a topological space is locally compact, if its topology is so.

A neighbourhood system N of a topology Y is called a compact neighbourhood system, if the closure of every point set of  ${\mathcal H}$  is com-With this definition, we see easily by definition that a topology I is locally compact, if and only if I has a compact neighbourhood system.

Recalling Ill Theorem 1, we obtain obviusly by definition

If a topology 7 is regular and locally compact, then Theorem 3. T is locally normal.

### \$13 Separative topologies

Let R be a topological space with a topology 7. said to be separated from a point 4 by the topology 7, if we can find 26 TOPOLOGY

an open set  $\sigma$  such that  $\sigma \ni a$  but  $\sigma \ni b$ . Thus, if a is separated from b, then we have  $a \in \{b\}$ . If each point of R is separated by the topology  $\mathfrak T$  from every other point of R, then we shall say that R is separated by its topology  $\mathfrak T$ , or that the topology  $\mathfrak T$  is separative. With this definition we have obviously

Theorem 1. In order that a topological space R be exparated by its topology, it is necessary and sufficient that  $\{x\}^2 = \{x\}$  for every point  $x \in R$ .

A topological space R is called a <u>Hausdorff space</u>, if for each pair of different points a and b we can find two open sets V and V such that  $a \in V$ ,  $b \in V$ , and V V = 0. It is evident by definition that a Hausdorff space is separated by its topology.

Theorem 2. If a topological space R is regular and separated, then R is a Hausdorff space.

Proof. For each pair of different points  $\alpha$  and  $\ell$ , we can find an open set A such that  $\alpha \in A$  but  $\ell \in A$ , because R is separated by assumption. Then there is an open set U such that  $\alpha \in U < A$ , because R is regular by assumption. Furthermore, putting  $V = U^{-\ell}$ , we have obviously U = 0 and  $V > A' \ni \ell$ . Therefore R is a Hausdorff space.

Theorem 3. If a topology 7 is separative and locally normal, then 7 is regular.

<u>Proof.</u> Let A be an arbitrary open set. For each point  $a \in A$  we can find an open set  $V \ni A$  such that T is normal in V, because R is locally normal by assumption. Since T is furthermore separative by assumption, we have then by Theorem 1  $\{a\} = \{a\} \subset AV$ , and hence there is an open set V such that  $\{a\} \subset V \prec AV$ . This relation yields  $a \in V \prec A$ . Therefore T is regular by definition.

If a topological space R is separated, then every point of R is by Theorem 1 itself a closed set, and hence every point set in R is a topological set. Therefore we obtain by §10 Theorem 2

Theorem 4. If a topology 7 is separative and regular, then every compact set is closed.

Furthermore we can prove

Theorem 5. In a Hausdorff space R, every compact set is closed. Proof: Let A be a compact set. If  $a \in A$ , then corresponding to every point  $x \in A$  we can find open sets  $\mathcal{T}_x$  and  $\mathcal{T}_x$  such that

$$x \in \nabla_x$$
,  $a \in \nabla_x$ ,  $\nabla_x \nabla_x = 0$ ,

because R is a Hausdorff space by assumption. Then we have obviously  $A \subset \sum_{X \in A} |U_X|$  As A is compact by assumption, there is hence a finite marker of points  $x_\nu \in A$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times)$  such that  $A \subset \sum_{i=1}^n |U_{X_\nu}|$ . For such  $X_\nu \in A$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times)$ , we have obviously

$$a\in \mathop{\mathbb{H}}_{\nu=1}^{n} \, \nabla_{x_{\nu}} \, , \quad (\mathop{\textstyle \frac{2\ell}{2-1}} \, \nabla_{x_{\nu}} \, ) \, (\mathop{\textstyle \frac{2\ell}{2-1}} \, \nabla_{x_{\nu}} \, ) = 0 \, ,$$

and hence  $\alpha \in \mathbb{N}$   $V_{r_{p}} \subset A'$ . Therefore every point  $\alpha \in A$  is not a contact point of A. Thus A is closed.

Theorem 8. If a Kausdorff space R is locally compact, then R is regular and locally normal.

Proof. Let W be a compact neighbourhood system. If  $\alpha \in A^\circ$ , then we can find  $B \in W$ , such that  $\alpha \in B \subset A^\circ$ . As R is a Hausdorff space by assumption, corresponding to every point  $x \in B^\circ$  B' we can find two open sets  $X_x$  and  $Y_x$  such that  $\alpha \in X_x$ ,  $x \in Y_x$ , and  $X_x Y_x = O$ . Since B is compact by assumption, B B' also is compact by §7 Theorem 1 and hence we can find a finite number of points  $x_x$  ( $y = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that  $B^\circ B' \subseteq \sum_{x \in Y_x} Y_{xx}$ . For such  $x_x$  ( $y = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), putting

we obtain two open sets X and Y such that

$$a \in X \subset B$$
,  $XY = 0$ ,  $B^*B' \subset Y$ .

Then, since  $X^*Y \subset (XY)^* = 0$  by the formules (8), (2) in §4, we obtain  $X^*S^*S^* = 0$ , and hence  $X^* = X^*S^* \subset S$ , that is,  $a \in X \prec S$ . Thereform X is regular by definition. Accordingly X is locally normal by §1.9 Theorem 3.

Theorem 7. For two topologies  $\gamma_1 \subset \gamma_2$  on a space R, if R is separated by  $\gamma_2$ , then R also is separated by  $\gamma_2$ ; and if R is a Hausdorff space by  $\gamma_3$ , then R also is a Hausdorff space by  $\gamma_4$ .

Proof. If R is separated by  $\gamma$ , then for any pair of different

§13, §14)

points a and k , we can find  $\sigma \in T$ , such that  $\sigma 
i a$  but  $\sigma 
i b$ . Then, as  $T_1 \subset T_2$ , we also have  $T \in T_2$ . Thus R also is separated We also can prove likewise the other assertion.

For two topologies  $7, < 7_s$  on a space R, if R is compact by  $\mathcal{I}_2$  and a Hausdorff space by  $\mathcal{I}_1$ , then  $\mathcal{I}_1 = \mathcal{I}_2$ .

For every point set  $A \in \mathcal{T}_2$ , recalling §7 Theorem 1, we Proof. see that the complement A' is compact by  $\mathcal{T}_2$ , and hence A' also is compact by  $T_4$ , because  $T_4 \subset T_2$ . Consequently A' is closed by  $T_4$  by Theorem 5, that is,  $A \in \mathcal{I}_1$ . Therefore we obtain  $\mathcal{I}_1 \supset \mathcal{I}_2$ .

We have obviously by definition

If a topological space R is separated or a Hausdorff Theorem 9. space, then every subspace of R also is separated or a Hausdorff space respectively by the relative topology.

### \$14 Sequential topologies

Let R be a topological space with a topology 7. A system of open sets  $U_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) is called a neighbourhood system of a point  $\alpha$ , if for each open set  $A \ni A$  we can find  $\lambda \in A$  such that  $A \in \mathcal{O}_{\lambda} \subset A$  . For a point a, if there is a neighbourhood system of a which is composed of countable open sets, then the topology  $\Upsilon$  is said to be sequential at the point &, and such neighbourhood system is called a countable neighbourhood system of A. If a topology 7 is sequential at every point, then T is said to be sequential. We also shall say that a topological space is sequential, if its topology is sequential.

If  $\Im$  is sequential at a point  $\alpha$ , then we see easily by definition that there is a countable neighbourhood system  $U_{\nu} \in \mathcal{I}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that U, D U2 D 6 · · ·

For a point sequence  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ , if there is a point  $a_{\nu}$ such that for each open set  $A \ni \alpha$  we can find  $\nu_o$  such that we have  $\alpha \iota \in A$ for every  $\nu \geq \nu_0$ , then we shall say that  $\alpha_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R} (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  is convergent to a limit a and we shall write  $\lim_{n \to \infty} a_n = a$ .

If  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} a_{\nu,\mu} = a_{\mu}$   $\mu = 1, 2, ...$ ,  $\lim_{\mu \to \infty} a_{\mu} = a$ , and  $\gamma$ is sequential at the point  $\alpha$ , then we can find  $\nu_{\mu}$  ( $\mu = 1, z, ...$ ) such that  $\lim_{m\to\infty} a_{\nu m}, m=a$ .

For a countable neighbourhood system  $\mathcal{U}_i \supset \mathcal{U}_2 \supset \ldots$  of the Proof. point  $\alpha$  , we can find  $\mu_{\sigma}(\sigma=1, 2,...)$  such that  $\alpha_{\mu} \in \mathcal{D}_{\sigma}$  for  $\mu \geq \mu \sigma$ . We see easily further that there is  $\nu_{\mu}$  ( $\mu$   $\Xi \mu_{1}$ ) such that  $a_{\nu_{\mu},\mu} \in \mathcal{U}_{\sigma}$ for  $\mu_{\varepsilon} \leq \mu^{-\epsilon} \mu_{\varepsilon+1}$ . Then we have obviously  $\lim_{\mu \to \infty} a_{\mu, \mu} = a$ , putting  $\nu_{\varepsilon}$ ,  $v_1$  ,...,  $v_{p,-1}$  arbitrary, because  $v_1, v_2, \ldots$  is a neighbourhood system of a .

Theorem 2. If 7 is sequential, then for each contact point a of a point set A we can find a point sequence  $a_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} a_{\nu} = a$ .

For a countable neighbourhood system  $v_i > v_2 > \dots$  of a Proof. contact point  $\alpha$  of a point set A , as  $\alpha \in \mathcal{D}$ ,  $\in \mathcal{I}$ , we can find a point sequence  $a_{\nu} \in A U_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), and then we have obviously  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} a_{\nu} = a$ .

Even if a point sequence is convergent, its limit is not necessarily uniquely determined. But we see easily by definition that if R is a Hausdorff space, then for each convergent point sequence its limit is uniquely determined. Consequently we see by 13 Theorem 2 that if R is separated and regular, then for every convergent point sequence its limit is uniquely determined.

A topology 7 is said to be separable, if there is a dense set which is composed of countable points: We also shall say that a topological space is separable, if its topology is separable. Even if a topology is separable, its relative topology is not necessarily separable.

A topology of is said to be completely separable, if there is a neighbourhood system composed of countable open sets, and such a neighbourhood system is called a countable neighbourhood system of  ${\mathcal I}$  . this definition, it is evident that if a topology 7 is completely separable, then  $\gamma$  is sequential and every relative topology of  $\gamma$  also is completely separable. Furthermore, if a topology  $\gamma$  is completely separable, then 🦙 is separable. Because, for a countable neighbourhood system  $\nabla_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1$ , 2,...), a point sequence  $a_{\nu} \in \nabla_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1$ , 2,...)

(Chapter II

constitutes a dense set.

30

If a topology 7 is regular and completely Theorem 3. (Tychonof) separable, then 7 is normal.

For two point sets A < B, as  $\Im$  is regular and completely Proof. separable, we can find a sequence of open sets  $\mathcal{B}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) such that  $B^{\circ} = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} B_{\nu_i}, \qquad B_{\nu_i} < B^{\circ} \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, \dots).$ 

Hence we see by duality that there is a sequence of closed sets  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1$ , 2....) such that

$$A^- = \prod_{\nu=1}^{\infty} A_{\nu}, \qquad A_{\nu} > A^- \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, \dots).$$

For such closed sets  $A_{\nu}$  and open sets  $B_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ), putting F. = A. + B. .

$$G_{\nu} = B_{\nu} \prod_{n=0}^{\nu-1} F_{\mu}^{\nu}, \quad F_{\nu} = A_{\nu} + \sum_{n=1}^{\nu} G_{\mu}^{-},$$

we obtain open sets  $G_{\nu}$  and closed sets  $F_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ). have obviously  $G_{\nu}\subset F_{\mu}$  for every  $\nu$  ,  $\mu=1$  , 2,..., and hence

As  $A \prec A$ , CF,  $(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ , we ha

 $\tilde{\Xi}_{G_{\nu}} > \tilde{\Xi}_{\nu} (A^{-}B_{\nu}\tilde{\Pi}_{\nu}^{+}F_{\nu}^{*}) = \tilde{\Xi}_{\nu} A^{-}B_{\nu} = A^{-}B^{\circ} = A^{-}.$ 

because  $A \subset B^{\circ}$  by assumption. As  $G_{\nu} \subset B_{\nu} \prec B^{\circ}$ , we have  $\tilde{\Pi}_{F_{\kappa}} \subset \tilde{\Pi}_{\kappa}(B^{\circ} + A_{\kappa} + \tilde{Z}_{\kappa}G_{\kappa}^{-}) = \tilde{\Pi}_{\kappa}(B^{\circ} + A_{\kappa}) = B^{\circ} + A^{-} = B^{\circ}.$ 

Therefore I is normal Thus, putting  $\chi = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} G_{i}$ , we have  $A < \chi < 8$ . by definition.

CHAPTER III

#### CONTINUOUS MAPPINGS

### \$15 Mappings

Let R and S be two abstract spaces. A correspondence or , which assigns to every point  $z \in R$  a point  $\alpha(z) \in S$ , is called a mapping of R into S, and a(x) the image of x.

Let or be a mapping of R into S. For a point set  $A \subset S$ , the totality of points whose images belong to A, is called the inverse image of A and denoted by o(A), that is.

$$\alpha^{-1}(A) = \{ x : o(x) \in A \}.$$

Concerning the inverse image, we have obviously the following:

(1) 
$$\alpha^{-1}(0) = 0$$
,  $\alpha^{-1}(S) = R$ ,

(2) 
$$\alpha^{-1}(A') = \alpha^{-1}(A)'$$

(3) 
$$\alpha^{-1}(\sum_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}) = \sum_{\lambda \in A} \alpha^{-1}(A_{\lambda}),$$

(4) 
$$\alpha^{-1}(\prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}) = \prod_{\lambda \in A} \alpha^{-1}(A_{\lambda}),$$

(5) 
$$A \subset B$$
 implies  $\alpha^{-1}(A) \subset \alpha^{-1}(B)$ ,

6) 
$$AB = 0$$
 implies  $a^{-1}(A)a^{-1}(B) = 0$ .

Here the relations (1), (2), and (3) are essential for the inverse image  $\alpha t^{-1}$ , i.e., if a correspondence  $\alpha^{-1}$  which assigns to every point set  $A \in \mathbb{S}$ a point set  $\mathfrak{A}^{-1}(A) \subset \mathbb{R}$ , satisfies the relations (1), (2), and (3), then there exists uniquely a mapping  $\alpha$  of R into S such that  $\alpha^{-1}$  is a inverse image of Ot .

For a point set  $X \subset R$ , the totality of images  $\alpha(x)$  for  $x \in X$  is called the image of X and denoted by  $\alpha(X)$ , that is,  $\alpha(X) = \{\alpha(x) : x \in X\}$ 

Concerning images of point sets, we have obviously the following :

(7) 
$$X \subset Y$$
 implies  $\alpha(X) \subset \alpha(Y)$ ,

(8) 
$$\alpha(\Sigma_{\lambda}) = \Sigma_{\lambda} \alpha(\lambda_{\lambda}),$$

(9) 
$$a(\prod_{\lambda \in \Lambda} X_{\lambda}) \subset \prod_{\lambda \in \Lambda} a(X_{\lambda}),$$

(10) 
$$X \subset \alpha^{-1}(A)$$
 implies  $\alpha(X) \subset A$ .

As  $\alpha^{-1}(\alpha(x)) = \{x : \alpha(x) \in \alpha(x)\} \supset X$ , we obtain

$$(11) \qquad \alpha^{-1}(\alpha(x)) \supset X.$$

(Chapter III

Since  $x \in \mathfrak{A}^{-1}(A)$  is by definition equivalent to  $\mathfrak{A}(x) \in A$ , we have

$$\alpha(\times \alpha^{-1}(A)) = \{\alpha(x) : x \in X \alpha^{-1}(A)\}$$
$$= \{\alpha(x) : x \in X, \alpha(x) \in A\} = \alpha(X)A,$$

that is, we have

32

(12) 
$$\alpha(X \alpha^{-1}(A)) = \alpha(X) A$$
.

In particular, putting X = R in (12), we obtain

(13) 
$$a(a^{-1}(A)) = a(R)A$$
.

Since we have by (2) and (11)

$$a^{-1}(a(x)') = a^{-1}(a(x))' \subset X'$$

we obtain by (7) and (13)

(14) 
$$\sigma(R)\sigma(X)' \subset \sigma(X')$$
.

If  $\alpha(R) = S$ , then  $\alpha$  is called a mapping of R onto S. Every mapping of R into S may be considered as a mapping of R onto the subspace  $\alpha(R)$  of S.

For a mapping of of R onto S, we see at once that

 $a_{k}^{-1}(\{a\}) \neq 0$  for every  $a \in S$ .

If  $\alpha^{-1}(\{a\})$  is composed only of a single point for every  $a \in S$  , then  $\alpha$ is said to be a transformation from R to S, that is, a transformation from R to S is a one-to-one correspondence from R to S.

For a transformation on from R to S, putting

$$f(a) = \sigma^{-1}(\{a\})$$
 for every  $a \in S$ ,

we obtain obviously a transformation & from S to R. This transformation & is called the inverse transformation of a and denoted by  $a_{i}^{-1}$ , that is, we have

$$\alpha^{-1}(\alpha) = \alpha^{-1}(\{\alpha\})$$
 for every  $\alpha \in S$ .

Concerning the inverse transformation  $\alpha^{-1}$  we have obviously

$$o_{\alpha}(\alpha^{-1}(\alpha)) = \alpha$$

for every a e S.

$$\alpha^{-1}(\alpha(z)) = x$$

for every  $\kappa \in R$ .

A mapping on of R into S may be said to be a transformation, if a is a transformation as a mapping of R onto the subspace  $\alpha(R)$  of S.

#### \$16 Continuous mappings

Let R and S be topological spaces with topologies 7 and 7 respectively, and a mapping of R into S. A mapping a is said to be continuous, if we have

$$a^{-1}(A) \in \mathfrak{I}$$

 $\alpha^{-1}(A) \in \mathfrak{I}$  for every  $A \in \mathfrak{T}$ .

With this definition we have obviously by §15(2)

In order that a mapping on be continuous, it is ne-Theorem 1. cessary and sufficient that we have

$$\alpha^{-1}(A) \in \mathfrak{I}'$$

for every  $A \in \mathcal{N}'$ 

for the totality of closed sets  $\gamma'$  and  $\gamma'$  respectively of R and S.

Theorem 2. In order that a mapping on be continuous, it is necessary and sufficient that we have

$$\alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ}) \subset \alpha^{-1}(A)^{\circ}$$
 for every  $A \subset S$ .

Proof. If  $\sigma$  is continuous, then we have by §4(1) and §15(5)  $a^{-1}(A^{\circ}) = a^{-1}(A^{\circ})^{\circ} \subset a^{-1}(A)^{\circ}$ 

Conversely, if  $\alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ}) \leq \alpha^{-1}(A)^{\circ}$  for every  $A \subset S$ , then we have by the relations  $\S4(1)$ ,  $\S4(4)$ , and  $\S15(5)$ 

$$\alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ})^{\circ} \subset \alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ}) = \alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ \circ}) \subset \alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ})^{\circ},$$

and hence  $\alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ}) \in \mathcal{I}$  for every  $A \subset S$ , that is,  $\alpha$  is continuous by definition.

Recalling the formula §15(2), we conclude from Theorem 2 by duality

Theorem 3. In order that a mapping a be continuous, it is necessary and sufficient that we have

$$a^{-1}(A^{-}) \supset a^{-1}(A)^{-1}$$
 for every  $A \subset S$ .

In order that a mapping on be continuous, it is necessary and sufficient that we have

$$\alpha(x)^- > \alpha(x^-)$$

for every X < R.

Proof. If A is continuous, then we have by Theorem 3 and by the relation \$15(11)

$$\alpha^{-1}(\alpha(x)^{-}) \supset \alpha^{-1}(\alpha(x))^{-1} \supset x^{-}$$

and hence we obtain by the relations §15(7) and §15(13)  $\alpha(x)^- \supset \alpha(\alpha^{-1}(\alpha(x))) \supset \alpha(x^-)$ .

3161

(Chapter III

Conversely, if  $\alpha(x) \supset \alpha(x)$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ , then we have for every  $A \subset S$  by the relation  $\S15(13)$ .

$$A^{-} \supset \alpha (\alpha^{-1}(A))^{-} \supset \alpha (\alpha^{-1}(A)^{-}),$$

and hence by the formula \$15(11)

34.

$$a^{-1}(A^{-}) > a^{-1}(a(a^{-1}(A)^{-})) > a^{-1}(A)^{-}$$

Therefore A is continuous by Theorem 3.

Let of and of be neighbourhood systems respectively Theorem 5. In order that a mapping on be continuous, it is necesof Y and T. sary and sufficient that for any point re R and for any open set We m containing  $\alpha(x)$ , we can find  $V \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $V \ni x$  and  $\alpha(V) \subset \mathcal{T}$ .

If at is continuous and a(x) & Tem; then we have  $x \in \mathfrak{A}^{-1}(\nabla) \in \mathfrak{J}$ , and hence we can find  $\nabla \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $x \in \nabla \subset \mathfrak{A}^{-1}(\mathcal{O})$ . This relation yields by the relations \$15(7) and \$15(13)

Conversely, if  $\alpha(x) \in V \in \mathcal{W}$  implies  $x \in V$ ,  $\alpha(V) \subset V$  for some  $V \in \mathcal{H}$ . then for any  $v \in w$  subject to  $x^{-1}(v) \neq 0$ , as  $x(v) \in v$  implies by the formula \$15(11)  $\nabla \subset \alpha^{-1}(\nabla)$ , we have

$$\alpha^{-1}(\nabla) = \sum_{\alpha^{-1}(\nabla) \geq \nabla \in \mathcal{H}} \nabla$$

and hence we conclude that  $g^{-1}(\sigma) \in \mathcal{T}$  for every  $\sigma \in \mathcal{M}$ . quently we obtain by \$15(3) that for any  $A\in \mathcal{V}$  , if  $A\neq 0$  , then we have

$$\alpha^{-1}(A) = \alpha^{-1}(\sum_{A \in \mathcal{D} \in \mathcal{M}} \nabla) = \sum_{A \in \mathcal{D} \in \mathcal{M}} \alpha^{-1}(\nabla) \in \mathcal{T}_{\mathcal{D}}$$

Therefore at is continuous by assumption.

Recalling §9 Theorem 1, we conclude immediately from Theorem 5

If a mapping of is continuous, then for every point set X < R and for any point set A < S including the image a(X), a also is continuous as a mapping of the subspace X into the subspace A by the relative topologies.

If a mapping on is continuous, then for every compact Theorem 7. set X < R its image a(X) also is compact.

If  $\alpha(x) \in \mathcal{Z} A_{\lambda}$  for a system of open sets  $A_{\lambda} \in \mathcal{V}(\lambda \in A_{\lambda})$ then we have by the formulas \$15(11) and \$15(3)

$$\times \subset \alpha^{-1}(\alpha(x)) \subset \mathbb{Z} \alpha^{-1}(Ax).$$

As  $\alpha$  is continuous by assumption, we have  $\alpha^{-1}(A_{\lambda}) \in \mathcal{I}$  for every  $\lambda \in A$ and hence we can find a finite mishage of elements as and ( v = 1, 2, ....  $\kappa$  ) such that  $X \subset \sum_{i=1}^{n} \alpha^{-i}(A_{k_i})$ , because X is compact by assumption. Then we have by the relations \$15(8) and \$15(13)

$$\sigma(x) \subset \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \sigma(\sigma^{-i}(A_{2i})) \subset \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A_{2i}$$

Therefore ou(X) is compact by definition.

Theorem 3. If a mapping on is continuous, then A < B < ,S implies  $a^{-1}(A) < a^{-1}(B)$ 

Proof. If A < 8, that is, if  $A^* \subset B^*$ , then we have by Theorems 2 and 3

$$\alpha^{-1}(A)^- < \alpha^{-1}(A^*) < \alpha^{-1}(B^*) < \alpha^{-1}(B)^*,$$

and hence  $\sigma^{-1}(A) < \sigma^{-1}(8)$  by definition.

Theorem 9. If two continuous mappings on, and on a of R into S coincide in a dense set  $X \subset R$ , that is,  $\alpha_1(x) = \alpha_2(x)$  for every  $x \in X$ and if S is a Hausdorff space by its topology T, then a, and a, coinside over the whole space R .

<u>Proof.</u> If  $\alpha_1(x_0) \neq \alpha_2(x_0)$  for a point  $x_0 \in \mathbb{R}$ , then we can find two open sets  $A_1, A_2 \in T$  such that  $\alpha_1(x_0) \in A_1$ ,  $\alpha_1(x_0) \in A_2$ , and  $A_1, A_2 = 0$ . because S is a Hausdorff space by assumption. Then we can find by Theorem 5 two open sets  $Y_1, Y_2 \in Y$  such that  $X_0 \in Y_1$ ,  $X_0 \in Y_2$ ,  $\alpha_1(Y_1) \in A_1$ ,  $\alpha_1(Y_1) \subset A_1$ , and hence  $\alpha_1(X,Y_1,Y_2) = 0$ . Since  $\alpha_1$  coincides with  $\alpha_1$  in X by assumption, we have  $\alpha_1(XY_1Y_2) = \alpha_2(XY_1Y_2)$ . Therefore we obtain  $\alpha_1(X Y_1 Y_2) = 0$ , and hence  $X Y_1 Y_2 = 0$ , contradicting the assumption that X is dense in R. and Y,  $Y_1 \neq 0$ .

Let  $R_1$ ,  $R_2$ , and  $R_3$  be abstract spaces. For two mappings  $\sigma_{k_1}$ of R, into R2 and  $M_2$  of R2 into R3, putting

 $\alpha_3(\pi) = \alpha_2(\alpha_1(\pi))$ for every x e R. . we obtain a mapping  $\alpha_2$  of  $R_1$  into  $R_2$ . This mapping  $\alpha_2$  is called the composition of  $\alpha_1$  and  $\alpha_2$  , and denoted by  $\alpha_1\alpha_1$  . With this definition we see easily that we have

 $(\alpha_1 \alpha_1)^{-1}(A) = \alpha_1^{-1}(\alpha_2^{-1}(A))$  for every  $A \in R_A$ . Let  $R_1$ ,  $R_2$ , and  $R_3$  now be topological spaces.

37

by definition that if both mappings  $\alpha$ , of R, into  $R_2$  and  $\alpha_2$  of  $R_2$ into  $R_3$  are continuous, then the composition  $a_1a_1$  also is continuous.

### §17 Open mappings, closed mappings

Let R and S be topological spaces respectively with topologies T and  $\mathcal{T}$ , and  $\alpha$  a mapping of R onto S, that is,  $\alpha(R) = S$ .

 $\sigma(x) \in \mathcal{T}$  for every  $x \in \mathcal{I}$ .

With this definition we have them or is said to be open.

In order that a mapping a be open, it is necessary Theorem 1. and sufficient that we have

 $n(x^{\circ}) \subset n(x)^{\circ}$  for every  $x \subset \mathbb{R}$ .

If On is open, then we have by definition Proof.  $\alpha(x^{\circ}) = \alpha(x^{\circ})^{\circ}$  for every  $x \in R$ ,

and hence we obtain by the relations §4(1) and §15(7)

 $\alpha(x^{\circ}) = \alpha(x^{\circ})^{\circ} \subset \alpha(x)^{\circ}$ .

Conversely, if  $\alpha(x^{\circ}) \subset \alpha(x)^{\circ}$  for every  $x \subset R$ , then we have by the relations §4(4) and §4(1) for every  $X \in \mathcal{T}$ 

 $a(x) = a(x^{\circ}) \subset a(x)^{\circ}$ .

and hence  $\alpha(x) = \alpha(x)^{\circ} \in \mathscr{Y}$ .

36

For the totality of closed sets T' in R and T' in S, if

 $\alpha(x, \in \mathcal{V}')$  for every  $x \in \mathcal{V}'$ ,

With this definition, we have then a is said to be closed.

In order that a mapping a be closed, it is necessary Theorem 2. and sufficient that we have

 $a(x^{-}) \supset a(x)^{-}$  for every  $x \in R$ .

If  $\alpha$  is closed, then we have by definition  $\alpha(x^{-}) = \alpha(x^{-})^{-}$ for every  $X \subset R$ , and hence by the formulas  $\S 4(1)$  and  $\S 15(7)$ 

 $\alpha(x^{-}) = \alpha(x^{-})^{-} \supset \alpha(x)^{-}$ .

Conversely, if  $\alpha(x^-) > \alpha(x)^-$  for every  $x \in R$ , then we have by the relations §4(4) and §4(1) for every  $x \in \Upsilon'$ 

 $\alpha(x) = \alpha(x^{-}) \supset \alpha(x)^{-}$ 

and hence  $\alpha(x) = \alpha(x)^- \in \Upsilon'$ 

(17)

Recalling \$16 Theorem 4, we conclude from Theorem 2

Theorem 3. In order that a mapping or be continuous and closed, it is necessary and sufficient that we have

CONTINUOUS MAPPINGS

 $\alpha(X^{-}) = \alpha(X)^{-}$ for every X < R.

Theorem 4. If R is compact by 7 and S is a Hausdorff space by &, then every continuous mapping of R onto S is closed.

As R is compact by assumption, every closed set  $x \in \Upsilon'$ is compact by §7 Theorem 1. Thus, if a mapping on of R onto S is continuous, then we see by §16 Theorem 7 that for every closed set X € 1' the image  $\sigma(x)$  is compact, and hence  $\sigma(x)$  is closed by §13 Theorem 5, because S is a Hausdorff space by assumption.

If the topology 7 of R is normal and there is a Theorem 5. continuous and closed mapping on of R onto S, then the topology ? of S also is normal.

If  $\Upsilon \supset A > B$ , then we have  $\alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ}) \supset \alpha^{-1}(B^{-1})$ . AS OL is continuous by assumption,  $\sigma^{-1}(A^{\circ})$  is open and  $\sigma^{-1}(B^{-})$  is closed. I is normal by assumption, there is then a point set X < R such that  $a^{-1}(A^{\circ}) > x > a^{-1}(R^{-})$ 

For such X, we have by the formula \$15(2)

$$\alpha^{-1}(A^{\circ})\supset X^{\circ}$$

$$\alpha^{-1}(8^{-1}) = \alpha^{-1}(B^{-})' \supset X^{\circ\prime} = X^{\prime-}$$

and hence by the relation \$15(13)

$$A^{\circ} \supset \alpha(x^{-}), \quad B^{-\prime} \supset \alpha(x^{\prime-}).$$

Since  $\alpha$  is closed by assumption, we obtain hence by Theorem 2 and  $\S15(14)$ 

$$A^{\circ} \supset \alpha(X^{-}) \supset \alpha(X)^{-}$$
,

$$B^{\circ\prime} \supset \alpha(X')^{\circ} \supset \alpha(X)'^{\circ} = \alpha(X)^{\circ},$$

because  $\alpha(R) = S$ . Consequently we have  $A > \alpha(x) > B$ . Therefore T is normal by definition. .

Theorem 6. For an open and closed mapping or of R onto S, we have that X > Y implies  $\sigma(X) > \sigma(Y)$ .

If X° > Y , then we have by Theorems 1 and 2 Proof.

(Chapter III

 $\alpha(x)^{\circ} \supset \alpha(x^{\circ}) \supset \alpha(Y^{-}) \supset \alpha(Y)^{\circ}$ .

We have obviously by definition

In order that a transformation on from R to S be Theorem 7. open or closed, it is recessary and sufficient that the inverse transformation  $n^{-1}$  be continuous.

A continuous transformation on from a topological space R to a topological space S is called a homeomorphism, if the inverse transformation and is continuous. A topological space R is said to be homeomorphic to a topological space S , if there is a homeomorphism from Rto S.

#### §18 Partition topologies

Let 01 be a mapping of a topological space R with a topology I onto an abstract space S. Putting

we see easily by the relations (1), (2), and (3) in §15 that P satis-topology p is called the partition topology of S by a mapping  $\alpha$ .

For the partition topology  $ot \sim \mathcal{R}$  by  $ot \sim$  , we see at once by definition that  $\mathscr R$  is continuous for every topology  $\mathscr Y\subset \mathscr P$  on  $\mathcal S$ . Conversely, if  $\alpha$  is continuous for a topology  $\mathscr T$  on  $\mathcal S$ , then we have by definition  $\alpha^{-1}(A) \in \mathcal{I}$  for every  $A \in \mathcal{T}$ , and hence  $\mathcal{T} \subset \mathcal{P}$ . Therefore we can say that the partition topology  $\hat{\gamma}^{p}$  of S is the strongest among the topologies for which A becomes continuous.

A system of point sets  $P_{\lambda} \neq 0$ Let R be now an abstract space.  $(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  is called a partition of R, if

 $\sum_{\lambda \in A} P_{\lambda} = R$  and  $P_{\lambda} P_{\rho} = 0$  for  $\lambda \neq \rho$ . A partition  $P_{\lambda}$  (  $\lambda \in A$  ) of R may be considered as a space, considering This space is called a partition space of R . every Px as a point. For a partition space  $P_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), putting

$$P_{\lambda} = \mathcal{L}(x)$$
 for  $P_{\lambda} \ni x$ ,  $x \in R$ ,

we obtain a mapping  $\mathcal{Z}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$  onto the partition space  $P_{A}$  (  $A \in \mathcal{A}$  ). This mapping \$\pi\$ is called a partition mapping.

For a mapping of of R onto 5 . putting

 $P_n = \alpha^{-1}(\{a\})$  for every  $a \in S$ , we obtain obviously a partition  $P_{n}$  (a.e.S.) of  $R_{n}$ . This partition of R is called the partition of R by a mapping on. For this partition  $a^{-1}(\{a\})(a \in S)$ , putting

 $a = 4(a^{-1}(\{a\}))$  for every  $a \in S$ . we obtain a transformation from this partition space to  $\mathcal L$  . If  $\mathcal R$  and S are topological spaces and  $\alpha$  is continuous, then we see easily that

this transformation also is continuous for the partition topology of the

partition space.

Let R be a regular space by a topology 7. By virtue of §10 Theorem 1, we see that for two points 
$$x$$
,  $y \in \mathbb{R}$ , if  $x \in \{y\}^-$ , then we have  $\{x\}^- \subset \{y\}^-$ , and if  $x \in \{y\}^-$ , then  $x \in \{y\}^-$  and hence  $\{x\}^- \subset \{y\}^-$ , namely  $\{x\}^- \{y\}^- = 0$ . Consequently we have for every  $x$ ,  $y \in \mathbb{R}$   $\{x\}^- = \{y\}^-$  or  $\{x\}^- \{y\}^- = 0$ .

Therefore the totality of  $\{x\}^-$  for all  $x \in R$  constitutes a partition This partition is called the topological partition of R by ? For the topological partition of R , every topological set of R is obviously by §10 Theorem 1 an inverse image of a point set of the topological partition space by the partition mapping. Furthermore, we see also by \$10 Theorem 1 that for the partition topology of the topological partition space, the partition mapping is open and closed. Consequent ly, we conclude by Theorems \$13,1; \$16.8; and \$17.6 that the partition topology of the topological partition space is separative and regular.

### §19 Weak topologies

Let on be a mapping of an abstract space K into a topological space S with a topology T. Putting

$$\mathfrak{I}_{\mathfrak{o}} = \{ \mathfrak{o}^{-1}(A) : A \in \mathfrak{T} \},$$

40

we see easily by the formulas (1), (2), and (5) in §15 that  $\mathcal{T}_o$  satisfies the topology conditions, that is,  $\mathcal{T}_o$  is a topology on R. This topology  $\mathcal{T}_o$  is called the <u>weak topology</u> of R by a mapping  $\alpha$ . For the weak topology  $\mathcal{T}_o$  of R by  $\alpha$ , it is evident by definition that  $\alpha$  becomes continuous, and hence naturally for every topology  $\mathcal{T} > \mathcal{T}_o$  on R,  $\alpha$  also becomes continuous. Conversely, if  $\alpha$  is continuous for a topology  $\alpha$  on  $\alpha$ , then we have obviously  $\alpha$  is the weakest topology on  $\alpha$  for which  $\alpha$  becomes continuous. Furthermore we see easily by definition that for a neighbourhood system  $\alpha$  of  $\alpha$ ,

is a neighbourhood system of the weak topology of  ${\mathcal R}$  by  ${\mathcal R}$  .

Let  $a_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) be a system of mappings of an abstract space R into topological spaces  $S_{\lambda}$  respectively with topologies  $\mathscr{V}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). Corresponding to every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  we obtain the weak topology  $\mathcal{I}_{\lambda}$  of R by  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$ , as defined just above. For these weak topologies  $T_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ), putting  $\mathfrak{I}_{\mathfrak{d}} = \bigcup_{\lambda \in A} \mathfrak{I}_{\lambda}$ , we obtain a topology  $\mathfrak{I}_{\mathfrak{d}}$  on R, as defined in §8. topology  $\mathcal{I}_{\theta}$  is called the <u>weak topology</u> of R by  $n_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). the weak topology  $\mathcal{I}_o$  of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ), as  $\mathcal{I}_o \supset \mathcal{I}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in A$ , each mapping  $n_{\lambda}$  is continuous, as mentioned just above. hand, if every  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) is continuous for a topology  $\gamma$  on R, then we have obviously  $\gamma \supset \gamma_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in A$ , and hence  $\gamma \supset \gamma_{\alpha}$ . fore the weak topology of R by a system of mappings  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  is the weakest among the topologies for which all  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  (  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) become continuous. For a neighbourhood system  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  of  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ),  $\{\alpha_{\lambda}^{-1}(A): A \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}\}$  is a neighbourhood system of  $\mathcal{I}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  , and hence by §8 Theorem 2  $\left\{ \begin{array}{ll} \widehat{\Pi} \; \sigma_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{-1}(\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}}) : \; \nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda_{\nu}}, \; \lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda \; (\nu=1,\;2,\ldots,\kappa\;), \; \kappa=1,\;2,\ldots \right\} \end{array}$ is a neighbourhood system of 7.. Therefore we can state

Theorem 1. Let  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a system of mappings of an abstract space R into topological spaces  $S_{\lambda}$  with topologies  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda}$  respectively.

For a neighbourhood system  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  of  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), a system of point sets  $\{\prod_{i=1}^{n} \alpha_{\lambda_{i}}^{-1}(\mathcal{T}_{\lambda_{\nu}}): \mathcal{T}_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda_{\nu}}, \lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda \text{ ($\nu=1$, 2,...,$\kappa$), $\kappa=1$, 2,...}\}$ 

is a neighbourhood system of the weak topology of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

Recalling \$9 Theorem 1, we conclude from the Theorem 1

Theorem 2. Let  $\gamma$  be the weak topology of R by a system of mappings  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). For a subspace S of R, the relative topology  $\gamma^{S}$  of  $\gamma$  in S coincides with the weak topology of S by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

Theorem 3. The weak topology of R by a system of mappings  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) of R into regular spaces  $S_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) is regular too.

<u>Proof.</u> By virtue of \$10\$ Theorem 4, we need only prove that the weak topology ? of R by a mapping a of R into S with a regular topology ? is regular. In this case, since we have by definition

$$\mathcal{J} = \{\sigma^{-1}(\nabla): \nabla \in \mathcal{T}\},\$$

we see easily by the formulas (1), (2), and (3) in §15 that we have for every point set  $A\subset S$ 

$$a^{-1}(A^{\circ}) = a^{-1}(A)^{\circ}, \quad a^{-1}(A^{\circ}) = a^{-1}(A)^{\circ}.$$

Thus, if  $\alpha^{-1}(\mathcal{D})\ni \pi$  for an open set  $\mathcal{D}\in\mathcal{T}$ , then  $\mathcal{D}\ni \sigma(\pi)$ , and hence we can find  $\mathcal{V}\in\mathcal{T}$  for which  $\mathcal{D}\supset\mathcal{D}^{-1}\supset\mathcal{D}\ni \sigma(\pi)$ , because  $\mathcal{T}$  is regular by assumption. For such  $\mathcal{V}\in\mathcal{T}$  we have

Therefore 7 is regular by definition.

Theorem 4. Let  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a system of mappings of R into compact Hausdorff spaces  $S_{\lambda}$  with neighbourhood systems  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). In order that the weak topology of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be compact, it is necessary and sufficient that for a system of points  $\alpha_{\lambda} \in S_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), if  $\alpha_{\lambda}$   $\alpha_{\lambda$ 

for every finite number of open sets  $\overline{U}_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  subject to  $\overline{U}_{\lambda_{\nu}} \ni a_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , then there is a point  $\kappa \in \mathbb{R}$  for which

$$a_{\lambda} = a_{\lambda}(x)$$
 for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ .

<u>Proof.</u> If the weak topology  $\gamma$  of R by  $\sigma_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) is compact, then for a system of points  $\alpha_{\lambda} \in S_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) such that  $\alpha_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{O}_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathfrak{M}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) implies  $\prod_{\nu=1}^{\kappa} \alpha_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{-1} (\mathcal{O}_{\lambda_{\nu}}) \neq 0$ , there is by §7 Theorem 3 a point  $x \in R$  such that

$$x \in \prod_{\alpha_{\lambda} \in \nabla_{\lambda} \in \operatorname{gre}_{\lambda}} (\prod_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \sigma_{\lambda}^{-1} (\nabla_{\lambda})^{-}),$$

42

For such a point  $\kappa$  , we have by the formulas (9), (13) in §15 and by §16 Theorem 3

for every  $\lambda \in A$ , and hence  $\phi_{\lambda} = \mathcal{O}_{\lambda}(x)$  for every  $\lambda \in A$ , because  $|S_{\lambda}|$  is a Hausdorif space for every a e A by assumption.

Conversely, we assume that the stated condition is satisfied.  $X_{x} \in \mathbb{R}$  (  $x \in \mathbb{R}$  ) be a system of closed sets by the weak topology  $\mathcal{T}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$ such that  $\frac{\pi}{2} \times_{\mathcal{F}_{\nu}} \neq 0$  for every finite number of element  $\mathcal{F}_{\nu} \in \Gamma$  (  $\nu = 1$ , By virtue of Maximal Theorem, there is then a meximal eyetem of point sets  $\mathscr K$  such that  $\mathscr K \ni \mathsf K_{\mathscr V}$  for every  $\mathscr V \in \Gamma'$  and  $\overset{\circ}{\mathbb H}$   $\mathsf K_{\mathscr V} \not= \emptyset$ for every finite number of point sets  $K_{\nu} \in \mathcal{K}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ . For such a maximal system & , since

for every finite number of point sets  $K_{\nu} \in \mathcal{K}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\kappa$ ), we have by §7 Theorem 5

Thus, there is a system of points  $a_{\lambda} \in S_{\lambda}$  such that

For such  $Q_{\lambda}(\lambda \in A)$ , if  $G_{\lambda} \in V_{\lambda} \in M_{\lambda}$  for an arbitrary  $\lambda \in A$ , then we have  $U_{\lambda} \alpha_{\lambda}(K) \neq 0$  for every  $K \in \mathcal{M}$ . This relation yields by the formula \$15(12)

$$\alpha_{\lambda} \left( \alpha_{\lambda}^{-1} (\nabla_{\lambda}) K \right) = \nabla_{\lambda} \alpha_{\lambda} (K) \neq 0,$$

and hence  $a_{\lambda}^{-1}(V_{\lambda})K \neq 0$  for every  $K \in \mathcal{K}$  . Consequently,  $a_{\lambda} \in V_{\lambda} \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$ implies  $\mathcal{H}_{\infty}^{-1}(\mathcal{T}_{\infty})\in\mathcal{K}$  , because  $\mathcal{K}$  is a maximal system such that  $\tilde{\mathcal{T}}_{\infty}^{+}\mathcal{K}_{\omega}\neq 0$ for every finite number of point sets  $k_{\nu} \in \mathcal{K}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\kappa$ ).  $a_{\lambda\nu}\in U_{\lambda\nu}\in \mathfrak{M}_{\lambda\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ..., \nu$ ) implies  $\tilde{\mathcal{M}}$   $a_{\lambda\nu}^{-1}(U_{\lambda\nu})\neq 0$ . cordingly there is by assumption a point  $x \in \mathbb{R}$  for which  $\alpha_\lambda = \alpha_\lambda(x)$  for . every  $\lambda \in A$ . For such a point X we have that  $\alpha_{\lambda}(x) \in \mathcal{O}_{\lambda} \in \mathcal{D}_{\lambda}$ implies  $a_{\lambda}^{-1}(\nabla_{\lambda}) \in A$ , as proved just above. Therefore  $x \in a_{\lambda}^{-1}(\nabla_{\lambda_0})$ ,  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times)$  implies

$$\tilde{\Pi} \propto_{\lambda_{\nu}^{-1}} (\tilde{\mathbb{U}}_{\lambda_{\nu}}) K \neq 0 \qquad \text{for every } K \in \tilde{\mathcal{K}}$$

Since the totality of  $\prod_{\nu=1}^{\infty} \sigma_{\lambda_{\nu}}$  ( $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ ) for every finite number of open

sets  $V_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$  (  $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \varkappa$  ) constitutes by Theorem 1 a neighbourhood system of the weak topology of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ), we obtain hence  $\times \in \mathbb{K}^-$  for every  $\mathbb{K} \in \mathcal{K}$  , and especially  $\times \in \mathbb{X}_y^- = \mathbb{X}_y$  for every  $\mathbb{Y} \in \Gamma$  . Therefore R is compact by §7 Theorem 3.

In this Proof we see easily that the stated condition is necessary, when  $S_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) are Hausdorff spaces, and sufficient, when  $S_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) are compact. Furthermore we can prove likewise

Let  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a system of mappings of R into Theorem 5. compact spaces S. with neighbourhood systems MA. If for a system of closed sets  $A, \subset S, (\lambda \in A)$ .

for every finite number of open sets  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  such that we have  $U_{\lambda_{\nu}} > A_{\lambda_{\nu}} (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , implies  $\prod \alpha_{\lambda}^{-1} (A_{\lambda}) \neq 0$ , then R is compact by the weak topology of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

### \$20 Continuous functions

The totality of real numbers may be considered as a space. This space will be called the number space in the sequel. In the number space, we define an interval ( $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$ ) for two different real numbers  $\alpha < \beta$ to mean

and a closed interval [ , ] to mean

\$19. \$20)

$$[\alpha,\beta]=\{\xi:\ \alpha\leq\xi\leq\beta\}.$$

Furthermore we define for every real number of

$$(-\infty, \alpha) = \{\xi : \xi < \alpha\}, \qquad (-\infty, \alpha] = \{\xi : \xi \leq \alpha\}.$$

We see easily that the totality of intervals satisfies the condition in \$2 Theorem 2. Thus there exists uniquely a topology in the number space such that the totality of intervals is a neighbourhood system. . This topology is called the number topology. For the number topology we see at once by Theorems 1 and 2 in §3 that

(Chapter III

45

$$(\alpha, \beta)^{-} = [\alpha, \beta], \qquad [\alpha, \beta]^{\circ} = (\alpha, \beta),$$

$$(\alpha, +\infty)^{-} = [\alpha, +\infty), \qquad [\alpha, +\infty)^{\circ} = (\alpha, +\infty),$$

$$(-\infty, \alpha)^{-} = (-\infty, \alpha], \qquad (-\infty, \alpha)^{\circ} = (-\infty, \alpha).$$

Therefore we can conclude easily by definition that the number space is The number topoa regular Hausdorff space by the number topology. logy is completely separable, because the totality of intervals (d,  $\beta$ ) for rational numbers of  $\beta$  constitutes obviously a neighbourhood system The number topology is further locally comof the number topology. pact, that is, we have

Every closed interval is compact by the number to-Theorem 1. pology.

We suppose that  $[\alpha, \beta] \subset \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} (\alpha_{\lambda}, \beta_{\lambda})$  but  $[\alpha, \beta]$  is co-Proof. wered by no finite number of intervals  $(\alpha_{\lambda}, \beta_{\lambda})$  for  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ . Let  $\xi_0$ be the greatest lower bound of numbers  $\xi$  for which  $[\alpha, \xi]$  is covered by no finite number of intervals ( $\alpha_{\lambda}$ ,  $\beta_{\lambda}$ ) for  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ . Then, we have obviously  $\xi_s \leq \beta$  , and further  $\xi_s > \alpha$  , because there is  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  for which  $d_{\lambda} < d < \beta_{\lambda}$ . Thus there is  $\lambda, \in \Lambda$  for which  $d_{\lambda_0} < \xi_0 < \beta_{\lambda_0}$ , and we can find  $\xi_1$  such that  $\max\{\alpha',\alpha',\lambda_s\}<\tilde{\xi}_1<\tilde{\xi}_s$  and  $[\alpha',\xi_s]$  is covered by a finite number of intervals ( $\prec_{\lambda}$ ,  $\beta_{\lambda}$ ). Then we have naturally that [d, ] is covered by a finite number of intervals (d, , \$1) for every \$ subject to  $\xi_o < \, \xi_c < \beta \lambda_o$  , contradicting the definition of  $\, \xi_c \, .$ Therefore  $[\alpha, \beta]$  is compact by the number topology.

Let R be an abstract space. A mapping of R into the number space is called a function on R . For a function  $\varphi$  on R , the image  $\varphi(x)$  of a point  $x \in R$  is called the value of  $\varphi$  at x. A function  $\varphi$ on R is said to be bounded, if

 $-\infty$  <  $\inf_{x \in R} \varphi(x) \le \sup_{x \in R} \varphi(x) < +\infty$ , that is, if we can find a positive number & such that

for every zeR. 19(x)158

We also say that a function  $\varphi$  on R is bounded in a point set A , if  $\varphi$ is bounded in the subspace A.

For two functions  $\varphi$  ,  $\Psi$  on R and for two real numbers  $\alpha$  ,  $\beta$  , putting

 $\omega(x) = \alpha \varphi(x) + \beta \psi(x)$  for every  $x \in R$ . we obtain a function  $\omega$  on R. This function  $\omega$  will be denoted by We define likewise & y and & A to mean 29+B4.  $\varphi \cup \Psi(z) = \text{Max} \{ \varphi(z), \psi(z) \}$  $\Psi \wedge \Psi (x) = Min \{ \varphi(x), \Psi(x) \}.$ 

A sequence of functions  $q_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) is said to be convergent to a function  $\varphi$  , if  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty} \varphi_{\nu}(x) = \varphi(x)$  for every  $x\in R$  , and such a function  $\varphi$  is called a <u>limit</u> of  $\varphi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1$ , 2,...). A sequence of functions  $\mathscr{G}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) is said to be uniformly convergent to  $\mathscr{G}$  , if for any positive number  ${\cal E}$  we can find  ${\cal V}_{\it 0}$  such that

 $|\varphi_{\nu}(x) - \varphi(x)| \le \varepsilon$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $\nu \ge \nu_0$ . It is evident by definition that the uniform convergence implies the convergence. We also say that  $\mathscr{G}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) is convergent or uniformly convergent to  $\varphi$  in a point set A , if it is so in the subspace A.

We see at once by definition that if two sequences of functions  $\varphi$ , and  $\psi$ , ( $\beta=1$ , 2,...) are convergent or uniformly convergent to  $\varphi$ and  $\Psi$  respectively, then all  $d\mathcal{L}_{\nu} + \beta \mathcal{L}_{\nu}$ ,  $\mathcal{L}_{\nu} \vee \mathcal{L}_{\nu}$ ,  $\mathcal{L}_{\nu} \wedge \mathcal{L}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) are convergent or uniformly convergent respectively to  $\alpha \varphi + \beta \Psi$  ,  $\varphi \circ \psi$  ,  $\varphi \wedge \Psi$ . Furthermore we can prove easily: in order that a sequence of functions  $\varphi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) be uniformly convergent in a point set A. it is necessary and sufficient that for any  $\mathcal{E}>0$  we can find  $\nu_e$  such that  $|\varphi_{\nu}(x) - \varphi_{\mu\nu}(x)| \le \varepsilon$  for every  $x \in A$  and  $\nu, \mu \ge \nu_{0}$ .

Let R be now a topological space with a topology  $\gamma$ .  $\varphi$  on R is said to be continuous, if  $\varphi$  is so as a mapping of R into the number space with the number topology. With this definition, we have

Theorem 2. In order that a function \( \varphi \) on \( R \) be continuous, it is necessary and sufficient that both point sets

{z: 9(z)>x} and  $\{x: \varphi(x) < \alpha\}$ are open, or both point sets

> 1x: 4(x) ≥ x} and {x: q(x)≤ d}

(08)

are closed for every real number & .

Proof. If  $\varphi$  is continuous, then, since both  $(\alpha',+\infty)$  and  $(-\infty, \alpha')$  are open by the number topology, the inverse image of  $(\alpha',+\infty)$ , namely  $\{x: \varphi(x)>\alpha'\}$ , and the inverse image of  $(-\infty,\alpha')$ , namely  $\{x: \varphi(x)<\alpha'\}$  are open; and further the inverse images of closed sets  $\{\alpha',+\infty'\}$  and  $\{-\infty,\alpha'\}: \{x: \varphi(x)\geq \alpha'\}$  and  $\{x: \varphi(x)\leq \alpha'\}$  are closed.

Conversely, if both  $\{z: \varphi(z) > d\}$  and  $\{z: \varphi(z) < d\}$  are open for every real number d, then the inverse image of every interval  $(d, \beta)$ 

 $\{x: \alpha < \varphi(x) < \beta\} = \{x: \varphi(x) > \alpha\} \{z: \varphi(x) < \beta\}$  is open, and hence  $\varphi$  is continuous by definition, because the totality of intervals  $(\alpha, \beta)$  is a neighbourhood system of the number topology. If both  $\{x: \varphi(x) \ge \alpha\}$  and  $\{x: \varphi(x) \le \alpha\}$  are closed for every real number  $\alpha$ , then both

 $\{x: \varphi(x) < \alpha\} = \{x: \varphi(x) \ge \alpha\}',$  $\{x: \varphi(x) > \alpha\} = \{x: \varphi(x) \le \alpha\}',$ 

are open for every real number  $\alpha$  , and hence  $\varphi$  is continuous, as proved just above.

Since both (lpha , +lpha) and ( $-\infty$ , lpha ] are closed by the number topology, we obtain by §16 Theorem 4

Theorem 3. For a continuous function  $\varphi$  on R, if  $\varphi(x) \ge \alpha$  for  $x \in A$ , then we also have  $\varphi(x) \ge \alpha$  for  $x \in A$ ; and if  $\varphi(x) \le \alpha$  for  $x \in A$ , then we also have  $\varphi(x) \le \alpha$  for  $x \in A$ .

Recalling \$16 Theorem 5 we obtain immediately

Theorem 4. Let  $\mathcal R$  be a neighbourhood system of  $\mathcal R$ . In order that a function  $\mathcal C$  on  $\mathcal R$  be continuous, it is necessary and sufficient that for any  $\alpha \in \mathcal R$  and for any  $\epsilon > 0$  we can find  $\mathcal U \in \mathcal R$  such that  $\alpha \in \mathcal U$  and  $|\mathcal C(\alpha)| \leq \epsilon$  for every  $\alpha \in \mathcal V$ .

By virtue of Theorem 4 we can prove easily

Theorem 5. For two continuous functions  $\varphi$  and  $\psi$  on R, all functions  $\alpha \varphi + \beta \psi$ ,  $\varphi \vee \psi$ ,  $\varphi \wedge \psi$  are continuous for every real numbers  $\alpha$  and  $\beta$ .

Theorem 6. If a sequence of continuous functions  $\varphi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ...$ )

on R 1s uniformly convergent to a function  $\varphi$  on R, then  $\varphi$  also is continuous.

CONTINUOUS MAPPINGS

<u>Proof.</u> For any E > 0 we can find by assumption  $V_0$  such that  $S_{V_0}(z) - S(z) | \le \frac{1}{3} E$  for every  $z \in R$ ,

and for each point  $\alpha \in R$  we can find by Theorem 4 an open set  $v \in T$  such that  $\alpha \in V$  and

 $|\mathcal{G}_{\nu_{\alpha}}(z) - \mathcal{G}_{\nu_{\alpha}}(a)| \le \frac{1}{3} \varepsilon$  for every  $z \in U$ .

Then we have for every point z & U

 $|\varphi(x) - \varphi(a)| \le |\varphi_{\nu_0}(x) - \varphi(x)| + |\varphi_{\nu_0}(x) - \varphi_{\nu_0}(a)| + |\varphi_{\nu_0}(a) - \varphi(a)| \le \varepsilon.$ 

Therefore & is continuous by Theorem 4.

Theorem 7. If a sequence of continuous functions  $\mathscr{C}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$  on R is uniformly convergent in a dense set A, then  $\mathscr{C}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) is uniformly convergent.

<u>Proof.</u> For any  $\xi > 0$  we can find by assumption  $V_0$  such that  $-\ell \leq \mathcal{G}_{\nu}(z) - \mathcal{G}_{\mu}(z) \leq \xi \qquad \text{for every } z \in A \text{ and } -\nu, \mu \geq \nu_0.$  As  $\mathcal{G}_{\nu} - \mathcal{G}_{\mu}$  is continuous, we obtain by Theorem 3

 $-\mathcal{E} \leq \mathscr{G}_{\nu}(x) - \mathscr{G}_{\nu}(x) \leq \mathcal{E} \qquad \text{for every } x \in R \ , \ \nu_{\nu} \geq \nu_{\nu} ,$  because  $A^{-} = R$  by assumption. Therefore  $\mathscr{G}_{\nu}(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  is uniformly convergent.

A function  $\varphi$  on R is said to be <u>continuous in a point set</u> A, if  $\varphi$  is continuous in the subspace A by the relative topology  $\Upsilon^A$ . With this definition, it is evident by \$16 Theorem 6 that if  $\varphi$  is continuous in a point set A, then  $\varphi$  also is continuous in every point set  $B \subset A$ .

Recalling §9 Theorem 1, we obtain by Theorem 4

Theorem 8. Let  $U_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  be a system of open sets. If a function  $\varphi$  on R is continuous in  $U_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , then  $\varphi$  also is continuous in  $\sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} U_{\lambda}$ .

Theorem 9. For a compact set A, every continuous function  $\varphi$  1s bounded in A, and we can find a maximum point  $\alpha$  and a minimum point  $\alpha$  in A, that is,  $\alpha$ ,  $\alpha$ ,  $\alpha$  and  $\alpha$ 

Proof. For every real number  $\xi < \sup_{x \in A} \varphi(x)$ , we have obviously

§20, §21)

 $A\{x: \varphi(x) \ge x\} \neq 0$  and  $\{x: \varphi(x) \ge x\}$  is closed by Theorem 2. Since A is compact by assumption, we can find by  $\S 7$  Theorem 3 a point  $a \in A \sqcap \{x : q(x) \ge \frac{\pi}{2}\} \text{ for } d = \sup_{x \in A} q(x)$ . For such a point a, we have obviously  $\varphi(a) = \sup_{x \in A} \varphi(x)$ . We also can prove likewise that there is a point  $\ell \in A$  for which  $\varphi(\ell) = \inf_{x \in A} \varphi(x)$ .

Let  $\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a system of continuous functions For a compact set A, if  $\inf_{\lambda \in A} \varphi_{\lambda}(x) = 0$  for every  $x \in A$ , and on R . for any  $\lambda_1, \lambda_2 \in \Lambda$ , we can find  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  such that  $(\beta_1, \lambda, \beta_2, \alpha) \ge (\beta_2, \alpha)$ for every  $x \in A$ , then for any  $\varepsilon > 0$  we can find  $x \in A$  such that for every ze A.

G<sub>2</sub> (x) < €

If there is a positive number & such that Proof.

 $A(x: \varphi_{\lambda}(x) \ge \varepsilon + 0$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ,

then for each finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times$ ) there is by assumption  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  for which we have

 $\min_{\substack{\nu=1,2,\ldots,n}} \{\varphi_{\lambda_{\nu}}(z)\} \ge \varphi_{\lambda}(z) \qquad \text{for every } z \in A,$ and hence  $A \prod_{\nu=1}^{\infty} \{x : \varphi_{\lambda_{\nu}}(x) \ge \varepsilon \} \supset A\{x : \varphi_{\lambda}(x) \ge \varepsilon \} \neq 0$ . A is compact by assumption and  $\{x: \mathcal{L}_{\lambda}(x) \geq \mathcal{E}\}$  is closed by Theorem 2. we can find by §7 Theorem 3 a point  $\alpha \in A$   $\exists \{x: \varphi_{\lambda}(x) \geq \xi\}$ . such a point  $\alpha$  , we have obviously  $\varphi_{\lambda}(\alpha) \geq \mathcal{E}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  , contradicting the assumption that we have  $\inf_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \varphi_{\lambda}(\alpha) = 0$ .

As a special case of Theorem 10, we have: if a sequence of continuous functions  $q_1(x) \ge q_2(x) \ge \cdots$  is convergent to 0 in a compact set A, then  $\mathcal{G}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) is uniformly convergent in A to 0.

### §21 Fields of functions

Let R be an abstract space. A function 4 on R is said to be a constant, if  $\varphi$  takes merely a single value for every point of R , and a constant will be denoted by its single value.

A collection f of bounded functions on R is called a <u>field</u>, if

- f contains a constant 1; 1)
- f 74,4 implies f 344+b4 for every real numbers &, &;

3) fag, 4 implies fagou, go 4

With this definition, we see easily that for any system of fields  $f_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ), the intersection  $\prod_{\lambda \in A} f_{\lambda}$  also is a field. of bounded functions on R is obviously a field. Therefore, for any collection of bounded functions  $f_o$  there exists the least fields containing  $f_o$  , which will be called the field generated by  $f_o$  .

A field f is said to be closed, if f contains every bounded function which is a limit of some uniformly convergent sequence of functions We also see likewise that for any collection of bounded functions  $f_o$  there exists the least closed field containing  $f_o$  , which will be called the closed field generated by fo.

The closed field generated by a field f is composed Theorem 1. of bounded functions which are limits of some uniformly convergent sequences of functions in f.

Let  $\overline{f}$  be the totality of bounded functions which are Proof. limits of some uniformly convergent sequences of functions in  $\mathcal{F}$ .  $\Psi$  and  $\Psi$  are limits of uniformly convergent sequences of functions  $\Psi_{\nu}$ and  $\Psi_{\nu}$   $\epsilon$  f ( $\nu=1$ , 2,...) respectively, then we have that  $\alpha \varphi + \beta \Psi$  is a limit of the uniformly convergent sequences  $\alpha \varphi_{\nu} + \beta \psi_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F}(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ , likewise  $\varphi \lor \psi$  ,  $\varphi \land \psi \in \overline{\mathcal{F}}$  . Therefore  $\overline{\mathcal{F}}$  is a field. 4.6  $\overline{f}$  is uniformly convergent to a function 4 , then we can find  $\psi_{\nu} \in f$  $(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  such that

 $|Y_{\nu}(x) - Y_{\nu}(x)| \le \frac{1}{n\nu}$  for every  $x \in R$ , and we see easily that  $\Psi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\;2,\ldots$ ) is uniformly convergent to  ${\cal G}$  , that is,  $arPhi \in \vec{\mathcal{F}}$  . Therefore  $\vec{\mathcal{F}}$  is a closed field. is evident that  $ec{f}$  is the least closed field containing f , that is,  $ec{f}$ is the closed field generated by f.

Let  $\mathcal R$  now be a topological space with a topology  $\mathcal I$ . lity of bounded continuous functions on R is obviously by Theorems 5 and 6 in \$20 a closed flield. Therefore we have

Theorem 2. For any collection of bounded continuous functions f on R , the closed field generated by f is composed only of bounded continuous functions.

Let R be compact by 7 and f a closed field of con-Theorem 3. tingous functions on R. If for any separated points x, y eR we can find  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\varphi(\pi) \neq \varphi(y)$ , then  $\mathcal{F}$  contains all continuous functions on R.

For each pair of separated points a , & we can find by Proof. For such 9 , putting assumption 4 ef such that 9(a) + 9(4).  $\gamma = \frac{3}{(\varphi(a) - \varphi(b))} \varphi - \frac{3 \varphi(f)}{(\varphi(a) - \varphi(b))} - 1,$ 

we have obviously  $\psi \in \mathcal{F}$  and  $\psi(\alpha) = 2$ ,  $\psi(\ell) = -1$ . each pair of separated points x , y there is a function  $q \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\varphi(z) = 2$ ,  $\varphi(y) = -1$ .

Let A be a closed set different from O. If  $a \in A$ , then a is separated from every point of A, and hence corresponding to every point  $\mathcal{G} \in \mathcal{A}$  we can find  $\mathcal{G}_{\mathcal{G}} \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\mathcal{G}_{\mathcal{G}}(\mathcal{G}) = \mathcal{L}$  and  $\mathcal{G}_{\mathcal{G}}(\alpha) = -1$ . For such % (3 & A ) we have obviously

Since A is compact by §7 Theorem 1 and  $\{z: \varphi_y(z) > i\}$  is open by §20 Theorem 2, there is a finite number of points  $y_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that

For such points  $\psi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ..., \varkappa$ ), putting

we obtain a function  $\psi \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\psi(a) = -1$ ,  $\psi(x) = 1$  for every  $x \in A$ , Therefore, for each point a ? A there and  $\Psi(x) \le 1$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ . is a function  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\varphi(\alpha) = -1$ ,  $\varphi(\alpha) = 1$  for every  $\alpha \in A$ , and Ψ(z) ≤ 1 for every x € R .

Let A and B be two closed sets different from O but subject to AB = 0. For each point  $y \in B$ , we have obviously  $y \in A$  and hence there is a function  $\mathcal{L}_y \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\mathcal{L}_y(y) = -1$ ,  $\mathcal{L}_y(z) = 1$  for every  $z \in A$ , and  $\mathscr{C}_{y}(x) \leq 1$  for every  $x \in R$ , as proved just above. For such  $\mathscr{C}_{y}$ ( $\gamma \in B$ ), we can find likewise a finite number of points  $\gamma_{\nu} \in S$  ( $\nu = 1$ ,

2. ... x) such that

§21)

$$B \subset \underbrace{\sum_{i=1}^{n} \{x: \varphi_{y_{n}}(z) < 0\}}_{i}$$

Then, putting  $\psi = (\mathscr{Y}_{y_1}, \wedge \mathscr{Y}_{y_2} \wedge \cdots \wedge \mathscr{Y}_{y_N}) \vee o$ , we obtain a function  $\forall \epsilon \text{ f such that} \qquad \qquad \forall (z) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{for every } z \in A, \\ 0 & \text{for every } z \in B, \end{cases}$ 

and  $0 \le \psi(z) \le 1$  for every  $z \in \mathbb{R}$ . Furthermore, we also see that for any closed set  $A \neq 0$  there is a function  $\varphi \in f$  such that we have  $0 \le \varphi(x) \le 1$  for every  $x \in R$  and  $\varphi(x) = 1$  for every  $x \in A$ , or  $\varphi(x) = 0$  for every  $x \in A$ .

Let 4 be an arbitrary continuous function on R. As V is bounded by \$20 Theorem 9, putting

If d=0, then  $\psi$  is obviously a constant and hence  $\psi \in \mathcal{F}$ . Hence we assume that d > 0. For every  $\kappa = 1, 2, ...$ , since both

$$\{x: Y_{\sigma}(x) \ge \frac{V}{x} ct\}$$
 and  $\{x: Y_{\sigma}(x) \le \frac{V-t}{x} ct\}$  re closed by \$20 Theorem 2. and we have challength

are closed by \$20 Theorem 2, and we have obviously

$$\{x: Y_0(x) \ge \frac{\nu}{x} \alpha \} \{x: Y_0(x) \le \frac{\nu-1}{x} \alpha \} = 0$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ , there is  $\mathcal{P}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F} (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  such that  $0 \le \mathcal{P}_{\nu}(x) \le 1$  for every  $x \in A$  and

$$\varphi_{\nu}(z) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{for } Y_{\nu}(z) \ge \frac{1}{K} < 1 \\ 0 & \text{for } Y_{\nu}(z) \le \frac{1}{K} < 1 \end{cases}$$

for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ . Then, putting

we have obviously that  $\mathcal{G} \in \mathcal{F}$  and  $\frac{\mathcal{M}^{-1}}{\mathcal{H}} \prec \leq \mathcal{V}_{\sigma}(\pi) \leq \frac{\mathcal{M}}{\mathcal{H}} \prec \text{ implies}$ 

$$\mathcal{L}(x) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{for } \nu \leq \mu - 1 \\ 0 & \text{for } \nu - 1 \geq \mu \end{cases}$$

 $\varphi(x) = \frac{\alpha}{x} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \varphi_i(x) + \frac{\alpha}{x} \varphi_{\mu}(x) + \frac{\alpha}{x} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \varphi_i(x)$ and hence = #=1 x + \$ 9m(x).

Thus we see that  $\frac{M-1}{N} \propto \leq V_0(x) \leq \frac{M}{N} \propto \text{implies } \frac{M-1}{N} \propto \leq \varphi(x) \leq \frac{M}{N} \propto ,$  and consequently we obtain  $| Y_0(x) - \varphi(x) | \le \frac{\alpha}{\kappa}$  for every  $x \in R$ .

(Chapter III

for short  $\mathcal{F}$  is closed by assumption, we conclude therefore  $\mathcal{F}$ , and hence we obtain  $\mathcal{F}$   $\mathcal{F}$ .

### §22 Weak topologies by functions

Let R be an abstract space. For a collection of functions  $\mathcal{F}$  on R, considering every  $\mathcal{C} \in \mathcal{F}$  as a mapping of R into the number space with the number topology, we obtain the weak topology of R by  $\mathcal{F}$ . This weak topology will be called the <u>weak topology</u> of R by a collection of functions  $\mathcal{F}$  and denoted by  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{F}}$ .

Recalling §19 Theorem 1 we have obviously

Theorem 1. For a collection of functions f on R, the totality of point sets  $\{x: \alpha_{\nu} < \Psi_{\nu}(x) < \beta_{\nu} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa)\}$  for every finite number of functions  $\Psi_{\nu} \in f$  and of intervals  $(\alpha_{\nu}, \beta_{\nu}) \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa)$  is a neighbourhood system of the weak topology of R by f.

From Theorem 1 we conclude immediately

Theorem 2. For a collection of functions  $\mathcal{F}$  on  $\mathcal{R}$ , the totality of point sets  $\{x: |\mathcal{C}_{\nu}(x) - \mathcal{C}_{\nu}(a)| < \mathcal{E} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)\}$  for every finite number of functions  $\mathcal{C}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  and for every  $\mathcal{E}_{\nu} > 0$  is a neighbourhood system of a point  $\alpha$  for the weak topology of  $\mathcal{R}$  by  $\mathcal{F}$ 

Theorem 3. In order that a point  $a \in R$  be separated from a point  $f \in R$  by the weak topology of R by a collection of functions f, it is necessary and sufficient that there is a function  $\varphi \in f$  such that  $\varphi(a) \neq \varphi(b)$ .

<u>Proof.</u> For the weak topology  $\Im^{\mathfrak{F}}$  of R, if a point a is separated from a point  $\ell$  by  $\Im^{\mathfrak{F}}$ , then we can find by Theorem 2 a finite number of functions  $q_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times$ ) and a positive number  $\mathcal{E}$  such that  $\{ \times : |q_{\nu}(x) - q_{\nu}(a)| < \mathcal{E} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times) \}$   $\mathfrak{F}_{\ell}$ , and hence there is  $\nu_{\ell}$  for which  $|q_{\nu_{\ell}}(\ell) - q_{\nu_{\ell}}(a)| \geq \mathcal{E}$ .

Conversely, if  $\varphi(\alpha) \neq \varphi(\ell)$  for some  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$ , then, putting  $\mathcal{E} = |\varphi(\alpha) - \varphi(\ell)|$ , we have  $\ell \in \{ \kappa : |\varphi(\kappa) - \varphi(\alpha)| < \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{E} \}$ , and hence a is separated from  $\ell$  by Theorem 2.

It is evident by the definition of weak topologies in §19 that for two collections of functions  $f_1$  and  $f_2$ , if  $f_1 \subset f_2$ , then the weak topology of R by  $f_1$  is weaker than that of R by  $f_2$ , that if  $f_1 \subset f_2$  implies  $f_2 \subset f_3$ .

2' - 1' mbries t 5 ?

However we have

Theorem 4. For the closed field  $\overline{F}$  generated by a collection of bounded function F on R, the weak topology of R by  $\overline{F}$  coincides with that of R by  $\overline{F}$ , that is,  $\gamma f = \gamma \overline{F}$ .

Proof. It is evident by definition that every function  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$  is continuous by the week topology  $\gamma^{\mathcal{F}}$ . Accordingly, every  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$  also is continuous by  $\gamma^{\mathcal{F}}$  on account of §21 Theorem 2. Therefore we obtain  $\gamma^{\mathcal{F}} \subset \gamma^{\mathcal{F}}$  by the definition of weak topologies. On the other hand we conclude  $\gamma^{\mathcal{F}} > \gamma^{\mathcal{F}}$  from  $\mathcal{F} > \mathcal{F}$ . Consequently we have  $\gamma^{\mathcal{F}} = \gamma^{\mathcal{F}}$ .

Let R be a topological space with a topology  $\Upsilon$  in the sequel. Recalling the definition of weak topologies in §19, we see that every weak topology of R by continuous functions is weaker than  $\Upsilon$ . A collection of bounded continuous functions f on R is called a <u>trunk</u> of  $\Upsilon$ , if  $\Upsilon$  coincides with the weak topology of R by f, i.e., if  $\Upsilon$  =  $\Upsilon^f$ . With this definition we have

Theorem 5. In order that a field of bounded continuous functions f on R be a trunk of  $\Im$ , it is necessary and sufficient that for any  $\alpha \in A \in \Im$  we can find  $\varphi \in f$  such that  $\varphi(\alpha) = 1$  and  $\varphi(z) = 0$  for every  $x \in A$ .

<u>Proof.</u> If  $\Im = \Im^{\xi}$ , then for any  $\alpha \in A \in \Im$  we can find by Theorem 2 a finite number of functions  $\mathscr{G}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times$ ) and a positive number  $\mathcal{E}$  such that

 $\{x: |\mathcal{G}_{\nu}(x) - \mathcal{G}_{\nu}(a)| < \varepsilon \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)\} \subset A.$ 

For such  $\mathcal{G}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F}$  (  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa$ ) and  $\xi$  , putting

 $\varphi(x) = 1 - \frac{1}{\epsilon} \min \left\{ \varepsilon, \max_{\alpha = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa} |\varphi_{\alpha}(x) - \varphi_{\alpha}(\alpha)| \right\},$  we have obviously  $\varphi(\alpha) = 1$ ,  $\varphi(x) = 0$  for every  $x \in A$ , and  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$ , because  $\mathcal{F}$  is a field by assumption.

Conversely, if for any  $\alpha \in A \in \mathcal{I}$  there is a function  $\mathcal{G} \in \mathcal{F}$  such that

(Chapter III

 $\mathcal{I}(\Delta) = 1$ ,  $\mathcal{I}(\mathcal{I}) = 0$  for every  $\mathcal{I} \in \mathcal{A}$ , then we have obviously \_\_\_\_ 1x: 19(x)-9(a) < 11 < A.

and hence we conclude by Theorem 2 and §8 Theorem 1 that  $\gamma^F > \gamma$ . the other hand we have Tf < I, because f is composed only of continuous functions on R. Therefore we obtain  $\gamma^{F} = \gamma$ .

Theorem 6. For a trunk f of 7, every collection of bounded continuous functions including f also is a trunk of T.

For a collection of bounded continuous functions  $\mathcal{F}$  containing a trunk f, we have obviously by definition

and hence  $T^{\overline{f}} = T$ , because T' = T by assumption.

If 7 is a weak topology of R by a collection of functions f, then there is a trunk of  $\gamma$ .

By wirtue of Theorem 1, denoting by f, the totality of Proof. bounded functions ( $9 \sim a$ )  $\beta$  for every  $9 \in f$  and for every real numbers  $\alpha < \beta$  , we see that the weak topology of R by  $f_{m{o}}$  coincides with that of R by f. Therefore  $f_a$  is a trunk of  $\mathcal{I}$ .

Recalling §19 Theorem 2, we have obviously

For a subspace S < R , every trunk of 7 also is a trunk of the relative topology 7 in S.

### \$23 Completely regular topologies

Let R be a topological space with a topology 7. A topology 7 is said to be completely regular, if for any  $\alpha \in A \in \mathcal{I}$  we can find a continuous function  $\varphi$  on R such that  $\varphi(x) = 1$  and  $\varphi(x) = 0$  for every x & A.

If 7 is completely regular, then 7 is regular. Theorem 1.

Proof. For any  $\alpha \in A \in \mathcal{I}$ , there is by assumption a continuous function  $\varphi$  on  $\mathbb{R}$  such that  $\varphi(a) = 1$  and  $\varphi(\pi) = 0$  for every  $\pi \in A$ . For such  $\varphi$ , putting  $X = \{x : \varphi(z) > \frac{1}{2}\}$ , we obtain by Theorems 2 and 3 in \$20 an open set X such that

0,6 X C X - C { x : 4(x) ≥ + } C A.

Therefore 7 is regular by definition.

Theorem 2. The condition that Y is completely regular, is equivalent to one of the conditions that 'Y coincides with a weak topology of R by functions; that there is a trunk of 7; and that the totality of bounded continuous functions is a trunk of 7.

By virtue of \$22 Theorem 5, T is completely regular, if Proof. and only if the totality of bounded continuous functions on R is a trunk Therefore we obtain our assertion by Theorems 6 and 7 in \$22. of N.

Recalling §22 Theorem 8, we conclude from Theorem 2

If 7 is completely regular, then the relative to-Theorem 3. pology Ys also is completely regular for every subspace S < R.

For a function  $\mathcal G$  on a subspace  $\mathcal S$  of  $\mathcal R$ , if there is a continuous function  $\psi$  on R such that  $\psi(x) = \varphi(x)$  for every  $x \in S$ , then  $\psi$  is said to be a continuous extension of f over R. If a function f on a subspace S has a continuous extension over R , then  $\Psi$  must be by §16 Theorem 5 a continuous function on S by the relative topology 75. For a dense set S, if a function  $\varphi$  on S has a continuous extension over R , then we see by §16 Theorem  $\theta$  that the continuous extension is uniquely determined.

Theorem 4.(Urysohn) If 7 is normal in an open set A and S is a closed set included in A, then every bounded continuous function & on S by the relative topology 7s has a continuous extension w over R. such that  $\psi(x) = \sup_{x \in S} \varphi(x)$  for every  $x \in A$ .

Since the totality of rational numbers is countable, we denote by  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2,...$ ) the totality of rational numbers in the interval (inf  $\varphi(x)$ ,  $\sup_{x \in S} \varphi(x)$ ). Then there is a sequence of open sets  $X_{\nu} \ll A$  ( $\nu = 1$ , 2,...) such that

 $\{x: \varphi(x) < \alpha_{\nu}\} \subset X_{\nu}, \qquad X_{\nu}^{-}\{x: \varphi(x) > \alpha_{\nu}\} = 0,$ and  $X_{\nu} \prec X_{\rho}$ , for  $d_{\nu} < d_{\rho}$ . Indeed, we suppose that  $X_1, \dots, X_{\nu-1}$  are already determined in such a marmer. Since S is closed by assumption, for every real number & both point sets

 $\{x: \varphi(x) \ge \xi\}$  and  $\{x: \varphi(x) \le \xi\}$ 

are closed sets in R by Theorems 2 in §20 and 2 in §9. Then, since

{x: 4(x) < d, } = ≥ (x: 4(x) ≤ d, - 1),

{x: \(\varphi(x) > \delta\) = \(\frac{\mathbb{H}}{2}\) {x: \(\varphi(x)\) ≥ \(\delta\) + \(\frac{\mathbb{H}}{2}\) },

1x: 4(x) < du) - < 1x: 4(x) \ du).

[x: \(\alpha(x) \rangle du \) = \(\alpha\) \(\frac{1}{2}\);

for a point set B such that  $\sum_{p < 1} \times_p + S < B < A$ , we can find by §11 Theorem 2 open sets X, and Y, such that

Σ × + {z: φ(z) < α, } & X, < B,

E B X + { x: 9(x) > dv } C Yv C A. and  $X_{\nu}Y_{\nu}=0$ . For such an open set  $X_{\nu}$  we have obviously by the first relation

XM XX for alm < Qu, M < V. {z: 4(z) < d, } < X, < A. and by the second relation

 $X_{\nu}^{-}\{x: \varphi(x) > \alpha_{\nu}\} = 0$ ,  $X_{\mu} > X_{\nu}$  for  $\alpha_{\mu} > \alpha_{\nu}$ ,  $\mu < \nu$ , because  $X_{\nu} Y_{\nu} = 0$  implies  $X_{\nu} \subset Y_{\nu}'$  , namely  $X_{\nu} = Y_{\nu} = 0$ .

For such a sequence of open sets  $X_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ), putting

$$\psi(x) = \begin{cases} \inf_{x \in \mathbb{R}} d_{\nu} & \text{for } x \in \mathbb{R}^{n} \times \nu, \\ \sup_{x \in \mathbb{R}} \varphi(x) & \text{for } x \in \mathbb{R}^{n} \times \nu, \end{cases}$$

This function satisfies obwe obtain a bounded function 4 on R. viously for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ 

1x: 4(x) < d, ) < X, < (x: 4(x) ≤ d, ).

Accordingly we have for every real number }

$$\{z: \psi(z) < \xi\} = \sum_{\substack{\alpha_{i} \in \xi \\ \alpha_{i} \in \xi}} \{z: \psi(z) < \alpha_{i}\}$$

$$= \sum_{\substack{\alpha_{i} \in \xi \\ \alpha_{i} \in \xi}} \{z: \psi(z) \leq \alpha_{i}\} = \sum_{\substack{\alpha_{i} \in \xi \\ \alpha_{i} \in \xi}} X_{\nu}.$$

and hence  $\{x : \Psi(x) < \frac{\pi}{2} \}$  is open for every real number  $\frac{\pi}{2}$ . Furthermore we have  $\{x: \psi(x) \leq \xi\} = \prod_{\alpha_{\nu} > \xi} \{x: \psi(x) < \alpha_{\nu}\}$ 

 $= \prod_{\alpha_{\nu} > \xi} \left\{ x : \Psi(x) \leq \alpha_{\nu} \right\} = \prod_{\alpha_{\nu} > \xi} X_{\nu} = \prod_{\alpha_{\nu} > \xi} X_{\nu}^{*},$ 

because  $\alpha_{\nu} > \alpha_{\mu}$  implies  $x_{\nu} \supset x_{\mu}$ . From this relation we conclude that  $\{x: \Upsilon(x) \leq \xi\}$  is closed, and hence  $\{x: \Upsilon(x) > \xi\}$  is Therefore  $\Psi$  is by §20 Theorem 2 a continuous function on R .

This continuous function  $\Psi$  is a continuous extension of  $\mathcal{G}$ .

§23) 57 cause, if  $\varphi(x) < \omega_{\nu}$  for a point  $x \in S$  , then we have  $x \in X_{\nu}$ , and hence  $\psi(x) \leq \alpha_{\nu}$ , that is,  $\varphi(x) < \alpha_{\nu}$  implies  $\psi(x) \leq \alpha_{\nu}$ . have  $\varphi(z) \ge \psi(z)$  for every  $z \in S$ . On the other hand, if  $\psi(z) < \alpha_{\nu}$ for a point  $x \in S$  , then we have  $x \in X_{\nu}$  , and hence  $\varphi(x) \leq \alpha_{\nu}$  because  $X_{\nu}\{x: \varphi(z) > d_{\nu}\} = 0$ Consequently we obtain likewise that \*(%) ≥ \( (x) for every x \( \mathcal{S} \). Therefore we conclude  $\varphi(z) = \psi(z)$  for every z e S.

Theorem 5. If a topology 7 is regular and locally normal, then the topology 7 is completely regular.

For a 6 A 6 7 we can find by assumption an open set N Procî. such that  $a \in \mathcal{N} \subset A$  and  $\Upsilon$  is normal in  $\mathcal{N}$ . Since  $\Upsilon$  is regular by assumption, we have  $\{a\}^r \in \mathcal{N}$  by §10 Theorem 1. If  $\{a\}^r \Rightarrow \mathcal{N}$ , then there is a point  $\ell \in N$  such that  $\{a\}^{-\frac{1}{2}}\ell$ , and we have by §10 Theorem 1

 $\{a\}^{-}\{\ell\}^{-}=0, \qquad \{a\}^{-}+\{\ell\}^{-}\in\mathcal{N}.$ 

For such a and f, putting  $\psi(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } x \in \{a\} \end{cases}$  for  $x \in \{\ell\}$ 

we obtain a bounded continuous function  $\varphi$  on the subspace  $\{a\}^- + \{\{a\}^-\}$ . By virtue of Theorem 4, there is then a continuous function 4 on R such that  $\Psi(a) = 0$ ,  $\Psi(x) = 1$  for every  $x \in N$ . For such  $\Psi$ , putting  $\omega=1-\psi$  we obtain a continuous function  $\omega$  on R such that  $\omega(a)=1$  and w(x) = 0 for every  $x \in A$ . If  $\{a\}^- = N$ , then putting

$$\omega(z) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{for } z \in \{a\}^- \\ 0 & \text{for } z \in \{a\}^- \end{cases}$$

we obtain a continuous function won R. Therefore 7 is completely regular by definition.

Recalling §12 Theorem 3, we conclude from Theorem 5

Theorem 6. If a topology 7 is regular and locally compact, then I is completely regular.

Theorem 7. If a topology 7 is regular and compact, then in order that a collection of bounded continuous functions f be a trunk it is necessary and sufficient that for any pair of separated points x, y there is  $q \in f$  such that  $q(x) \neq q(y)$ .

The necessity is evident by §22 Theorem 3. If f 3atisfies the stated condition, then the closed field generated by f is by \$21 Theorem 3 composed of all continuous functions, and hence we see by Theorem 2 and §22 Theorem 4 that f is a trunk of  $\Im$ .

#### \$24 Compastification

For a topological space R with a topology I, a topological space R with a regular compact topology T is called a compact extension of R, if R is included in R and Y coincides with the relative topology TR of T in R. If a topological space R has a compact extension  $\overline{R}$  , then  $\overline{R}$  is completely regular by §23 Theorem 6, and hence R also must be completely regular by \$23 Theorem 3.

Let R be a topological space with a completely regular topology ?, and f a trunk of T. A compact extension R of R is called a compactification of R by f, if R satisfies the compactification conditions:

- R is dense in R .
- every 96 f has a continuous extension F over R,
- every adding point & 6 R R is separated from each other point  $\vec{l} \in \vec{R}$  by  $\vec{f}$ , that is, we can find  $\psi \in \vec{f}$  such that for the continuous extension  $\varphi$  of  $\varphi$  over  $\bar{R}$  we have  $\bar{\varphi}(\bar{a}) \neq \bar{\varphi}(\bar{b})$ .

We shall prove firstly that for every trunk f of T there exists a compactification of R by f'. As every  $f \in f'$  is bounded, corresponding to each  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$  we can find two numbers  $\prec_{\varphi}$  ,  $\beta_{\varphi}$  such that

 $\alpha_{\varphi} \leq \varphi(x) \leq \beta_{\varphi}$  for every  $x \in \mathcal{R}$ . Considering f as a space, we denote by  $\widetilde{\mathcal{A}}$  the totality of functions  $\widetilde{a}$ on f such that

 $d_{\varphi} \leq \tilde{a}(\varphi) \leq \beta \varphi$  for every  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$ and there is no point  $x \in R$  for which  $\widetilde{A}(q) = \varphi(x)$  for every  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$ . If there is no such function  $\tilde{a}$  on f , then we assume naturally  $\widetilde{A}=0$  . Putting  $\tilde{R} = R + \tilde{A}$ , we obtain a space  $\tilde{R}$  which includes R.

more, corresponding to every  $\varphi \in f$ , putting

(24)

$$\widetilde{\varphi}(z) = \begin{cases} \varphi(z) & \text{for } z \in \mathbb{R} \\ z(\varphi) & \text{for } z \in \widetilde{\mathbb{A}} \end{cases}$$

CONTINUOUS MAPPINGS

we obtain a function  $\widetilde{\varphi}$  on  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$ . Let  $\widetilde{\gamma}$  be the weak topology of  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  by  $\{\,\widetilde{\varphi}\,:\,\, arphi\,\in\,\mathcal{F}\,\,\}$  . Then for every system of real numbers  $\{\,arphi\,\,(\,arphi\,\in\,\mathcal{F}\,\,)\,$ such that  $\alpha_{\phi} \leq \frac{\pi}{4} \varphi \leq \beta_{\phi}$  there is a point  $\pi \in \mathbb{R}$  such that

$$\widetilde{\mathscr{G}}(z) = \xi_{\varphi}$$
 for every  $\varphi \in f$ ,

and the closed interval [  $lpha_{m{\varphi}}$  ,  $m{\beta}_{m{\varphi}}$  ] is a compact Hausdorff space by the number topology. Accordingly we see by \$19 Theorem 4 that 7 is com-Therefore, putting pact.

$$\bar{R} = R^{\tilde{\gamma}}$$

we obtain by §12 Theorem 1 a compact space  $\widehat{\mathcal{R}}$  by the relative topology  $\widetilde{\gamma}^{\,\overline{R}}$  of  $\widetilde{\gamma}$  in  $\overline{R}$  Since the relative topology  $\widetilde{\gamma}^{\,\overline{R}}$  is by §19 Theorem 3 the weak topology by  $\{\widetilde{arphi}:\ arphi\in \mathcal{F}\}$  ,  $\widetilde{\widetilde{\gamma}}^{\,\,\overline{k}}$  is regular by §23 Theorem 2, and hence  $\overline{R}$  is a compact extension of R. Furthermore R is dense in  $\overline{R}$ by §9 Theorem 7.  $\widetilde{\varphi}$  is obviously a continuous extension of  $\varphi$  over  $\overline{R}$ . If  $\overline{a} \in \overline{R} - R$  and  $\overline{a} \neq \overline{I} \in \overline{R}$ , then there is  $9 \in F$  such that

$$\overline{a}(\varphi) \neq \begin{cases} \overline{k}(\varphi) & \text{for } \overline{k} \in \overline{R} - R \\ \varphi(\overline{k}) & \text{for } \overline{k} \in R \end{cases}$$

that is,  $\widetilde{\mathcal{F}}(\overline{a}) \neq \widetilde{\mathcal{F}}(\overline{b})$ . Therefore  $\widetilde{R}$  is a compactification of Rby F.

Now we can state

Theorem 1. For any trunk f of 7 we can find a compactification of R by f.

Theorem 2. Let R be a compactification of R by a trunk f of 7. In order that a bounded continuous function & on R have a continuous extension over  $\bar{R}$  , it necessary and sufficient that  $\varphi$  be contained in the closed field genrated by f.

Let  $\overline{\varphi}$  be the continuous extension of  $\mathcal{G} \in \mathcal{F}$  over  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}$  and  $ar{f}_{s}$  the closed field generated by  $\{ar{arphi}:arPai_{s}f\}$  . Recalling §21 Theorem 3, we see by the compactification condition 3) that  $\vec{f}_e$  is composed of all continuous functions on  $\vec{R}$  . Furthermore we see easily by §20 Theorem

7 that  $\overline{f}_a$  is the closed field generated by f in R. Therefore we obtain our assertion.

Let R and R be two compactifications of R res-Theorem 3. pectively by trunks f and q of T. If the closed field generated by & includes a, then there exists uniquely a continuous mapping a onto  $\tilde{z}$  such that  $\alpha(z) = z$  for every  $z \in R$ , and such a mapping or is closed. Such a mapping a is a transformation from R to  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  , if and only if the closed field generated by f coincides with that generated by Q.

By virtue of Theorem 2, we can assume that both f and Proof. q are closed fields and  $f\supset q$ . Corresponding to every  $q\in f$  we obtain by the compactification condition 2) its continuous extension F over  $\overline{R}$  , and corresponding to every  $\varphi \in q$  its continuous extension  $\widetilde{\varphi}$ over  $\overline{R}$ . For each adding point  $\overline{a} \in \overline{R} - R$ , we have by the compactification condition 1)

R前(え: |死(え) - 死(え)| < E, 元e R ) キロ for every finite number of functions  $\Psi_{\nu} \in \mathcal{G} (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  and for every positive number  $\xi$  , and hence also

 $R\prod_{k=1}^{n} \{\widetilde{z}: |\widetilde{\gamma}_{k}(\widetilde{z}) - \overline{\gamma}_{k}(\widetilde{a})| < \epsilon, \widetilde{z} \in \widetilde{R}\} \neq 0.$ 

Since R is compact, we can find by §7 Theorem 3 a point

 $\tilde{a} \in \Pi$   $\{\tilde{x}: |\tilde{\varphi}(\tilde{x}) - \tilde{\varphi}(\tilde{a})| \leq \varepsilon, \tilde{x} \in \tilde{R}\}$ 

and we have obviously

60

 $\tilde{\varphi}(\tilde{a}) = \tilde{\varphi}(\tilde{a})$  for every  $\varphi \in Q$ , that is, corresponding to each  $\tilde{a} \in \tilde{R} - R$  we can find  $\tilde{a} \in \tilde{R}$  satisfying (\*). Such a point & is by the compactification condition 3) uniquely determined and different from every point of R. Conversely we can prove likewise that corresponding to each adding point  $\tilde{a} \in \tilde{R} - R$  there is at least a point  $\bar{a} \in \bar{R} - \bar{R}$  satisfying (\*). Therefore, assigning to each adding point  $\tilde{a} \in \tilde{R} - R$  such an adding point  $\tilde{a} \in \tilde{R} - R$  satisfying (\*), we obtain a mapping  $\alpha$  of  $\overline{R}$  onto  $\widetilde{R}$  such that  $\alpha(x) = x$  for every  $x \in R$ . This mapping on is continuous. Because we have by (\*)

$$\tilde{\varphi}(\alpha(\tilde{z})) = \tilde{\varphi}(\tilde{z})$$
 for every  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$ ,  $\tilde{z} \in \tilde{R}$ ,

and hence for every finite number of functions  $\varphi_{\nu} \in Q_{\nu}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa)$ and for every positive number &

$$\alpha^{-1}(\{\vec{x}: | \vec{y}_{\nu}(\vec{x}) - \vec{y}_{\nu}(\alpha(\vec{\alpha})) | < \mathcal{E} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa)\})$$

$$= \{\vec{x}: | \vec{y}_{\nu}(\vec{x}) - \vec{y}_{\nu}(\vec{\alpha}) | < \mathcal{E} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa)\}.$$

Conversely, if  $\alpha_1$  is a continuous mapping of  $\overline{R}$  onto  $\widetilde{R}$  such that  $\alpha_1(x) = x$  for every  $x \in R$ , then for each function  $\varphi \in Q$ , putting

$$\Psi(\vec{z}) = \widetilde{\varphi}(n_1(\vec{z}))$$
 for every  $\vec{z} \in \vec{R}$ ,

we obtain a continuous function  $\psi$  on  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}$  and we have

$$\Psi(x) = \widetilde{\varphi}(\alpha_1(x)) = \widetilde{\varphi}(x)$$
 for every  $x \in R$ .

Therefore we conclude by \$16 Theorem 9

(24)

 $\Psi(\overline{z}) = \overline{\varphi}(\overline{z}) = \widetilde{\varphi}(\alpha(\overline{z}))$  for every  $\overline{z} \in \overline{R}$ . and hence  $\alpha_1(\vec{z}) = \alpha(\vec{z})$  by the compactification condition 3).

Such a mapping  $\alpha$  is closed. Because for each closed set  $\vec{A} < \vec{R}$ . as  $\overline{A}$  is compact by §7 Theorem 1,  $\sigma(\overline{A}$ ) is compact by §16 Theorem 7. Furthermore, as  $\alpha(\bar{A}) = \alpha(\sum_{x \in \bar{A}R} \{x\}^{-} + \bar{A}(\bar{R} - R)) = \sum_{x \in \bar{A}R} \{x\}^{-} + \alpha(\bar{A}(\bar{R} - R)),$  $\sigma(\vec{A})$  is a topological set by the compactification condition 3).  $\alpha(\vec{A})$  is closed by §10 Theorem 2.

If  $\mathcal{F}=\mathcal{F}$ , then corresponding to each point  $\widetilde{a}\in\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  there exists uniquely a point  $\overline{\alpha} \in \overline{R}$  satisfying (\*), as proved just above, and hence  $\sigma$ is a transformation from  $\overline{R}$  to  $\widetilde{R}$  . Conversely, if such a mapping  $\alpha$  is a transformation from  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  to  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  , then the inverse transformation  $\boldsymbol{\alpha}^{-l}$  is continuous, because lpha is closed, as proved just above. Thus for each  $arphi \in f$ , putting  $\psi(\tilde{x}) = \overline{\varphi}(\alpha^{-1}(\tilde{x}))$  for every  $\tilde{x} \in \tilde{R}$ , we obtain a continuous function  $\psi$  on  $\tilde{R}$  and  $\psi(x) = \tilde{\varphi}(\alpha^{-1}(x)) = \varphi(x)$  for every  $x \in R$ . conclude therefore  $\varphi \in q$  by Theorem 2.

From Theorem 1 we conclude immediately

Theorem 4. (Tychonoff) In order that a topological space R has a compact extension, it is necessary and sufficient that R is completely regular.

We see at once by the compactification condition 3)

Theorem 5. Every compactification of R is a Hausdorff space, if R is separated by its topology 7.

#### UNIFORK SPACES

#### CHAPTER IV

#### UNIFORM SPACES

#### Connectors

Let R be an abstract space. A correspondence T which assigns to every point x & R a point set T(x) < R, is called a connector. if  $U(x) \ni x$  for every point  $x \in R$ . The correspondence which assignes to every point x & R the point set {x}, is obviously a connector, which will be called the identical connector and denoted by I .

For two connectors V. V, we shall write  $V \ge V$  or  $V \le V$ , if

**び(x) コ サ(x)** for every x < R .

With this definition we have obviously that  $U \geq V$ ,  $V \geq W$  implies  $U \geq W$ , and 1 < D for every connector  $\nabla$ .

For two connectors V . V we define their intersection V V to mean

- (1)  $\nabla \nabla (x) = \nabla (x) \nabla (x)$ for every z e R.
- The intersection UV is obviously a connector, and we have
  - ひマ = マロ.  $(\sigma \nabla) \nabla = \nabla (\nabla \nabla)$
  - TI = I. TV S T. (3)

For two connectors V, V we define their product VXV to mean

 $\nabla \times \nabla (x) = \sum_{y \in \mathcal{V}(x)} \nabla (y)$ for every & G R. (4)

The product UXV is obviously a connector too, and we see easily that

- $(\mathbf{v} \times \mathbf{v}) \times \mathbf{v} = \mathbf{v} \times (\mathbf{v} \times \mathbf{v}),$ (5)
- $\nabla \times I = I \times \nabla = \nabla$ (6)
- $\nabla \leq \nabla \times \nabla$ ,  $\nabla \leq \nabla \times \nabla$ , (7)
- U≤V implies U×W ≤ V×W, W×U≦W×V. (8)

Furthermore, for an arbitrary point set A and a connector  $\nabla$ , we define AxT to mean

- $A \times T = \sum_{x \in A} T(x)$ . (9)
- With this definition we have obviously
  - (1,0)  $\nabla \times \nabla (x) = \nabla (x) \times \nabla$ .
  - $(A \times \nabla) \times \nabla = A \times (\nabla \times \nabla)$ (11)
  - $(\Sigma A_{\lambda}) \times T = \Sigma A_{\lambda} \times T$ (12)

- $A \times I = A$ ,  $A \subset A \times T$ , (13)
- $A \subset B$  implies  $A \times \mathcal{I} \subset B \times \mathcal{I}$ ,
- U≦7 implies A× J < A×J. (15)

For a connector  $\boldsymbol{\sigma}$ , we define its inverse  $\boldsymbol{\sigma}^{-1}$  to mean

び \*\*(ス) = { ¼: ひ(\*) > x } for every ze R. 63

that is, we have

(25)

 $y \in \mathcal{D}^{-1}(x)$  is equivalent to  $x \in \mathcal{D}(y)$ . (16)The inverse  $\boldsymbol{\nabla}^{-1}$  also is obviously a connector and we have

- $(\nabla^{-1})^{-1} = \nabla$ (17)
- (ワワ) -: = ヮ゚゚ヮ゚゚
- (\(\pi \times \pi)^{\circ} = \(\pi^{-1} \times \pi^{-1}, \) (19)
- U≤V implies U-'≤ V-' (20)

The relation (17) is evident by definition. 4 € ( T V ) " (x) 1s equivalent by (16) to  $x \in \nabla V(x)$ , namely  $x \in V(x) \nabla (x)$ , which also is by (16) equivalent to  $y \in \mathcal{T}^{-1}(x)$   $\mathcal{T}^{-1}(x)$ , namely  $y \in \mathcal{T}^{-1}(x)$ . Hence we obtain the relation (18),  $y \in (\nabla \times \nabla)^{-1}(x)$  is equivalent by (16) to  $x \in \nabla \times \nabla (x)$ , namely  $x \in \nabla (z)$ ,  $z \in \nabla (x)$  for some point  $z \in R$ . This relation is by definition equivalent to  $z \in \nabla^{-1}(z)$ ,  $y \in \nabla^{-1}(z)$  for some point  $z \in R$ , namely  $y \in \nabla^{-1} \times \nabla^{-1}(z)$ . the relation (19) is proved. If  $\nabla \leq \nabla$ , then  $y \in \nabla^{-1}(z)$  implies by (16)  $x \in \mathcal{T}(y) \subset \mathcal{T}(y)$ , and hence  $y \in \mathcal{T}^{-1}(x)$ . Therefore we obtain the last relation (20).

As  $U(x) \ni y$  implies by (16)  $x \in V^{-1}(y)$ , we obtain by (4)

 $abla(x) \ni x \text{ implies } \nabla(x) \subset \nabla^{-1} \times \nabla(x).$ 

If  $AU(x) \neq 0$ , then for a point  $y \in AU(x)$  we have by the relation (21)  $\mathbf{U}(\mathbf{x}) \subset \mathbf{U}^{-1} \times \mathbf{U}(\mathbf{y})$  and hence we obtain by (9)

(22) $AU(x) \neq 0$  implies  $U(x) \subseteq A \times U^{-1} \times U$ .

For a connector  $\mathbf{U}$ , we have

 $(A \times \nabla)B = 0$  implies  $A(B \times \nabla^{-1}) = 0$ . Because, if  $x \in A(B \times \sigma^{-1})$ , then we can find by (9) a point  $y \in R$  such

that  $x \in \nabla^{-1}(y)$ ,  $y \in \mathcal{B}$ , and hence we obtain by (16)  $y \in \mathcal{T}(x)$ ,  $y \in \mathcal{B}$ ,  $x \in A$ , namely  $y \in (A \times T)B$ .

A connector  $\nabla$  is said to be symmetric, if  $\nabla^{-1} = \nabla$ . With this definition we have obviously by (17), (18), (19)

For any connector V, all connectors UV-1, UXU-1, Theorem 1. and  $\mathbf{U}^{-1} \times \mathbf{U}$  are symmetric.

For a connector T we define

 $\nabla^{\circ} = \mathbf{I}, \quad \nabla^{\nu} = \nabla^{\nu-1} \times \nabla \quad \text{for every } \nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

With this definition we have

64

For an arbitrary point set A and a connector T, put-Theorem 2. ting  $B = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A \times U^i$ , we have that  $V \leq U$  implies  $B \times V = B$ ,  $B' \times V^{-1} = B'$ . We have by the relations (12), (15), and (11)

BXV = ZAXT'XV C ZAXT'+1 CB. and hence  $8 \times 7 = 8$  by (13). From  $8 \times 7 = 8$  we conclude  $8'(8 \times 7) = 0$ , and hence we obtain by (23)  $B(B' \times \nabla^{-1}) = 0$ , namely  $B' \times \nabla^{-1} \subset B'$ . Consequently we have  $B' \times \nabla^{-1} = B'$  by the relation (13).

Let R be now a topological space. For a connector of we define its opener V° to mean

 $\nabla^{\circ}(z) = {\nabla(z)}^{\circ}$  for every  $z \in R$ .

and its closure T to mean

 $abla^-(x) = \{ \mathcal{D}(x) \}^- \quad \text{for every } x \in \mathbb{R}.$ 

Similarly we can define further T -0, T - , ... For any connector U, its closure U is obviously a connector too, but its opener U° is The opener To is a connector, if and only if not necessarily so. every point x & R is an inner point of U(x).

#### §26 Uniformities

A collection of connectors  $\mathcal M$  is called a uniformity, if  $\mathcal M$  satisfies the uniformity conditions:

- W∋USU implies W∋V.
- Wo T. V implies パラでV, 2)
- For any  $U \in \mathcal{V}$  we can find  $V \in \mathcal{V}$  such that  $V^{-1} \times V \subseteq U$ . For a uniformity We we have

(4) W∋V implies W∋v-

§25, §26)

Because, for any  $\sigma\epsilon$  w we can find by the condition 3)  $\tau\epsilon$  w for which  $\nabla^{-1} \times \nabla \leq \nabla$ . Thus  $\nabla^{-1} \leq \nabla$  by the formula §25(7) and hence  $\nabla \leq \nabla^{-1}$ by the formulas (17) and (20) in §25. Therefore we have  $v^* \in v$  by the condition 1). Furthermore, putting  $W = V V^{-1}$ , we obtain by the formula (7) and Theorem 1 in §25 that  $w \times w \le v$  and  $w^{-1} = w$ . fore we have

(5) for any  $\sigma \in \mathcal{U}$  there is a symmetric connector  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  such that V×V≤ v.

From this relation we conclude immediately

for any  $\mathbf{v} \in \mathcal{W}$  there is a symmetric connector  $\mathbf{v} \in \mathcal{U}$  such that (6)  $\nabla \times \nabla \times \nabla \leq \nabla$ .

The totality of connectors is obviously a uniformity. This uniformity is called the discrete uniformity of a space R . once by the condition 1) that a uniformity  $\mathcal U$  is the discrete uniformity if and only if  $W \ni I$ .

For a uniformity  $\mathcal{U}$ , a subset  $\mathscr{U} < \mathcal{U}$  is said to be a basis of  $\mathcal{U}$ , if for any  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find  $\mathcal{V} \in \mathcal{Z}$  such that  $\mathcal{V} \subseteq \mathcal{U}$ . We see easily by the uniformity conditions 2) and 3) that every basis  ${\mathscr L}$  of a uniformity W satisfies the basis conditions:

- 1) for any T, V& L there is W& L such that W = U V;
- for any U ∈ L there is V ∈ L such that V x V ≤ U. Conversely we have

If a collection of connectors 4 satisfies the basis Theorem 1. conditions 1) and 2), then there exists uniquely a uniformity w such that & is a basis of W.

If we denote by W the totality of connectors v such that extstyle extity conditions 1), 2), and 3), that is,  $\mathcal U$  is a uniformity. more it is evident by definition that  ${\mathcal L}$  is a basis of this uniformity The uniqueness of such a uniformity also is evident by definition of basis.

A basis & of a uniformity W is said to be a symmetric basis of W. if % is composed only of symmetric connectors. For any uniformity Therefore M. ATT TO TEMS is obviously a symmetric basis of W. we have

#### Every uniformity has a symmetric basis. Theorem 2.

66

A point  $a \in R$  is said to be separated from a point  $a \in R$  by a uniformity  $\mathcal{U}$ . If there is  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $\mathcal{U}(a) \ni \mathcal{U}$ . If every point of R is separated from each other point of R by a uniformity W., then we shall say that R is separated by  ${\mathcal W}$  , or that  ${\mathcal W}$  is separative. A space R associated with a uniformity is called a uniform space.

#### §27 Induced topologies

Let R be a uniform space with a uniformity W. Denoting by 7 the totality of point sets X such that  $z \in X$  implies  $\sigma(z) \subseteq X$  for some  $\mathbf{U} \in \mathcal{U}$ , we see easily that  $\Upsilon$  satisfies the topology conditions. that is. T is a topology on R. This topology T is called the induced topology of R by a uniformity m and denoted by  $T^m$ , that is.

- $\gamma^{\mathcal{M}} = \{ \times : \times \in X \text{ implies } \nabla(\alpha) \subset X \text{ for some } \nabla \in \mathcal{U} \}.$ For the induced topology Tw of R by a uniformity W. we have for every point set A
- (2)  $A^{\circ} = \{ z : A \supset \nabla(z) \text{ for some } \nabla \in \mathcal{V} \}$ Because putting  $B = \{ z : A > U(z) \text{ for some } U \in \mathcal{U} \}$ , we have obviously by (1)  $A^{\circ} \subset B \subset A$ . For any point  $a \in B$  there is  $U \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $\nabla(A) \subseteq A$ . For such v we can find by \$26(5) vev such that V×V ≤ D. Then we have

 $A> V(a)> V(a)\times V \doteq \sum_{x\in V(a)} V(x),$  and hence 8>V(a). Therefore we obtain by (1)  $8\in \Upsilon^{tr}$ , and hence  $B = A^{\circ}$ .

For each  $\mathbf{v} \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find by  $\S 26(5)$   $\mathbf{v} \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $\mathbf{v} \times \mathbf{v} \leq \mathbf{v}$ , and then we have by (2)  $\nabla(x) < {\nabla(x)}^c$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ , that is, V S TO. Therefore we obtain

(3) T'& W for every 7 & Vz.

§26. §27)

Thus for each  $v \in u$  its opener  $v^*$  is naturally a connector, that is,  $\sigma^{\circ}(x) \ni x$  for every  $x \in R$ , and hence we obtain by (2)

Theorem 1. For a basis & of a uniformity W.

100(a): Te4.

is a neighbourhood system of a point a for the induced topology Y' Let & be a basis of a uniformity W.

(4)  $A^- = \prod_{v \in \mathcal{S}_{r}} A \times v = \prod_{v \in \mathcal{S}_{r}} (A \times v)^{\circ}$ . Because, for each point & & A we have by Theorem 1 A V (A) & O for

every V & W, and hence we obtain by the formula \$25(22) V(a) CAXV-1XV for every V & W.

Therefore we conclude by the uniformity condition 3) and by (2)

 $A^- \subset (A \times \nabla)^\circ$  for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$ 

Conversely, for each point  $a \in \prod_{x \in \mathcal{X}} A \times \mathcal{U}$ , we have by the relations (9) and (16) in §25  $AU^{-1}(a) \neq 0$  for every  $U \in \mathcal{L}$ . Since  $\mathcal{L}$  is a basis of W, we conclude hence by  $\S26(4)$   $AU(a) \neq 0$  for every  $U \in \mathcal{U}$ , and consequently  $a \in A^-$  by (2). Therefore we obtain (4).

Since  $A \times \nabla^{\circ}$  is by the definition §25(9) open for every  $\sigma \in \mathcal{U}$  , we obtain by (4)

- (5)  $A \subset A \times U^{\circ} \subset (A \times U)^{\circ}$  for every  $U \in \mathcal{U}$ . Putting A = W(x), we obtain hence for any connector W
  - (6) W ≤ (W x v)° for every v ∈ W.

Theorem 2. For every  $\mathbf{U} \in \mathcal{U}$ ,  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A \times \mathbf{U}^{\vee}$  is open and closed by the induced topology 7".

<u>Proof.</u>, Putting  $B = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A \times \sigma^{\nu}$ , we have by §25 Theorem 2  $\mathcal{B} = \mathcal{B} \times \mathcal{D}$  and hence  $\mathcal{B}^* \subset \mathcal{B}^*$  by the formula (5).

By virtue of formulas (3), (6), and §25(5), we have obviously Theorem 3. For any basis & of W, both ( T': Ve & ) and To : Te & | also are basis of W.

Such a connector v° is said to be open, and v closed,

R is a Hausdorff space by the induced topology Y". Theorem 4. if and only if R is separated by a uniformity W.

<u>Proof.</u> If R is separated by the induced topology  $T^{\mathcal{H}}$ , then R is separated by  $\mathcal{H}$  on account of Theorem 1. Conversely, if R is separated by  $\mathcal{H}$ , then for each pair of different points z, y we can find by the formula 26(5) a symmetric connector  $\mathbf{V} \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $\mathbf{V} \times \mathbf{V}(z) = 3$ . Then we have by 25(23)

 $\nabla(x) \nabla(y) = \nabla(x) \nabla^{-1}(y) = 0$ ,

and hence naturally  $\nabla^o(z) \nabla^o(z) = 0$ . Therefore R is a Hausdorff space by  $\Upsilon^M$ .

Theorem 5. Let  $\mathscr C$  be a basis of a uniformity  $\mathscr W$ . For a topology  $\mathscr T$  on  $\mathscr R$ , we have  $\mathscr T \supset \mathscr T^{\mathscr W}$  if and only if every point  $\mathscr X$  is an inner point of  $\mathscr U(z)$  by  $\mathscr T$  for every  $\mathscr V \in \mathscr C$ , that is,  $\mathscr X \in \{\mathscr V(\widetilde X)\}^{\mathscr T^o}$  for every  $\mathscr X \in \mathscr R$  and  $\mathscr V \in \mathscr C$ .

Proof. If  $\Upsilon > \Upsilon^W$ , then we have by  $\S 8(1) \{ \nabla(z) \}^{\Upsilon^0} > \nabla^0(z)$  for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$ , and hence we see by (3) that z is an inner point of  $\nabla(z)$  by  $\Upsilon$ . Conversely, if  $z \in \{ \nabla(z) \}^{\Upsilon^0}$  for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  and  $z \in \mathcal{R}$ , then for each  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find by (3)  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $\nabla^0 \geq \nabla$ , and hence  $\nabla^0(z) > \{ \nabla(z) \}^{\Upsilon^0} \ni x \qquad \text{for every } z \in \mathcal{R}.$ 

Thus we conslude  $\gamma \supset \gamma^m$  by §8 Theorem 1.

Theorem 6. For a topology  $\gamma$  on R and a basis  $\mathcal L$  of  $\mathcal U$ , we have  $\gamma \in \gamma^{\mathcal U}$  if and only if  $\alpha \in A \in \gamma$  implies  $\nabla(z) \in A$  for some  $\nabla \in \mathcal L$ .

Proof. If  $T \subset T^M$ , then for  $a \in A \in T$  we can find by Theorem 1  $U \in \mathcal{L}$  such that  $U^{\circ}(a) \subset A$ . For such U we can find further by (3)  $U \in \mathcal{L}$  such that  $V \subseteq U^{\circ}$ , and hence  $U(a) \subset A$ . Conversely, if  $a \in A \in T$  implies  $U(a) \subset A$  for some  $U \in \mathcal{L}$ , then, as  $U^{\circ} \subseteq U$ , we obtain  $T \subset T^M$  by §8 Theorem 1.

#### \$28 Comparation of uniformities

Let R be an abstract space. For two uniformities  $\mathcal U$  and  $\mathcal V$  on R, if  $\mathcal W \subset \mathcal W$ , then we shall say that  $\mathcal W$  is weaker than  $\mathcal V$  or  $\mathcal V$  is stronger than  $\mathcal U$ . It is evident by the definition of basis that if  $\mathcal V$  includes a basis of  $\mathcal U$ , then  $\mathcal V$  is stronger than  $\mathcal U$ . Furthermore we

see easily by definition

\$27, \$28)

Theorem 1. For a basis  $\mathscr C$  of a uniformity  $\mathscr W$  and for a basis  $\mathscr O$ t of another uniformity  $\mathscr V$  on R, we have  $\mathscr U \subset \mathscr V$ , if and only if for each  $U \in \mathscr U$  we can find  $V \in \mathscr R$  such that  $U \supseteq V$ .

The discrete uniformity is obviously stronger than each other uniformity. The trivial uniformity, which is composed only of a single connector  $V_0$  such that  $V_0(z) = R$  for every  $x \in R$ , is obviously weaker than every other uniformity.

Theorem 2. For a system of uniformities  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) on R there exist both the weakest stronger uniformity  $\bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  and the strongest weaker uniformity  $\bigcap_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$ .

Froof. If we denote by  $\mathcal{L}_o$  the totality of connectors  $U_{\lambda_1}U_{\lambda_2}...U_{\lambda_{\kappa}}$  for every finite number of connectors  $U_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{U}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ ,  $\lambda_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), then  $\mathcal{L}_o$  satisfies the basis conditions. Because, if  $V_{\lambda_{\nu}} : \times V_{\lambda_{\nu}} \subseteq U_{\lambda_{\nu}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), then we have by the formulas (7) and (20) in §25

 $(\nabla_{\lambda_1}\nabla_{\lambda_2}\dots\nabla_{\lambda_n})^\top\times(\nabla_{\lambda_1}\nabla_{\lambda_2}\dots\nabla_{\lambda_n}) \leq \nabla_{\lambda_n}^{-1}\times\nabla_{\lambda_n} \leq \nabla_{\lambda_n}$  for every  $\nu=1,\,2,\ldots,\,\kappa$  , and hence

 $(\nabla_{\lambda_1}\nabla_{\lambda_2}\cdots\nabla_{\lambda_K})^{-1}\times(\nabla_{\lambda_1}\nabla_{\lambda_2}\cdots\nabla_{\lambda_K})\leqq \nabla_{\lambda_1}\nabla_{\lambda_2}\cdots\nabla_{\lambda_K}.$  Thus we see by §26 Theorem 1 that there exists uniquely a uniformity  $\mathcal{M}_o$  such that  $\mathcal{L}_o$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{M}_o$ . For such a uniformity  $\mathcal{M}_o$ , it is evident that  $\mathcal{M}_o\supset\mathcal{M}_\lambda$  for every  $\lambda\in\Lambda$ . For a uniformity  $\mathcal{M}$ , if  $\mathcal{M}\supset\mathcal{M}_\lambda$  for every  $\lambda\in\Lambda$ , then we have  $\mathcal{M}\supset\mathcal{M}_o$  by the uniformity condition 2). Consequently  $\mathcal{M}_o$  is the weakest stronger uniformity of  $\mathcal{M}_\lambda(\lambda\in\Lambda)$ , namely  $\mathcal{M}_o=\bigcup_{\lambda\in\Lambda}\mathcal{M}_\lambda$ .

Let  $\mathcal{V}_{\chi}$  (  $\chi \in \Gamma$  ) be the system of all uniformities which are weaker than every  $\mathcal{U}_{\lambda}$  (  $\chi \in \Lambda$  ). Putting  $\mathcal{V}_{\sigma} = \bigcup_{\chi \in \Gamma} \mathcal{V}_{\chi}$ , we see easily that  $\mathcal{V}_{\sigma}$  is the strongest weaker uniformity of  $\mathcal{U}_{\lambda}$  ( $\chi \in \Lambda$ ), namely  $\mathcal{V}_{\sigma} = \bigcap_{\chi \in \Lambda} \mathcal{U}_{\lambda}$ .

In this Proof we find easing

Theorem 3. If  $\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{W}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , then  $\{ \mathcal{T}_{\lambda_1} \mathcal{T}_{\lambda_2} \dots \mathcal{T}_{\lambda_{\kappa}} : \mathcal{T}_{\lambda_{\kappa}} \in \mathcal{L}_{\lambda_{\kappa}}, \ \lambda_{\kappa} \in \Lambda \ (\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \kappa), \ \kappa=1, 2, \ldots \}$  is a basis of the weakest stronger uniformity  $\mathcal{W}_{\lambda}$ .

Theorem 4. If a uniformity W is weaker than a uniformity W

on R , then the induced topology ? w by W is weaker than that ? by V , that is, we wimplies Twe TV

If  $a \in A \in \Upsilon^M$ , then we can find by §27 Theorem 1  $U \in \mathcal{U}$ such that U°(a) < A. As U° & M. by §27(3), we obtain Tot < T obv \$27 Theorem 6. if W C V.

For a system of uniformities W. (AGA), the in-Theorem 5. duced topology by U M, coincides with the weakest stronger topology of the induced topologies of the by Wh (LEA), that is, Then the UT

As  $\bigcup W_{\lambda} \supset W_{\rho}$  (  $ho \in \Lambda$  ), we have obviously by Theorem 4 7 14 och > U 7 och.

For each finite number of connectors  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{M}_{\lambda_{\nu}} (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , we have by  $\S27(3)$   $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda\nu}^{\gamma m_{\lambda\nu}}(x) \ni x (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , and hence  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda\nu}^{\gamma m_{\lambda\nu}}(x) \ni x$ . Since TT  $T_{\lambda_{k}}^{\gamma^{\mathfrak{M}_{\lambda_{k_{0}}}}}(z) \in U$   $\gamma^{\mathfrak{M}_{\lambda}}$ , z is an inner point of  $T_{\lambda_{1}}, T_{\lambda_{2}}...T_{\lambda_{m}}(z)$ by U 7 M. Therefore we conclude by Theorem 3 and §27 Theorem 5 U 7 Wh > 7 Wh. Consequently we obtain our assertion.

#### §29 Relative uniformities

Let R be an abstract space and S a subspace of R. nector V in R we define the induced connector  $V^S$  of R in the subspace S to mean  $abla^S(x) = SV(x)$  for every  $x \in S$ . The induced connector  $T^S$  is obviously a connector in S.

Concerning induced connectors, we have obviously by definition

- (1)  $\nabla \leq \nabla$  implies  $\nabla^S \leq \nabla^S$ .
- $(8) \quad (\nabla \nabla)^S = \nabla^S \nabla^S$

For every points x,  $y \in S$ ,  $y \in (\mathcal{O}^{-1})^{S}(x)$  is by §25(16), equivalent to  $x \in U(y)$ , namely  $x \in U^{S}(y)$ , and hence further equivalent to  $y \in U^{S^{-1}(x)}$ . Therefore we have

- $(3) \quad (\nabla^{-1})^{S} = \nabla^{S-1}$
- $(4) \quad (\pi \times \nabla)^{S} \geq \pi^{S} \times \nabla^{S}$ 
  - (5)  $(A \times T)^S \supset A^S \times T^S$

Because, we have by the definition \$25(9)

 $(A \times D)^{6} = S \underset{x \in A}{\Sigma} U(x) > \underset{x \in A}{\Sigma} S U(x) = \underset{x \in A^{S}}{\Sigma} U^{S}(x)$ and hence we obtain (5). Putting A = V(z) in (5), we obtain (V×V)<sup>S</sup> ≥ V<sup>S</sup>× U<sup>S</sup>

and hence we conclude (4).

§28. §29)

For a uniformity W on R, we see by the relations (1), (2), (3), and (4) that the system of connectors  $i \, \mathbf{U}^s$ :  $\mathbf{V} \, \circ \, \mathbf{W}$  ; satisfies the uniformity conditions 2) and 3) in S. If  $\sigma^s \leq W$  for a connector win S, then putting  $\mathbb{V}(x) = \begin{cases} \mathbb{V}(x) + \mathbb{V}(x) & \text{for } x \in S, \\ \mathbb{V}(x) & \text{for } x \in S, \end{cases}$ 

we obtain a connector  $\nabla$  in R such that  $\nabla \geq D$ . For this connector V . we have further for every x & S

 $\nabla^{S}(x) = \nabla^{S}(x) + \nabla(x) = \nabla(x),$ because  $\nabla^S \leq W$  by assumption. Therefore  $\{ \nabla^S : \nabla \in \mathcal{U} \}$  is a uniformity on S. This uniformity is called the relative uniformity of W in a subspace S and denoted by W. . that is.

W3 = { 08 : 76 W}

With this definition we have obviously by (1)

For a basis & of W, { DS : Ue & } 18 & basis of the relative uniformity W s of W in a subspace S .

Furthermore we have obviously

WCV implies WSCVS (7)

Concerning induced topologies we have

Theorem 2. The induced topology by the relative uniformity of s of W in S coincides with the relative topology of the induced topology  $\gamma^{m}$  by w, that is,  $\gamma^{(m^s)} = (\gamma^m)^s$ 

<u>Proof.</u> For each  $\nabla \in \mathcal{H}$ , we have obviously  $\mathcal{H}^{S}(x) \supset \mathcal{H}^{S}(x) \supset \mathcal{H}^{S}(x)$ and  $U^{\circ S}(z) \in (\mathcal{I}^{\mathcal{M}})^{S}$  by the definition of relative topologies. we have  $\gamma^{(M^S)} \subset (\gamma^M)^S$  by §27 Theorem 5. If  $\alpha \in A^S \in (\gamma^M)^S$ , then there is by §9 Theorem 2 and §27(1)  $U\in\mathcal{U}$  for which we have  $U^{S}(x)\subset A^{S}$ Therefore we have  $\gamma^{(\mathcal{M}^S)}\supset (\gamma^{\mathcal{M}})^S$  by §27 Theorem 6. Consequently we obtain our assertion.

### 330 Uniformly continuous mappings

Let R and S be two ebstract spaces and  $\alpha$  a mapping of R into S For a connector U in S we define the <u>inverse image</u>  $\alpha^{-1}$  U of U as  $\alpha^{-1}$  U( $\alpha(\alpha)$ ) for every  $x \in R$ .

The inverse image  $\sigma^{-1} \nabla$  is obviously a connector in R , and we have

- (1)  $y \in \alpha^{-1} \nabla(x)$  is equivalent to  $\alpha(y) \in \nabla(\alpha(x))$ . Recalling the formulas (4) and (5) in §15, we obtain at once
  - (2)  $U \leq V$  implies  $\alpha^{-1}U \leq \alpha^{-1}V$ ,
  - (3)  $\alpha^{-1}(\nabla \nabla) = (\alpha^{-1}\nabla)(\alpha^{-1}\nabla).$

We see by (1) that  $y \in \alpha^{-1} \nabla^{-1}(x)$  is equivalent to  $\alpha(y) \in \nabla^{-1}(\alpha(x))$ , namely  $\alpha(x) \in \nabla(\alpha(y))$  by \$25(16), and hence to  $x \in \alpha^{-1} \nabla(y)$ , namely  $y \in (\alpha^{-1} \nabla)^{-1}(x)$ . Therefore we have

- (4)  $\alpha^{-1} \sigma^{-1} = (\alpha^{-1} \sigma)^{-1}$ .
- (5)  $a^{-1}(\nabla \times \nabla) \geq a^{-1}\nabla \times a^{-1}\nabla$ ,
- (6)  $a^{-1}(A \times \nabla) \supset a^{-1}(A) \times a^{-1} \nabla$ .

Because, for any point  $x \in m^{-1}(A) \times m^{-1} U$  there is by §25(9)  $y \in R$  for which  $x \in m^{-1} U(y)$ ,  $y \in m^{-1}(A)$ , namely  $\sigma_1(x) \in A \times U$ . Therefore we obtain (6). Putting A = V(x) in (6), we conclude (5). On account of (4) we see at once that  $\sigma_1^{-1} U$  is symmetric for every symmetric connector U.

Let R and S be now uniform spaces with uniformities  $\mathcal M$  and  $\mathcal V$  respectively. A mapping  $\mathcal A$  of R into S is said to be uniformly continuous, if  $\mathcal M^{-1}$   $\mathcal V \in \mathcal W$  for every  $\mathcal V \in \mathcal V$ .

Theorem 1. For a basis  $\mathscr L$  of  $\mathscr W$  and a basis  $\mathscr C$  of  $\mathscr P$ , in order that a mapping  $\mathscr A$  of  $\mathscr R$  into  $\mathscr S$  be uniformly continuous, it is necessary and sufficient that for each  $\mathscr U \in \mathscr C$  we can find  $\mathscr V \in \mathscr L$  such that  $\mathscr Y \in \mathscr V(\infty)$  implies  $\mathscr A(\mathscr Y) \in \mathscr V(\mathscr A(\infty))$ .

Proof. If  $\alpha$  is uniformly continuous, then for any  $v \in C$ , as  $\alpha^{-1}v \in V$ , there is  $v \in \mathcal{C}$  such that  $v \leq \alpha^{-1}v$ . For such  $v \in \mathcal{C}$ ,  $y \in v(z)$  implies  $y \in \alpha^{-1}v(z)$ , namely  $\alpha(y) \in v(\alpha(z))$ . Conversely, if the stated condition is satisfied, then for any  $v \in V$  there is  $v \in C$  such that  $v \leq v$ , and further we can find  $v \in \mathcal{C}$  by assumption

such that  $y \in U(x)$  implies  $\alpha(y) \in V_1(m(x))$ , namely  $y \in \alpha^{-1}V_1(x)$ , and hence we obtain  $U \subseteq \alpha^{-1}V_1 \subseteq \alpha^{-1}V$  by (2). This relation yields  $\alpha^{-1}V \in \mathcal{U}$  by the uniformity condition 1). Therefore  $\alpha$  is uniformly continuous by definition.

Theorem 2. If a mapping  $\alpha$  of R into S is uniformly continuous, then  $\alpha$  is continuous for the induced topologies  $T^{\infty}$  and  $T^{\infty}$ .

Proof. By virtue of §27 Theorem 3,  $\{ v^o : v \in \mathcal{U} \}$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{U}$ , and  $\{ v^o : v \in \mathcal{U} \}$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{V}$ . Thus we see by §27 Theorem 1 that  $\{ v^o(x) : v \in \mathcal{U} \}$  and  $\{ v^o(x) : v \in \mathcal{V} \}$  are neighbourhood systems of a point x respectively by  $\mathcal{A}^{\mathcal{U}}$  and  $\mathcal{A}^{\mathcal{V}}$ . Therefore we obtain our assertion by Theorems 1 and 5 in §16.

For a point set  $A \subset R$ , a mapping  $\alpha$  of R into S is said to be uniformly continuous in A, if  $\alpha$  is so as a mapping of the subspace A into S for the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{U}^A$  of  $\mathcal{U}$ , that is, if

$$(\alpha^{-1} \nabla)^A \in \mathcal{U}^A$$
 for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$ .

If a mapping  $\alpha$  is uniformly continuous, then  $\alpha$  is obviously uniformly continuous in every point set A of R.

Theorem 3. If a mapping  $\alpha$  of R into  $\beta$  is continuous for the induced topologies  $T^R$  and  $T^R$ , and uniformly continuous in a dense set A of R, then  $\alpha$  is uniformly continuous.

Froof. For any  $V \in \mathcal{V}$  we can find by §27 Theorem 3 and the uniformity condition 3)  $V_i \in \mathcal{V}$  such that  $(V_i^-)^{-1} \times V_i^- \leq V$ . For such  $V_i$ , as  $(\alpha^{-1}V_i)^A \in \mathcal{W}^A$  by assumption, there is by §29(6)  $V_i \in \mathcal{W}$ , for which we have  $(\alpha^{-1}V_i)^A = \nabla_i^A$ . For such  $V_i \in \mathcal{W}$ , we can find further by §22(3) a symmetric  $V \in \mathcal{W}$  such that  $V^{-1} \times V \leq V_i^{\circ}$ . Then for any point  $x \in \mathcal{R}$ , as A is dense by assumption, we can find a point  $y \in A$  such that

For such  $y \in A$ , we have by  $\S25(21)$  and  $\S4(8)$ 

 $\nabla(\mathbf{x}) \subset \nabla^{-1}\mathbf{x} \ \nabla(\mathbf{y}) \subset \nabla_{\mathbf{i}}^{\circ}(\mathbf{y}) \subset (A \ \nabla_{\mathbf{i}}(\mathbf{y}))^{-} = (A \ n^{-1}(\nabla_{\mathbf{i}}(n(\mathbf{y}))))^{-}$ 

< A = n-1( V, (n(y))) - < n-1( V, -(n(y))),

because  $A^- = R$  by assumption and  $\alpha^{-1}(x)^- \subset \alpha^{-1}(x^-)$  for every  $X \subset S$  by §16 Theorem 3. Thus we have naturally  $x \in \alpha^{-1}(V_i^-(\alpha(x)))$ , namely

 $\sigma(x) \in V^{-}(\alpha(y))$  , and hence we obtain by §25(21)

 $\nabla_{i}^{-}(n(y)) \subset (\nabla_{i}^{-})^{-1} \times \nabla_{i}^{-}(n(x)) \subset \nabla(n(x)).$ 

Consequently we have for every x & R

T(x) < n-1(V(n(x))) = n-1V(x),

that is,  $v \le \alpha^{-1} V$ , and hence  $\alpha^{-1} V \in \mathcal{W}$ , as  $v \in \mathcal{W}$ . Therefore  $\alpha$  is uniformly continuous by definition.

## \$31 Uniformly continuous functions

In the number space, for any positive number  $\xi$  , putting

Let R be a uniform space with a uniformity W. A function  $\varphi$  on R is said to be <u>uniformly continuous</u>, if it is so as a mapping of R into the number space with the number uniformity.

With this definition we have by \$30 Theorem 1

Theorem 1. Let  $\psi$  be a basis of w. In order that a function  $\psi$  on R be uniformly continuous, it is necessary and sufficient that for any  $\epsilon > 0$  we can find  $v \in \mathcal{L}$  such that  $v \in v(x)$  implies

On account of Theorem 1, every constant is obviously uniformly continuous, and we can prove easily following two Theorems.

Theorem 2. For two uniformly continuous functions  $\varphi$  and  $\psi$ , we obtain uniformly continuous functions  $\varphi \circ \psi$ ,  $\varphi \wedge \psi$ , and  $\varphi \circ \beta \psi$  for every real numbers  $\varphi$ ,  $\beta$ .

Theorem 3. For a sequence of uniformly continuous functions  $\varphi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ), if it is uniformly convergent to a function  $\varphi$ , then  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous too.

Theorem 4. Let  $U_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) be a sequence of symmetric con-

nectors such that for a symmetric connector T. we have

For an arbitrary point set  $A \neq 0$ , we can find a function  $\varphi$  on the subspace  $\sum_{n=1}^{\infty} A \times U_n^n$  such that for  $z \in \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} A \times U_n^n$ 

$$y \in U_{\nu}(x)$$
 implies  $|\varphi(x) - \varphi(y)| \leq \frac{1}{2^{\nu-1}}$ ,

UNIFORM SPACES

$$0 \le \varphi(x) \begin{cases} = 0 & \text{for } x \in A, \\ \ge \frac{1}{2^{\nu}} & \text{for } x \in A \times \mathcal{O}_{\nu}, \\ \ge \mu & \text{for } x \in A \times \mathcal{O}_{\delta}^{\mu}, \\ \le \mu & \text{for } x \in A \times \mathcal{O}_{\delta}^{\mu}. \end{cases}$$

Proof. Putting  $\nabla_{\tau} = U_0^M \times U_1^{E_1} \times U_2^{E_2} \times \cdots \times U_n^{E_n}$   $\mathcal{E}_{\nu} = 0, 1 \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., n), \ \mu = 0, 1, 2, ...,$   $\tau = \mu + \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \frac{\mathcal{E}_{\nu}}{n}.$ 

we shall prove firstly by the induction for  $\nu$  that

 $T = \frac{\alpha}{2^{\nu}}, \quad T' = \frac{\alpha+i}{2^{\nu}}, \quad \alpha \geq 0 \quad \text{implies} \quad \nabla_{\tau}, \geq \nabla_{\tau} \times \nabla_{\nu}.$  This relation is valid clearly for  $\nu = 0$ . We assume hence that this relation holds for 0, 1,...,  $\nu - 1$ . If  $\alpha$  is even, then we have obviously  $\nabla_{\tau} = \nabla_{\tau} \times \nabla_{\nu}$ . If  $\alpha$  is odd, then, putting  $\alpha = 2\beta + i$ ,  $\alpha = \frac{\beta}{2^{\nu+i}}$ , we have  $\tau' = \frac{\beta+i}{2^{\nu-i}}$ , and hence  $\nabla_{\tau} \geq \nabla_{\sigma} \times \nabla_{\nu-i}$  by assumption. This relation yields by the formulas (5) and (7) in §25

$$\nabla_{\tau}$$
,  $\geq \nabla_{\sigma} \times \nabla_{\nu} \times \nabla_{\nu} = \nabla_{\sigma} \times \nabla_{\nu}$ ,

because 6 +  $\frac{1}{2^{\nu}}$  at. Consequently we obtain our assertion. Thus we can conclude further that 6 >  $\tau \ge a$  implies  $\nabla_{\sigma} \ge \nabla_{\tau}$ .

For every point  $z \in \underbrace{\overset{\sim}{\Sigma}}_{M^{\pm 1}} A \times V_0^M$ , putting

$$\mathcal{G}(z) = \inf_{A \in \mathcal{T}_{n} \ni z} \mathcal{T},$$

we obtain a function  $\varphi$  on the subspace  $\sum_{n=1}^{\infty} A \times \nabla_n^n$ . This function  $\varphi$  satisfies obviously  $\chi = 0$  for  $x \in A$ .

ously 
$$0 \leq \varphi(z) \begin{cases} = 0 & \text{for } x \in A, \\ \leq M & \text{for } x \in A \times U_0^M, \\ \geq M & \text{for } x \in A \times U_0^M, \\ \geq \frac{1}{2^L} & \text{for } x \in A \times U_L. \end{cases}$$

For each point  $x \in \sum_{M=1}^{\infty} A \times U_{\alpha}^{M}$  and for any  $\nu$  we can find x such that  $\frac{x}{2\nu} - \frac{1}{2\nu} \le \varphi(x) < \frac{x}{2\nu}$ 

Then, putting  $\tau = \frac{\alpha}{2^{\nu}}$  we have obviously  $x \in A \times \nabla_{\tau}$ , and hence, if  $y \in \mathcal{O}_{\nu}(x)$ ,

for  $\tau' = \tau + \frac{1}{2^{\nu}}$ , because  $\nabla_{\tau} \times \nabla_{\nu} \leq \nabla_{\tau'}$ , as proved just above. Accordingly we have by the definition of  $\mathscr S$ 

TOPOLOGY

$$\varphi(y) \leq \tau' = \frac{d}{2\nu} + \frac{1}{2\nu} \leq \varphi(z) + \frac{1}{2\nu}$$

Since  $\sigma_{\nu}$  is symmetric by assumption, we obtain likewise

Therefore  $y \in U_{\nu}(x)$  implies  $|\varphi(x) - \varphi(y)| \le \frac{1}{2^{\nu-1}}$ .

Theorem 5. For a connector  $v \in \mathcal{W}$ , if  $(A \times v) = 0$ , then we can find a uniformly continuous function  $\varphi$  on R such that

$$\varphi(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } x \in A, \\ 1 & \text{for } x \in B, \end{cases}$$

and  $0 \le \varphi(x) \le 1$  for every  $x \in R$ .

<u>Proof.</u> On account of the relation  $\S27(5)$  we can find a sequence of symmetric connectors  $\nabla_{\nu} \in \mathcal{U}$  ( $\nu = 0$ , 1, 2,...) such that

 $U \geq U_0$ ,  $U_{\nu} \geq U_{\nu+1} \times U_{\nu+1}$   $(\nu = 0, 1, 2, ...)$ .

Then, putting  $S = \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} A \times \sigma^{2k}$ , we obtain by Theorem 4 a function  $\varphi$  on the subspace S such that f = 0 for  $x \in A$ ,

the subspace S such that  $= 0 for x \in A,$  for  $x \in A \times T_0$ ,

 $\varphi(x) \ge 0$  for every  $x \in S$ , and  $y \in \mathcal{O}_{\nu}(x)$  implies  $|\varphi(x) - \varphi(y)| \le \frac{1}{2^{\nu-1}}$ .

If we set further  $\varphi(z) = 1$  for  $x \in S$ , then, as  $S \times \mathcal{O}_{\nu} = S$ ,  $S' \times \mathcal{O}_{\nu} = S'$ by §25 Theorem 2, we obtain by Theorem 1 a uniformly continuous function  $\varphi \text{ on } R. \quad \text{Putting } \psi = \varphi_{n} 1, \text{ we also obtain by Theorem 2 a uniformly continuous function } \Psi \text{ such that}$ 

$$\psi(x) = \begin{cases}
0 & \text{for } x \in A, \\
1 & \text{for } x \in A \times C_0,
\end{cases}$$

and  $0 \le \psi(x) \le 1$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ . Since  $(A \times \mathcal{T})B = 0$  by assumption, this function  $\psi$  satisfies our requirement.

Theorem 6. For every uniform space R with a uniformity  $\mathcal{M}$ , the induced topology  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{M}}$  of R coincides with the weak topology of R by the totality of bounded uniformly continuous functions, and hence the induced topology  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{M}}$  of R is completely regular.

Proof. For  $a \in A \in \mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{M}}$ , we can find by §27 Theorem 1 and §27(3)  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $\mathcal{U}(a) \subset A$ , and hence  $(\{a\} \times \mathcal{U})A' = 0$ . Therefore we can find by Theorem 5 a bounded uniformly continuous function  $\mathcal{G}$  such that  $\mathcal{G}(a) = 1$  and  $\mathcal{G}(x) = 0$  for any  $x \in A$ . Thus  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{H}}$  coincides by §22 Theorem 5 with the weak topology of R by all bounded uniformly continuous functions, and hence  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{H}}$  is completely regular by §23 Theorem 2.

UNIFORM SPACES

77

For a point set S of R, a function  $\varphi$  on R is said to be <u>uniformly continuous in S.</u> if  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous as a function on the subspace S by the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{W}^S$ .

Theorem 7. If a function  $\varphi$  on R is continuous by the indeced topology  $\gamma^{\mathcal{U}}$ , then  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous in every compact set.

<u>Proof.</u> By virtue of Theorems 2 in §29 and 2 in §12, we need only prove the case where R is compact by the induced topology  $T^{\mathcal{H}}$ . If  $\varphi$  is continuous by  $T^{\mathcal{H}}$ , then for any  $\mathcal{E} > 0$  and for each point  $\mathbf{x} \in R$  we can find by Theorems 4 in §20 and 1 in §27  $T_{\mathbf{x}}^{\mathcal{O}} \in \mathcal{H}$  such that

$$U_{\pi}^{\circ}(\pi) \ni y$$
 implies  $|\varphi(\pi) - \varphi(y)| < \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon$ .

For such  $U_x$  there is by §26(5) a symmetric  $V_x \in \mathcal{H}$  for which we have  $V_x \times V_z \leq U_x^o$ . Then we have obviously  $R = \sum_{x \in R} V_x^o(x)$ . Since R is compact by assumption, we can find a finite number of points  $x, \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., x$ ) such that

$$R = \sum_{\nu=1}^{K} \nabla_{z_{\nu}}(x_{\nu}) = \sum_{\nu=1}^{K} \nabla_{z_{\nu}}(x_{\nu}).$$

For such  $\nabla_{\mathbf{Z}_{\nu}}(\nu=1,\,2,\ldots,\varkappa)$ , putting  $\nabla=\nabla_{\mathbf{Z}_{\nu}}\nabla_{\mathbf{Z}_{\nu}}...\nabla_{\mathbf{Z}_{\kappa}}$ , we obtain a symmetric  $\nabla\in\mathcal{U}$ . For this  $\nabla\in\mathcal{U}$ , if  $\nabla(\mathbf{Z})\ni\mathcal{Y}$ , then there is  $\varkappa_{\nu}$  for which  $\nabla_{\mathbf{Z}_{\nu}}(\varkappa_{\nu}),\ni\varkappa$ , and hence we obtain by the relation §25(21)

As  $x \in V_{\pi_*}(\pi_*) \subset U_{\pi_*}^{\circ}(\pi_*)$  by the formula §25(7), we obtain hence

$$|\varphi(x_{\nu}) - \varphi(x)| < \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon$$
,  $|\varphi(x_{\nu}) - \varphi(y)| < \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon$ .

and consequently  $|\varphi(x) - \varphi(y)| < \mathcal{E}$ . Therefore  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous by Theorem 1.

Let S be a subspace of R. For a function  $\mathscr G$  on S, a uniformly continuous function  $\mathscr V$  on R is said to be a <u>uniformly continuous extension</u> of  $\mathscr G$  over R, if  $\mathscr G(x)=\mathscr V(x)$  for every  $x\in S$ .

Every bounded uniformly continuous function \( \varphi \) on a subspace S of R with the relative uniformity WS has a uniformly continuous extension over R .

On account of Theorem 2, we can assume that Proof.

$$\sup_{x \in S} \varphi(x) = 1, \qquad \inf_{x \in S} \varphi(x) = -1.$$

Since  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous by the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{U}^{S}$ , we can find by Theorem 1 T & W such that

 $\nabla(x) \ni y$ , x,  $y \in S$ , implies  $|\varphi(x) - \varphi(y)| < \frac{1}{2}$ . For such  $\sigma \in \mathcal{U}$ , putting

 $A = \{x: \varphi(x) < -\frac{1}{2}\}, B = \{x: \varphi(x) > \frac{1}{2}\},$ we have  $(A \times \mathcal{O})B = \mathcal{O}$ , because for each  $y \in A \times \mathcal{O}$  there is by §25(9)  $x \in A$  such that  $y \in \mathcal{O}(x)$ ,  $x \in A$ , and hence

$$\varphi(x) < -\frac{1}{3}$$
,  $|\varphi(x) - \varphi(y)| < \frac{1}{3}$ 

which yields q(y) < 0. Thus we can find by Theorem 5 a uniformly continuous function & on & such that

$$\psi(x) = \begin{cases}
0 & \text{for } x \in A \\
1 & \text{for } x \in B
\end{cases}$$

and  $0 \le V(x) \le i$  for every  $x \in R$ . For such V, putting

we obtain by Theorem 2 a uniformly continuous function  $\Psi_{\epsilon}$  on R , and further, putting

$$\varphi_{1}(x) = \frac{3}{2} (\varphi(x) - \psi_{1}(x)) \qquad \text{for } x \in S,$$

we obtain a uniformly continuous function 9, on S by the relative uniformity W. such that

$$\sup_{x \in S} \varphi_{r}(x) = \sup_{x \in S} \varphi_{r}(x) = 1,$$

$$\inf_{x \in S} \varphi_{i}(x) = \inf_{x \in A} \varphi_{i}(x) = -1.$$

Similarly, we obtain consecutively uniformly continuous functions 4, on R and  $\mathcal{C}_{\nu}$  on S ( $\nu=2$ , 3,...) such that for every  $\nu=2$ , 3,... we have

$$\varphi_{\nu}(x) = \frac{3}{2}(\varphi_{\nu-1}(x) - \psi_{\nu}(x))$$
 for every  $x \in S$ ,

 $|\varphi_{\omega}(x)| \le 1$  for every  $x \in S$ ,

14.(≈)1≦==

for every  $\pi \in R$ .

Then we have for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$  and for each  $z \in S$ 

 $\varphi(x) = \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \left(\frac{2}{3}\right)^{p-1} \gamma_{n}(x) + \left(\frac{2}{3}\right)^{\nu-1} \varphi_{\nu}(x).$ 

By virtue of Theorem 3, putting

§31, §32)

 $\psi(x) = \mathbb{E}\left(\frac{2}{3}\right)^{n-1} \psi_{\mu}(x)$  for every  $x \in R$ .

we obtain a uniformly continuous function y on R. For this function  $\psi$  we have obviously  $\psi(x) = \psi(x)$  for every  $x \in S$ . Therefore 4 is a uniformly continuous extension of  $\mathscr{C}$  over R .

In Theorem 8 we can not take off the assumption that 4 Remark. is bounded. For instance, putting

$$q(\nu) = \nu^2$$
  $(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ 

we obtain a uniformly continuous function  $\varphi$  on the subspace  $\{1, 2, \dots\}$ of the number space with the number uniformity. Such 4º has no uniformly continuous extension over the number space. Because, for each uniformly continuous function & on the number space we see easily that there is a positive number & such that

 $|\varphi(x+\nu)-\varphi(x)| \leq \delta \nu$  for every  $\nu=1, 2, ...$  and  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ .

### §32 Bounded sets

Let R be a uniform space with a uniformity Vt. A point set A of R is said to be bounded, if for any  $\sigma \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find a natural number ber 5 and a finite number of points  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that ACŽO (a.).

Here  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) may be found in A. Because, if we have §25(21)  $A \subset \sum_{\nu=1}^{N} \sigma^{26}(x_{\nu})$  for  $x_{\nu} \in A \sigma^{6}(a_{\nu})$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ .

If a point set A is bounded, then its closure A by the induced topology 7 " also is bounded.

Proof. For any U & W we can find by the relation \$26(5) a symmetric  $\nabla \in \mathcal{H}$  for which  $\nabla \times \nabla \leq \mathcal{U}$ . As A is bounded by assumption, we can find 6 and  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that  $A \subset \sum_{\nu=1}^{\kappa} \overline{U}^{\varepsilon}(\alpha_{\nu})$ have then by the formulas §27(5) and §25(12)

$$A \subset A \times U \subset \sum_{\nu=1}^{N} U^{\ell+1}(\alpha_{\nu}).$$

(Chapter IV

Thus A" is bounded by definition.

In order that a point set A be bounded, it is ne-Theorem 2. cessary and sufficient that every uniformly continuous function on R be bounded in A.

Since the necessity is evident by definition, we shall Proof. If a point set A is not bounded; then we can prove the sufficiency. find by definition a symmetric  $\mathbf{U}_{n} \in \mathcal{U}_{n}$  such that

for every 6 = 1, 2,... and for every finite number of point  $a_{\nu} \in \mathcal{R}$  (  $\nu =$ 1, 2, ..., 火).

In the first case For such U. & W., we can consider two cases. where we can find a point a & A such that

 $A \stackrel{\mathcal{L}}{\stackrel{\mathcal{L}}{\smile}} U_{o}^{\nu}(\alpha) + A \stackrel{\mathcal{L}}{\stackrel{\mathcal{L}}{\smile}} U_{o}^{\nu}(\alpha)$  for every  $\mu = 1, 2, ...,$ considering by the relation §26(5) a sequence of symmetric vicinities  $U_{\nu} \in \mathcal{V}(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  such that

$$\nabla_{\nu} \geq \nabla_{\nu+1} \times \nabla_{\nu+1} \quad : \nu = 0, 1, 2, ...),$$

we obtain by §31 Theorem 4 a function  $\varphi$  on the subspace  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \nabla_{i} v(a)$  such that  $\nabla_{\mu}(x) \ni y$  implies  $|\varphi(x) - \varphi(y)| < \frac{1}{2^{\mu}}$ , and

$$\varphi(x) \geq \mu$$
 for  $x \in \sum_{i=1}^{n} \overline{U_i}(a)$ .

For such a function 4, putting

$$\varphi(x) = 0$$
 for  $x \in \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} T_i^{\nu}(a)$ 

we obtain a uniformly continuous function  ${\cal F}$  on  ${\cal R}$  , because we have by §25 Theorem 2 for every  $\mu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

$$(\stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma} \mathcal{D}_{o}^{\nu}(\alpha)) \times \mathcal{D}_{\mu} = \stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma} \mathcal{D}_{o}^{\nu}(\alpha),$$

$$(\stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma} \mathcal{D}_{o}^{\nu}(\alpha))' \times \mathcal{D}_{\mu} = (\stackrel{\sim}{\Sigma} \mathcal{D}_{o}^{\nu}(\alpha))'.$$

This uniformly continuous function  $\varphi$  is not bounded in A , because

$$\varphi(x) \ge M$$
 for  $x \in A \stackrel{\circ}{\underset{\leftarrow}{\sum}} \nabla_{\sigma}^{\nu}(a) - A \stackrel{\circ}{\underset{\leftarrow}{\sum}} \nabla_{\sigma}^{\nu}(a)$ .

In the second case where there is no such point  $a \in A$  , we can find a sequence of points  $a_{\nu} \in A \ (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  such that

$$\left(\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \nabla_{\nu}^{\nu}(\alpha_{\mu})\right)\left(\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \nabla_{\nu}^{\nu}(\alpha_{\rho})\right) = 0 \qquad \text{for } \mu \neq \beta,$$
 because A is not bounded by assumption. For such  $\alpha_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ), putting

 $\varphi(x) = \begin{cases} \mu & \text{for } x \in \sum_{i=1}^{n} \nabla_{\sigma}^{\nu}(a_{i}\mu) & (\mu = 1, 2, ...), \\ 0 & \text{for } x \in \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \nabla_{\sigma}^{\nu}(a_{i}\mu), \end{cases}$ 

we obtain a function  $\varphi$  on R. This function  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous, because we have by \$25 Theorem 2

$$\left(\sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} \nabla_{\sigma}^{\nu}(a_{\mu})\right) \times \nabla_{\sigma} = \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} \nabla_{\sigma}^{\nu}(a_{\mu})$$

for every  $\mu = 1, 2, ...$ , and hence by the formula  $\{25(12)\}$ 

$$\left(\sum_{\mu=1}^{\infty}\sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty}U_{\nu}^{\nu}(a_{\mu})\right)\times U_{\nu}=\sum_{\mu=1}^{\infty}\sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty}U_{\nu}^{\nu}(a_{\mu}),$$

which yields by the formula \$25(23)

$$(\sum_{\mu=1}^{\infty}\sum_{k=1}^{\infty}\nabla_{\sigma}^{\nu}(a_{\mu}))'\times\nabla_{\sigma}=(\sum_{\mu=1}^{\infty}\sum_{k=1}^{\infty}\nabla_{\sigma}^{\nu}(a_{\mu}))'.$$

Furthermore  $\varphi$  is not bounded in A, because  $\varphi(\alpha_M) \geq M$  for every M = 1, Therefore our assertion is established.

We obtain by definition immediately

For two uniformities W and V on an abstract space Theorem 3. R , if  $W > \Psi$  and a point set A is bounded by W, then A also is bounded by V.

Let a be a uniformly continuous mapping of a uniform space R with a uniformity W into a uniform space S with a uniformity P The image a(A) of every bounded set A is bounded too.

For each  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$ , as  $\alpha$  is uniformly continuous by assump-points  $a \in R$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \mathbf{x})$  such that  $A \subset \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} (a^{-i} \nabla)^{i} (a_{\nu})$ . have by the formula \$30(5)

$$A \subset \sum_{i=1}^{\kappa} \alpha^{-i} \nabla^{\epsilon} (\alpha_{\nu}) = \sum_{i=1}^{\kappa} \alpha^{-i} (\nabla^{\epsilon} (\alpha(\alpha_{\nu}))),$$

and hence  $\alpha(A) \subset \stackrel{\times}{\Sigma} \nabla^{\sigma}(\alpha(a))$  by the formula §15(13). Therefore a (A) is bounded by definition.

### \$33 Totally bounded sets

Let R be a uniform space with a uniformity W. of R is said to be totally bounded, if for any  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find a finite number of points  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that

Here  $a_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) may be found in A. Because, if we have  $\nabla^{-1} \times \nabla \leq \nabla$ , then  $A \subset \sum_{i=1}^{N} \nabla (a_{\nu})$  implies by the formula §25(21)

 $A \subset \stackrel{\times}{\underset{\iota=1}{\mathbb{Z}}} \nabla(z_{\iota})$  for  $z_{\iota} \in A \nabla(a_{\iota})$   $(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ .

Therefore we conclude by definition immediately

Theorem 1. A point set A is totally bounded, if and only if A is totally bounded by the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{W}^A$ .

Every totally bounded set is obviously bounded by definition. For a totally bounded set A, every subset of A also is totally bounded, as we see at once by definition. Therefore every subset S of a totally bounded set A is bounded by the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^{S}$ .

Conversely we have

Theorem 2. For a point set A, if every subset S of A is bounded by the relative uniformity WS, then A is totally bounded.

<u>Proof.</u> If A is not totally bounded, then there is by definition  $V \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $A \neq A \stackrel{>}{\underset{\sim}{\sim}} V(\alpha_{\nu})$  for every finite number of points  $\alpha_{\nu} \in A$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ . For such  $V \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find a sequence of points  $\alpha_{\nu} \in A$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  such that  $V(\alpha_{\nu}) \ni \alpha_{\mu}$  for  $\mu > \nu$ . On account of the relation §26(5) there is a symmetric  $V \in \mathcal{U}$  for which  $\nabla \times V \leqq V$ , and we have by the relation §25(22)

 $\nabla(\alpha_{\nu})\nabla(\alpha_{m})=0$  for  $\nu\neq \mu$ .

Putting  $S = \{a_1, a_2, \ldots\}$ , we see then that S is not bounded by the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^S$ , because

$$\nabla^{s}(a_{\nu}) = \{a_{\nu}\}\ (\nu = 1, 2, ...).$$

Theorem 3. If a point set A is totally bounded, then its closure A by the induced topology  $\Upsilon^{**}$  also is totally bounded.

<u>Proof.</u> For any  $\mathbf{v} \in \mathcal{U}$ , there is by the relation §26(5) a symmetric  $\mathbf{v} \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $\mathbf{v} \times \mathbf{v} \leq \mathbf{v}$ , and  $\mathbf{A} \subset \sum_{i=1}^{n} \mathbf{v}(\mathbf{a}_{i})$  implies by the formulas §27(5) and §25(12)

 $A^{-} \subset A \times V \subset \sum_{i=1}^{n} V(\alpha_{i}) \times V \subset \sum_{i=1}^{n} U(\alpha_{i}).$  Therefore  $A^{-}$  is totally bounded by definition.

Theorem 4. If a point set A is compact by the induced topology

Tw, then A is totally bounded.

<u>Proof.</u> For any  $v \in \mathcal{V}$ , we have obviously  $A \subset \sum_{x \in A} v^{\circ}(x)$ . As A is compact by assumption, we can find a finite number of points  $a \cup eA$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  for which

Therefore A is totally bounded by definition.

We have obviously by definition

§33)

Theorem 5. For two uniformities  $\mathcal U$  and  $\mathcal V$  on an abstract space  $\mathcal R$ , if  $\mathcal U \supset \mathcal V$  and a point set  $\mathcal A$  is totally bounded by  $\mathcal U$ , then  $\mathcal A$  also is totally bounded by  $\mathcal V$ .

Theorem 6. For two uniformities  $\mathcal H$  and  $\mathcal V$  on an abstract space  $\mathbb R$ , if  $\mathbb R$  is totally bounded by  $\mathcal H$  and every bounded uniformly continuous function by  $\mathcal W$  is uniformly continuous by  $\mathcal V$ , then  $\mathcal H$  is weaker than  $\mathcal V$ , that is,  $\mathcal M$  <  $\mathcal V$ .

<u>Proof.</u> If  $\mathcal{H}$  is not weaker than  $\mathcal{V}$ , then we can find by definition  $\mathcal{U}_o \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $\mathcal{V}_o \in \mathcal{V}$ . For such  $\mathcal{U}_o \in \mathcal{H}$ , we have by the uniformity condition 1)  $\mathcal{U}_o \ngeq \mathcal{V}$  for every  $\mathcal{V} \in \mathcal{V}$ , and hence, corresponding to every  $\mathcal{V} \in \mathcal{V}$  we obtain a pair of points  $x_{\mathcal{V}}$ ,  $y_{\mathcal{V}}$  such that

$$\nabla_{\sigma}(x_{\nabla}) \ni y_{\nabla} \in \nabla(x_{\nabla})$$
 for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$ .

On account of the relation §26(6) we can find a symmetric  $\nabla_i \in \mathcal{Q}$  such that  $\nabla_i \times \nabla_i \times \nabla_i \leq \nabla_i$ , and there is a finite number of points  $\mathcal{Q}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{R}$ .  $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times)$  such that

$$R = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \nabla_{i} (a_{\nu}),$$

because R is totally bounded by assumption. Then we can find  $\nu_e$  for which  $\{ \nabla : x_{\nabla} \in \mathcal{V}_1(\alpha_{\nu_e}) \}$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{V}$ . Because if  $\{ \nabla : x_{\nabla} \in \mathcal{V}_1(\alpha_{\nu_e}) \}$  is not a basis of  $\mathcal{V}$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ , then, corresponding to every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ , we can find  $\nabla_{\nu} \in \mathcal{V}$  such that we have not  $\nabla_{\nu} \geq \nabla$  for all  $x_{\nabla} \in \mathcal{V}_1(\alpha_{\nu})$ . As

$$\mathcal{V} = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \left\{ \nabla : \chi_{\varphi} \in \mathcal{O}_{1}(a_{\varphi}) \right\},$$

we conclude then  $\sqrt[4]{3}$   $\sqrt[4]{3}$ ,  $\sqrt[4]{4}$ ...  $\sqrt[4]{4}$ , contradicting the uniformity condition 2). For such  $\nu_e$ , putting

$$A = \{xv : v \in \mathcal{L}\}, \quad B = \{yv : v \in \mathcal{L}\},$$

we obtain hence a basis % of %, and we have by the relation §25(21)

 $A \times \mathcal{O}_1 \subset \mathcal{O}_1(A\nu_0) \times \mathcal{O}_1 \subset (\mathcal{O}_1(x) \times \mathcal{O}_1) \times \mathcal{O}_1 \subset \mathcal{O}_2(x)$  for every  $x \in A$ . Thus we have for every  $y \in \mathcal{G}_2$ 

$$A \times U_1 \subset \prod_{v \in \mathcal{S}_v} U_v(x_v) \ni y_v,$$

and consequently  $(A \times \nabla, )B = 0$ . Therefore we can find by §31 Theorem 5 a function  $\varphi$  on R such that  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous by  $\mathcal M$ ,

$$\varphi(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } x \in A, \\ 1 & \text{for } x \in B, \end{cases}$$

and  $0 \le \varphi(x) \le 1$  for every  $x \in R$ . But such a function  $\varphi$  is not uniformly continuous by  $\mathcal{V}$ , because  $\nabla(x_{\nabla}) \ni y_{\nabla}$  for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$  and  $\mathcal{L}$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{V}$ .

Similarly as §32 Theorem 4, we also can prove

Theorem 7. Let  $\alpha$  be a uniformly continuous mapping of R into a uniform space S with a uniformity  $\mathscr{C}$ . The image  $\alpha(A)$  of a totally bounded set A of R is totally bounded by  $\mathscr{C}$  too.

### §34 Weak uniformities

Let R be an abstract space. For a mapping  $\alpha$  of R into a uniform space S with a uniformity  $\mathcal Q$ , putting

we see easily by the formulas (2), (3), (4), (5) in §30 that  $\mathcal{L}_o$  satisfies the basis conditions in §26, and hence there is by §26 Theorem 1 uniquely a uniformity  $\mathcal{U}_o$  on  $\mathcal{R}$  such that  $\mathcal{L}_o$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{U}_o$ . This uniformity  $\mathcal{U}_o$  is called the <u>weak uniformity</u> of  $\mathcal{R}$  by a mapping  $\sigma$ .

For the weak uniformity  $\mathcal{W}_o$  of R, it is evident by definition that  $\alpha$  becomes uniformly continuous by  $\mathcal{W}_o$ . Conversely, if  $\alpha$  is uniformly continuous for a uniformity  $\mathcal{W}$  on R, then we have by definition  $\mathcal{W} \supset \mathcal{L}$ , and hence  $\mathcal{W} \supset \mathcal{W}_o$ . Therefore we can say that the the weak uniformity of R by a mapping  $\alpha$  is the weakest uniformity of R for which  $\alpha$  becomes uniformly continuous.

Let  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a system of mappings of R into uniform spaces

 $\mathcal{S}_{\lambda}$  with uniformities  $\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). Corresponding to every mapping  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), we can determine the weak uniformity  $\mathcal{W}_{\lambda}$  of R, by  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$ , as defined just above. For these weak uniformities  $\mathcal{W}_{\lambda}$  of R ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), putting  $\mathcal{W}_{\alpha} = \bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathcal{W}_{\lambda}$ , we obtain a uniformity  $\mathcal{W}_{\alpha}$  on R, as defined already in §28. This uniformity  $\mathcal{W}_{\alpha}$  is called the <u>weak uniformity</u> of R by a system of mappings  $\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

For the weak uniformity  $\mathcal{M}_{o}$  of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), as  $\mathcal{M}_{o} \supset \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , every mapping  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  is uniformly continuous by  $\mathcal{M}_{o}$ . On the other hand, if every  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) is uniformly continuous for a uniformity  $\mathcal{M}$  on R, then we have obviously  $\mathcal{M} \supset \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , and hence  $\mathcal{M} \supset \mathcal{M}_{o}$ . Therefore we can say that the weak uniformity of R by a system of mappings  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) is the weakest uniformity of R for which every  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  becomes uniformly continuous.

Since  $\{\alpha_{\lambda}^{-1} \nabla : \nabla \in \mathcal{C}_{\lambda}\}$  is by definition a basis of the weak uniformity  $\mathcal{W}_{\lambda}$  of R by a mapping  $\alpha_{\lambda}$ , we obtain by §28 Theorem 3 that the totality of  $(\alpha_{\lambda_{\lambda}^{-1}} \nabla_{\lambda_{\lambda}})(\alpha_{\lambda_{\lambda}^{-1}} \nabla_{\lambda_{\lambda}}) \dots (\alpha_{\lambda_{\kappa}^{-1}} \nabla_{\lambda_{\kappa}})$  for every  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\lambda}} \in \mathcal{Q}_{\lambda_{\lambda}}$ ,  $\lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ),  $\kappa = 1, 2, ...$ , is a basis of the weak uniformity  $\mathcal{W}_{\alpha}$  of R by a system of mappings  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). Therefore we have

Theorem 1. For a system of mappings  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) of R into uniform spaces  $S_{\lambda}$  with uniformities  $\mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ),

 $\{\prod_{i=1}^{n} \alpha_{\lambda_{i}} \mid \nabla_{\lambda_{i}} : \nabla_{\lambda_{i}} \in \mathcal{C}_{\lambda_{i}}, \lambda_{i} \in \Lambda \ (\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa), \kappa=1, 2, ...\}$ is a basis of the weak uniformity of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$ .

Recalling §29 Theorem 1, we conclude immediately from Theorem 1

Theorem 2. For a subspace S of R, the weak uniformity of S by a system of mappings  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  of R into uniform spaces  $S_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) coincides with the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^{S}$  of the weak uniformity  $\mathcal{M}$  of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

Theorem 3. For the weak uniformity  $\mathcal{U}$  of R by a system of mappings  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  of R into uniform spaces  $S_{\lambda}$  with uniformities  $\mathcal{U}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), the induced topology  $\gamma^{\mathcal{U}}$  by  $\mathcal{U}$  coincides with the weak topology of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), considering every  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) as a mapping of R into the topological space  $S_{\lambda}$  with the induced topology  $\gamma^{\mathcal{U}_{\lambda}}$ .

<u>Proof.</u> For each  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , let  $W_{\lambda}$  be the weak uniformity of R by  $A_{\lambda}$ , and  $A_{\lambda}$ , the weak topology of R by  $A_{\lambda}$  for the induced topology  $Y^{M_{\lambda}}$ . As  $A_{\lambda}$  is continuous by §30 Theorem 2 for the induced topology  $Y^{M_{\lambda}}$ , we have naturally  $Y^{M_{\lambda}} > Y_{\lambda}$ . For every  $Y \in Y_{\lambda}$  and for every  $X \in R$ , as  $Y^{*}(A_{\lambda}(X)) \in Y^{M_{\lambda}}$ , we have by the definition of weak topologies

 $\alpha_{\lambda^{-1}} \nabla(x) > \alpha_{\lambda^{-1}} \nabla^{\circ}(x) = \alpha_{\lambda^{-1}} (\nabla^{\circ}(\alpha_{\lambda}(x))) \in \mathcal{J}.$ 

Since  $\{\alpha_{\lambda}^{-1} \ \forall : \forall \in \mathcal{C}_{\lambda}\}$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{W}_{\lambda}$ , we conclude hence by §27 Theorem 5 that  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda} \supset \mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}}$ . Therefore we have  $\mathcal{T}_{\lambda} = \mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , and hence by §28 Theorem 5  $\bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathcal{T}_{\lambda} = \mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}}$ , that is,  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}}$  is the weak topology of  $\mathcal{R}$  by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) for the induced topologies  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

Let f be a collection of functions on R. Considering every f of f as a mapping of R into the number space with the number uniformity, we obtain the weak uniformity of R by f. This weak uniformity of R is called the <u>weak uniformity</u> of R by f and denoted by  $\mathcal{U}^{f}$ .

For a finite number of functions  $\Psi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\,2,\ldots,\varkappa$ ) on R and for a positive number E, we define a connector  $\Psi_{\nu},\ldots,\Psi_{\kappa}$ , at to mean

Theorem 4. For a collection of functions f on R,

 $\{\ \nabla_{\psi_1,\ldots,\psi_{n-1}}:\ \mathcal{R}\in\mathcal{F}_{\nu}\ (\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\kappa), \kappa=1,\ 2,\ldots\}$  is a basis of the weak uniformity of R by f.

By virtue of Theorem 3 we have

Theorem 5. The weak topology of R by f coincides with the induced topology by the weak uniformity of R by f.

Theorem 6. For any collection of bounded functions f, R is totally bounded by the weak uniformity  $w^f$  of R by f.

<u>Proof.</u> For every finite number of functions  $\mathcal{R} \in \mathcal{F}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \kappa$ ) and for any  $\ell>0$ , we can find  $d_{\nu}$ ,  $\beta_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \kappa$ ) such that  $d_{\nu} \leq \mathcal{G}_{\nu}(\kappa) \leq \beta_{\nu} \qquad \text{for every } \kappa \in \mathcal{R},$ 

and further  $\lambda_{\nu,\mu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2,...,\kappa$ ;  $\mu=0, 1, 2,...,\kappa_{\nu}$ ) such that  $\alpha_{\nu}=\lambda_{\nu,\nu}<\lambda_{\nu,1}<\cdots<\lambda_{\nu,\kappa_{\nu}}=\beta_{\nu}$   $\lambda_{\nu,\mu}-\lambda_{\nu,\mu-1}<\frac{1}{2}\xi.$ 

Then, determining points z z, ..., such that

(34)

 $\lambda_{\nu,\nu,\nu} \leq \mathcal{G}_{\nu}(z_{\mu_1,\dots,\nu_n}) \leq \lambda_{\nu,\nu}$  ( $\nu \stackrel{2}{=} 1, 2, \dots, x$ ), we have obviously

 $R < \sum_{\mu_1, \dots, \mu_K} \nabla_{\varphi_1, \dots, \varphi_K}, e(x_{\mu_1, \dots, \mu_K}).$  Therefore R is totally bounded by definition.

Theorem 7. If a uniform space R is totally bounded by its uniformity R, then R coincides with the weak uniformity of R by all bounded uniformly continuous functions on R.

<u>Proof.</u> Let F be the totality of bounded uniformly continuous functions on R, and  $\Psi$  the weak uniformity of R by F. Then we have obviously by definition  $\Psi \subset \mathcal{W}$ . Furthermore we see by §33 Theorem 6 that  $\mathcal{W} \subset \mathcal{P}$ . Consequently we have  $\mathcal{W} = \Psi$ .

Theorem 8. For the weak uniformity  $\mathcal M$  of  $\mathcal R$  by a collection of bounded functions  $\mathcal F$  on  $\mathcal R$ , the totality of uniformly continuous functions coincides with the closed field generated by  $\mathcal F$ .

Proof. Let  $\bar{R}$  be the compactification of R by f;  $\bar{f}$  the continuous extension of f over  $\bar{R}$ ; and  $\bar{W}$  the weak uniformity of  $\bar{R}$  by  $\bar{f}$ . Then W is by Theorem 2 the relative uniformity of  $\bar{W}$  in R, that is, we have  $W = \bar{W}^R$ . Therefore every bounded uniformly continuous function  $\Psi$  on R has by §31 Theorem 8 a uniformly continuous extension over  $\bar{R}$ , and hence we have by §24 Theorem 2 that  $\Psi$  is contained in the closed field generated by f, because the induced topology  $\Im^{W}$  of R by W coincides by §29 Theorem 2 with the relative topology  $\Im^{W}$  of the induced topology  $\Im^{W}$  by  $\bar{W}$ . Furthermore it is evident by Theorems 2 and 3 in §31 that the closed field generated by f is composed only of uniformly continuous functions by W. Therefore we obtain our assertion.

Theorem 9. For a topological space R with a completely regular topology 7, there is a uniformity W on R such that 7 is the induced topology by W.

<u>Proof.</u> For the totality of bounded continuous functions f,  $\gamma$  is by §23 Theorem 2 the weak topology of R by f. For the weak uniformity W of R by f, we have hence by §24 Theorem 3 that  $\Upsilon$  is the in-

duced topology by W.

Theorem 10. For a topological space R with a regular compact topology 7, there exists uniquely a uniformity on R by which 7 is the induced topology.

<u>Proof.</u> Since 7 is completely regular by §23 Theorem 6, there is by Theorem 9 a uniformity on R. by which 7 is the induced topology. We conclude further by Theorems 4, 6 in §33 and 7 in §31 that such a uniformity is uniquely determined.

Recalling §32 Theorem 2, we obtain immediately by Theorem 6

Theorem 11. For a weak uniformity by a collection of functions
on R, every bounded set is totally bunded.

#### §35 Completeness

Let R be a uniform space with a uniformity  $\mathcal{U}$ . A system of point sets  $A_{\lambda} \subset R$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) is said to be a <u>Cauchy system</u> by  $\mathcal{U}$ , if we have  $\prod_{\nu=1}^{n} A_{\lambda_{\nu}} \neq 0$  for every finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu} \notin \Lambda$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \kappa$ ), and for any  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  and  $\alpha \in R$  such that  $A_{\lambda} \subset \mathcal{U}(\alpha)$ .

For a Cauchy system  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), if there is a point  $\alpha \in R$  such that for any  $v \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  for which  $A_{\lambda} \subset v(\alpha)$ , then such a point  $\alpha$  is called a <u>limit</u> of  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

Theorem 1. Let  $\mathscr C$  be a basis of  $\mathscr W$ . For a Cauchy system  $A_\lambda$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), in order that a point  $\alpha$  be a limit of  $A_\lambda(\lambda \in \Lambda)$ , it is necessary and sufficient that  $U(\alpha)A_\lambda \neq 0$  for every  $U \in \mathscr C$  and  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ .

<u>Proof.</u> Since the necessity is evident by definition, we shall prove only the sufficiency. For any  $U \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find by the relation §26(6) a symmetric  $V \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $\nabla \times \nabla \times \nabla \leq \mathcal{U}$ . For such  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$ , as  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) is a Cauchy system by assumption, we can find  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  and a point  $x \in R$  such that  $A_{\lambda} \subset V(x)$ , and then  $V(x) V(a) \neq 0$ , because  $V(a) A_{\lambda} \neq 0$  by assumption. Hence we obtain by the relation §25(22)  $A_{\lambda} \subset V(x) \subset V(a) \times \nabla \times \nabla \subset U(a)$  Therefore  $\alpha$  is a limit of  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) by definition.

A point set A of R is said to be <u>complete</u> by  $\mathcal{U}$ , if every Cauchy system  $A_{\lambda} \subset A$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) has a limit in A. If R is complete by  $\mathcal{U}$ , then we shall say that  $\mathcal{U}$  is <u>complete</u>.

With this definition we have obviously

\$34, \$35)

Theorem 2. A point set A is complete by a uniformity W, if and only if the relative uniformity  $W^A$  is complete.

Theorem 3. If a point set A is complete by  $\mathcal{U}$  and A is a topological set by the induced topology  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{U}}$ , then A is closed by  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{U}}$ .

<u>Proof.</u> For each point  $a \in A^-$ , we obtain obviously a Cauchy system  $A \cup (a)$  ( $v \in w$ ). As A is complete by assumption, there is by Theorem 1 a limit  $\ell \in A$  such that

AU(a)  $U(\ell) \neq 0$  for every  $U \in \mathcal{U}$ . This relation yields  $\alpha \in \{\ell\}^-$ . Because, if  $\alpha \in \{\ell\}^-$ , namely if  $\alpha \in \{\ell\}^-$ , then we can find by §27 Theorem 1 and §26(5) a symmetric  $U \in \mathcal{U}$  for which  $U \times U(\alpha) \subset \{\ell\}^-$ , that is,  $(U(\alpha) \times U)\{\ell\}^- = 0$ , and then we have  $U(\alpha) U(\ell) = 0$  by the relation §25(23). Since the induced topology  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{U}}$  is regular by §31 Theorem 6, and A is a topological set by assumption, we obtain by §10 Theorem 1  $A \supset \{\ell\}^- \ni \alpha$ . Therefore A is closed by  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{U}}$ .

Theorem 4. If a point set A is complete by a uniformity W, then for every closed set B by the induced topology  $Y^{W}$  the intersection AB also is complete by W.

Proof. For every Cauchy system  $\mathcal{B}_{\lambda} \subset A\mathcal{B}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) there is by Theorem 1 a limit  $\alpha \in A$  for which  $\mathcal{B}_{\lambda} \mathcal{U}(\alpha) \neq 0$  for every  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{U}$  and  $\lambda \in A$ , and hence  $\mathcal{B} \mathcal{U}(\alpha) \neq 0$  for every  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{U}$ . As  $\mathcal{B}$  is closed by assumption, we obtain  $\alpha \in \mathcal{B}$  by §27 Theorem 1. Therefore  $A\mathcal{B}$  is complete by definition.

Theorem 5. In order that a point set A be compact by the induced topology  $\Upsilon^{\mathcal{M}}$ , it is necessary and sufficient that A is complete and totally bounded by  $\mathcal{M}$ .

Proof. By virtue of Theorems 1 in §12, 2 in §29, 1 in §33, and 2 in §35, we need only prove the case where A = R. Let R be compact

by the induced topology ? M. Then R is by §33 Theorem 4 totally bounded by M. Furthermore, for a Cauchy system  $A_{\lambda} \subset \mathcal{R}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ), there is by §7 Theorem 3 a point  $a \in \prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda}$ . For such a point awe have obviously  $A_{\lambda}U(\alpha) \neq 0$  for every  $U \in \mathcal{U}$  and  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , and hence such a point A is by Theorem 1 a limit of  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $x \in \Lambda$ ). R is complete by W.

Conversely, let R be totally bounded and complete by W. denote by f the totality of bounded uniformly continuous functions on R ; by  $\overline{R}$  a compactification of R by f ; by  $\overline{f}$  the continuous extension of f over  $\overline{R}$ : and by  $\overline{W}$  the weak uniformity of  $\overline{R}$  by  $\overline{f}$ . we have  $W = \overline{W}^2$  by §34 Theorem 2. For each point  $\overline{a} \in \overline{R}$ ,  $R \overline{U}(\overline{a})$  $(\overline{u} \in \overline{\mathcal{M}})$  is obviously a Cauchy system. As R is by Theorem 2 complete by W. there is by Theorem 1 a point a & R such that

R 豆(ā) 豆 (a) キロ for every 豆を祝。

This relation yields  $\bar{a} \in R$ . Because, if  $\bar{a} \in R$ , then  $\bar{a}$  is separated from a by the compactification condition 3), and hence there is by §27 Theorem 1 and the relation §26(5) a symmetric  $\vec{v} \in \vec{w}$  such that  $\vec{v} \times \vec{v}(\vec{z})$   $\vec{v}$ which yields  $\mathcal{T}(\Delta)\mathcal{T}(a)=0$  by the relation §25(23). obtain  $R = \overline{R}$ , and hence R is compact by the induced topology  $T^{W}$ 

Theorem 6. Let R and S be uniform spaces respectively with uniformities W and W. If a point set X is dense in R by the induced topology TH and S is complete by V, then for a uniformly contimuous mapping of of the subspace X with the relative uniformity W" into S there is a uniformly continuous mapping  $\bar{a}$  of R into S such that we have  $\overline{a}(x) = \alpha(x)$  for every  $x \in X$ .

Froof. For each point  $x \in R - X$ ,  $\alpha(X \mathcal{D}(x))$  ( $\mathcal{D} \in \mathcal{U}$ ) is a Cauchy system by arPhi. Because, for every  $arPhi \in \mathscr{Q}$  , as  $o\iota$  is uniformly continuous by assumption for the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^{\times}$ , there is  $\mathcal{T} \in \mathcal{U}$ such that  $\nabla^{\times} = \alpha^{-1} \nabla$ . For such  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  there is by the uniformity condition 3)  $U_i \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $U_i^{-1} \times U_i \leq U$ , and we can find a point  $Y \in X U_{1}(x)$ , since X is dense in R and x is an inner point of  $U_{1}(x)$ for the induced topology Y' Then we have by the relation \$25(21)

 $X \nabla_i(x) \subset X (\nabla_i \times \nabla_i(y)) \subset X \nabla(y) \subset \alpha^{-1} \nabla(y)$ and hence we obtain by the formula \$15(13)

Therefore  $\sigma(\chi v(x))$  ( $v \in \mathcal{U}$ ) is a Cauchy system in S. As S is complete by assumption, there exists hence a limit A & S . that is, for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  we can find  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  such that  $O_{\mathcal{C}}(X, \mathcal{D}(X)) \subset \nabla \mathcal{C}(A)$ .

Assigning to every point  $\pi \in R - \times$  such a limit  $A \in \mathcal{G}$ , we obtain a mapping of R into S such that

$$\vec{a}(x) = \sigma(x)$$
 for every  $x \in X$ .

We shall prove now that such a mapping of is continuous for the induced topologies T and TP. As a is uniformly continuous by assumption, we see easily that for every point  $x \in \mathbb{R}$  and for every symmetric  $y \in \mathbb{C}$ we can find  $\mathcal{V} \in \mathcal{V}$  such that

For an arbitrary point set  $A \subseteq R$ , if  $x \in A^{-}$ , then, since x is an inner point of v(x), there is a point  $a \in Av^{\circ}(x)$ , and we can find then The W for which

As X is dense in R by assumption, we have then

and obviously

(35)

Accordingly we obtain

Recalling the relation \$26(5), we conclude therefore

$$\vec{\alpha}(A) \nabla (\vec{\alpha}(z)) \neq 0$$
 for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$ .

This relation yields by the relation §26(4)

$$\bar{\alpha}(x) \in \bar{\alpha}(A) \times \nabla$$
 for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$ ,

and hence  $\bar{\alpha}(z) \in \bar{\alpha}(A)^-$  by the formula §27(4). Therefore we have  $\bar{\alpha}(A^-) \subset \bar{\alpha}(A)^-$  for every point set  $A \subset R$ , and consequently  $\bar{\alpha}$  is continuous by \$16 Theorem 4. Thus we conclude by \$30 Theorem 3 that \$\overline{\sigma}\$ is uniformly continuous.

(Chapter IV

Theorem 7. Let W and P be two uniformities on a space R with the same induced topology, namely  $T^{W} = T^{P}$ . If W < P and R is complete by W, then R also is complete by P.

Proof. Let  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a Cauchy system by W. As  $W \in W$  by assumption,  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) also is a Cauchy system by W, and hence there is a limit  $\alpha \in R$ , because R is complete by W by assumption. Then, for each  $V \in W$ , as  $Y^M = Y^M$  by assumption, we can find by the relations (2), (3) in §27  $V \in W$  and  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  such that  $V(\alpha) \supset V(\alpha) \supset A_{\lambda}$ . Accordingly  $\alpha$  also is a limit by W.

Theorem 8. Let  $\alpha_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  be a system of mappings of an abstract space R into uniform spaces S, with complete separative uniformities  $\Psi_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$ . In order that the weak uniformity of R by  $\alpha_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  be complete, it is necessary and sufficient that for a system of points  $\alpha_{\lambda} \in S_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$ , if

for every finite number of connectors  $V_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{V}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ ,  $\lambda_{\nu} \in \Lambda$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times$ ), then we can find a point  $x \in R$  such that  $x_{\lambda} = \mathcal{O}_{\lambda}(x)$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ .

<u>Proof.</u> For a system of points  $\pi_{\lambda} \in S_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) subject to the stated condition.

is by \$34 Theorem 1 a Cauchy system by the weak uniformity  $\mathcal{U}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$  by  $\alpha_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). Because, for any finite number of connectors  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{C}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times$ ) we can find  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{C}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$  such that  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{-1} \times \nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \subseteq \nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ , and for a point  $\mathbf{x} \in \prod_{\nu=1}^{N} \alpha_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{-1} (\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} (\mathbf{x}_{\lambda_{\nu}}))$ , as  $\alpha_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\mathbf{x}) \in \nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} (\mathbf{x}_{\lambda_{\nu}})$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \mathbf{x}$ ), we have by the relation \$25(21)

 $T_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\pi_{\lambda_{\nu}}) \subset T_{\lambda_{\nu}}^{-1} \times T_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\alpha_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\pi)) \subset T_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\alpha_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\pi)),$  and consequently

The and ( Tan ( Zan) ) C The and The (2).

Thus, if  $\mathcal M$  is complete, then there is a limit  $x \in R$ . For a limit  $x \in R$ , we have  $\alpha_{\lambda}(x) = x_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ . Because, if we have  $\alpha_{\lambda}(x) \neq x_{\lambda}$  for some  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , then, as  $\mathcal V_{\lambda}$  is separative by assumption, we can find  $\nabla_{\lambda} \in \mathcal V_{\lambda}$  such that  $\nabla_{\lambda}(\alpha_{\lambda}(x)) \nabla_{\lambda}(\alpha_{\lambda}) = 0$ , and hence

 $(\alpha_{\lambda}^{-1} \nabla_{\lambda}(x)) \alpha_{\lambda}^{-1} (\nabla_{\lambda}(x_{\lambda})) = 0$ , contradicting Theorem 1.

Conversely, for a Cauchy system  $A_s \subset R$  ( $Y \in \Gamma$ ) by the weak uniformity M of R, we see easily by §34 Theorem 1 that for each  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ,  $A_{\lambda}(A_{Y})$  ( $Y \in \Gamma$ ) is a Cauchy system by  $V_{\lambda}$ . As  $V_{\lambda}$  is complete by assumption, there is hence a limit  $x_{\lambda} \in S_{\lambda}$ , and for every finite number of connectors  $V_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in V_{\lambda_{\nu}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) we can find  $V_{\nu} \in \Gamma$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that

Therefore, if  $\mathcal M$  satisfies the stated relation, then there is a point  $\mathbf x \in \mathcal R$  such that  $\sigma_\lambda(\mathbf z) = \mathbf x_\lambda$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ . For such a point  $\mathbf x$  we have obviously

 $A_r \overset{\times}{\prod} \alpha_{\lambda_r} (\chi_{\lambda_r} (\chi)) = A_\delta \overset{\times}{\prod} \alpha_{\lambda_r} (\nabla_{\lambda_r} (\chi_{\lambda_r})) \neq 0$  for every  $Y \in \Gamma$  and for every finite number of connectors  $\nabla_{\lambda_r} \in \mathcal{V}_{\lambda_r}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ . Thus  $\chi$  is by Theorem 1 a limit of  $A_\delta$   $(Y \in \Gamma)$ . Therefore  $\mathcal{W}$  is complete by definition.

### §36 Sequential uniformities

Let R be a uniform space with a uniformity  $\mathcal{U}$ . We shall say that R is <u>sequential</u>, or that  $\mathcal{U}$  is <u>sequential</u>, if  $\mathcal{U}$  has a basis composed of at most countable connectors. A sequence of symmetric connectors  $\mathcal{U}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) is said to be <u>decreasing</u>, if

 $\mathcal{O}_{\nu} \geq \mathcal{O}_{\nu+1} \times \mathcal{O}_{\nu+1}$  for every  $\nu=1,2,\ldots$ . On account of the relation §26(5), we see easily that if  $\mathcal{U}$  is sequential, then  $\mathcal{U}$  has a basis  $\{\mathcal{V}_1,\mathcal{V}_2,\ldots\}$  which is a decreasing sequence. Such a basis is called a decreasing basis of  $\mathcal{U}$ .

Recalling §29 Theorem 1 we have obviously

Theorem 1. If W is sequential, then the relative uniformity  $w^s$  also is so for every subspace S of R.

Theorem 2. If a point set S is dense in R by the induced topology  $T^{\mathcal{M}}$  and the relative uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^{S}$  is sequential, then  $\mathcal{M}$  is sequential too.

(Charter IV

If the relative uniformity ws is sequential, then we rionf. see easily by the relation \$26(5) that there is a decreasing sequence  $U_{\nu} \in \mathcal{W}(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  for which  $U_{\nu}^{S}(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  is a decreasing basis For each  $abla \in \mathcal{U}$ , there is then u for which  $abla_{
u}{}^S \leqq 
abla^S$ , that is, of W.S.  $S \nabla_{\nu}(y) \subset S \nabla(y)$  for every  $y \in S$ .

This relation yields by the formula \$4(8) for the induced topology 7 or

U, (x) < (S U, (y)) = (y) for every  $y \in S$  , because S = R by assumption. For each  $x \in R$ , we can find a point  $X \in S U_{r+2}(x)$ , because S is dense in R and x is an inner point of For such a point of we have by the relations §25(21) and \$27(5) Tu+2(x) C Tu+2 x Tu+2(y) C Tu+1(y) C Tu (y) C T (y) C T x T (y). Then, as  $x \in U_{\nu+1}(x) \subset V \times V(x)$ , we obtain further by the relations  $\S25(21)$  and  $\S25(19)$   $\nabla \times \nabla (y) \subset \nabla \times \nabla \times \nabla \times \nabla (z)$ , and hence we have  $U_{\nu+4} \leq V \times V \times V \times V$ . Thus we conclude by the relation §26(5) that for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find  $\nu$  such that  $\nabla_{\nu} \leq \nabla$  , that is,  $\{\nabla_4, \nabla_2, \dots\}$ is a basis of  ${\mathcal U}$  .

If W is sequential, then the induced topology 7 00 Theorem 3. is normal and sequential.

Let  $\mathcal{O}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{W} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  be a decreasing basis of  $\mathcal{W}$ . Proof. For two closed sets A , B by the induced topology  $\gamma^{M}$ , if AB=0 , then  $A_1 = \{x : \overline{U}_{\nu+1}(x)A \neq 0, \overline{U}_{\nu}(x)B = 0 \text{ for some } \nu\},$ putting

 $B_1 = \{x : \nabla_{\nu+1}(x)B \neq 0, \nabla_{\nu}(x)A = 0 \text{ for some } \nu\},$ we have obviously  $A \subset A_1$  and  $B \subset B_1$  by §27 Theorem 1. Furthermore we have A, B, = 0. Because, if  $A, B, \neq 0$ , then for any point  $x \in A, B$ , we can find v and M such that

> $U_{\nu+1}(z)A \neq 0$ ,  $U_{\nu}(z)B = 0$ .  $\nabla_{\mu+1}(z)B \neq 0, \quad \nabla_{\mu}(x)A = 0,$

and hence  $\mu > \nu + i$  ,  $\nu > \mu + i$  , contradicting  $\mu < \mu + 2$ .

For each point  $x \in A$  , as  $x \in B$  , we can find by §27 Theorem 1  $\nu$ such that  $\nabla_{\nu}(\mathbf{z}) \mathbf{8} = 0$ , and for every point  $\mathbf{y} \in \nabla_{\nu+2}(\mathbf{z})$  we have naturally  $U_{ra}(y) A \ni x$  and further by the formula §25(21)

Trong (y) B < (Trong x Trong (x)) B < Tr (x) B = 0.

Thus we have  $\sigma_{\nu+2}(z) \subset A$ , for such  $\nu$ , and hence we conclude  $A \subset A$ , by the formula \$27(2). We also obtain likewise B c 8. .. Therefore 7 is normal by \$11 Theorem 4. Furthermore it is evident by \$27 Theorem 1 that Y' is sequential.

A sequence of points  $a_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is said to be a Cauchy sequence by  $\mathcal{U}$ , if for any  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find  $\nu_{\bullet}$  and a point  $z \in \mathcal{R}$ such that  $a_{\nu} \in \mathcal{U}(x)$  for every  $\nu \geq \nu_{0}$ , that is, if the system of point sets  $\{a_{\nu}, a_{\nu+1}, \ldots\}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, \ldots)$  is a Cauchy system by  $\mathcal{M}$ .

A point sequence  $a_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is said to be convergent by W to a limit  $a \in R$ , if  $\lim_{n \to \infty} a_n = a$  by the induced topology  $T^M$ . this definition we see at once by §27 Theorem 1 that we have  $\lim a_{\nu} = a$ if and only if for each  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  we can find  $\nu$ , such that

 $a_{\nu} \in \mathcal{T}(a)$  for every  $\nu \ge \nu_a$ 

Thus we conclude easily that if  $\lim_{n \to \infty} a_n = a$ , then  $a_n (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  is a Cauchy sequence by  $\mathcal U$  and a is a limit of a Cauchy system  $\{a_{\nu}, a_{\nu \neq 1}, \ldots\}$ (v = 1, 2, ...).

If  $\mathcal U$  is sequential, then in order that a point set Theorem 4.  ${\mathcal A}$  be complete by  ${\mathcal M}$  , it is necessary and sufficient that every Cauchy sequence  $a_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is convergent to a limit  $a \in A$ .

Since the necessity is evident by definition, we need Proof. only prove the sufficiency. Let  $\{U_1, V_2, \dots\}$  be a decreasing basis For a Cauchy system  $A_{\lambda} \subset A$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) we can find by §35 Theorem 2  $a_{\nu} \in A$  and  $\lambda_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that

 $A_{\lambda_{\nu}} \subset \mathcal{T}_{\nu}(a_{\nu})$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

Such  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is a Cauchy sequence. Because, for  $\mu \geq \nu$  we have

0 + Az Azu C Tr(ar) Tr(an) C Tr(ar) Tr(an),

and hence we obtain by the relation §25(22)

 $a_{\mu} \in \mathcal{T}_{\nu} \times \mathcal{T}_{\nu} (a_{\nu}) \subset \mathcal{T}_{\nu-1} (a_{\nu})$  for  $\mu \geq \nu$ .

Therefore there is by assumption a limit  $\alpha \in A$ . For every  $\nu = 1$ , 2, we can find then m > v such that am & Uv+1 (a), and we have

ALM C TM (am) C The x Tm (a) C Tm (a).

Consequently such a limit  $\alpha$  is a limit of  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ). Thus A is complete by  $\mathcal{U}$ .

Theorem 5. If W is sequential, then in order that W be complete, it is necessary and sufficient that every closed totally bounded set is compact for the induced topology  $\gamma^{w}$ .

Proof. Since the necessity is evident by Theorems 4 and 5 in §35, we need only prove the sufficiency. For a Cauchy sequence  $a_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ), it is obvious by definition that  $\{a_{\nu} : \nu = 1, 2, \ldots\}$  is totally bounded, and hence its closure  $\{a_{\nu} : \nu = 1, 2, \ldots\}$  also is so by §33 Theorem 3. Accordingly  $\{a_{\nu} : \nu = 1, 2, \ldots\}$  is compact by assumption, and hence there is by §7 Theorem 2 a point a such that

 $\{a_{\nu}, a_{\nu+1}, \dots\} \ \mathcal{O}(a) \neq 0$  for every  $\mathcal{V} \in \mathcal{W}$  and  $\nu=1, 2, \dots$ . From this relation we conclude by §35 Theorem 1 that  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} a_{\nu} = a$ . Thus  $\mathcal{W}$  is complete by Theorem 4.

Theorem 6. If w is sequential and complete, then the induced topology 7 to is of the second category.

<u>Proof.</u> Let  $\{U_r, U_2, \dots\}$  be a decreasing basis of  $\mathcal{U}$ . For an open set  $A \neq 0$ , if  $A = \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} A_{\nu}$ ,  $A_{\nu}^{-\circ} = 0$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ ), then we can find by §27 Theorem 1 a sequence of points  $a_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ ) and an increasing sequence of natural numbers  $\mu_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ ) such that

A >  $U_{\mu_{1}-1}(\alpha_{1})$ ,  $(A_{1}^{-}+\cdots+A_{r}^{-})'AU_{\mu_{r}}(\alpha_{r})>U_{\mu_{r+1}-1}(\alpha_{r+1})$  for every  $\nu=1$ , 2,..., because  $(A_{1}^{-}+\cdots+A_{r}^{-})''=0$ . Then we have obviously  $\alpha_{g}\in U_{\mu_{r}}(\alpha_{r})$  for  $g\geq\nu$ , and hence  $\alpha_{r}(\nu=1,2,\ldots)$  is a Cauchy sequence. As  $\mathcal M$  is complete by assumption, there is hence a limit  $\alpha$ , and for each  $\nu=1$ , 2,... we can find g such that  $U_{\mu_{r}}(\alpha)\ni\alpha_{g}$ ,  $g\geq\nu$ , and hence  $\alpha\in U_{\mu_{r}}(\alpha_{g})\subset U_{\mu_{r}}\times U_{\mu_{r}}(\alpha_{r})\subset A$ . But we have  $\alpha\in\sum_{i=1}^{\infty}A_{i}^{-}$ , contradicting the assumption  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty}A_{i}=A$ . Therefore  $\mathcal M$  is of the second category by definition.

Theorem 7. If W is sequential and the induced topology  $\gamma^W$  is separable, then  $\gamma^W$  is completely separable.

<u>Froof.</u> Let  $\{U_1, U_2, \ldots\}$  be a decreasing basis of  $\mathcal U$  and  $\{a_1, a_2, \ldots\}$  a dense set of R by  $\mathcal I^{\mathcal U}$ . Then  $U_{\nu}^{\circ}(a_{\mu})$  ( $\nu$ ,  $\mu \neq 1$ , 2,...)

is a neighbourhood system of  $\Upsilon^{W}$ . Because for each  $x \in R$  and for any  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$  we can find  $\mu$  such that  $a_{\mu} \in \nabla_{\nu_{+2}}(x)$ , and hence

 $z \in \mathcal{T}_{\nu+2} (a_{pk}) \subset \mathcal{T}_{\nu+1} (a_{pk}) \subset \mathcal{T}_{\nu+1} (a_{pk}) \subset \mathcal{T}_{\nu} (z).$  Thus  $\mathfrak{I}^M$  is completely separable by definition.

#### §37 Completion

Let R be a uniform space with a uniformity  $\mathcal U$ . A uniform space  $\overline{R}$  with a complete uniformity  $\overline{\mathcal U}$  is said to be a <u>complete extension</u> of R, if  $\overline{R}$  contains R as a subspace and  $\mathcal U$  coincides with the relative uniformity  $\overline{\mathcal U}^R$  of  $\overline{\mathcal U}$  in R. A complete extension  $\overline{R}$  with a complete uniformity  $\overline{\mathcal U}$  is called a <u>completion</u> of R, if we have the <u>completion conditions</u>:

- 1) R is dense in  $\overline{R}$  by the induced topology  $\sqrt{\overline{u}}$ ,
- . 2) every  $x \in \overline{R} R$  is separated from the other points by  $\overline{w}$ .

We shall prove firstly that there is a completion of R. We denote by f the totality of bounded uniformly continuous functions on R. Then the induced topology  $\Upsilon^M$  of M coincides by §31 Theorem 6 with the weak topology of R by f. We denote further by  $\widetilde{R}$  the compactification of R by f; by  $\widetilde{f}$  the continuous extension of f over  $\widetilde{R}$ ; and by  $\widetilde{\Upsilon}$  the topology of  $\widetilde{R}$ . Then we see at once that the induced topology  $\Upsilon^M$  is the relative topology  $\widetilde{\Upsilon}^R$  of  $\widetilde{\Upsilon}$  in R, and  $\widetilde{\Upsilon}$  is the weak topology of  $\widetilde{R}$  by  $\widetilde{f}$ . In the sequel, we consider point sets in  $\widetilde{R}$  and employ the topological notations for the topology  $\widetilde{\Upsilon}$  of  $\widetilde{R}$ . We set

$$\overline{R} = \prod_{v \in \mathcal{H}} \left( \sum_{x \in R} U(x)^{-\circ} \right),$$

 $\overline{U}(\overline{z}) = \sum_{U(x)^{-0} \in \overline{Z}} \overline{R} \ U(x)^{-0} \qquad \text{for } \overline{z} \in \overline{R} \text{ and } x \in R,$  corresponding to every  $U \in \mathcal{U}$ . Then we see easily that  $R \subset \overline{R} \subset \overline{R}$  and  $\overline{U}$  is a connector in the subspace  $\overline{R}$ . Furthermore we have obviously

- (\*)  $U \ge V$  implies  $\overline{U} \ge \overline{V}$ .

  Since  $\overline{U}(\overline{x}) \ni \overline{y}$  is equivalent to that  $\overline{U}(x)^{-0} \ni \overline{x}, \overline{y}$  for some  $x \in R$ , we have naturally
  - ੰ(\*\*) ਰਾ∹ = ਰਾ.

8371

For a closed V & W, if T(元) > 耳, 节(耳) > 豆, then we can find two points x, y & R such that

and hence  $\nabla(x)^{-s} \nabla(x)^{-s} \neq 0$ . As R is dense in  $\overline{R}$ , we obtain then  $R \nabla (z)^{-\alpha} \nabla (z)^{-\alpha} \neq 0$ , and hence naturally  $R \nabla (z)^{-\alpha} \nabla (z)^{-\alpha} = 0$ . V is closed by assumption, we conclude further v(x) v(x) ≠0 by the for-This relation yields by the relation §25(22)

Therefore, if  $\nabla \times \nabla^{-1} \times \nabla \leq \overline{U}$ , then we have  $\nabla (x)^{-n} \subset \overline{U}(x)^{-n}$ , and hence  $\overline{U(z)}^{-\circ} \ni \overline{z}$ ,  $\overline{z}$ , that is,  $\overline{\overline{v}}(\overline{z}) \ni \overline{\overline{z}}$ . Thus we have

(\*\*\*) V×V 1×V≤U implies V×V≤U for a closed V∈W.

Recalling \$27 Theorem 3 and the relation \$26(6), we can conclude now that the totality of  $\overline{\mathbf{U}}$  (  $\mathbf{U} \in \mathcal{U}$  ) satisfies the basis conditions in §26, and hence there is by §26 Theorem 1 uniquely a uniformity  $\widehat{\mathcal{U}}$  on  $\widehat{\mathcal{R}}$  such that  $\overline{v}$  ( $v \in \mathcal{U}$ ) is a basis of  $\overline{\mathcal{U}}$ . For such a uniformity  $\overline{\mathcal{U}}$ ,  $\mathcal{U}$  is the relative uniformity of  $\overline{\mathcal{U}}$ , that is,  $\mathcal{U} = \overline{\mathcal{U}}^R$ . Because, for each open  $\mathcal{T} \in \mathcal{N}$  , if  $\mathcal{T}(x) \ni x$  , then, as both x and y are inner points of  $\mathcal{T}(x)$ by the relative topology  $\widetilde{\gamma}^{\,\,R}$  and R is dense in  $\widetilde{R}$  by  $\widetilde{\gamma}$  , we have by §9 Theorem 4  $R \vec{v}(z)^{-\circ} \supset \vec{v}(z) \ni z, y$ , and hence  $R \vec{\sigma}(z) \ni y$ , namely we have  $\overline{\nabla}^{R}(x) \ni y$ . Thus  $\overline{\nabla}^{R} \ge \overline{U}$  for every open  $\overline{V} \in \mathcal{U}$ . Recalling §27 Theorem 3, we conclude hence  $\overline{\mathcal{W}}^R \subset \mathcal{W}$ . On the other hand, for each closed  $\mathbf{U} \in \mathcal{U}$ , as  $R \mathcal{O}(\mathbf{y})^{-\alpha} \subset \mathcal{U}(\mathbf{y})$  by the formula (10) and Theorem 4 in \$9, we have for every point x & R

 $\overline{U}^{R}(x) = \underbrace{\mathcal{I}}_{U(y)^{-\circ} \times X} R U(y)^{-\circ} \subset \underbrace{\mathcal{I}}_{U(y) \ni X} U(y) = U^{-1} \times U(x),$ that is, Tr≤ T'×U. Thus we conclude Wr>W by the relation §26(5). and Theorem 3 in §27. Consequently we have  $\overline{\mathcal{H}}^R = \mathcal{U}$ .

Next we shall prove that the induced topology 7 to by to coincides with the relative topology  $\widetilde{\gamma}^{\,\vec{k}}$  of  $\widetilde{\gamma}$  in  $\vec{k}$  . For every  $\sigma \in \mathcal{U}$  we have obviously by the relation \$9(10)

$$\overline{U}(\overline{z})^{R_0} = \overline{U}(\overline{z}) + \overline{Z},$$

On the other hand, if and hence we obtain 7 2 > 7 2 by \$27 Theorem 5.  $\vec{a} \in \vec{R} \ A$  ,  $\vec{A} \in \widetilde{\vec{I}}$  , then we can find by §22 Theorem 5  $\widetilde{\vec{Y}} \in \widetilde{\vec{F}}$  such that

 $\widetilde{\varphi}(\widetilde{\mathbf{x}}) = 1$  and  $\widetilde{\varphi}(\widetilde{\mathbf{x}}) = 0$  for  $\widetilde{\mathbf{x}} \in A$ .

Since such & is uniformly continuous in R by M, we can find TeM for which  $U(x) \ni y$  implies  $|\tilde{\varphi}(x) - \tilde{\varphi}(y)| < \frac{1}{3}$ . For such  $v \in \mathcal{U}$ , if we have  $U(z)^{-2} \ni \overline{a}, \overline{z}$ , then we obtain by §20 Theorem 3

$$|\widetilde{\varphi}(x) - \widetilde{\varphi}(\overline{x})| \le \frac{1}{3}, \quad |\widetilde{\varphi}(x) - \widetilde{\varphi}(\overline{x})| \le \frac{1}{3},$$

and hence  $\widetilde{\varphi}(\widetilde{x}) \ge \frac{1}{2}$ . Thus we conclude

$$\overline{\sigma}(\overline{a}) = \sum_{\overline{v}(x)^{-\alpha} \ni \overline{a}} \overline{R} \, \overline{\sigma}(x)^{-\alpha} \subset \overline{R} A.$$

This relation yields TE C 1 to by \$27 Theorem 6. Therefore we obtain our assertion  $q^{\tilde{w}} = \tilde{q}^{\tilde{k}}$ . From this fact we conclude at once that R is dense in  $\mathbb{R}$  by the induced topology  $\mathfrak{I}^{\overline{M}}$  and each point  $\mathbb{Z} \in \mathbb{R} - \mathbb{R}$  is separated from the other points of  $\overline{R}$  by  $\overline{W}$ .

Finally we shall prove that  $\overline{R}$  is complete by  $\overline{\mathcal{M}}$ . For a Cauchy system  $A_{\lambda} \subset \widetilde{R}$ .  $(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  by  $\widetilde{\mathcal{M}}$ , we have  $\prod A_{\lambda} \Rightarrow 0$ , because  $\widetilde{R}$  is compact by  $\widetilde{\gamma}$ . Thus we can find a point  $\alpha \in \Pi$   $A_{\lambda}$ . For each  $\overline{\eta} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{M}}$ there is by the relation  $\S26(6)$  and  $\S27$  Theorem 3 an open  $\mathcal{V}\in\widetilde{\mathscr{H}}$  for which  $\nabla^{-1} \times \nabla \times \nabla \leq \nabla$ . For such  $\nabla \in \widetilde{\mathcal{U}}$ , we can find  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  and a point f $\in \overline{R}$  such that  $A_{\lambda_0} \subset \nabla(\ell)$ . As R is dense in  $\overline{R}$  by the induced topology TW, there is a point C & R V(4), and we have by the formula \$25 (21)  $\nabla(\ell) \subset \nabla^{-1} \times \nabla(c)$ . This relation yields by the formula §29(5) (R T(4)) x TR < (T-1 x T) R x TR (c) < TR(c).

Therefore we can find by \$31 Theorem 5 46 f such that

$$\varphi(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } x \in R \ V(\ell), \\ 1 & \text{for } x \in R - \ U^R(c). \end{cases}$$

For the continuous extension  $\widetilde{\varphi}$  of  $\varphi$  over  $\widetilde{R}$  , we have by §20 Theorem 3

$$\widehat{\varphi}(z) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } z \in (R \nabla(\xi))^{-}, \\ 1 & \text{for } z \in (R - \nabla^{R}(c))^{-}. \end{cases}$$

As  $\nabla$  is an open connector, we can find  $B \in \widetilde{\mathcal{I}}$  such that  $\nabla(\mathcal{L}) = \overline{R} B$ , and we have by the formula §4(8)

$$(R \nabla (4))^{-} = (RB)^{-} \supset (R^{-}B^{\circ})^{-} \supset (\overline{R}B)^{-} = \overline{\nabla}(4)^{-}.$$

Thus we have  $a \in A_{\lambda_0} \subset \nabla(\ell) \subset (R \nabla(\ell))$ , and hence  $\widetilde{\varphi}(a) = \emptyset$ . sequently we obtain by the formula \$4(8)

$$a \in (R - \nabla^R(c))^{-1} = (R \nabla^R(c)')^{-1} \subseteq (R - \nabla^R(c)')^{-1} = \nabla^R(c)^{-1}$$

We conclude hence  $a \in \overline{R}$  by the construction of  $\overline{R}$ , because  $\nabla^R \in \mathcal{H}$  as proved just above. Furthermore we have by the formula  $\S 9(6)$   $a \in \overline{R}A_n^ = A_n^{\sqrt{M}}$  for every  $a \in \Lambda$ , and consequently by  $\S 27(3)$   $A_n \nabla(a) \neq 0$  for every  $a \in \Lambda$  and  $\nabla \in \overline{\mathcal{H}}$ . Thus a is by  $\S 35$  Theorem 1 a limit of  $A_n (a \in \Lambda)$ . Therefore  $\overline{R}$  is a completion of R.

Let  $\overline{R}$  and  $\overline{R}$  be two completions of R. By virtue of §35 Theorem 6, we can find a uniformly continuous mapping n of  $\overline{R}$  into  $\overline{R}$  such that n(x) = x for  $x \in R$ , and f of  $\overline{R}$  into  $\overline{R}$  such that f(x) = x for  $x \in R$ . Then we have f(x) = x for  $x \in \overline{R}$ . Because, if  $f(x) \neq x$  for some  $x \in \overline{R} - R$ , then, as x is separated from the other points, we can find open sets A,  $B \subset \overline{R}$  such that  $x \in A$ ,  $f(x) \in B$ ,  $f(x) \in B$ . As both mappings n and f are continuous for the induced topologies by §50 Theorem 2,  $n^{-1}f^{-1}(B)$  is open and contains x. Consequently we have  $RAn^{-1}f^{-1}(B) \neq 0$ , as R is dense in  $\overline{R}$ . From this relation we conclude by §15(12)  $f(n)(RA)B \neq 0$ . As f(n)(RA) = RA, we obtain hence  $RAB \neq 0$ , contradicting AB = 0. We also can prove likewise that nf(x) = x for every  $x \in \overline{R}$ . Therefore we have f(x) = x.

Now we can state

Theorem 1. Every uniform space R has a completion uniquely within a homeomorphism.

Recalling \$36 Theorem 2, we obtain immediately by definition Theorem 2. For a sequential uniform space R, its completion is sequential too.

Furthermore we have obviously by definition

Theorem 3. If a uniform space R is separated by its uniformity w, then its completion is separated too.

#### CHAPTER V

#### METRIC SPACES

#### §38 Quasi-metric

Let R be an abstract space. A function  $m(\alpha, \ell)$  of a pair of points in R is called a <u>quasi-metric</u>, if we have the <u>metric conditions</u>:

- 1)  $0 \leq m(a, \ell) < +\infty$ ,
- $2) \quad m(a,a) = 0,$
- 3) m(a, b) = m(b, a)
- 4) m(a, b)+m(b, c)≥ m(a, c).

A space R associated with a quasi-metric m is called a <u>quasi-</u>
<u>metric space</u>. A quasi-metric m will be called a <u>metric</u>, if we have
further

5) m(a, l) = 0 implies a = l.

A space R associated with a metric on is called a metric space.

Let R be a quasi-metric space with a quasi-metric m in the sequel. For each point  $a \in R$  and for every positive number E, a point set

$$U_{s}(a) = \{x : m(a, x) < \varepsilon\}$$

is called a sphere with a radius & and a center a.

Concerning spheres we have obviously

- (1)  $U_{\varepsilon}(a) \subset U_{\varepsilon}(a)$  for  $\varepsilon \leq S$ ,
- (2)  $\nabla_{\varepsilon}(a) = \sum_{i} \nabla_{\varepsilon}(a)$  for  $\varepsilon = \sup_{i} \lambda_{i}$ ,
- (3)  $V_{\varepsilon}(a) \supset V_{\varepsilon}(\ell)$  for  $\varepsilon S \ge m(a, \ell)$ .

Because, for every point  $x \in \mathcal{O}_{\delta}(\ell)$  we have  $m(a,x) \leq m(a,\ell) + m(\ell,x) < \ell$ .

(4)  $\nabla_{\varepsilon}(a) \nabla_{\varepsilon}(\ell) = 0$  for  $\varepsilon + \delta \leq m(a, \ell)$ .

Because, for every point  $x \in U_{\xi}(a)$  we have by 3) and 4)

$$m(f, x) \ge m(a, f) - m(a, x) > \delta$$
.

Corresponding to every positive number  $\mathcal E$ , we obtain a connector  $\mathcal U_{\mathcal E}$  in  $\mathcal R$  as  $\mathcal R \ni \mathcal X \longrightarrow \mathcal U_{\mathcal E}(\mathcal X)$  for the sphere  $\mathcal U_{\mathcal E}(\mathcal X)$ . This connector  $\mathcal U_{\mathcal E}$  will be called a <u>sphere connector</u> with a radius  $\mathcal E$  by the quasi-metric  $\mathcal M$ . If we need indicate the quasi-metric  $\mathcal M$ , we shall write  $\mathcal U_{\mathcal E}^{\mathcal M}$ . Concerning sphere connectors, we have obviously by definition

- U. U. & V Nin (5.6). (6)
- (7) V. -1 = V.

1.02

On account of the metric condition 4), we conclude easily

UEXUS TO (8)

For a point set A and a point a we define m(A,a) to mean

(9) $m(A, a) = \inf_{x \in A} m(x, a),$ 

With this definition we have obviously but m (0, a) = + co.

- (10)  $m(A, \pi) = 0$  for  $\pi \in A$ .
- $m(A, x) \leq m(B, x)$  for  $A \supset B$ , (11)
- $m(\sum_{\lambda \in A_{\lambda}} A_{\lambda}, a) = \inf_{\lambda \in A} m(A_{\lambda}, a).$ (12)

We also can prove easily by the metric condition 4)

- (13) $m(\nabla_{c}(a), x) \geq m(a, x) - \varepsilon$ .
- (14) $m(A,a)+m(a,b) \ge m(A,b)$ .

#### §39 Induced uniformities and topologies

Let.R be a quasi-metric space with a quasi-metric m. easily by the formulas (6), (7), (8) in \$38 that the totality of sphere connectors  $\mathcal{T}_s$  for all £ > 0 satisfies the basis conditions in §26, and hence there exists by §26 Theorem 1 uniquely a uniformity  ${\cal W}$  on  ${\cal R}$  , of which  $W_a$  ( $\xi > 0$ ) is a basis. This uniformity W is called the induced uniformity of R by m and denoted by W.".

With this definition we see at once that  $\nabla_{\frac{1}{2}} (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  is a basis of the induced uniformity Wm. Therefore we have

The induced uniformity  $\mathcal{U}^m$  by a quasi-metric m is Theorem 1. sequential.

 $m(\pi, \mu)$  is uniformly continuous by  $\mathcal{M}^m$ : for any Theorem 2.  $\varepsilon$  70 we can find a sphere connector  $\mathcal{T}_{\delta}$  such that  $\mathcal{T}_{\delta}(x_i) \ni \mathcal{I}_{\delta}(y_i) \ni \mathcal$ implies  $|m(x_i, y_i) - m(x, y)| < \varepsilon$ .

On account of the metric conditions 3), 4) we have Proof.  $|m(x_1, y_1) - m(x, y)| \leq m(x_1, x) + m(y_1, y).$ 

Thus, putting  $S = \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{E}$ , we obtain our assertion.

We also can prove likewise

\$38. **\$39**)

m(A, x) (x  $\in$  R) is a uniformly continuous func-Theorem 3. tion on R by the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^{\infty}$ .

METRIC SPACES

R is separated by the induced uniformity W", if Theorem 4. and only if m is a metric.

It is evident by definition that we have Proof.

if and only if we is a metric.

Theorem 5. Let m, and ma be two quasi-metrics on a space R. For the induced uniformities  $\mathcal{U}^{m_1}$  and  $\mathcal{U}^{m_2}$ , we have  $\mathcal{U}^{m_4} \supset \mathcal{U}^{m_2}$ , if and only if for any  $\xi > 0$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that

$$m_1(x, y) < \delta$$
 implies  $m_2(x, y) < \delta$ .

If  $\mathcal{M}^{m_1} \supset \mathcal{M}^{m_2}$ , then we have  $\mathcal{T}_c^{m_2} \in \mathcal{U}^{m_1}$  for every  $\varepsilon > 0$ , and hence we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $U_{\delta}^{m_1} \leq U_{\epsilon}^{m_2}$ , that is,  $m_{\epsilon}(x,y) < \delta$ implies  $m_{2}(x, y) < \mathcal{E}$ Conversely, if for any f > 0 we can find  $\delta > 0$ such that  $\mathcal{U}_{\delta}^{m_1} \leq \mathcal{U}_{\epsilon}^{m_2}$ , then we have obviously  $\mathcal{U}^{m_1} \supset \mathcal{U}^{m_2}$ 

For the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{U}^m$ , the induced topology by  $\mathcal{U}^m$  is called the induced topology by m and denoted by  $\mathcal{A}^m$ .

For the induced topology 7 " we have

(1) 
$$A^- = \{x : m(A, x) = 0\},$$

(2) 
$$A^{\circ} = \{x : m(A', x) > 0\}$$

for every point set A. Because, if m(A, a) = 0, then we have obviously  $AU_{\epsilon}(\alpha) \neq 0$  for every  $\epsilon > 0$ , and hence  $\alpha \in A^{-}$  by §27 Theorem Conversely, if  $a \in A^-$ , then we have  $A U_{\xi}(a) \neq 0$  for every  $\xi > 0$ , and hence m(A, a) = 0 by the definition §38(9). Thus we obtain the formula (1). Recalling the formula  $\S 4(3)$ , we obtain by (1)

$$A^{\circ} = A^{\prime - \prime} = \{x : m(A^{\prime}, x) = 0\}^{\prime} = \{x : m(A^{\prime}, x) > 0\}.$$

Recalling Theorems 2 in §20 and 2 in §30, we obtain immediately by \$38 Theorem 3

Every sphere To (a) is open by the induced topolo-Theorem 6. gy Im.

Let m1 and m2 be two quasi-metrics on a space R. For the induced topologies 7 and 7 and 7 we have 7 7 > 7 m2, if and only if for any & > 0 and for any a & R we can find & > 0 such that  $m_1(a, x) < \delta$  implies  $m_2(a, x) < \epsilon$ .

By wirtue of Theorem 1 in §27, if  $T^m$ , >  $T^m$ , then for Proof. any  $\ell > 0$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\nabla_{\delta}^{m_{\ell}}(a) \subset \nabla_{\epsilon}^{m_{\ell}}(a)$ . We also can prove likewise the inverse.

Every subspace S of R may be considered as a quasi-metric space by the same quasiemetric m. This same quasi-metric m in a subspace S is called the relative quasi-metric of m in S and denoted by m3, that is,  $m^{S}(x,y) = m(x,y)$  for  $x, y \in S$ .

With this definition we have obviously

(3) 
$$U_{\varepsilon}^{m^{S}} = (U_{\varepsilon}^{m})^{S}$$
 for every  $\varepsilon > 0$ .

Therefore we obtain

The induced uniformity and topology by the relative Theorem 8. quasi-metric ms coincide respectively with the relative uniformity and topology of the induced uniformity and topology by m, that is,

$$w^m = (w^m)^s$$
,  $T^m = (T^m)^s$ .

#### §40 Completion

Let R be a quasi-metric space with a quasi-metric m . tue of §27 Theorem 1, the system of spheres {  $\nabla_{\xi}$  (a) :  $\xi > 0$  } is a neighbourhood system of a point a for the induced topology 1". Thus we see easily that  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty} a_{\nu} = a$  is equivalent to  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty} m(a_{\nu}, a) = 0$ .

As the system of sphere connectors {  $\mathcal{D}_{\epsilon}$  :  $\epsilon > 0$  } is a basis of the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{U}^{*}$ , we see further that a point sequence  $a_{\nu} \in \mathcal{R}$  ( $\nu =$ 1, 2,...) is a Cauchy sequence if and only if  $\lim_{\nu,\mu\to\infty} m(a_{\nu},a_{\mu\nu})=0$ .

A point set A is said to be complete by m , if A is complete by the induced uniformity w. Recalling Theorems 4 in §36 and 1 in §39, we have then obviously

A is complete by m if and only if  $\lim_{\mu,\mu\to\infty} m(a_{\mu},a_{\mu})=0$ , Theorem 1.

METRIC SPACES  $a_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) implies  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} m(a_{\nu}, a) = 0$  for some point  $a \in A$ .

§39, §40)

We shall say that R is complete by m or that m is complete, if R is complete by m as a point set. A complete quasi-metric space  $\overline{R}$  with a quasi-metric  $\overline{m}$  is called a completion of R , if  $\overline{R}$  is a completion of R for the induced uniformities  $u^m$ ,  $u^m$ , and m is a relative quasi-metric of  $\overline{m}$ , that is,  $\overline{m}(x, y) = m(x, y)$  for  $x, y \in R$ .

Theorem 2. Every quasi-metric space R has a completion uniquely within a homeomorphism.

By virtue of \$37 Theorem 1, considering R as a uniform Proof. space with the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^m$ , we obtain a completion  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$ Since W" is sequential, the uniuniquely within a homeomorphism. formity  $\overline{\mathcal{U}}$  of  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}$  also is sequential by §37 Theorem 2. see by Theorems 2 in 14 and 3 in 36 that for any  $a \in R$  we can find  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\lim a_{\nu} = a$ . For a pair of points a, le R, if

(\*)  $\lim_{n \to \infty} a_n = a$ ,  $\lim_{n \to \infty} b_n = b$ ,  $a_n, b_n \in \mathbb{R} (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ , then both  $a_{\nu}$  and  $\ell_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) are Cauchy sequences, and hence

$$\lim_{\nu,\mu\to\infty} m(a_{\nu},a_{\mu})=0\,,\qquad \lim_{\nu,\mu\to\infty} m(b_{\nu},b_{\mu})=0\,.$$

Since we obtain by the metric conditions 3) and 4)

$$|m(a_v, b_v) - m(a_\mu, b_\mu)| \le m(a_v, a_\mu) + m(b_v, b_\mu),$$
we conclude thus

$$\lim_{\nu \to \infty} |m(a_{\nu}, b_{\nu}) - m(a_{\mu}, b_{\mu})| = 0.$$

Therefore  $m(a_{\nu}, b_{\nu})$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is convergent for every  $a_{\nu}$ ,  $b_{\nu}$  ( $\nu =$ 1, 2,...) subject to the condition (\*), and hence tends to the same limit. Thus, putting

$$\overline{m}(a,b) = \lim_{n \to \infty} m(a_{\nu}, b_{\nu}),$$

we see easily that  $\overline{m}$  satisfies the metric conditions 1), 2), 3), 4), and hence  $\overline{m}$  is a quasi-metric on  $\overline{R}$ . Furthermore we have obviously

$$\overline{m}(x,y) = m(x,y)$$
 for  $x, y \in \mathbb{R}$ .

Finally we shall prove that  $\overline{\mathcal{U}}$  coincides with the induced uniformity of  $\overline{R}$  by  $\overline{m}$ , that is,  $\overline{w} = w^{\overline{m}}$ . For any  $\xi > 0$ , we can find  $\overline{u} \in \overline{w}$ such that  $abla^R(x) \ni y$  implies  $m(x,y) < \frac{1}{4}E$ , and hence  $abla^R(x) \ni a, b$  implies (Chapter V

1.07

 $\tilde{m}(\alpha, \ell) \leq \tilde{m}(x, \alpha) + \tilde{m}(x, \ell) \leq \frac{1}{3} \mathcal{E} + \frac{1}{3} \mathcal{E} < \mathcal{E},$ 

because we conclude  $\mathbf{U}^{\circ}(\mathbf{x}) \subset (R \mathbf{U}(\mathbf{x}))^{-}$  from  $R^{-} = \overline{R}$  and  $\overline{m}(\alpha, \mathcal{L})$  is continuous by §39 Theorem 2. For such  $\mathbf{U} \in \overline{\mathcal{U}}$ , we can find by the relation §26(5) a symmetric  $\mathbf{V} \in \overline{\mathcal{U}}$  such that  $\mathbf{V} \times \mathbf{V} \subseteq \mathbf{U}^{\circ}$ , and if  $\mathbf{V}(\alpha) \ni \mathcal{L}$ , then for a point  $\mathbf{X} \in R \mathbf{V}(\alpha)$  we have

 $a \in V(x) \subset U^{\circ}(x), \qquad f \in V \times V(x) \subset U^{\circ}(x),$ 

and hence  $\overline{m}(a, d) < \varepsilon$ . Therefore we conclude  $\overline{N} > n^{\overline{m}}$  by definition.

On the other hand, for any  $\nabla \in \mathcal{M}$  we can find by the relation §26 (6) a symmetric  $\nabla \in \mathcal{M}$  such that  $\nabla \times \nabla \times \nabla \leq \nabla$ , and then further  $\mathcal{E} > 0$  such that  $m(x,y) < \mathcal{E}$ ,  $x,y \in \mathcal{R}$  implies  $\nabla(x) \ni \mathcal{F}$ . For such  $\nabla$  and  $\mathcal{E}$ , if  $m(a,\ell) < \frac{1}{3}\mathcal{E}$ ,  $a,\ell \in \mathcal{R}$ , then we can find two points  $x \in \mathcal{R} \vee (a)$  and  $y \in \mathcal{R} \vee (\ell)$  such that  $m(a,x) < \frac{1}{3}\mathcal{E}$ ,  $m(\ell,y) < \frac{1}{3}\mathcal{E}$  and hence  $m(x,y) \leq m(a,x) + m(a,\ell) + m(\ell,y) < \mathcal{E}$ . For such  $x,y \in \mathcal{R}$  we have thus  $\nabla(x) \ni \mathcal{F}$ , and consequently

le V(y) < V(z) x V & V(a) x V x V C V(a).

Therefore we conclude  $\mathcal{U}^{\overline{m}} \supset \overline{\mathcal{U}}$ . Thus we obtain  $\overline{\mathcal{U}} = \mathcal{U}^{\overline{m}}$ .

Recalling \$37 Theorem 3, we have obviously

Theorem 3. For a metric space, its completion is a metric space.

## e §41 Metrization

The induced uniformity by a quasi-metric is sequential by §39 Theorem 1. Conversely we have

Theorem 1. For a uniform space R with a sequential uniformity M, we can find a quasi-metric m on R such that M coincides with the induced uniformity M by m.

<u>Proof.</u> Let  $\{U_0, U_1, U_2, \ldots\}$  be a decreasing basis of  $\mathcal{U}$ . By virtue of §31 Theorem 4, corresponding to each point  $a \in \mathcal{R}$  there is a function  $\mathcal{Y}_a$  on the subspace  $\sum_{M=1}^{\infty} U_o^M(a)$  such that

$$\begin{array}{ll}
\nabla_{\nu}(x) \ni y & \text{implies } |\varphi_{\alpha}(x) - \varphi_{\alpha}(y)| \leq \frac{1}{2^{\nu-1}}, \\
\varphi_{\alpha}(x) & \geq \frac{1}{2^{\nu}} & \text{for } x \in \nabla_{\nu}(\alpha), \\
\geq 1 & \text{for } x \in \nabla_{\nu}(\alpha),
\end{array}$$

 $\varphi_{\mathbf{a}}(\mathbf{a}) = 0 \text{ and } \varphi_{\mathbf{a}}(\mathbf{x}) \geq 0 \text{ for every } \mathbf{x} \in \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} U_n^{\mathcal{M}}(\mathbf{a}). \text{ For such } \varphi_n$  putting  $\omega_{\mathbf{a}}(\mathbf{x}) = \begin{cases} \text{win } \{\varphi_{\mathbf{a}}(\mathbf{x})_{j}\} \} \text{ for } \mathbf{x} \in \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} U_n^{\mathcal{M}}(\mathbf{a}), \\ 1 \text{ for } \mathbf{x} \in \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} U_n^{\mathcal{M}}(\mathbf{a}). \end{cases}$ 

we obtain a positive function  $\omega_{a}$  on R such that

$$\begin{split} \omega_{\alpha}(z) &= \left\{ \begin{matrix} 0 & \text{for } z = \alpha \,, \\ \\ 1 & \text{for } z \in U_{\alpha}(a) \,, \end{matrix} \right. \\ \nabla_{\nu}(z) \ni y & \text{implies } |\omega_{\alpha}(z) - \omega_{\alpha}(y)| \leq \frac{1}{2^{\nu-1}} \,, \\ V_{\nu}(\alpha) \ni z & \text{implies } |\omega_{\alpha}(z)| \geq \frac{1}{2^{\nu}} \,, \end{split}$$

because we have by §25 Theorem 2

$$\left( \underset{\mu=1}{\overset{\infty}{\sum}} \overline{U}_{\alpha}^{\mu}(a) \right) \times \overline{U}_{\alpha} = \underset{\mu=1}{\overset{\infty}{\sum}} \overline{U}_{\alpha}^{\mu}(a), \left( \underset{\mu=1}{\overset{\infty}{\sum}} \overline{U}_{\alpha}^{\mu}(a) \right)' \times \overline{U}_{\alpha} = \left( \underset{\mu=1}{\overset{\infty}{\sum}} \overline{U}_{\alpha}^{\mu}(a) \right)'.$$

For such functions  $\omega_a$  ( $a \in R$ ), putting

$$\varphi(x,y) = \inf_{\alpha \in R} \left\{ \omega_{\alpha}(x) + \omega_{\alpha}(y) \right\},\,$$

we have obviously

$$0 \le \varphi(x, y) \le 1$$
,  $\varphi(x, y) = \varphi(y, x)$ ,  $\varphi(x, x) = 0$ .

Furthermore, if we set

$$m(z,y) = \sup_{z \in R} |\varphi(z,z) - \varphi(y,z)|,$$

then we see easily that m satisfies the metric conditions 1), 2), 3), 4), that is, m is a quasi-metric on R. We shall prove now that  $\mathcal{M}=\mathcal{M}^m$  for this quasi-metric m.

If  $\mathcal{T}_{\nu}(z) \ni \mathcal{J}$  , then we have

and hence for every point Z & R

$$9(x, 2) \leq 9(y, 2) + \frac{1}{2^{\nu-1}}$$

We also obtain likewise

$$\varphi(y,z) \leq \varphi(x,z) + \frac{1}{2^{\nu-1}}$$

Thus  $U_{\nu}(x) \ni y$  implies  $m(x,y) \leqq \frac{1}{2^{\nu-1}}$ . Therefore we have  $\mathcal{N} \supset \mathcal{N}^m$ . On the other hand, as  $U_{\nu+1} \times U_{\nu+1} \leqq U_{\nu}$ , we see easily that  $U_{\nu}(x) \ni y$  implies  $U_{\nu+1}(x) \cup U_{\nu+1}(y) = 0$ , and hence we have

 $U_{k+1}(z)$   $\exists$   $\lambda$  or  $U_{k+1}(y)$   $\exists$   $\lambda$  for every  $\lambda \in R$ . This relation yields

 $\omega_{\alpha}(z) \ge \frac{1}{2^{\nu+1}}$  or  $\omega_{\alpha}(y) \ge \frac{1}{2^{\nu+1}}$  for every  $\alpha \in R$ , and consequently  $\varphi(x,y) \ge \frac{1}{2^{\nu+1}}$ . Thus  $\nabla_{\nu}(x) \ni y$  implies

 $m(x,y) \ge |\varphi(x,y) - \varphi(y,y)| \ge \frac{1}{2^{|x|}},$  that is,  $m(x,y) < \frac{1}{2^{|x|}}$  implies  $U_{\nu}(x) \ni y$ . Therefore we conclude  $u = u^{m}$ .

Theorem 2.(Urysohn) For a topological space R, if its topology T is regular and completely separable, then we can find a quasimetric m on R such that T coincides with the induced topology T.

Proof. Let  $\{U_1, U_2, \ldots\}$  be a neighbourhood system of Y. As Y is normal by \$14 Theorem 3, for a pair  $U_{\nu}$ ,  $U_{\mu}$  subject to  $U_{\nu} \prec U_{\mu}$ , we can find by \$23 Theorem 4 a continuous function  $Y_{\nu,\mu}$  such that we have  $0 \leq Y_{\nu,\mu}(x) \leq 1$  for every  $x \in R$  and

$$q_{\nu,m}(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } x \in \mathcal{D}_{\nu}, \\ 1 & \text{for } x \in \mathcal{D}_{m}. \end{cases}$$

Then the totality of such functions  $\mathcal{F}_{\nu,\mu}$   $(\mathcal{V}_{\nu} \prec \mathcal{V}_{\mu})$  is by §22 Theorem 5 a trunk of  $\mathcal{T}$ , because for any  $a \in A \in \mathcal{T}$  we can find  $\nu$ ,  $\mu$  such that  $a \in \mathcal{V}_{\nu} \prec \mathcal{V}_{\mu} \subset A$ . Therefore we see that there is a sequence of functions  $\mathcal{F}_{\nu}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, \ldots)$  which is a trunk of  $\mathcal{T}$ . Let  $\mathcal{U}$  be the weak uniformity of  $\mathcal{R}$  by  $\mathcal{F}_{\nu}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, \ldots)$ . Then  $\mathcal{U}$  is sequential by §34 Theorem 4, and we see by §34 Theorem 3 that  $\mathcal{T}$  coincides with the induced topology of  $\mathcal{R}$  by  $\mathcal{U}$ . Therefore we obtain our assertion by Theorem 1.

Let  $m_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a system of quasi-metrics on an abstract space  $\mathbb{R}$ . For the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{W}^{m_{\lambda}}$  by  $m_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ), the weakest stronger uniformity  $\bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathcal{W}^{m_{\lambda}}$  is called the <u>induced uniformity</u> by a system of quasi-metrics  $m_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ).

Theorem 3. For a uniform space R with a uniformity W there is a system of quasi-metrics  $m_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  on R such that W coincides with the induced uniformity by  $m_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$ .

Proof. Corresponding to every  $U \in \mathcal{N}$ , we obtain by §26(5) a decreasing sequence  $\nabla_{v,v} \in \mathcal{N}$  ( $v=1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that  $\nabla_{v,v} \times \nabla_{v,v} \leq U$ , and there is by §26 Theorem 1 a uniformity  $\mathcal{N}_{v}$  on R of which  $\nabla_{v,v} (v=1, 2, \ldots)$  is a basis. Then we have obviously  $\mathcal{N} = \bigcup_{v \in \mathcal{N}} \mathcal{N}_{v}$ , and  $\mathcal{N}_{v}$  is sequential. Therefore we obtain our assertion by Theorem 1.

## LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES

## CHAPTER VI LINEAR SPACES

## §42 Fundamental definitions

A space R is called a <u>commutative group</u>, if for every two elements a,  $l \in R$  we have  $a+l \in R$  such that

- 1) a+k=l+a,
- 2) (a+l)+c = a+(l+c).
- 3) for any a,  $l \in R$  we can find  $c \in R$  such that a = l + c. Such an element  $c \in R$  is uniquely determined. Because, if a = l + c = l + c.

then we can find by 3) E ,  $d \in R$  such that

$$c = c_1 + d$$
,  $c_1 = a + e$ ,

and we have by 1) and 2)

$$c, = a + e = (k + c) + e = (k + (c, +d)) + e$$

$$=((l+c_i)+d)+e=(a+e)+d=c_i+d=c$$
.

Therefore we denote such  $c \in R$  by a - l. Then we have naturally a = l + (a - l)

for every a,  $l \in R$ . Especially l = l + (l - l), and hence by 1), 2) a = (l + (l - l)) + (a - l) = (l + (a - l)) + (l - l) = a + (l - l). Consequently we obtain a - a = l - l for every a,  $l \in R$ , that is, for every  $a \in R$  we obtain the same element a - a. This uniquely determined element a - a ( $a \in R$ ) is called the zero element of R and denoted by l

For each  $a \in R$  we define -a to mean o - a. Then we have -(-a) = a,

because 0 = a + (-a) = (-a) + (-(-a)). As

$$\ell + (\alpha + (-\ell)) = \alpha + (\ell + (-\ell)) = \alpha + \ell = \alpha,$$

we have for every a, leR

$$a+(-\ell)=a-\ell$$
.

A commutative group R is said to be a linear space, if for every  $\alpha \in R$  and for every real number  $\alpha$  we have  $\alpha \in R$  such that

- $d(\beta a) = (\alpha \beta)a$ , 4)
- $da + \beta a = (d + \beta)a$ 5)
- da+dl=d(a+l). 6)
- 1a = a. 7)

As 0a + 0a = (0 + 0)a = 0a by 5), we have 0a = 0 for every  $a \in R$ . Therefore we have a+(-1)a=0 a=0 by 5), 7), and hence

Furthermore we have for every a, 4 c R

$$d(a-1) = da - dh,$$

because d(a-b) = d(a+(-b)) = da+d(-1)b = da-db.

For a subset A of a linear space R, an element  $a \in R$  is said to be a linear combination from A , if we can find a finite number of ele-, ments  $z_{\nu} \in A$  and of real numbers  $\omega_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that

An element  $a \in R$  is said to be linearly independent from A, if a is not a linear combination from A. A subset  $A \subset R$  is said to be 11nearly independent, if every element of A is linearly independent from the other elements of A, that is, if  $\sum_{i=1}^{n} \alpha_i x_i = 0$  implies  $\alpha_i = 0$  ( $\nu = 1$ ,  $2, \ldots, \kappa$ ) for every finite number of different elements  $\kappa_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, 2, \ldots, \kappa$ ) · . . . , % ) .

## §43 Manifolds

A-subset  $A \neq 0$  of R is called a Let A be a linear space. For two manifolds A , B of R we define  $A \times B$  to manifold of R. mean

- A x B = {x + x : x ∈ A, y ∈ B}. (1) With this definition we have obviously
  - $A \times B = B \times A$ ,  $(A \times B) \times C = A \times (B \times C)$ .

E(Ax×Bp)=(王私)×(云 Bp).

For a manifold A and an element  $a \in R$  we define A + a to mean

 $A + a = A \times \{a\} = \{x + a : x \in A\}.$ (4)

With this definition we see easily

842, 843)

- (A+a)+l=(A+l)+a=A+(a+l).
- $\Sigma_{\alpha}(A_{\lambda}+\alpha)=\Sigma_{\alpha}A_{\lambda}+\alpha$
- $\prod_{\alpha} (A_{\lambda} + \alpha) = \prod_{\alpha} A_{\lambda} + \alpha \qquad \text{for } \prod_{\alpha} A_{\lambda} \neq 0,$
- $(A \times B) + \alpha = (A + \alpha) \times B = A \times (B + \alpha).$
- $(A+a)\times(B+d)=(A\times B)+(a+d).$
- (10)(A+a)' = A'+a for  $A' \neq 0$
- (A+a)-(B+a)=(A-B)+a for A>B,  $A-B\neq 0$ . (11)

For a manifold A and a real number & we define & A to mean

(12)  $dA = \{dz : z \in A\}$ 

With this definition we have obviously

- $d \sum_{\lambda} A_{\lambda} = \sum_{\lambda} d A_{\lambda}$ (13)
- (14) $d \prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda} = \prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda} \qquad \text{for } \prod_{\lambda \in A} A_{\lambda} \neq 0,$
- dA dR = d(A B) for  $A \supset B$ ,  $A \neq 0$ , (15)
- (dA)' = dA' for  $d \neq 0$ ,  $A' \neq 0$ . (16)
- (17)  $\alpha(\beta A) = (\alpha \beta) A$
- (18) $a(A \times B) = (aA) \times (aB)$
- d/A+a)=dA+da.(19)

A manifold A is said to be linear, if Asa, & implies Asda+A& for every real numbers  $\alpha$  ,  $\beta$  , that is, if  $A \times A = A$  ,  $\alpha A = A$  for every real number d = 0 .

For a linear manifold S we have

(20)  $SA \times SB \subset S(A \times B)$ .

Because  $SA \times SB \subset A \times B$ ,  $SA \times SB \subset S \times S = S$ .

For an arbitrary manifold  $\boldsymbol{\mathcal{A}}$  , the totality of linear combinations from A constitutes obviously a linear manifold. This linear manifold is called the linear manifold generated by A . that for a system of linear manifolds  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) the intersection  $\prod_{\lambda \in \Lambda} A_{\lambda}$ also is a linear manifold. Therefore we can say that the linear mani-

112 fold generated by a manifold A is the least linear manifold containing Every linear manifold of a linear space R may be considered In this sense, a linear manifold will be itself as a linear space. called a subspace of R .

## §44 Linear functionals

Functions on a linear space are called functionals. Let R be a linear space. A functional f on R is said to be linear, if 9 (dx+ By) = d 9 (x)+B 4 (y).

for every x,  $y \in R$  and real numbers d,  $\beta$ .

For a linear functional % on a subspace S of R, Theorem 1. we can find a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R such that  $\varphi(x) = \varphi_0(x)$  for  $x \in S$ .

By virtue of Maximal Theorem, we see easily that there Proof. is a maximal system of elements  $x_{\lambda} \in R$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) such that for each  $f \in \Lambda$ ,  $x_{\rho}$  is linearly independent from S  $\div \{x_{\lambda}: \lambda \neq \beta\}$ . Then for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ we can find uniquely  $x_a \in S$  and a finite number of elements  $\lambda_a \in A$  and real numbers  $\alpha_{\nu} \neq 0$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that

Thus, putting  $\varphi(x) = \varphi_o(x_o)$ , we see easily that  $\varphi$  satisfies our requirement.

Corresponding to every element x, \*0 there exists Theorem 2. a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R such that  $\varphi(x_0) = 1$ .

Putting  $S = \{\xi x_0 : -\infty < \xi < +\infty\} \text{ and } \varphi_0(\xi x_0) = \xi$ for every real number  $\xi$  , we obtain obviously a subspace S and a linear Therefore there is by Theorem 1 a linear funcfunctional 4 on S tional  $\varphi$  on R such that  $\varphi(x) = \varphi_o(x)$  for  $x \in S$ , and hence  $\varphi(x_o) = 1$ .

For a functional V defined on a manifold A of R, Theorem 3. in order that there is a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R such that  $\varphi(x) = Y(x)$ for every  $x \in A$ , it is necessary and sufficient that  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} x_i = 0$ ,  $x_{\nu} \in A \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa) \text{ implies } \stackrel{\sim}{\underset{\sim}{=}} 3, \Psi(x_{\nu}) = 0.$ 

As the necessity is evident, we shall prove the suffi-

ciency. Let S be the linear manifold generated by A . Then for each  $x \in S$  we can find a finite number of elements  $x_{\omega} \in A$  and real numbers  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that  $\alpha = \sum_{i=1}^{k} \alpha_{\nu} \alpha_{\nu}$ , and if

LINEAR SPACES

113

$$\mathcal{X} = \sum_{\nu=1}^{N} \alpha_{\nu} x_{\nu} = \sum_{\mu=1}^{\infty} \beta_{\mu} y_{\mu}, \quad \chi_{\nu}, y_{\mu} \in A,$$

then we have by assumption

\$44)

Accordingly, putting  $\varphi_0(z) = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \alpha_i \psi(z_i)$  for  $z = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \alpha_i \psi(z_i)$ ,  $z_i \in A$ , we obtain a linear functional  $\varphi_o$  on S such that  $\varphi_o(z) = \psi(z)$  for  $x \in A$ Furthermore there is by Theorem 1 a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R such that  $\varphi(x) = \varphi_{\varepsilon}(x)$  for  $x \in S$ , and hence  $\varphi(x) = \psi(x)$  for  $x \in A$ .

Finally we shall prove the so-called Banach's extension theorem:

Theorem 4. Let M be a functional on R such that

$$M(x+y) \leq M(x) + M(y),$$
  
 $M(dx) = dM(x) \frac{for}{} d \geq 0.$ 

For a linear functional % on a subspace S of R subject to

$$\varphi_{o}(z) \leq \mu(z)$$
 for  $z \in S$ ,

we can find a linear functional q on R such that

$$\varphi(z) = \varphi_0(x)$$
 for  $z \in S$ ,

$$\varphi(x) \leq \mu(x)$$
 for every  $x \in R$ .

We consider all linear functionals  $\mathcal{G}_{\lambda}$  on subspaces  $\mathcal{S}_{\lambda}$ Proof.  $(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  such that  $S \subset S_{\lambda}$ , and

$$\varphi_{\lambda}(x) = \varphi_{\epsilon}(x)$$
 for  $x \in S$ ,

For two elements  $\lambda_1$ ,  $\lambda_1 \in \Lambda$ , we shall write  $\mathcal{Q}_{\lambda_1} \subset \mathcal{Q}_{\lambda_2}$  if  $\mathcal{S}_{\lambda_1} \subset \mathcal{S}_{\lambda_2}$  and  $Y_{\lambda_n}(x) = Y_{\lambda_n}(x)$  for  $x \in S_{\lambda_n}$ 

By virtue of Maximal Theorem we can find a maximal system  $\Gamma \subset \Lambda$  such that for every  $\lambda_1$ ,  $\lambda_2 \in \Gamma$  we have  $\mathcal{L}_{\lambda_1} \subset \mathcal{L}_{\lambda_2}$  or  $\mathcal{L}_{\lambda_2} \subset \mathcal{L}_{\lambda_3}$ . For such a maximal system  $\Gamma$  , putting  $S_{\bullet} = \sum_{i} S_{\lambda}$  and

$$Y_{\alpha}(x) = Y_{\alpha}(x)$$
 for  $x \in S_{\lambda}$ ,  $\lambda \in \Gamma$ ,

we obtain a linear functional  $\Psi_o$  on  $S_o$  such that  $\Psi_\lambda \subset \Psi_o$  for every  $\lambda\in \Gamma$  , and hence there is  $\lambda_s\in \Gamma$  for which  $Y_s=\mathcal{Q}_{\lambda_s}$  , as  $\Gamma$  is a maximal system subject to the indicated condition. For such  $\lambda_o \in \Gamma$  , we

If there is an element  $z_o \in S_{\lambda_o}$  , then need only prove  $S_{\lambda_0} = R$ . we have for every x, 4 & SA

$$\varphi_{\lambda_0}(x) - \varphi_{\lambda_0}(y) = \varphi_{\lambda_0}(x - y) \leq \mu(x - y)$$

$$\leq \mu(x + x_0) + \mu(-y - x_0),$$

 $-\mu(-y-x_0)-y_0(y) \leq \mu(x+x_0)-y_0(x)$  for every  $x, y \in S_{\lambda_0}$ Thus we can find a real number & such that

for every x & S & . For such & , putting

for every  $x \in S_{\lambda}$ , and for every real number x, we obtain a linear functional 4 on the linear manifold generated by {SA,, X.}. Furthermore we have obviously  $\Psi(x) = \Psi_{\lambda_0}(x)$  for  $x \in S_{\lambda_0}$ ; for x > 0,

$$\psi(x+\xi x_{0}) = \varphi_{\lambda_{0}}(x) + \xi \xi \leq \varphi_{\lambda_{0}}(x) + \xi \left( \mu(\frac{1}{\xi}x+x_{0}) - \varphi_{\lambda_{0}}(\frac{1}{\xi}x) \right)$$

$$= \xi \mu(\frac{1}{\xi}x+x_{0}) = \mu(x+\xi x_{0});$$

and for 
$$\frac{1}{2} < 0$$
,  $\psi(x + \frac{1}{2}x_0) \leq \varphi_{\lambda_0}(x) + \frac{1}{2}(-\mu(-\frac{1}{2}x - x_0) - \varphi_{\lambda_0}(\frac{1}{2}x))$   
=  $\mu(x + \frac{1}{2}x_0)$ .

Thus we have 4, < 4, contradicting that f is a maximal system sub-Therefore we obtain  $S_{\lambda_0} = R$ , and ject to the indicated condition. hence 4, satisfies our requirement.

If both functionals  $\varphi$  and  $\psi$  on R are linear, then  $\alpha \varphi + \beta \psi$  also is obviously a linear functional on R for every real numbers  $\alpha$  ,  $\beta$  . Thus the totality of linear functionals on R constitutes a linear space. This linear space, composed of all linear functionals on R , is called the associated space of R and denoted by  $\widetilde{R}$  .

## §45 Finite-dimensional linear spaces

If we can find a natural number × Let R be a linear space. such that every  $\times + 1$  elements of R are not linearly independent, then R is said to be finite-dimensional, and the minimum of such x is called With this definition we see at once that if R the dimension of R . is finite-dimensional with the dimension  $\varkappa$  , then we can find  $\varkappa$  elements  $z_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that  $x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) are linearly independent, and every x & R may be represented uniquely in a form  $x = \sum_{i=1}^{K} d_{i} x_{i}$ .

LINEAR SPACES

Such a system of elements  $x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) is called a basis of R. Conversely we see easily that if R has a basis of x elements, then g is finite-dimensional with the dimension  $\varkappa$  .

If R is finite-dimensional with the dimension x. Theorem 1. then the associated space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$  also is finite-dimensional with the same dimension x .

Proof. Let  $x_i \in \mathbb{R}$   $\{\nu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa\}$  be a basis of  $\mathbb{R}$ . Putting for every real numbers  $d_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ )

$$\widetilde{\chi}_{\mu}\left(\sum_{i=1}^{n}d_{i}\chi_{\nu}\right)=d_{\mu}$$
  $(\mu=1,2,\ldots,\kappa),$ 

we obtain a basis  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}_{\nu} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) of  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$ . Because, 1f

then we have for every  $\mu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa$ 

$$d_{\mu} = \sum_{k=1}^{x} d_{k} \widetilde{\chi}_{k} (\chi_{\mu}) = 0,$$

and hence  $\tilde{z}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., x$ ) are linearly independent. Furthermore for any  $\tilde{\kappa} \in \tilde{R}$  we have for every real numbers  $d_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ )

$$\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}\left(\underset{L=1}{\overset{M}{\sum}}\,\mathcal{A}_{\nu}\,\mathcal{X}_{\nu}\right)=\underset{M=1}{\overset{M}{\sum}}\,\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}\left(\mathcal{Z}_{\mu}\right)\,\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}_{\mu}\,\left(\underset{L=1}{\overset{M}{\sum}}\,\mathcal{A}_{\nu}\,\mathcal{Z}_{\nu}\right),$$

and hence  $\widetilde{x} = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \widetilde{x}(x_{i})\widetilde{x}_{i}$ .

If R is finite-dimensional, then for any linear functional 9 on the associated space K there exists uniquely xeR such that  $\varphi(\tilde{\chi}) = \tilde{\chi}(\chi) \quad \text{for every } \tilde{\chi} \in \tilde{R}$ 

Proof. Let  $x_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) be a basis of R and  $\widetilde{x}_{\nu} \in \widetilde{R}$  $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  a basis of  $\widetilde{R}$  such that

$$\ddot{z}_{\mu}$$
  $(\sum_{\nu=1}^{n} d_{\nu} z_{\nu}) = d_{\mu}$   $(\mu = 1, 2, ..., x),$ 

as obtained in the previous Proof. Putting

$$x = \sum_{i=1}^{k} \varphi(\widetilde{x}_{i}) x_{i},$$

we have then for every real numbers  $\alpha_{m}$  ( $m=1, 2, ..., \kappa$ )

$$\sum_{\mu=1}^{\kappa} d_{\mu} \widetilde{\chi}_{\mu}(\chi) = \sum_{\mu=1}^{\kappa} d_{\mu} \widetilde{\chi}_{\mu} \left( \sum_{\nu=1}^{\kappa} \varphi(\widetilde{\chi}_{\nu}) \chi_{\nu} \right) \\
= \sum_{\mu=1}^{\kappa} d_{\mu} \varphi(\widetilde{\chi}_{\mu}) = \varphi\left( \sum_{\mu=1}^{\kappa} d_{\mu} \widetilde{\chi}_{\mu} \right),$$

and hence  $\varphi(\widetilde{x}) = \widetilde{x}(x)$  for every  $\widetilde{x} \in \widetilde{R}$ . Furthermore, if we have

 $\widetilde{\chi}(x) = \widetilde{\chi}(y)$  for every  $\widetilde{\chi} \in \widetilde{R}$ , then, putting

we obtain  $\alpha_{\nu} = \widetilde{\chi}_{\nu}(x) = \widetilde{\chi}_{\nu}(y) = \beta_{\nu}(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , and hence we conclude the uniqueness of such  $\kappa$ .

On account of Theorem 2, we see that if R is finite-dimensional, then R coincides with the associated space  $\widetilde{R}$  of the associated space  $\widetilde{R}$ , considering every  $\pi \in R$  as a linear functional on  $\widetilde{R}$  by  $\pi(\widetilde{\pi}) = \overline{\pi}(\pi) \qquad \text{for every } \widetilde{\pi} \in \widetilde{R}.$ 

Thus we conclude by Theorem 1

Theorem 3. If the associated space  $\widetilde{R}$  of R is finite-dimensional with the dimension  $\kappa$ , then R also is finite-dimensional with the same dimension  $\kappa$ .

Recalling §44 Theorem 3, we obtain by Theorem 2

Theorem 4. If R is finite-dimensional, then for a functional  $\varphi$  on a manifold  $\widetilde{A}$  of the associated space  $\widetilde{R}$ , in order that there is  $\mathbb{X} \in \mathbb{R}$  such that  $\varphi(\widetilde{X}) = \widetilde{X}(z)$  for every  $\widetilde{x} \in \widetilde{A}$ , it is necessary and sufficient that  $\sum_{i=1}^{N} \widetilde{x}_{i} \widetilde{x}_{i} = 0$ ,  $\widetilde{X}_{i} \in \widetilde{A}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times$ ) implies  $\sum_{i=1}^{N} \widetilde{x}_{i} \varphi(\widetilde{X}_{i}) = 0$ .

For the associated space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  of a linear space  $\mathcal{R}$ , a manifold  $\widetilde{\mathcal{A}}$  of  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  is said to be <u>fundamental</u>, if  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}(\mathbf{x}) = 0$  for every  $\widetilde{\mathbf{x}} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{A}}$  implies  $\mathbf{x} = 0$ . With this definition we have

Theorem 5. If a linear manifold  $\widetilde{A}$  of the associated space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  is finite-dimensional and fundamental, then  $\mathcal{R}$  is finite-dimensional and  $\widetilde{A} = \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$ .

<u>Froof.</u> Let  $\times$  be the dimension of  $\widetilde{A}$ . Then the associated space of  $\widetilde{A}$  is by Theorem 1 finite-dimensional with the dimension  $\times$  and every  $x \in R$  may be considered as a linear functional on  $\widetilde{A}$  by

 $\chi(\tilde{\chi}) = \tilde{\chi}(\chi)$  for every  $\tilde{\chi} \in \tilde{A}$ .

Thus for every  $x_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa + 1$ ) we can find real numbers  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa + 1$ ) such that  $\sum_{i=1}^{k+1} |\alpha_{\nu}| \neq 0$  and

 $\widetilde{\mathcal{X}}\left(\sum_{i=1}^{|\mathcal{X}|} d_i \chi_{i}\right) = \sum_{i=1}^{|\mathcal{X}|} d_i \chi_{i}\left(\widetilde{\chi}\right) = 0 \qquad \text{for every } \widetilde{\chi} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{A}},$  and then we have  $\sum_{i=1}^{|\mathcal{X}|} d_i \chi_{i} = 0 \text{, because } \widetilde{\mathcal{A}} \text{ is fundamental by assumption.}$ 

Therefore R is by definition finite-dimensional and its dimension is not greater than  $\varkappa$ . Accordingly  $\widetilde{R}$  also is by Theorem 1 finite-dimensional and its dimension is not greater than  $\varkappa$ . If  $\widetilde{A} \neq \widetilde{R}$ , then every  $\widetilde{\varkappa} \in \widetilde{A}$  is linearly independent from  $\widetilde{A}$ , contradicting that the dimension of  $\widetilde{R}$  is not greater than  $\varkappa$ . Thus we have  $\widetilde{A} = \widetilde{R}$ .

#### \$46 Quotient spaces

Let R be a linear space and A a linear manifold of R . For two elements  $\kappa$  ,  $\kappa$   $\in$  R we define

(45, (46)

to mean  $x-y \in A$ . With this definition we have obviously  $x \in x$  (A).

x = y(A) implies y = x(A),

x=y, y=z(A) implies x=z(A).

A manifold  $\chi$  of R is called a <u>residue class</u> by A , if we have

 $X = \{z : z \equiv z, (A)\}$  for every  $z, \in X$ .

Concerning residue classes, we see easily by definition that corresponding to each  $x \in R$  there exists uniquely a residue class  $x \ni x$  by A and for every residue classes  $x \ni x$  by A we have x = 0 or x = y. A is obviously itself a residue class by A containing  $\theta$ .

Since  $x_1 \equiv x_2$ ,  $y_1 \equiv y_2$  (A) implies

 $dx_i + \beta y_i = dx_i + \beta y_i$  (A)

for every real numbers of,  $\beta$ , we see that for every residue classes  $\times$ , Y by A and for every real numbers of,  $\beta$  we can find uniquely a residue class Z by A such that  $x \in \times$ ,  $y \in Y$  implies of  $x + \beta y \in Z$ . Such a residue class Z will be denoted by of  $X + \beta Y$ . Then we see easily that the totality of residue classes by A constitutes a linear space. This linear space is called a quotient space of R by a linear manifold A and denoted by R / A. The residue class A is obviously the zero element of R / A. Furthermore we have obviously

(1)  $A + x \in R/A$  for every  $x \in R$ ,

- $(A+x)\times(A+y)=A+(x+y),$
- (3)
- A + x = X for  $x \in X \in R/A$ . (4)

Putting  $\alpha(x) = A + x$ , we obtain a mapping of R onto the quotient This mapping on will be a quotient mapping of R by A. space R / A . For the quotient mapping  $\alpha$  of R by A, the image  $\alpha$  ( $\sigma$ ) of a manifold extstyle extfold  $\nabla$  of  $R \neq A$  by  $\nabla$  A. Then we have obviously for every manifold TO of R.

- $(\nabla/A)^A = \nabla x A$ .  $\nabla/A = (\nabla x A)/A$ . (5) Furthermore we see easily by definition
  - $(\nabla \times \nabla)/A = (\nabla/A) \times (\nabla/A),$ (6)
  - $\alpha \sigma / A = \alpha (\sigma / A)$ (7)
  - $(\nabla \dot{+} \nabla)/A = (\nabla/A) \dot{+} (\nabla/A),$ (8)
  - $\nabla \nabla / A \in (\nabla / A)(\nabla / A)$ (9)
  - TOV implies U/A DV/A. (10)

There exists a mapping on of a quotient space R/A Theorem 1. into R such that a(x) ex for every x e R/A and

$$\alpha(\alpha X + \beta Y) = \alpha \alpha(X) + \beta \alpha(Y)$$
.

By virtue of Maximal Theorem, we see easily that there Proof. is a maximal system of residue classes  $X_{\lambda} \in R/A$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) subject to the condition that the manifold  $X_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) is linearly independent. Furthermore we obtain by Choice Axiom a system of elements  $x_{\lambda} \in X_{\lambda}(\lambda \in A)$ . Then, we conclude easily that for each  $X \in R / A$  we can find uniquely a system of real numbers  $d_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) such that  $d_{\lambda} = 0$  except for a finite number of A and

Thus, putting  $\alpha(x) = \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \alpha_{\lambda} x_{\lambda}$  for  $X = \sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \alpha_{\lambda} x_{\lambda}$ , we have  $\alpha(x) \in X$ for every  $X \in R/A$  , and for  $Y = \sum_{\lambda \in A} \beta_{\lambda} \times_{\lambda}$ 

$$\alpha(\alpha x + \beta y) = \alpha(\sum_{\lambda \in \Lambda} (\alpha \alpha_{\lambda} + \beta \beta_{\lambda}) X_{\lambda})$$

$$=\sum_{\lambda\in\Lambda}(\alpha\alpha_{\lambda}+\beta\beta_{\lambda})\chi_{\lambda}=\alpha\alpha(\chi)+\beta\alpha(Y).$$

Every functional  $\varphi$  on R /A may be considered as a functional on

R by the relation

§46)

 $\varphi(\pi) = \varphi(X)$  for  $\pi \in X \in R/A$ .

Then we have obviously  $\varphi(x) = \varphi(y)$  for  $x - y \in A$ . Conversely, if a functional 4 on R satisfies

LINEAR SPACES

$$\varphi(x) = \varphi(y)$$
 for  $x - y \in A$ ,

then we see that  $m{arphi}$  may be considered as a functional on the quotient space R/A by the relation

$$\varphi(X) = \varphi(X)$$
 for  $X \in X \in R/A$ .

If a functional  $\Psi$  on the quotient space R / A is linear, then  $\Psi$ also is obviously linear as a functional on R . Conversely, if a linear functional 4 on R satisfies

$$\varphi(x) = 0$$
 for every  $x \in A$ ,

then we see easily that  $\varphi$  also is linear as a functional on the quotient space R / A . Therefore we have

Theorem 2. For a linear manifold A of R, the manifold of the associated space R

$$\{\widetilde{x}: \widetilde{x}(z)=0 \text{ for every } z \in A\}$$

coincides with the associated space R/A of the quotient space R/A as functionals on R/A.

For a finite number of elements  $\widetilde{x}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \times$ ) Theorem 3. of the associated space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  , if we put

$$A = \{x : \widehat{x}_{\nu}(x) = 0 \text{ for all } \nu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa\}.$$

then the quotient space R / A is finite-dimensional and the associated space R/A of R/A coincides with the linear manifold generated by  $\widetilde{\chi}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1$ , q,...,  $\kappa$ ) as functionals on R/A.

Let B be the linear manifold generated by  $\widetilde{\chi}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2$ ,  $\ldots, \kappa$ ). Then  $\beta$  is obviously finite-dimensional. Furthermore B is fundamental as functionals on R/A. Because, for a residue class  $X \in R/A$ , if  $\widetilde{X}(X) = 0$  for every  $\widetilde{X} \in B$ , then we have

$$\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}_{\nu}(x) = 0$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ...,$  and  $x \in X$ ,

and hence A = X. Therefore R / A is by §45 Theorem 5 finite-dimensional and its associated space coincides with B as functionals on R/A.

Theorem 4. For a finite number of linear functionals  $\varphi_{\nu}$  on R and real numbers  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,2,\ldots,\times$ ), in order that we can find  $x\in R$  such that  $\varphi_{\nu}(x)=\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,2,\ldots,\times$ ), it is necessary and sufficient that  $\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2} \varphi_{k} = 0$  implies  $\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2} \varphi_{k} = 0$ .

Proof. As the necessity is evident, we need only prove the sufficiency. Putting  $A = \{x : \mathcal{R}_{\ell}(x) = 0 \text{ for every } \nu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa^2\}$ , we obtain a linear manifold A of R and the quotient space  $R \neq A$  is finite-dimensional by Theorem 3. Thus there is by §45 Theorem 4 a residue class  $X \in R \neq A$  such that  $\mathcal{R}_{\ell}(X) = \mathcal{L}_{\ell}$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa$ , and then for an element  $X \in X$  we have obviously  $\mathcal{R}_{\ell}(X) = \mathcal{L}_{\ell}$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa$ .

#### \$47 Product spaces

Let R and S be two linear spaces. The totality of pairs of elements (x, y) for  $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$  is called the <u>product space</u> of R and S and denoted by (R, S). We define of  $(x_i, y_i) + \beta(x_i, y_i)$  to mean

 $\alpha(x_i,y_i)+\beta(x_2,y_2)=(\alpha x_i+\beta x_2,\alpha y_i+\beta y_2)$  for every real numbers  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$ . Then we see easily that the product space (R,S) also is a linear space.

For manifolds A of R and B of S we define (A,B) to mean a manifold of the product space (R,S) composed of all (Z,Z) for  $Z \in A$ ,  $Y \in B$ . With this definition we see at once that if both A and B are linear, then (A,B) also is linear.

For two linear spaces R and S , if there is a transformation  $\alpha$  from R to S such that

$$\alpha(\alpha x + \beta y) = \alpha(\alpha) + \beta \alpha(y)$$

for every  $x, y \in R$  and real numbers  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$ , then R is said to be isomorphic to S by a transformation  $\alpha$ , and such a transformation  $\alpha$  is called a <u>linear transformation</u>.

With this definition, it is obvious that the linear manifold  $(\{o\},S)$  of the product space (R,S) is isomorphic to S by the transformation:

(0, y) -> y &S.

LINEAR SPACES

Similarly the linear manifold (R,  $\{o\}$ ) is isomorphic to R by the transformation:  $(x, o) \rightarrow x \in \mathbb{R}$ .

Theorem 1. The quotient space  $(R,S)/(fo\},S)$  is isomorphic to R by the transformation:  $(\{z\},S) \rightarrow z \in R$ .

<u>Proof.</u> For each  $x \in R$ ,  $(\{x\}, S)$  is obviously by definition a residue class of (R, S) by the linear manifold  $(\{o\}, S)$ . Thus we see further that the indicated transformation is a linear transformation from  $(R, S)/(\{o\}, S)$  to R.

A linear space R is said to be <u>isomorphic</u> to a linear space S , if there is a linear transformation by which R is isomorphic to S .

Theorem 2. For a linear manifold A of a linear space R, there is a linear transformation  $\alpha$  from the product space (R/A, A) to R such that  $\alpha((B/A, A)) = B \times A$  for every  $B \in R$ .

<u>Proof.</u> On account of §46 Theorem 1 there is a mapping  $\alpha_o$  of R/A into R such that  $\alpha_o(\chi) \in \chi$  for every  $\chi \in R/A$  and

$$n_o(\alpha \times + \beta Y) = \alpha n_o(x) + \beta n_o(Y).$$

Then, corresponding to every pair (x,y) for  $x \in R/A$ ,  $y \in A$  we obtain uniquely an element  $a_*(x)+y \in R$ . Conversely, for each  $z \in R$  we have  $A+z \in R/A$ ,  $a_*(A+z) \in A+x$ , and hence  $a_*(A+z)-x \in A$ . Thus, putting  $y=a_*(A+z)-x$ , we obtain

$$x = \sigma_0(A+x)+y$$
,  $A+x \in R/A$ ,  $y \in A$ .

Therefore, putting  $\alpha((x,y)) = \alpha_0(x) + y$ , we obtain a mapping  $\alpha$  of (R/A,A) onto R. This mapping  $\alpha$  is a transformation. Because, if

 $\alpha_o(X_1) + j_i = \alpha_o(X_2) + j_2, \quad X_1, X_2 \in R/A, \quad j_1, j_2 \in A,$  then we have  $\alpha_o(X_1) - \alpha_o(X_2) = j_2 - j_1 \in A, \text{ and hence } X_1 = X_2, \text{ as } \alpha_o(X_1) \in X_1,$   $\alpha_o(X_2) \in X_4. \quad \text{Furthermore } \alpha \text{ is linear, because we have}$ 

$$\begin{split} \alpha \left( \, \angle \, (\, \mathsf{X}_{1}, \, \mathsf{y}_{1}) + \beta \, (\, \mathsf{X}_{2}, \, \mathsf{y}_{2}) \, \right) &= \alpha \, (\, (\, \mathsf{A} \, \mathsf{X}_{1} + \beta \, \mathsf{X}_{2}, \, \mathsf{A} \, \mathsf{y}_{1} + \beta \, \mathsf{y}_{2} \, )) \\ &= \alpha_{0} \, (\, \mathsf{A} \, \mathsf{X}_{1} + \beta \, \mathsf{X}_{2}) + \mathsf{A} \, \mathsf{y}_{1} + \beta \, \mathsf{y}_{2} \, = \, \mathsf{A} \, (\, \alpha_{0} \, (\, \mathsf{X}_{1}) + \mathsf{y}_{1}) + \beta \, (\, \alpha_{0} \, (\, \mathsf{X}_{2}) + \mathsf{y}_{2}) \\ &= \, \mathsf{A} \, \alpha \, (\, (\, \mathsf{X}_{1}, \, \mathsf{y}_{1})) \, + \beta \, \alpha \, (\, (\, \mathsf{X}_{2}, \, \mathsf{y}_{2})) \, . \end{split}$$

As  $m_o(x) \in X$ , we have for every  $B \subset R$  $m((B/A, A)) = m_o(B/A) \times A = B \times A.$ 

(48)

## CHAPTER VII VICINITIES

## §48 Fundamental definitions

Let R be a linear space. A manifold V of R is called a vicinity, if for any  $x \in R$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that

$$Ez \in V$$
 for  $0 \le \xi \le V$ .

With this definition we see that every vicinity V contains the zero ele-For a vicinity extstyle extstylea vicinity by definition, and d  $\nabla$  also is a vicinity for every real number  $cl \neq 0$ , because for any  $x \in R$  we can find by definition l' > 0 such that  $\xi(Jx)\in V$  for  $0\leq \xi\leq \delta$ , and hence  $\xi x\in \mathcal{AV}$  for  $0\leq \xi\leq \delta$ . For two vicinities  $\nabla$ , and  $\nabla_2$ , the intersection  $\nabla$ ,  $\nabla_2$  also is a vicinity, because, if  $\xi x \in V$ , for  $0 \le \xi \le \delta$ , and  $\xi x \in V_2$  for  $0 \le \xi \le \delta_2$ , then we have  $\xi z \in V_1 V_2$  for  $0 \le \xi \le Min \{\delta_1, \delta_2\}$ .

A manifold V is said to be <u>symmetric</u>, if (-1) V = V. fold  $\nabla$  is called a star, if  $\xi \nabla \subset \nabla$  for  $0 \le \xi \le 1$ . With this definition we see easily that for an arbitrary manifold  $\nabla$ ,((-1) $\nabla$ ) $\nabla$  is symmetric,  $\sum_{0 \le \frac{\pi}{4} < d} \frac{\pi}{2} V$  is a star, and  $\sum_{|\xi| < d} \frac{\pi}{2} V$  is a symmetric star for every positive number of .

A star V is said to be scalar-open, 1f

A star V is said to be scalar-closed, if

With this definition we see easily that a star V is scalar-open, if and only if for any  $x \in V$  we can find a positive number  $\xi$  such that we have (1+2)  $\times$   $\in$  V ; and a star V is scalar-closed, if and only if for any  $z \in V$  we can find a positive number  $\xi < 1$  such that  $(1-\xi)z \in V$ . Thus for an arbitrary star  $\nabla$ ,  $\sum_{0 \leq \frac{1}{2} < \infty} \frac{\xi}{\xi} \nabla$  is scalar-open, and  $\prod_{k > \infty} \xi \nabla$ is scalar-closed for every positive number  $\propto$  .

A vicinity V is said to be of <u>finite character</u>, if we can find a positive number & such that

ATXMT COT for A+M=1, A,M &O. and the greatest lower bound of such & is called the character of V .

If a vicinity V is not of finite character, then the character of V is defined as + co .

If a vicinity v is of finite character and scalar-Theorem 1. open or scalar-closed, then we have for its character X

We have by the definition of character X that we can Proof. find a number sequence  $\beta_{\nu} > 1$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\lim_{\rho \to 1} \beta_{\nu} = 1$  and for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

ATXMTCXPT for A+MZ1, A,MZ0. and hence by the formula \$43(18)

入言マ×miマCXマ for A+mal, A,MBO.

If V is scalar-closed, then we have by the formula §43(14)

$$\lambda \nabla \times \mu \nabla < \tilde{\pi} \times R \nabla = \times \tilde{\pi} R \nabla = \times \nabla$$

If V is scalar-open, then we obtain by the formulas (3), (13) in §43

$$\lambda \nabla \times \mu \nabla = \left( \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \lambda_{i,i}^{\perp} \nabla \right) \times \left( \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \mu_{i,i}^{\perp} \nabla \right) \subset \times \nabla.$$

We must remark that if the character X of a vicinity V is less Because, if  $\chi < 1$ , then we can find a positive then 1. then  $\nabla = R$ . number f<1 such that f v > f v x f v > v . Thus we have v > f v for every  $\nu = 1$ , 2,..., and hence we conclude  $\nabla = R$  by the definition of vicinities. A vicinity V with the character X & 1 is said to be convex.

Every convex vicinity is a star. Theorem 2.

If a vicinity V is convex, then we can find a number sequence  $f_{\nu} \ge i$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\lim_{n \to \infty} f_{\nu} = 1$  and

AVXMV CRV for A+M=1, A,M &O.

Consequently we have  $\lambda \nabla \in \beta \nabla$  for  $0 \le \lambda \le 1$  and  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$  Thus we conclude  $\lambda \, \nabla \subset \nabla$  for  $0 \le \lambda < 1$ , and hence  $\nabla$  is a star by definition.

If a convex vicinity V is scalar-open or scalar-Theorem 3. closed, then we have for every finite number of positive numbers de

 $(\varkappa = 1, 2, \ldots, \varkappa)$ 

 $d_1 \nabla \times d_2 \nabla \times \cdots \times d_{\times} \nabla = (d_1 + d_2 + \cdots + d_{\times}) \nabla$ 

If a convex vicinity  $oldsymbol{
abla}$  is scalar-open or scalar-closed, Proof. then we have by Theorem 1

$$\lambda \nabla \times \mu \nabla = \nabla$$
 for  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda$ ,  $\mu \ge 0$ .

Thus we have for positive numbers  $\alpha$  ,  $\beta$  by the formula  $~\S43(18)$ 

$$\alpha \nabla \times \beta \nabla = (\alpha + \beta) \left( \frac{\alpha}{\alpha + \beta} \nabla \times \frac{\beta}{\alpha + \beta} \nabla \right) = (\alpha + \beta) \nabla.$$

Furthermore we obtain easily our assertion by the inductior.

If a symmetric vicinity V is of finite character, then T t V is a linear manifold.

Recalling the formula \$43(18), we see easily that if a vicinity  $\nabla$  is of finite character, then there is a positive number  $\alpha$ such that  $\nabla \times \nabla \subset \alpha \nabla$ , and hence  $\times$ ,  $y \in \prod_{\frac{1}{2}>0} \mathbb{F} \nabla$  implies

As  $\nabla$  is symmetric by assumption,  $z \in \mathcal{T} \in \nabla$  implies by §48(14)

 $\alpha \times \in \prod_{\frac{5}{5}>0} \frac{1}{5} \times \nabla = \prod_{\frac{5}{5}>0} \frac{1}{5} \nabla = \{0\}.$ A vicinity  $\nabla$  is said to be proper, if  $\prod_{\frac{5}{5}>0} \frac{1}{5} \nabla = \{0\}.$ 

### §49 Pseudo-norms

A functional || x || on R is called a Let R be a linear space. pseudo-norm on R , if MXH & 0 for every XER , and

 $\|\xi\chi\| = |\xi|\|\chi\|$  for every real number  $\xi$ . A pseudo-norm  $\|x\|$  (  $x \in R$  ) is said to be proper, if  $\|x\| = \theta$  implies A pseudo-norm ||x|| (  $x \in R$  ) is said to be of finite character, if there is a positive number & such that we have

for every x,  $y \in R$ , and then the greatest lower bound of such  $\propto$  is If a pseudo-norm ||x|| is not of finite called the character of || X ||. character, then its character is defined as  $+\infty$  . For the character K of a pseudo-norm || x ii we have obviously by definition

for every x,  $y \in \mathbb{R}$ . It is evident by definition that  $x \ge 1$ . pecially, if x = 1, then a pseudo-norm (x, t) is said to be convex. pseudo-norm is said to be a norm, if it is proper and convex.

If a pseudo-norm ||x|| on R is of finite character with the character  $\chi$ , then for every positive number  $\propto$ ,

is a symmetric scalar-closed vicinity with the same character X , and 17: 11×11 < × }

Putting  $\nabla = \{x : ||x|| \le d\}$ , we have obviously that  $x \in \nabla$ implies  $-\alpha \in V$ , that is, V is symmetric. If  $\alpha \in V$ , then  $\|\alpha\| > \alpha$ , and hence there is a positive number & such that

$$\|\xi \chi\| = \xi \|\chi\| > d$$
 for  $\xi > 1-\varepsilon$ .

that is,  $\xi x \in \nabla$  for  $\xi > 1 - \xi$ . Thus  $\nabla$  is a symmetric scalar-closed Furthermore we see easily that V is a vicinity.

For a positive number X , if

§48, §49)

 $||x+y|| \le \chi(||x||+||y||)$  for every  $z, y \in R$ ,

then  $x, y \in V$  implies for  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda, \mu \ge 0$ 

and hence  $\lambda \nabla \times \mu \nabla \subset \chi \nabla$  , because

Conversely, if x, ¥ ∈ ∇ implies

$$\lambda x + \mu y \in XV$$
 for  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda, \mu \geq 0$ ,

then for any  $x, y \in \mathbb{R}$ ,  $\|x\| \neq 0$ ,  $\|y\| \neq 0$ , we have  $\frac{\alpha}{\|x\|} x$ ,  $\frac{\alpha}{\|x\|} y \in \mathbb{V}$ and hence, putting

$$\lambda = \frac{\|x\|}{\|x\| + \|y\|}, \quad \mu = \frac{\|y\|}{\|x\| + \|y\|},$$

we obtain  $\frac{d}{\|x\| + \|y\|} (x + y) \in X \nabla$ . This relation yields

In the case, where  $||x|| \neq 0$ , ||y|| = 0, we have obviously  $\xi y \in \nabla$ for every  $\xi > 0$  , and hence, putting

$$\lambda = \frac{\|\chi\|}{\|\chi\| + \frac{\xi}{\xi}}, \quad M = \frac{\frac{\xi}{\|\chi\| + \frac{\xi}{\xi}}}{\|\chi\| + \frac{\xi}{\xi}},$$

we obtain likewise || x + y || ≤ x (||x|| + ξ) for every ξ > 0 , which yields

(Chapter VII

11元十月11至 又 11元11.

We also can dispose likewise the case where  $\|x\| = \|y\| = 0$ . the character of V coincides by definition with that of the pseudo-norm We also can prove likewise our assertion about  $\{x : ||x|| < \alpha\}$ .

LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES

Let V be a symmetric star vicinity. Putting

Because, it is evident that we we obtain a pseudo-norm ||x|| on R. have  $\|x\| \ge 0$  for every  $x \in R$  , and for every real number  $\propto$ 

 $\|\alpha x\| = \inf_{\substack{\alpha x \in \S V}} |\S| = \inf_{\substack{x \in \S V}} |\alpha \S| = |\alpha| \|x\|.$ 

This pseudo-norm  $\|x\|$  is called the pseudo-norm of V and denoted by  $\|x\|_{V}$ . that is,

- $\|\mathbf{x}\|_{\mathbf{V}} = \inf_{\mathbf{x} \in \mathbf{v}} \|\mathbf{x}\|_{\mathbf{v}}$ With this definition we have obviously
- {x: ||x||<sub>v</sub> < d} C d V C {x: ||x||<sub>v</sub> ≤ d} for d>0. Furthermore we see easily that we have
  - 11x112 = + 11x110,
  - ∇ ⊂ ∇ implies || z || σ ≧ || z || σ ;
- V × V ⊂ V implies Max { || x || v , || y || v } ≧ || x + y || v . Because, if  $\nabla \times \nabla \subset \nabla$ , then we have

$$||x+y||_{\nabla} = \inf_{\substack{x+y \in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ x\neq y \in \mathbb{F}\nabla}} ||x|| \leq \inf_{\substack{x+y \in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ x\neq y \in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ x\neq y \in \mathbb{F}\nabla}} ||x|| \leq \inf_{\substack{x \in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ x\in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ y \in \mathbb{F}\nabla}} ||x|| \leq \inf_{\substack{x \in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ x\in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ y \in \mathbb{F}\nabla}} ||x|| \leq \inf_{\substack{x \in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ x\in \mathbb{F}\nabla \\ x\in$$

The character of a symmetric star vicinity V coin-Theorem 2. Consequently, the pseudocides with that of the pseudo-norm of  ${f V}$  . norm of V is convex, if and only if V is convex.

Proof. Let  $\chi_s$  be the character of the pseudo-norm  $\|x\|_{\Psi}$  of V. If  $\lambda \nabla \times \mu \nabla \subset \chi \nabla$  for  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda, \mu \ge 0$ , then we obtain by the formula (2) that  $||x||_{\Psi}$ ,  $||y||_{\Psi} < 1$  implies

for  $\lambda+\mu=1$ ,  $\lambda,\mu\geq0$ , 11'2×ナルゲー 至义

and hence the character of  $\{x: \|x\|_{\psi} \leq 1\}$  is not greater than x. Thus we obtain by Theorem 1  $\chi \geq \chi_o$ , and consequently the character of  $\forall$  is not less than  $\chi_{\circ}$ . On the other hand, if  $\chi_{\circ} < +\infty$ , then the character of  $\{x: \|x\|_{\Psi} \le 1\}$  coincides by Theorem 1 with  $X_o$  , and we see by the formula (2) and §48 Theorem 1 that x,  $y \in V$  implies

"ILXX+MYK & Xo for X+M=1, X, M & 0,

which yields  $\lambda \cdot \nabla \times_{\mathcal{M}} \nabla \subset \mathcal{X}_{\alpha}(i+\epsilon) \nabla$  for every  $\epsilon > 0$ , because we have by the formula (2)

VICINITIES

{x: ||x || + ≤ 1 | C {x: ||x || + < 1+ € } C (1+ €) V.

Thus we conclude that the character of V is not greater than X., as we wish to prove.

We have obviously by definition the following two theorems:

If a symmetric vicinity V is scalar-closed, then we Theorem 3. have for at >0

and if  $\nabla$  is scalar-open, then we have for  $\alpha > 0$ 

 $dV = \{X: ||X||_{\infty} < \alpha\}.$ 

Theorem 4. The pseudo-norm ||x|| of a symmetric star vicinity V is proper, if and only if V is proper.

### \$50 Quasi-norm

A functional MXM on R is called a quasi-norm, if

- MxM≥0 for every x∈R
- |d|≤|β| implies MαxM≤ MβxM,
- 3) 川又十岁川 益 川又川十川火川。
- $\lim_{k\to 0} \| \xi \chi \| = 0.$

We conclude immediately from 2) that  $\|x\| = \|-x\|$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ . On account of 3) we have hence for every real numbers  $\approx$  ,  $\beta$ 

| 川以太川 - 川乃太川 | 至 川(スーβ) 太川.

Therefore we see that III & x III is a continuous function of & for every  $x \in R$ , and consequently ||| o ||| = 0 by 4). A quasi-norm ||| x ||| is saidto be proper, if ||x|| = 0 implies x = 0.

For a quasi-norm ||| x ||| on R and for every & > 0 Theorem 1.  $\{x: ||x|| < \alpha\}$ 

is a scalar-closed symmetric vicinity, and

(Chapter VII

§50)

{ x : □ x m < x }

# is a scalar-open symmetric vicinity.

Putting  $\nabla = \{x : |||x|| \le \alpha\}$ , it is evident that  $\nabla$  is symmetric. If  $x \in V$ , then we have naturally  $\mathbb{H} \times \mathbb{H} > \alpha$ . Proof. II  $\xi \times II$  is a non-decreasing continuous function of  $\xi \ge 0$  , as proved just above, there is a positive number  $\xi$  such that

Therefore V is scalar-closed by definition. On account of 4), for every  $x \in R$  we can find f > 0 such that  $\|f_{x}\| \le d$  for  $0 \le f \le f$ , and hence  $\nabla$  is a vicinity. We also can prove likewise the other assertion about {x: ||x||| < x}.

On account of 3) we have obviously

A quasi-norm # x N is said to be of finite character, if we can find positive numbers of, & such that

If a quasi-norm ||| x || 1s of finite character, then Theorem 2. we can find a positive number of such that the characters of

are bounded for 0 < \$ \leq \lambda .

If WX M is of finite character, then we can find by de-Proof. finition positive numbers & , & such that

$$\frac{1}{2}\|x\| \ge \|\frac{x}{2}x\| \qquad \text{for } \|x\| \le \alpha.$$

Hence, if  $\|\chi\|$ ,  $\|y\| \le \frac{5}{2} \le d$  and  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda$ ,  $\mu \ge 0$ , then we have by the postulates 2) and 3)

Consequently, putting  $\nabla_{\xi} = \{ \chi : \| \| \chi \| \le \xi \}$ , we have for  $0 < \xi \le \alpha$ 

$$\lambda \nabla_{\xi} \times \mu \nabla_{\xi} \subset \frac{2}{5} \nabla_{\xi} \quad \text{for } \lambda + \mu = 1, \ \lambda, \mu \ge 0.$$

Therefore the character of  $V_{\xi}$  is not greater than  $\frac{2}{\delta}$  for every positive number 를 들어. We also can prove likewise the other assertion about the character of  $\{x : ||x|| < \xi\}$ .

For a sequence of symmetric star vicinities  $\nabla_{\nu}$  ( $\nu =$ Theorem 3. 1, 2, ...) such that

$$\begin{array}{lll} \nabla_{\nu} \supset \nabla_{\nu+1} \times \nabla_{\nu+1} & \int_{\underline{for}} \nu = 1, 2, \dots, \\ & \nabla_{\nu}^{0} = \{0\}, & \nabla_{\nu}^{1} = \nabla_{\nu} & (\nu = 1, 2, \dots), \\ & \nabla_{re} = \nabla_{i}^{\epsilon_{1}} \times \nabla_{2}^{\epsilon_{2}} \times \dots \times \nabla_{\kappa}^{\epsilon_{\kappa}}, \\ & \tau = \sum_{\nu=1}^{\kappa} \frac{\ell_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}}, & \ell_{\nu} = 0, 1, \\ & \nabla_{\tau} = R & \underline{for} & \tau \geq 1, \end{array}$$

MIM = inf \( \tau \) for every x & R,

we obtain a quasi-norm MxM on R such that MxM ≤ 1 for every x ∈ R and we have for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

$$\left\{\,\varkappa\,:\,\,\mathfrak{m}\,\varkappa\,\mathfrak{m}\,<\,\frac{1}{2^{\nu}}\,\,\right\}\,\subset\,\,\mathbb{V}_{\nu}\,\subset\,\left\{\,\varkappa\,:\,\,\,\mathfrak{m}\,\varkappa\,\mathfrak{m}\,\leqq\,\frac{1}{2^{\nu}}\,\,\right\}\,,$$

From the construction of Mx N we conclude immediately Proof. o≤ ||x||≤ i for every x ∈ R,

$$\{z: \|z\| < \frac{1}{2^{\nu}}\} \subset \nabla_{\nu} \subset \{z: \|z\| \le \frac{1}{2^{\nu}}\} \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, \ldots).$$
 As every  $\nabla_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) is a symmetric star,  $\nabla_{\tau}$  also is a symmetric

star for every  $\tau > 0$  , and hence, if  $0 \neq |\alpha| \leq |\beta|$ , then  $\beta \not = \mathcal{U}_{\tau}$  implies  $dx \in U_{\tau}$ . Thus we have that  $|\alpha| \le |\beta|$  implies  $||\alpha x|| \le ||\beta x||$ .

For 
$$\tau = \sum_{\nu=1}^{K} \frac{\xi_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}}$$
,  $\tau' = \sum_{\nu=1}^{K} \frac{\xi'_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}}$  we have obviously

$$\overline{U_\tau \times U_\tau}, = (\overline{V_i}^{\xi_i} \times \overline{V_i}^{\xi_i'}) \times \cdots \times (\overline{V_\kappa}^{\xi_\kappa} \times \overline{V_\kappa^{\xi_\kappa'}}) \subset \overline{U_{\tau + \tau'}}.$$
 Thus we obtain

For every  $x \in R$  and  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ , we can find by the definition of vicinities  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $\xi \times \in V_{\nu}$  for  $0 \le \xi \le \alpha$  and hence

$$\|\xi \times \| \leq \frac{1}{2^{\nu}} \quad \text{for } 0 \leq \xi \leq \alpha.$$

Accordingly we have  $\lim_{n\to\infty} \|\xi_x\| = 0$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ . Therefore  $\|x\|$ is a quasi-norm on R.

If a symmetric star vicinity V is of finite charact-Theorem 4. cr and AV XMV CXV for A+M=1, A,M & 0, then there is a quasi-norm | x | on R such that

1.30

Putting  $\nabla_{\nu} = \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{\nu}} \nabla (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ , we have obviously Proof.

 $\nabla_{\nu+1} \times \nabla_{\nu+1} = \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{\nu+1}} \left( \nabla \times \nabla \right) < \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{\nu}} \nabla = \nabla_{\nu}.$ 

Therefore we obtain a quasi-norm  ${\bf H} \times {\bf H} {\bf I}$  , as described in Theorem 3, and we have for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ 

 $\{x: \|x\| < \frac{1}{2^{\nu}}\} < \frac{1}{(2x)^{\nu}} \forall < \{x: \|x\| \le \frac{1}{2^{\nu}}\}.$ 

Furthermore, as we have for T < 1/2

2x 
$$\nabla_{\tau} = 2x \nabla_{x}^{\varepsilon_{x}} \times \dots \times 2x \nabla_{x}^{\varepsilon_{x}}$$
  
=  $\nabla_{x}^{\varepsilon_{x}} \times \dots \times \nabla_{x-1}^{\varepsilon_{x}} = \nabla_{x}^{\varepsilon_{x}}$ ,

we obtain for MXM < 1

btain for 
$$\|X\| < \frac{1}{2}$$

$$\|\frac{1}{2X}X\| = \inf_{x \in 2XU_x} T = \inf_{x \in 2XU_x} T = \frac{1}{2} \|x\|.$$
For a quasi-norm  $\|X\|$  on  $R$ , putting

$$m(x,y) = \|x-y\|$$

we obtain a quasi-metric m on R. This quasi-metric m is called the induced quasi-metric by a quasi-norm # x # on R. is said to be complete by a quasi-norm M × M on R, if A is complete by the induced quasi-metric, that is, if  $\lim_{\nu,\mu\to\infty} \|x_{\nu}-x_{\mu}\|=0$  implies 11m | | 21 - 21 = 0

A quasi-norm axa on R is said to be complete, if R is complete by it.

## \$51. Relative vicinities

For a vici-Let S be a limear manifold of a linear space R. nity  $\nabla$  in R, putting  $\nabla^S = S \nabla$  we obtain a vicinity  $\nabla^S$  in the subspace This vicinity VS is called the relative vicinity of V in the Concerning relative vicinities we have obviously

If a vicinity V is symmetric, scalar-closed, scalarsubspace S. open, or a star, then its relative vicinity VS also is so respectively. Furthermore we conclude easily by definition

The character of the relative vicinity V's is not Consequently, if a vicinity V is convex, Theorem 2. greater than that of V . then the relative vicinity VS of V also is so for every subspace S Every pseudo-norm on R may be considered obviously as a pseudo-

VICINITIES norm on a subspace S . In this sense, we have obviously by definition

Theorem 3. The pseudo-norm axa of a symmetric star vicinity w coincides with the pseudo-norm | x | gs of the relative vicinity v a in a subspace S, that is, ||x|| = ||x|| TS for every x & S.

The image V/S of a vicinity V by the quotient mapping of R onto the quotient space R / S is obviously by definition a vicinity in the quotient space R/S. This vicinity V/S is called the relative vicinity of V in the quotient space R/S.

Concerning relative vicinities in a quotient space, we obtain immediately by definition

Theorem 4. If a vicinity V is symmetric, scalar-open, scalarclosed, or a star, then its relative vicinity V/S in a quotient space R /S also is so respectively.

Furthermore we conclude easily by definition

Theorem 5. The character of the relative vicinity 7/S in a quotient space R /S is not greater than that of V. Consequently, if a vicinity of is convex, then the relative vicinity of /s also is so.

For a pseudo-norm || X || on R . putting

$$\|X\| = \inf_{z \in X} \|z\|$$
 for  $x \in R/S$ ,

we obtain a pseudo-norm  $|| \times ||$  on the quotient space R / S. Beckuse we have obviously  $||X|| \ge 0$  for every  $X \in R/S$ , and

 $\|dX\| = \inf_{x \in dX} \|x\| = \inf_{x \in X} \|dx\| = \|d\| \inf_{x \in X} \|x\| = \|d\|\|X\|$ for every real number of  $\Rightarrow 0$ . This pseudo-norm  $\| \times \|$  on the quotient space R/S is called the relative pseudo-norm of WXW in R/S.

Theorem 6. The character of the relative pseudo-norm NXN of a pseudo-norm ||x|| in a quotient space R/S is not greater than that of 121 . Consequently the relative pseudo-norm of a convex pseudo-norm is convex too.

If  $||x+y|| \le \chi(||x|| + ||y||)$  for every  $x, y \in R$ , then Proof. we have by definition

$$\| \times + Y \| = \inf \| \| x \| \le \inf \| \| x + y \|$$
 $x \in X + Y$ 
 $x \in X, y \in Y$ 
 $x \in X, y \in$ 

(Chapter VII

For a symmetric star vicinity V in R, the relative 3.32 pseudo-norm of the pseudo-norm ||x || of V in a quotient space R / S coincides with the pseudo-norm of the relative vicinity V/S in R/B, that is, we have  $\|X\|_{\Psi} = \|X\|_{\Psi/S}$  for  $X \in R/S$ .

Recalling the formulas (5) and (7) in §46, we obtain by Proof.  $\|X\|_{\nabla} = \inf_{x \in X} \|x\|_{\nabla} = \inf_{x \in \nabla} \left(\inf_{x \in E^{\nabla}} |E|\right)$ definition  $= \inf_{\mathbf{X} \subset (\S \forall) \times S} |\S| = \inf_{\mathbf{X} \in \S(\forall f S)} |\S| = \|\mathbf{X}\|_{\forall f S}.$ 

## §52 Adjoint norms

For a linear func-Let V be a vicinity in a linear space R . tional  $\varphi$  on R, the <u>adjoint norm</u>  $\parallel \varphi \parallel_{\Psi}$  by a vicinity  $\Psi$  is defined as

11911 y = sup |9(2)|.

With this definition we have

11411 = |a|11411y for d =0.

Because we have for every & # 0

 $\|\varphi\|_{dV} = \sup_{x \in dV} |\varphi(x)| = \sup_{x \in V} |\varphi(\alpha x)| = |\alpha| \|\varphi\|_{\Psi}.$ Furthermore we have obviously by definition

VCU implies || 4|| 7 € || 4|| 7.

The totality of linear functional on R, which are bounded in T, is called the adjoint space of a vicinity V and denoted by  $\overline{R}_{V}$ , that is,

Then we see easily by definition that  $\overline{R}_{\phi}$  is a linear manifold of the associated space R of R.

The adjoint norm  $\|\vec{a}\|_{\Psi}(\vec{a} \in \vec{R}_{\Psi})$  is a complete norm Theorem 1. on the adjoint space  $\overline{R}_{V}$  of a vicinity V.

From the definition (1) we conclude immediately that we have  $\|\bar{a}\|_{\varphi} \ge 0$  and  $\|d\bar{a}\|_{\varphi} = |d|\|\bar{a}\|_{\varphi}$ , that is,  $\|\bar{a}\|_{\varphi}$  is a pseudo-norm For every  $\overline{a}$  ,  $\overline{I} \in \overline{R}_{\overline{q}}$  we have by (1)

$$\|\bar{a} + \bar{\ell}\|_{\bar{q}} = \sup_{x \in \bar{V}} |\bar{a}(x) + \bar{\ell}(x)|$$

 $\leq \sup_{x \in V} |\bar{a}(x)| + \sup_{x \in V} |\bar{\ell}(x)| = \|\bar{a}\|_{V} + \|\bar{\ell}\|_{V}.$ 

If  $\| \vec{a} \|_{V} = 0$ , then we have by (1)  $\vec{a}(x) = 0$  for every  $x \in V$ , and

hence  $\bar{\alpha} = 0$  , because for every  $x \in R$  we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that we have  $\alpha \chi \in V$ . Therefore  $\| \overline{a} \|_{V}$  is a norm on  $\overline{R}_{V}$ .

If  $\lim_{\nu, u \to \infty} \| \bar{a}_{\nu} - \bar{a}_{p} \|_{\nabla} = 0$ , then we have obviously by (1)

 $\lim_{\nu,n\to\infty} |\overline{a}_{\nu}(x) - \overline{a}_{\mu}(x)| = 0 \qquad \text{for every } x \in \mathbb{V}.$ 

Since for every  $x \in \mathcal{R}$  we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $\alpha x \in \mathcal{V}$  , we obtain

$$\lim_{\nu,\mu\to\infty} |\overline{a}_{\nu}(x) - \overline{a}_{\mu}(x)| = 0 \qquad \text{for every } x \in \mathbb{R}.$$

Therefore, putting  $\varphi(x) = \lim_{\mu \to \infty} \overline{a}_{\mu}(x)$  for every  $x \in R$ , we obtain a linear functional  $\mathcal G$  on  $\mathcal R$  . Then we have for every  $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ 

$$|\overline{a}_{\nu}(x) - \varphi(x)| = \lim_{\substack{\mu \to \infty \\ \mu \to \infty}} |\overline{a}_{\nu}(x) - \overline{a}_{\mu}(x)|$$
  
 $\leq \lim_{\substack{\mu \to \infty \\ \mu \to \infty}} ||\overline{a}_{\nu} - \overline{a}_{\mu}||_{\overline{\Psi}}$ 

for every  $x \in V$  , and hence by (1

§51, §52)

Consequently we obtain  $\varphi \in \overline{R}_{\varphi}$  and  $\lim_{} \|\overline{a}_{\nu} - \varphi\|_{\overline{\psi}} = 0$ . Therefore the norm " ally is complete.

Theorem 2. If a vicinity V is symmetric, scalar-closed, and convex, then for any x,  $\in V$  we can find a linear functional  $\varphi_0 \in \overline{R}_{\overline{V}}$ such that  $\varphi_a(x_a) > ||\varphi_a||_{\mathcal{H}}$ .

Putting  $\Psi(\xi x_o) = \xi$  for every real number  $\xi$ , we obtain Proof. obviously a linear functional 4 on the linear manifold generated by the single element  $x_o$  . Furthermore we have for every real number  $\xi$ 

$$|Y(\xi x_0)| = |\xi| = \frac{1}{\|x_0\|_{\mathcal{T}}} \|\xi x_0\|_{\mathcal{T}}.$$

Therefore we can find by §44 Theorem 4 a linear functional  $arPhi_o$  on  $\mathcal R$  $\varphi_*(\xi \pi_*) = \Psi(\xi \pi_*)$  for every real number  $\xi$ ,

$$|\varphi_{o}(x)| \leq \frac{1}{\|x_{o}\|_{\Psi}} \|x\|_{\Psi}$$
 for every  $x \in R$ ,

because the pseudo-norm  $\|x\|_{\pi}(x \in R)$  is convex by §49 Theorem 2. For such % we have by the definition (1)

$$\|\varphi_o\|_{\overline{q}} = \sup_{x \in \overline{q}} |\varphi_o(x)| \le \frac{1}{\|x_o\|_{\overline{q}}}$$

because  $\|\mathbf{x}\|_{\nabla} \leq 1$  for  $\mathbf{x} \in \mathbf{V}$  by the formula §49(2). metric and scalar-closed by assumption, we have  $\|x_0\|_{\mathcal{T}} > 1$  by §49 Theorem 3, and hence  $\| \varphi_0 \|_{\overline{Y}} < 1 = \Psi(x_0) = \varphi(x_0)$ .

Theorem 3. For a vicinity V , the manifold

$$\nabla = \{x : |\bar{a}(x)| \le \|\bar{a}\|_{\nabla} \quad \text{for all } \bar{a} \in \widehat{R}_{\nabla} \}$$

is the least symmetric scalar-closed convex vicinity including  $\boldsymbol{V}$  , and we have  $\bar{R}_{V} = \bar{R}_{D}$ ,  $\|\bar{a}\|_{V} = \|\bar{a}\|_{D}$  ( $\bar{a} \in \bar{R}_{V}$ ).

We see at once by the construction of T that T > T and V is symmetric and scalar-closed. For  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda$ ,  $\mu \ge 0$ , if  $x, y \in \mathcal{T}$ , then we have

1克(人又十四月) | 至入 | 在(又) | 十 四 | 在(り) | 至 | 直 | マ。

and hence  $\lambda$  x +  $\mu$   $\gamma$   $\epsilon$   $\nabla$  . Therefore  $\nabla$  is a symmetric scalar-closed convex vicinity. For every symmetric scalar-closed convex vicinity  $w \supset V$  , the intersection  $v \cdot w$  also is obviously such a one. is an element  $x_0 \in U$  such that  $x_0 \in U$  W , then we can find by Theorem 2 a linear functional  $\varphi_o \in \mathbb{R}_{\tau}$  such that  $\varphi_o(x_o) > \| \varphi_o \|_{\Psi_o}$ , contradicting the construction of T. Consequently we have UCUWCW, and hence  $oldsymbol{ textsf{V}}$  is the least symmetric scalar-closed convex vicinity including  $oldsymbol{ textsf{V}}$  .

From  $V \supset V$  we conclude by the formula (3) that we have  $\overline{R}_{V} \subset \overline{R}_{V}$ and  $\|\vec{a}\|_{\sigma} \ge \|\vec{a}\|_{\sigma}$  for every  $\vec{a} \in \vec{R}_{\sigma}$ . On the other hand, we have obviously by the construction of  $\overline{U}$  that  $\overline{R}_{\overline{v}} \supset \overline{R}_{\overline{v}}$  and  $\|\overline{a}\|_{\overline{v}} \leqq \|\overline{a}\|_{\overline{v}}$  for every a e R .

For a symmetric star vicinity V we have Theorem 4.

for every a & Ry and x & R, 1a(x)| = ||a|| + ||x|| +

for every x & R. Manue sup (a(x)

For every  $\xi > ||x||_{\Psi}$ , as  $\frac{1}{\xi} z \in \nabla$  by the formula  $\S 49(2)$ , Proof. we have by (1)  $|\bar{a}(\frac{1}{\xi} \times)| \le ||\bar{a}||_{\nabla}$ , that is,

and hence we obtain |a(x)| = |a|| ||x||| From this relation we conclude immediately  $\|x\|_{\varphi} \ge \sup_{\|\bar{a}\|_{\varphi} \le 1} |\bar{a}(x)|$ .

For an element  $x \in R$ , if  $\xi > \sup_{\|\widetilde{\Delta}\|_{T} \le 1} |\widetilde{\Delta}(x)|$ , then  $\sup_{\|\widetilde{\Delta}\|_{T} \le 1} |\widetilde{\Delta}(\frac{1}{k}x)| < 1$ , and hence we obtain

 $|\bar{a}(\frac{1}{8}x)| \le |\bar{a}|_{\overline{q}}$  for every  $\bar{a} \in \bar{R}_{\overline{q}}$ .

If  $\nabla$  is convex, then  $\{x: \|x\|_{\varphi} \le i\}$  is by §49 Theorem 1 a symmetric scalar-closed convex vicinity including  ${f V}$  , and hence we conclude by Theorem 3 that  $\|\frac{1}{2}x\|_{V} \le 1$ , that is,  $\|x\|_{V} \le \frac{1}{2}$ . Accordingly, if Vis convex, then we have  $\|x\|_{q} \leq \sup_{\|\tilde{\alpha}\|_{q} \leq 1} |\tilde{\alpha}(x)|$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ .

Theorem 5. Let V be a symmetric convex vicinity such that the pseudo-norm || x || v (z e R ) is complete, and R the adjoint space of V For a system of linear functionals  $\overline{\mathcal{A}}_{\lambda} \in \overline{\mathcal{R}}_{\Psi}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$ , if

VICINITIES

 $\sup_{\lambda \in A} |\bar{a}_{\lambda}(x)| < +\infty \quad \text{for every } x \in R.$ 

then we have  $\sup_{\lambda \in \lambda} \| \overline{\alpha}_{\lambda} \|_{\overline{V}} < +\infty$ .

§52)

Since the pseudo-norm  $\|x\|_{\mathscr{T}}$  is complete by assumption, Proof. we see by Theorems 6 in §36 and 1 in §39 that R is of the second category for the induced topology by the induced quasi-metric. If we put

 $A_{\nu} = \{ \pi : |\overline{a}_{\lambda}(\pi)| \le \nu$  for every  $\lambda \in A \}$ . then we have obviously by assumption  $R = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} A_{i}$ .

If  $\lim_{\mu \to \infty} \|a_{\mu} - a\|_{\pi} = 0$ ,  $a_{\mu} \in A_{\nu}$  ( $\mu = 1, 2, ...$ ), then, since we have by Theorem 4  $|\overline{a}_{\lambda}(a)| \leq |\overline{a}_{\lambda}(a_{p})| + |\overline{a}_{\lambda}(a_{p}) - \overline{a}_{\lambda}(a)| \leq \nu + \|\overline{a}_{\lambda}\|_{\nabla} \|a_{p} - a\|_{\nabla}$ we obtain  $|\overline{a}_{\lambda}(a)| \leq \nu$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ , that is,  $a \in A_{\nu}$ . Consequently,  $A_{\nu}$  is closed for the induced topology by Theorems 2 in §14, 3 in §36, and 1 §39. Therefore we can find  $\nu_o$  such that  $A_{\nu_o} \neq 0$  for the induced topology, and then we can find further  $a, \, \epsilon \, A_{\nu_o}$  and  $\epsilon \, > o\,$  such that  $\|a_0 - x\|_{\varphi} < \varepsilon$  implies  $x \in A_{\nu_0}$ . Then  $\|x\|_{\varphi} < \varepsilon$  implies  $x + a_0 \in A_{\nu_0}$ , and hence further  $|\overline{a}_{\lambda}(x)| \le |\overline{a}_{\lambda}(a_{o})| + |\overline{a}_{\lambda}(x+a_{o})| \le |\overline{a}_{\lambda}(a_{o})| + \nu$ for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  . As  $\| \times \|_{\nabla} \le 1$  implies  $\| \frac{\mathcal{E}}{2} \times \|_{\nabla} \le \frac{\mathcal{E}}{2} < \mathcal{E}$  , we obtain hence by definition

 $\|\overline{a}_{\lambda}\|_{\nabla} = \sup_{\|\mathbf{x}\|_{\nabla} \leq 1} |\overline{a}_{\lambda}(\mathbf{x})| = \frac{2}{\varepsilon} \sup_{\|\mathbf{x}\|_{\nabla} \leq 1} |\overline{a}_{\lambda}(\frac{\varepsilon}{2}\mathbf{x})| \leq \frac{2}{\varepsilon} (|\overline{a}_{\lambda}(a_{0})| + \nu),$ and consequently  $\sup_{\lambda \in \lambda} \| \overline{a}_{\lambda} \|_{\Psi} \leq \frac{2}{\epsilon} \left( \sup_{\lambda \in \lambda} | \overline{a}_{\lambda} (a_{\bullet}) | + \nu \right) < +\infty.$ 

Theorem 6. Let V be an arbitrary vicinity in R . For a linear manifold A of R, the manifold of the adjoint space R, of V  $\{\vec{a}: \vec{a}(x)=0 \text{ for every } x \in A\}$ 

coincides with the adjoint space of the relative vicinity V/A in the quotient space R/A , and we have  $\|\bar{\mathbf{a}}\|_{\mathbf{V}/A} = \|\bar{\mathbf{a}}\|_{\mathbf{V}}$  for every  $\bar{\mathbf{a}} \in \bar{R}_{\mathbf{V}}$ subject to the condition that  $\bar{\alpha}(x) = 0$  for every  $x \in A$ .

Every linear functional a on the quotient space R/A may be considered as a linear functional on R by the relation

 $\bar{a}(x) = \bar{a}(x)$  for  $x \in X \in R/A$ ,

and then we have obviously  $\sup_{x \in \mathcal{T}} |\overline{a}(x)| = \sup_{x \in \mathcal{T}/A} |\overline{a}(x)|$ . From This 136 relation we conclude easily our assertion.

Let V be a symmetric convex vicinity and Y a rosi-For a finite number of elements x, & R and real num-Theorem 7. bers  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), in order that there is a linear functional  $\varphi$ on R such that

$$q(x_{\nu}) = d_{\nu} \quad (\nu = 1, 2, ..., x),$$

it is necessary and sufficient that we have

for every real numbers  $\xi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ).

If there is such a linear functional  ${\bf f}$  on  ${\bf R}$  , then we have by Theorem 4 for every real numbers  $\frac{\pi}{2}$ , ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\kappa$ )

Conversely, we suppose now that the indicated condition is satis-Then  $\sum_{i=1}^{n} \xi_i x_i = 0$  implies obviously  $\sum_{i=1}^{n} \xi_i d_i = 0$ . Thus, if we denote by A the linear manifold generated by  $x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \kappa$ ), then there is by §44 Theorem 3 a linear functional 4, on A such that  $\Psi_{o}(\mathbf{x}_{\nu}) = \mathbf{x}_{\nu} \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa).$ 

$$\mathcal{L}_{\sigma}(\kappa_{\nu}) = \mathcal{L}_{\nu} \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa).$$

For such  $q_s$  we have by assumption

19.(差影なり)=1差易ししくが用差影なり

for every real numbers  $\xi$ , ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., x$ ), that is,

As  $\nabla$  is convex by assumption, the resude-norm  $\|\mathbf{x}\|_{\mathbf{T}}$  is convex by §49 Thus we can find by §44 Theorem 3 a linear functional 4 Theorem 2.  $\varphi(x) = \varphi_{\bullet}(x)$  for every  $x \in A$ , on R such that

and hence  $\varphi(x_{\nu}) = \alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) and  $\| \varphi \|_{\varphi} \le \delta$ .

Finally we shall prove the so-called Helly's theorem:

Let V be a symmetric convex vicinity in R and Y For a finite number of linear functionals a, eR, Theorem 8. a positive number. and real numbers  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., x$ ), in order that for any positive number  $\varepsilon$  we can find an element  $x, \varepsilon(x+\varepsilon) \nabla$  such that

 $\vec{\mathbf{A}}_{\cdot\cdot}(\mathbf{x}_a) = \mathbf{d}_{\mathbf{x}} \qquad (\mathbf{v} = 1, 2, \dots, \mathbf{x})$ 

it is necessary and sufficient that we have

VICINITIES

for every real numbers  $\xi$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ).

Proof, If there is an element  $\pi_e \in (Y + E)V$  such that

$$\overline{a}_{\nu}(x_0) = \alpha_{\nu}$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., x_0$ 

then we have 11 x, 11,  $\leq$  8 +  $\epsilon$  by the formula §49(2) and hence by Theorem 4

$$\left| \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} \xi_{\nu} d_{\nu} \right| = \left| \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} \xi_{\nu} \overline{a}_{\nu} (x_{0}) \right| \leq (\kappa + \epsilon) \left\| \sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} \xi_{\nu} \overline{a}_{\nu} \right\|_{\Psi}.$$

As  $\xi > 0$  may be arbitrary, we obtain thus for every  $\xi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) | Ž { | d | ≤ 8 | Ž { a | 1 y .

Conversely, we assume now that the indicated condition is satisfied. Putting  $A = \{ \pi : \overline{a}_{\nu}(\pi) = 0 \text{ for every } \nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa \}$ , we obtain a linear manifold  $\ensuremath{\mathcal{A}}$  of  $\ensuremath{\mbox{R}}$  , and we see by §46 Theorem 3 that the quotient space R/A is finite-dimensional and the associated space  $\widehat{R/A}$  of R/Ais composed of all linear combinations from  $\overline{\mathbf{a}}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\varkappa$ ).  $\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \xi_k \overline{\alpha}_k = 0$  implies by assumption  $\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \xi_k \alpha_k = 0$ , we can find by §45 Theorem 4 a residue class  $X_{\bullet} \in R/A$  such that

$$\overline{a}_{\nu}(X_{0}) = a_{\nu}$$
  $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa).$ 

For such X, we have by assumption

$$|\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \xi_{i} \overline{a}_{i}(X_{o})| = |\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \xi_{i} d_{i}| \leq \delta ||\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \xi_{i} \overline{a}_{i}||_{\nabla}$$

for every real numbers  $\xi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), and hence

As  $\|\bar{a}\|_{\nabla} = \|\bar{a}\|_{\nabla/A}$  for  $\bar{a} \in \widehat{R/A}$  by Theorem 6, we obtain hence by Theorem 4  $\| \times_{\bullet} \|_{\sqrt{A}} \le \delta$  , because  $\sqrt{A}$  is a symmetric convex vicinity by Theorems 4 and 5 in §51. Since we have by §51 Theorem 7

$$\| \times_{\bullet} \|_{\nabla/A} = \inf_{x \in X_{\bullet}} \| x \|_{\nabla},$$

for any  $\epsilon > 0$  we can find therefore  $\kappa_o \in K_o$  such that  $\| x_o \|_{\nabla} < \delta + \epsilon$ . For such  $x_b$  we have  $x_c \in (\zeta + \varepsilon)V$  by the formula §49(2) and obviously

$$\overline{\alpha}_{\nu}(x_o) = \overline{\alpha}_{\nu}(X_o) = \alpha_{\nu} \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa).$$

# CHAPTER VIII LINEAR TOPOLOGY

# §53 Definitions

A system of vicinities of in R is Let R be a linear space. called a linear topology on R , if

- VEP, VCV implies VEP, 3 Y
- U, VEY implies UVEY,
- V∈V implies ₹V∈V for every \$ ≠0; 3)
- for any V & V we can find T & V such that 4)

for 0 4 \$ 5.1, ₹V C V

for any VEP we can find VEP such that U × U < V.

A linear space associated with a linear topology is called a linear If V is composed only of a single vicinity R, topological space. This lithen  $\varphi$  is obviously a linear topology on R by definition. near topology is called the trivial linear topology on R.

A subset & of a linear topology \$P\$ is called a basis of \$P\$, if for any  $\nabla \in \mathcal{D}$  we can find  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$  and  $\lambda > 0$  such that  $\lambda \nabla \subset \nabla$ .

For a linear topology on R there is a basis of V, Theorem 1. which is composed only of symmetric star vicinities.

For every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  we can find by definition  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  such that  $\{U \subset V((-1)U) \text{ for } 0 \leq \frac{\pi}{2} \leq 1$ . For such U, we have obviously  $\xi U \subset V$  for  $|\xi| \le 1$ , and hence  $\sum_{|\xi| \le 1} \xi U \subset V$ . Here  $\sum_{|\xi| \le 1} \xi U$  is obviously a symmetric star vicinity and belongs to  $\mathcal{C}$  by the postulate 1). Therefore the totality of symmetric star vicinities contained in VI constitutes a basis of 4.

For a basis & of a linear topology %, if a manifold  $A \ni 0$  is contained in every vicinity of  $\mathcal{L}$ , then  $V \times A$  ( $V \in \mathcal{L}$ ) also is a basis of V.

For every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$  we have obviously by 1)  $\nabla \times A \in \mathcal{V}$ . Furthermore, for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$ , we can find by 5)  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$  and  $\lambda > 0$  such

 $\nabla \times \nabla \subset \stackrel{1}{\swarrow} \nabla$  , and hence  $\lambda(\nabla \times A) \subset \lambda(\nabla \times \nabla) \subset \nabla$  . Therefore we see by definition that  $\nabla \times A$  ( $\nabla \in \mathcal{F}$ ) is a basis of  $\mathcal{V}$ . A linear topology V is said to be of finite character, if there is

a basis of  ${\cal Q}$  which is composed only of symmetric star vicinities of finite character. A linear topology % is said to be of bounded character. if there is a basis composed only of symmetric star vicinities whose chatacters are bounded. A linear topology & is said to be convex. if there is a basis of V composed only of symmetric convex vicinities.

Theorem 3 If a collection of vicinites % in R satisfies

- for every v , V & y, we can find W & y, and \>0 such that 1.) AW C TO.
- for any  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$  we can find  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$  and  $\lambda > 0$  such that 2) ₹UCV for | \$| ≤ \lambda.
- 3) for any  $\forall \epsilon \mathscr{L}$  we can find  $\forall \epsilon \mathscr{L}$  and  $\lambda > 0$  such that Α Τ Χ Α Τ C Τ

then there exists uniquely a linear topology & of which & is a basis.

Denoting by V the totality of vicinities W such that Proof. we have  $\nabla > \lambda \nabla$  for some  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$  and  $\lambda > 0$ , we conclude easily from assumption that V is a linear topology containing L as a basis. thermore it is evident by definition that every linear topology containing % as a basis coincides with % .

We shall say that a linear topology V on R is separative, or that R is separated by V, if  $T_{V \in V} = \{0\}$ .

As an immediate consequence of Theorem 3 we have

If a symmetric star vicinity V is of finite charact-Theorem 4. er, then there exists uniquely a linear topology of which V is a basis.

# \$54 Induced topologies

Let R be a linear space. Every vicinity V in R may be considered as a connector in R by the correspondence:  $R \ni x \longrightarrow V + x$ .

For a linear topology  ${\cal P}$  on R , considering every vicinity  ${\bf V}$   ${\bf E}$   ${\bf P}$  as a connector, we see easily that  $oldsymbol{arphi}$  satisfies the basis conditions in §26, and hence there exists by §26 Theorem 1 uniquely a uniformity on R of This uniformity is called the induced uniformity by a linear topology  $\mathscr C$  and denoted by  $\mathscr U^{\mathscr C}$ . The induced topology by which P is a basis. this induced uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^{\mathcal{R}}$  is called the <u>induced topology</u> by a linear topology we and denoted by M.

Concerning the induced topology  $\gamma^{qo}$  we have by the formulas (2), (4) in \$27 for every manifold A C R.

7 for every manifold 
$$A \subset V$$
  
(1)  $A^{\circ} = \{z : A > V + x \text{ for some } V \in V\},$ 

A = TT A × V = TT (A × V). When we need indicate the induced topology  $\gamma^{p}$ , we shall write  $A^{q}$  or  $A^{q}$ instead of A° or A° respectively.

For every element a & R we obtain by (1)

every element 
$$a \in \mathbb{R}$$
 and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $a \in \mathbb{R}$  for some  $a \in \mathbb$ 

That is, we have for every a & R

 $A^{\circ}+\alpha=(A+\alpha)^{\circ}.$ 

From this relation we conclude by the formula \$43(10)

 $A^- + \alpha = (A + \alpha)^-.$ 

For every real number of \$0 we have by (1)

every real names
$$dA^{\circ} = \{ dx : A \supset V + x \text{ for some } V \in V \}$$

$$= \{ dx : dA \supset dV + dx \text{ for some } V \in V \} = \{ dA \}^{\circ}$$

$$= \{ x : dA \supset V + x \text{ for some } V \in V \} = \{ dA \}^{\circ}$$

and hence we have

 $\alpha A^{\circ} = (\alpha A)^{\circ}$  for  $\alpha \neq 0$ . (5)

From this relation we conclude by the formula §43(16)

dA = (dA) for d = 0.

By wirtue of the formula §43(5), we obtain at once

for TEV. (7)  $A^{-} \subset A \times \nabla^{\circ} \subset (A \times \nabla)^{\circ}$ For every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{P}$ , as  $\nabla \subset \nabla^-$ , we have obviously  $\nabla^- \in \mathcal{P}$  by definition. For every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{D}$  we can find by definition  $\nabla \in \mathcal{D}$  such that  $\nabla \times \nabla \subset \mathcal{D}$ and hence by (7) Tc(TxT)°cT. Thus we have

(8) TOE TOT TEN

(54)

For every manifolds A , B we have

- $A^{\circ} \times B^{\circ} \subset (A \times B)^{\circ}$ (9)
- $A^{-} \times B^{-} \subset (A \times B)^{-}$ . (10)

Because, we have ouriously  $A^{\circ} \times B^{\circ} \subset A \times B$ , and  $A^{\circ} \times B^{\circ}$  is open by (3), as  $A^{\circ} \times B^{\circ} = \sum_{x \in A^{\circ}} (A + x)^{\circ}$ . Thus we obtain (9). For every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$  there is by definition  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  such that  $\nabla \times \nabla \subset \mathcal{T}$  , and we have by (2)

A-XB- C(AXT)X(BXT)C(AXB)XT.

Therefore we obtain (10) by the formula (2)

On account of the formula (5) we have obviously

Theorem 1. If a manifold A is symmetric, then both A and A. are symmetric too.

If a manifold A is a star, then A is scalar-closed Theorem 2. and A° is scalar-open.

Proof. If A is a star, then A also is a star, because \$A < A implies  $\xi A^- \subset A^-$  by the formula (6). Furthermore  $A^-$  is scalar-closed. Because, for any  $x \in A^-$  we can find by (1)  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  such that  $\nabla + x \in A^{-1}$ . For such  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  we can find further by definition  $\epsilon > 0$  such that  $-\epsilon \times \epsilon \nabla$ . Then we have  $(i-\epsilon)x \in \nabla + x \in A^{-1}$ , that is,  $(i-\epsilon)x \in A^{-1}$ . Therefore  $A^-$  is scalar-closed. We also can prove likewise that  $A^+$  is scalar-open, if A is a star.

Theorem 3. For a vicinity A , the characters of A and A are not greater than that of A.

Recalling (5), (6), (9), (10), we see that  $\lambda A \times \mu A \subset \times A$ Proof. implies  $\lambda A^{\circ} \times \mu A^{\circ} \subset \times A^{\circ}$ ,  $\lambda A^{\circ} \times \mu A^{\circ} \subset \times A^{\circ}$ . Thus we obtain Theorem 3. From Theorem 3 we conclude immediately

Theorem 4. If a vicinity A is convex, then both A" and A" are convex.

For a linear manifold A, both A and A are li-Theorem 5. near manifolds.

If A is a linear manifold, then we have by definition 142 Proof.

 $\propto A \leq A$  and  $A \times A \leq A$ . Thus we obtain by (5) and (6)

 $\alpha A^{-} = (\alpha A)^{-} \subset A^{-}$  $dA^{\circ} = (dA)^{\circ} \subset A^{\circ}$ 

and by (9), (10) further

A-XA-C (AXA)-CA-. A° × A° C (A × A)° CA°.

Therefore A and A are linear manifolds.

For a basis % of % we conclude immediately from (1) and (2)

(11)  $A' = \{z: A > \lambda \forall + z \text{ for some } \forall \in \mathcal{L} \text{ and } \lambda > 0\},$ 

(12)  $A = \prod_{v \in \mathcal{I}, \lambda > 0} (A \times \lambda V)^{\circ}$ .

Theorem 6. For a basis  $\mathcal{L}$  of a linear topology  $\mathcal{D}$ , both

{v-: vex} and {vo: vex}

are basises of V too.

On account of (5) and (8), we see that { To: TeX} is a basis of V . For any  $U \in V$  , we can find by definition  $V \in \mathcal{L}$  and  $\lambda > 0$ such that  $\lambda \nabla \times \lambda \nabla \subset \nabla$ , and then we have by (6) and (7)

 $\lambda \nabla^- = (\lambda \nabla)^- \subset \lambda \nabla \times \lambda \nabla \subset \nabla$ .

Therefore { V : V & %} is a basis of V by definition.

Theorem 7. Let 4 be a basis of W which is composed only of symmetric star vicinities. We have & FA 1f and only 1f

inf || a-x||<sub>V</sub>=0 for every V & L.

If  $a \in A^-$ , then we have by the formula (12) Proof.

a & A x \ T for every V & L and \ > 0.

Thus there is  $Z \in A$  such that  $A \in \{V + X \}$ , and hence  $A - X \in \{V \}$ . This relation yields by §49(2) Na- $\pi$ N<sub>y</sub> $\le$ §. As  $\S>0$  may be arbitrary, we obtain hence  $\inf_{x \in A} \|a - x\|_{\varphi} = 0$  for every  $\forall \in \mathcal{L}$ .

Conversely, if  $\inf_{x \in A} \|x - x\|_{\varphi} = 0$  for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$ , then for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$  and  $\lambda > 0$  we can find  $x \in A$  such that  $\|a - x\|_{T} < \lambda$ . relation yields by \$49(2) a-z  $\in \lambda$   $\nabla$  , and hence a  $\in$   $A \times \lambda$   $\nabla$  for every  $\forall \epsilon \%$  and  $\lambda > 0$ . Therefore we obtain by the formula (12)  $a \in A^-$ .

If a topology 7 on a linear space R satisfies Theorem 8.

- A & 7 implies A + a & 7 for every a & R, 1)
- Acl implies AAcl for every A = 0, 2)

- 3) for os A & 7 and x & R we can find of > 0 such that of x & A.
- 4) for of A & T we can find B & T such that

§54, §55)

0 E \$ B C A for | | | ≤ |,

for oe A & ? we can find Ce? such that 5) CXCCA. OEC.

then there exists uniquely a linear topology ? on g such that ? coincides with the induced topology by  $\emptyset$ . Furthermore  $\{A: o \in A \in \gamma\}$ is a basis of \$\alpha\$.

Every open set  $A \ge 0$  is a vicinity by the assumption 3), Proof. Furthermore we see easily that the totality of open sets containing 0 satisfies the conditions in Theorem 53.3, and hence there exists uniquely a linear topology  $\mathcal V$  on  $\mathcal R$  such that  $\{A: o \in A \in \mathcal I\}$  is a basis For such  $\mathscr C$  , it is evident that  $\gamma=\gamma^{\mathscr C}$ 

For a linear topology  ${\mathcal W}$  on  ${\mathcal R}$  , if its induced topology  ${\mathcal T}^{{\mathcal W}}$  coincides with  ${\mathfrak I}$  , then we see by (8) that  $\{\,{\cal A}\,:\,o\in{\cal A}\in{\mathfrak I}\,\}$  is a basis of  ${\mathcal W}_\circ$ Thus we obtain the uniqueness of such a linear topology  $m{\psi}$ .

We shall say that a manifold A is open or closed by a linear topogy  $\mathscr{C}$  , if A is so by the induced topology  $\gamma^{\mathscr{C}}$  by  $\mathscr{C}$ .

# \$55 Comparation of linear topologies

For two linear topologies  $\mathscr C$  and  $\mathscr U$  on a linear space  $\mathcal R$  , if  $\mathscr C \supset \mathscr U_*$ then we shall say that  $\mathscr C$  is stronger than  $\mathscr W$  or that  $\mathscr W$  is weaker than  $\mathscr C$ 

Let  $\mathcal{V}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$  ) be a system of linear topologies on a linear space  $\mathcal{R}$ and  $\mathscr{L}_{\lambda}$  a basis of  $\mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$  respectively. If we denote by  $\mathscr{L}$  the totality of

$$V_{\lambda_1}\,V_{\lambda_3}\,\ldots\,V_{\lambda_K}$$

for every finite number of vicinities  $V_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{L}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), then  $\mathcal{L}$ satisfies the conditions in Theorem 3 in §53. In fact, the condition 1) is satisfied obviously. For any  $V_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{L}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ , we can find  $U_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{L}_{\lambda_{\nu}}$ and  $f_{\nu} > 0$  such that  $\xi \; U_{\lambda_{\nu}} \subset V_{\lambda_{\nu}} \; \text{for} \; 0 \leq \xi \leq f_{\nu} \; , \; \text{and then, putting } f_{\nu} =$ Min fo, we have obviously for 0 ≤ 1 ≤ f.

F( U, U, L. .. U, ) C VA, VA. ... VA.

that is, the condition 2) is satisfied. For any  $V_{A_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{G}_{A_{\nu}}$  we can find  $V_{\lambda_1} \in \mathcal{B}_{\lambda_1}$  and  $f_{\nu} > 0$  such that  $f_{\nu} \cup V_{\lambda_1} \times f_{\nu} \cup V_{\lambda_2}$  and further  $W_{\lambda_1} \in \mathcal{B}_{\lambda_2}$ and  $G_{\nu}>0$  such that  $\{W_{\lambda_{\nu}}\subset G_{\lambda_{\nu}} \text{ for }0\leq \xi\leq G_{\nu}.$  Then, putting  $\underline{f}=$  $\underset{\nu=1,2,\ldots,n}{\text{Min}} \quad \text{Sip, we obtain } \beta(\ \overline{\mathbb{W}}_{\lambda_1}, \overline{\mathbb{W}}_{\lambda_2}, \ldots \, \overline{\mathbb{W}}_{\lambda_m}) \times \beta(\ \overline{\mathbb{W}}_{\lambda_1}, \overline{\mathbb{W}}_{\lambda_2}, \ldots \, \overline{\mathbb{W}}_{\lambda_m}) \subset \overline{\mathbb{V}}_{\lambda_1}, \overline{\mathbb{V}}_{\lambda_2}, \ldots \, \overline{\mathbb{V}}_{\lambda_m}$ that is, the condition 3) is satisfied too. Therefore there exists uniquely a linear topology  $\mathscr{C}_{\mathfrak{p}}$  such that  $\mathscr{C}_{\mathfrak{p}}$  is a basis of  $\mathscr{C}_{\mathfrak{p}}$  . For this linear topology  $\mathscr{C}_{o}$  we have obviously  $\mathscr{C}_{o} \supset \mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$  and hence  $\mathscr{C}_{o} \supset \mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$ On the other hand, if a linear topology  ${\mathscr C}$  is stronger than  $\psi_\lambda$  for every  $\lambda\in \mathcal{N}$  , then we have obviously  $\psi>\mathcal{L}$  and hence we obtain  $\mathcal{V}\supset\mathcal{V}_{o}$  by definition. Thus  $\mathcal{V}_{o}$  is the <u>weakest stronger</u> linear topology of  $\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}$  (  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ), and hence we may write  $\mathcal{C}_{\lambda} = \bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathcal{C}_{\lambda}$ .

The trivial linear topology on & is obviously weaker than every other linear topology, that is, it is the weakest linear topology on  $\mathcal R$  . For a system of linear topologies  $V_{\lambda}$  (  $\lambda \in A$  ) on R , putting

we obtain the strongest weaker linear topology of  $\mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda$   $\in$   $\Lambda$  ). cause, we have obviously  $\mathcal{V}_{\bullet}\subset\mathcal{V}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda\in A$  , and if  $\mathcal{V}\subset\mathcal{V}_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  , then we have  $\mathcal{V} \subset \mathcal{V}_0$  . Therefore we obtain two following theorems:

For a system of linear topologies \$\phi\_{\lambda}(\lambda \in A) on a linear space R , there exist the weakest stronger linear topology Ver and the strongest weaker linear topology  $\bigwedge_{k \in \mathcal{K}} \mathcal{K}_k$ .

For a basis &, of P. (x & A), the totality of Theorem 2. VA, VA. . . . VAM

for every finite number of vicinities  $\nabla_{\lambda_{\nu}} \in \mathcal{L}_{\lambda_{\nu}}(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  is a basis of the weakest stronger linear topology  $\bigvee_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$  .

If  $V_{\lambda_{k}}$  is symmetric and convex for every  $\nu=1,\;2,\ldots,\varkappa$  , then  $V_{\lambda_1}, V_{\lambda_2}, \dots V_{\lambda_N}$  also is so obviously. Therefore we conclude immediately from Theorem 2

If all linear topologies \$\varPi\_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)\$ are convex, Theorem 3. then U Wa also is convex.

For two linear topologies V and V on a linear Theorem 4.

space R, the induced topology 7 by o 1s weaker than that 7 w by w. if and only if  $\mathcal{C} \subset \mathcal{W}$ .

If  $\mathscr{C}\subset\mathscr{W}$ , then the induced uniformity  $\mathscr{W}^{\mathscr{C}}$  by  $\mathscr{C}$  is weaker than that  $\textit{W}^{\textit{M}}$  by W , and hence  $\textit{T}^{\textit{M}}_{\textit{C}} \sim \textit{T}^{\textit{M}}_{\textit{D}}$  by §28 Theorem 4. ly, if q  $^{4}c$  q  $^{4}$ , then we have by the formulas (1) and (8) in §54 1A: 0.∈ A ∈ 7 1 C W.

and hence  $V \subset W$  by §54 Theorem 8.

For a system of linear topologies  $\mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \mathcal{A}$  ), putting V= UV, we have WV= U WV, YV= U YV.

<u>Proof.</u> Recalling Theorem 2, we obtain  $u^{q} = \bigcup_{x \in A} u^{q}$  by §28 Theorem 3, and hence  $\Upsilon^{\Psi} = \bigcup_{\lambda \in A} \Upsilon^{\Psi_{\lambda}}$  by §28 Theorem 5.

# §56 Relative linear topologies

Let  $\hat{S}$  be a linear manifold of a linear space R . For a linear topology arPsi on R , we see easily by definition that the totality of relative vicinities  $\nabla^{\,\mathrm{S}}(\,
abla\,\epsilon^{\,\mathrm{Q}}\,)$  constitutes a linear topology on the subspace This linear topology is called the relative linear topology of & in the subspace S and denoted by 40 S

Concerning relative linear topologies we have obviously by definition

For a basis & of a linear topology V on R, the collection of vicinities  $V^s$  ( $V \in \mathcal{L}$ ) is a basis of the relative linear topology  $\psi^s$  in a subspace S.

The induced uniformity by the relative linear topology  $\mathscr{C}^{\mathcal{S}}$  is obviously by definition the relative uniformity of the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{H}^{q^2}$  by  $oldsymbol{\mathscr{V}}$  in a subspace S . Thus we have by §29 Theorem 2

Theorem 2. The induced topology by the relative linear topology  $arphi^{ ext{S}}$  coincides with the relative topology of the induced topology by  $arphi^{ ext{S}}$ in a subspace S , that is,  $\gamma^{\varphi S} = (\gamma^{\varphi})^{S}$ .

We have obviously by definition

Theorem 3. The relative linear topology of a separative linear topology also is separative.

§56. §57)

LINEAR TOPOLOGY

Recalling the formulas (5)-(10) in §46, we see easily that for a 146 linear topology  ${\mathscr C}$  on  ${\mathcal R}$  the totality of relative vicinities  ${\mathcal V}/{\mathcal S}$ (  $\nabla \in \mathcal{R}$  ) constitutes a linear topology on the quotient space  $R \neq S$  . This linear topology on R/S is called the relative linear topology of V in the quotient space R/S and denoted by 10 A/S.

With this definition we have obviously

Theorem 4. For a basis & of a linear topology & on R, V/S (VCL) is a basis of the relative linear topology ap a/s

The quotient space R/S is obviously by definition a partition In this sense, we have space of R .

The induced topology by the relative linear topology PAS 1s the partition topology of the induced topology it by o and the quotient mapping is continuous and open.

If A is open by  $\varphi$ , then for any  $z \in A$  we can find by the formula  $\S54(1)$  VeV such that  $\nabla \times x \subset A$  and hence  $\nabla + \pi/S \subset A/S$ . As  $\nabla + \pi / S = (\nabla / S) \times (S + \pi / S)$  by the formulas (5) and (6) in §46, we see by the formula §54(1) that A/S is open by  ${\it P}^{a/S}$ . We also can prove likewise that the the quotient mapping is open. quotient mapping is continuous. Consequently we obtain our assertion.

Theorem 6. If a linear manifold S is closed by a linear topolo-EY 40 on R, then the quotient space R/S is separated by the relative linear topology VAS

Proof. If State V/S for all VeV, then we have by §46(5)  $S+\kappa \in S \times V$  for all  $V \in V$ , and hence  $S+\kappa \in S^-=S$  by  $\S 54(2)$ . Therefore R/S is separated by \$\mathbb{Q}^{R/S}\$.

Let R and S be two linear topological spaces with linear topologies & and W respectively. We see easily that the totality of for  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$  .  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$ (T, T)

in the product space (R,S) satisfies the conditions in §53 Theorem 3, and hence there exists uniquely a linear topology on the product space This linear (R,S) of which (V, V) fo,  $V \in V$ ,  $U \in M$  is a basis. topology on (R,S) is called the product of V and W, and denoted by

(V, W). with this definition we have obviously

For a basis & of V and a of W, (V, T) for yes. Theorem 7. U & M constitutes a basis of the product ( P. M).

A linear topological space R is said to be isohomeomorphic to a linear topological space S , if we can find a linear transformation from R to S which is a homeomorphism for the induced topologies. With this definition we can prove easily by \$16 Theorem 5

Theorem 8. Let R and S be two linear topological spaces with linear topologies W and W respectively. For a linear transformation a from R to S, in order that R be isohomeomorphic to S by a, it is necessary and sufficient that for any Vew we can find VeV such that a(V) < V and for any VeW we can find DeW such that a(V) > V.

Recalling §47 Theorem 1 we obtain by Theorem 8

Theorem 9. The quotient space (R.S)/(101.S) is isohomeomorphic to R for the relative linear topology of the product (4, 1/1)

Theorem 10. For a linear topological space R with a linear topology Q, if a linear manifold S is contained in every V & Q, then the product space (R/S.S) is isohomeomorphic to R for (40 R/S 408)

By virtue of §47 Theorem 2, (R/S,S) is isomorphic to R by a linear transformation such that the image of (V/S, S) is  $V\times S$ for every  $\nabla \in V$ . As  $S \subset \nabla$  for every  $\nabla \in V$  by assumption, the relative linear topology  $\psi^s$  is the trivial one, that is,  $\psi^s$  is composed only Therefore we see by Theorem 8 that (R/S,S) is isohomeomorphic to R.

# §57 Bounded manifolds

Let R be a linear topological space with a linear topology ? . A manifold A of R is said to be bounded, if for any VEV we can find  $\lambda > 0$  such that  $A \subset \lambda V$ . With this definition we see at once that for a basis  ${\mathscr L}$  of  ${\mathscr C}$  , a manifold  ${\mathscr A}$  is bounded if and only if for any  $V \in \mathcal{L}$  we can find  $\lambda > 0$  such that  $A \subset \lambda V$ .

Recalling the formula §49(2) we have obviously

Theorem 2. If a manifold A is bounded by  $\varphi$ , then the closure A by the induced topology  $\Upsilon^{\varphi}$  is bounded too.

<u>Proof.</u> For any  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$  we can find by definition  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$  and  $\lambda > 0$  such that  $\nabla \times \nabla \subset \nabla$ ,  $A \subset \lambda \nabla$ . Then we have by §54(7)

 $A^{-} \subset \lambda \nabla \times \lambda \nabla \subset \lambda \nabla$ .

Therefore  $A^{-}$  is bounded by definition.

Theorem 3. If there is no bounded open set except o, then every bounded set is nowhere dense by the induced topology  $\tau^{\nu}$ .

Proof. If a manifold A is bounded, then  $A^-$  also is bounded by Theorem 2, and hence  $A^{-o}=0$  by assumption.

For a star vicinity T we have obviously

d V C V for 0 sd < V.

Thus we obtain by \$53 Theorem 1

Theorem 4. If a manifold A is bounded by a linear topology \$\varphi\$, then A is bounded by the induced uniformity \$\varphi^\varphi\$.

. If a star vicinity  $\nabla$  is of finite character and  $\nabla \times \nabla \subset \alpha \nabla$ ,  $\alpha > 1$ , then we have  $\nabla^{\mu} \subset \alpha^{\mu + 1} \nabla$ . Therefore we have

Theorem 5. If a linear topology V is of finite cheracter, then every bounded manifold by the induced uniformity W is bounded by V.

hecalling the definition of relative linear topologies we have

Theorem 6. For a bounded manifold A in R by a linear topology

W, A/S is bounded in the quotient space R/S by the relative linear topology

topology WR/S.

Let V and W be two linear topologies on a linear space R. V

is said to be equivalent to  $\mathcal M$ , if bounded manifolds by  $\mathcal P$  coincide with those by  $\mathcal M$ . A linear topology  $\mathcal P$  is said to be equivalently strongest, if  $\mathcal P$  is stronger than every other linear topology which is equivalent to  $\mathcal V$ .

LINEAR TOPOLOGY

Recalling §55 Theorem 2, we can prove easily

Theorem 7. For every linear topology & there exists an equiva-

A linear topology V is said to be <u>standard</u>, if V is convex and stronger than every other convex linear topology which is equivalent to V. With this definition we obtain by Theorems 2 and 3 in §55

Theorem 8. For every convex linear topology \$\psi\$ there exists a standard linear topology which is equivalent to \$\psi\$.

A manifold A of R is said to be <u>totally bounded</u> by a linear topology V, if A is totally bounded by the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{W}^V$  by V.

# . §58 Sequential linear topologies

A linear topology  $\mathscr C$  is said to be <u>sequential</u>, if  $\mathscr C$  has a basis composed only of countable vicinities. With this definition we see easily by §52 Theorem 1 that if a linear topology  $\mathscr C$  is sequential, then  $\mathscr C$  has a basis {  $\nabla_i$ ,  $\nabla_2$ ,...} such that  $\nabla_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,2,...$ ) are symmetric stars,

 $\nabla_{\nu} \supset \nabla_{\nu+1} \times \nabla_{\nu+1} \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, ...),$  each  $\nabla \in \Omega$  we can find  $\alpha$ 

and for each  $V \in V$  we can find  $\nu$  such that  $V \supset V_{\nu}$ . Such a basis  $\{V_1, V_2, \dots\}$  is called a <u>decreasing basis</u>. If V is sequential, then its induced uniformity is obviously sequential by definition. Furthermore we see easily that a decreasing basis  $\{V_1, V_2, \dots\}$  of V is a decreasing basis of the induced uniformity  $W^V$ , considering every  $V_{\nu}$  as a connector:  $R \ni X \longrightarrow V_{\nu} + X$ .

Theorem 1. If a linear topology  $\psi$  is sequential, then  $\psi$  is equivalently strongest, and furthermore  $\psi$  contains all vicinities  $\nabla$  subject to the condition that for any bounded manifold A we can find  $\lambda > 0$  for which  $A \subset \lambda \nabla$ .

151

different from o for the induced topology 7 %

**§58**, **§59**)

Let  $\{V_1,V_2,\dots\}$  be a decreasing basis of a sequential For a vicinity U, if U E 40, then corresponding Proof. linear topology V. to every v=1, 2, ... we can find  $x_k \in R$  such that

 $(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ . **リヷ ヨ α.. ε ∇..** 

For such  $x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2,...$ ),  $\{x_1, x_2, ..., t \text{ is obviously bounded by } \phi$  but not contained in  $\nu \nabla$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$  Therefore  $\sqrt[p]{2}$  is equivalently strongest by definition.

Let V be an arbitrary linear topology on a linear space R. any  $\mathbf{V} \in \mathcal{V}$  we can find by definition a sequence of symmetric star vicinities  $V_i \in \mathcal{C}$  such that  $V \supset V_i \times V_i$ ,  $V_i \supset V_{\nu+1} \times V_{\nu+1}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ), and  $\{V, V_1, V_2, \dots\}$  satisfies the conditions of §53 Theorem 3. fore we obtain

For a linear topology of there is a system of sequen-Theorem 2. tial linear topologies  $\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  such that  $\mathcal{C} = \bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathcal{C}_{\lambda}$ .

A linear topology  ${\mathscr C}$  is said to be of <u>single vicinity</u>, if  ${\mathscr C}$  has a basis composed only of a single vicinity. If a linear topology of is of single vicinity, then there is obviously by §53 Theorem 3 a symmetric Every linear tostar vicinity  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  such that  $\nabla$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{C}$ . pology of single vicinity is naturally sequential.

If a linear topology V is of single vicinity and a symmetric star vicinity  $\mathbb V$  is a basis of  $\mathbb V$  , then we can find by definition  $\ensuremath{\mbox{$\alpha$}} > \ensuremath{\mbox{$\ell$}}$  such that  $\nabla \times \nabla \subset \angle \nabla$ , and then  $\lambda \nabla \times \mu \nabla \subset \angle \nabla$  for  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda, \mu \ge 0$ . Therefore we have

Every linear topology of single vicinity is of bound-Theorem 3. ed character.

For a symmetric star vicinity of finite character V there is by §53 Theorem 3 a linear topology of which V is a basis. Therefore we have

For a linear topology of finite character 40 there is a system of linear topologies of single vicinity  $\mathscr{V}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) such that we Theorem 4. have V = V VA.

In order that a linear topology V be of single vici-Theorem 5. nity, it is necessary and sufficient that there is a bounded open manifold

If V is of single vicinity and V is a basis of V. Proof. then  $\nabla$  is obviously a bounded manifold and  $\nabla^{\circ} \ni \theta$  by the formula 354(8). Conversely, if there is a bounded open manifold  $A \neq 0$ , then we can find by the formula §54(1)  $\nabla_{\!\!\!0} \in \mathscr{C}$  and  $\alpha_{\!\!\!0} \in \mathcal{R}$  such that  $\mathcal{A} \supset \nabla_{\!\!\!0} + \alpha_{\!\!\!0}$ . For each  $\forall$   $\in$   $\mathscr{C}$  there is a symmetric  $\forall$   $\in$   $\mathscr{C}$  such that  $\forall$   $\times$   $\forall$   $\in$   $\forall$ , and we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $\alpha \sigma > A > \nabla_0 + a_0$ . Then we have

LINEAR TOPOLOGY

T. C & T + (-a.) C & T x & T C & T.

because a,  $\epsilon \triangleleft v$  implies -a,  $\epsilon \triangleleft v$ . Therefore v is a basis of v. Recalling the formulas (2) and (3) in §49, we see easily

Theorem 6. Let we and w be two linear topologies of single vicinitiy with symmetric star basises V and V respectively. In order that  $arphi \supset \mathcal{W}$  , it is necessary and sufficient that we can find lpha > o such that

dlal = lal for every ze R. A linear topology of single vicinity \$\forall is said to be normable, if \$\psi \end{array} Thus, for a normable linear topology V there is a symmetis convex. ric convex vicinity  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$  such that  $\nabla$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{C}$ . Furthermore we have obviously

For a convex linear topology V there is a system of Theorem 7. normable linear topologies  $\mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) such that  $\mathscr{C} = \bigcup_{\lambda \in \Lambda} \mathscr{C}_{\lambda}$ Recalling §56 Theorem 7, we obtain obviously by definition

If both linear topological spaces R and S are se-Theorem 8. quential or of single vicinity, then the product space (R, S) also is so

# \$59 Completeness

Let R ba a linear topological space with a linear topology . A manifold A is said to be  $\underline{\text{complete}}$ , if A is complete by the induced uniformity  $\pi^{\varphi}$ . If every closed bounded manifold is complete, then we shall say that R is conditionally complete, or that V is conditionally complete. If R is complete, then we shall say that V is complete.

Let  $\mathscr L$  be a basis of  $\mathscr V$  composed only of symmetric star vicinities. 152 Recalling the formulas (2) and (3) in §49, we see easily by definition that a system of manifolds  $A_{\lambda}$  (  $\lambda \in A$  ) is a Cauchy system for the induced uniformity  $w^{*}$ , if and only if for any  $v \in \mathcal{L}$  and 2 > 0, we can find  $\lambda \in \Lambda$ such that  $\sup_{x,y\in A_{\infty}}\|x-y\|_{V}<\varepsilon$  and  $A_{\lambda},A_{\lambda_{\lambda}},...A_{\lambda_{N}}\neq 0$  for every finite number of elements  $\lambda_{\nu}\in\Lambda$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\kappa$ ). We see further that a Cauchy system  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$  ) is convergent to a limit  $\alpha \in R$  if and only if for any  $\forall \epsilon \mathcal{L}$  and  $\epsilon > 0$  we can find  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  such that  $\sup_{z \in A_{\lambda}} \|z - a\|_{\varphi} < \epsilon$ .

We also see likewise that a sequence of elements  $a_{\nu} \in \mathcal{R}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) is a Cauchy sequence if and only if  $\lim_{\mu \to \infty} \|a_{\mu} - a_{\mu}\|_{\nabla} = 0$  for every  $\nabla \in \mathcal{L}$ , and that  $a_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is convergent to a limit  $\alpha \in R$  if and only if  $\lim_{n\to\infty} \|a_n - a\|_{\widetilde{Y}} = 0$  for every  $\overline{Y} \in \mathcal{L}$ .

It is evident by definition that every Cauchy sequence is bounded Therefore we obtain by §36 Theorem 4 by V.

If a linear topology V is sequential and condition-Theorem 1. ally complete, then V is complete.

Furthermore we have by §36 Theorem 6

If a linear topology V is sequential and complete, Theorem 2. then the induced topology of second category.

Theorem 3. If a linear topology of is sequential and { \( \mathref{T}\_1 \), \( \mathref{V}\_2 \),...! is a decreasing basis of  $\mathscr C$  , then for any  $\varkappa_{\nu} \in \mathscr V_{\nu}$  the sequence of elements  $x_1 + x_2 + \dots + x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ ) is a Cauchy sequence by  $\mathscr{P}$  and

 $x_{\nu+1} + x_{\nu+2} + \cdots + x_{\nu+p} \in V_{\nu}$  for every  $p = 1, 2, \cdots$ 

Proof. As  $\nabla_{k+1} \times \nabla_{k+1} \subset \nabla_k$ , we have by definition

Ruge + Ruge + ... + Ruge + Veri X Vuga X ... X Vuga C Vu.

Thus we obtain for every f = 1, 2, ...

 $x_i + x_2 + \cdots + x_{b+p} \in \nabla_b + (x_i + x_2 + \cdots + x_b),$ 

and consequently  $\pi_1 + \dots + \pi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ ) is a Cauchy sequence by  $\Psi$ .

For two complete sequential linear topologies & and Theorem 4. W, if  $\varphi \in \mathcal{U}$  and R is separated by  $\varphi$ , then we have  $\varphi = \mathcal{U}$ .

Proof. Let  $\{V_i, V_2, \dots\}$  be a decreasing basis of V and  $\{V_i\}$  $V_1, \dots$  that of W. For each  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ , since  $\sum_{p=1}^{\infty} f V_{p+1} = R$ 

and the induced topology  $\gamma^{\varphi}$  is by Theorem 2 of second cutogory, we can find f>0 such that  $(f \nabla_{\nu+1})^{\Psi-c} \neq 0$  for the induced topology  $T^{\Psi}$ , and hence  $\nabla_{r_{1}} \stackrel{q_{r_{2}}}{=} \theta$  by the formula §54(5). Thus we can find an element  $a \in \mathcal{R}$  and p such that  $\nabla_{p} + \alpha \subset \nabla_{p+1}$ . This relation yields by the formulas (5), (10) in §54 that  $-a \in \mathcal{O}_{L_{44}}^{-Q-}$  and

Vp = (Vp+a)+(-a) < V+1 4- x V+1 4- < V,4-Therefore we can find  $\mu_1 < \mu_2 < \dots$  such that

$$\nabla_{\mu\nu} \subset \nabla_{\nu}^{V-}$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ 

For every  $a \in V_{\mu_{\nu+1}}$ , as  $a \in U_{\nu+1}$ , we can find  $x_i \in V_{\nu+1}$  such that  $a \in V_{n+2} + \pi_i$ , and hence  $x_i \in V_{n+1}$ ,  $a - x_i \in V_{n+1}$ . We can find further likewise by the induction  $z_{p}$  (f = 2, 3, ...) such that

(\*) 
$$x_{\beta} \in \mathcal{D}_{L+\beta}$$
 ( $\beta = 1, 2, \ldots$ ),

On account of Theorem 3, we conclude from (\*) that  $x_1 + x_2 + \dots + x_f$  (f= 1. 2. ...) is a Cauchy sequence by W and

 $x_1 + x_2 + \cdots + x_p \in \mathcal{O}_L$  for every  $p = 1, 2, \ldots$ 

As  $\mathcal W$  is complete by assumption, there is hence a limit  $x_{\mathfrak o}$  of the sequence  $x_1 + x_2 + \ldots + x_p$  ( $p = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) by w, and we can find  $p_o$  such that

On the other hand, we conclude from (\*\*) that  $\alpha$  is a limit of  $x_1 + x_2 + \cdots + x_n$ (  $\ell=1,\ 2,\ldots$  ) for the induced topology  $\gamma$   $^{\mathcal{C}}$  , and we have by assumption that  $\mathfrak{I}^{\mathfrak{P}}\subset\mathfrak{I}^{\mathfrak{M}}$  and R is separated by  $\mathfrak{I}^{\mathfrak{P}}$ . Therefore we obtain  $a=\pi_{\mathfrak{p}}$ and hence  $\alpha \in \mathcal{T}_{\nu-1}$  for every  $\alpha \in \mathcal{T}_{\mu_{\nu+1}}$  , that is,  $\mathcal{T}_{\mu_{\nu+1}} \subset \mathcal{T}_{\nu-1}$  for every ν= 2, 3,... Consequently we have  $\mathscr{C}\supset \mathscr{U}$ .

Theorem 5. For a complete sequential linear topology V on R, the relative linear topology VR/S in a quotient space R/S is complete and sequential.

Let  $\{V_1, V_2, \dots\}$  be a decreasing basis of  $\mathscr{V}$ . account of Theorem 4 in §56, {  $\nabla_x/S$  ,  $\nabla_x/S$  ,... } is a basis of the relative linear topology  $\mathcal{V}^{R/S}$  in a quotient space R/S , and hence  $\mathcal{V}^{R/S}$ is sequential. For a Cauchy sequence  $X_{\nu} \in R/S$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), we can find by definition  $\mu_1 < \mu_2 < \dots$  such that

(Chapter VIII

 $X_{\mu_{\nu+1}} - X_{\mu_{\nu}} \in V_{\nu}/3$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ...),$ 

and then further  $Z_{\nu} \in V_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that

154

 $S + z_{\nu}^{-} = X_{\mu_{\nu+1}} - X_{\mu_{\nu}}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ...,).$ 

For such  $x_{\nu} \in V_{\nu}$ , there is by Theorem 3 a limit  $\alpha$  of  $x_1 + \ldots + x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1$ , As  $S + (x_1 + \dots + x_n) = X_{\mu_{n+1}} - X_{\mu_n}$ , we see easily that  $(S + A) + X_{\mu_n}$ . is a limit of  $\times_{\mu_{\nu}}(\nu=1, 2,...)$  by the relative linear topology  $^{\mu_{\nu}}$  and hence by §35 Theorem 1 a limit of  $X_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2,...$ ). Therefore  $R \neq S$ is complete by the relative linear topology

If both linear topologies V on R and W on S are complete or conditionally complete, then the product space (R,S) is complete or conditionally complete by the product (P, W).

<u>Proof.</u> Let  $A_{\lambda} \subset (R, S)$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) be a Cauchy system by the product  $(\mathcal{V}, \mathcal{H})$ . Then for any  $\forall \epsilon \mathcal{V}$  and  $\forall \epsilon \mathcal{H}$  we can find by definition  $\lambda_{\epsilon} \epsilon h_{\epsilon}$  $x_o \in R$ , and  $y_o \in S$  such that  $A_{\lambda_o} \subset (\nabla + x_o, \nabla + y_o)$ . From this relation we conclude easily  $A_{\lambda_0} \times (\{o\}, S) \subset (\nabla + x_0, S)$ . Putting

 $(8\lambda, S) = A_{\lambda} \times (\{0\}, S)$  (AeA),

we obtain hence  $\mathcal{B}_{\lambda_0} \subset \mathbb{V} * \mathbb{Z}_0$ . Therefore  $\mathcal{B}_{\lambda_0} (\lambda \in \Lambda)$  is a Cauchy system by  $\Psi$ . Furthermore, if  $A_{\lambda} \subset A$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) for a bounded manifold Aby  $(\mathcal{Q}, \mathcal{M})$ , then, putting  $(B, S) = A \times (\{o\}, S)$ , we conclude easily that Therefore there is by assump- $B_{\lambda} \subset B$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) and B is bounded by  $\emptyset$ . tion a limit  $\mathscr{E}$  of  $\mathcal{B}_{\lambda}(\lambda \in \Lambda)$  by  $\mathscr{V}$ . Putting

(λ€Λ).  $(R,C_{\lambda})=A_{\lambda}\times(R,fol)$ 

Then for every VeV we obtain likewise a limit c of  $C_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) by  $\mathcal{M}$ . and  $V \in \mathcal{H}$  we can find  $\lambda_c$  and  $\beta_c \in \Lambda$  such that  $B_{\lambda_c} \subset V + \ell$ ,  $C_{\beta_c} \subset U + C$ , and hence  $(B_{\lambda_0}, C_{\rho_0}) \subset (\nabla + \delta, \nabla + C)$ . As  $B_{\lambda} B_{\lambda_0} \neq 0$ ,  $C_{\lambda} C_{\rho_0} \neq 0$ , we have  $(B_{\lambda}, C_{\lambda})(B_{\lambda_0}, C_{\beta_0}) \neq 0$ ,  $A_{\lambda} = (B_{\lambda}, C_{\lambda})$  for every  $\lambda \in A$ . quently we obtain  $A_{\lambda}(V+\ell,U+c)\neq 0$  for every  $\lambda\in A$  , and hence  $(\ell,c)$ is a limit of  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) by §35 Theorem 1. Therefore ( $\mathcal{V}$ ,  $\mathcal{M}$ ) is complete or conditionally complete.

Let R be a linear topological space with a linear topology %. A linear topological space R with a linear topology P is called a completion of R. if

- R is complete by Vo. 11
- R contains R as a linear manifold, 2)
- 3) \$\psi\$ is the relative linear topology of \$\overline{\pi}\$,
- R is dense in R for the induced topology To by \$\vec{qp}\$
- 101 0 CR.

Theorem 1. For a linear topological space R there exists uniquely a completion of R within an isohomeomorphism.

We suppose firstly that R is separated by a linear topo-Proof. Considering R as a uniform space by the induced uniformity logy W.  $w^{\mathfrak{C}}$ , we obtain by §37 Theorem 1 a completion  $\widetilde{R}$  of R with a uniformity We uniquely within a homeomorphism. Then  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  is separated by  $\mathcal{W}$  by \$37 Theorem 3.

For every  $\widetilde{x}$  ,  $\widetilde{\gamma}$   $\in$   $\widetilde{R}$  , both R  $\mathcal{T}(\widetilde{x})$  and R  $\mathcal{T}(\widetilde{\gamma})$  (  $\mathcal{T}$   $\in$   $\mathcal{M}$  ) are obviously Cauchy systems by W . We see easily further that

is a Cauchy system for every real numbers of ,  $\beta$  . Thus there exists uniquely its limit  $\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  . For this limit  $\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  we define

$$\widetilde{Z} = \widetilde{\alpha} \widetilde{x} + \beta \widetilde{y}$$
.

Then we can prove easily that  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  is a linear space and contains  $\mathcal{R}$  as a linear manifold.

If  $\widetilde{\mathbf{Z}} = \mathbf{d} \, \widetilde{\mathbf{Z}} + \beta \, \widetilde{\mathbf{y}}$  , then for any  $\mathbf{U}_i \in \mathcal{U}_i$  we can find by definition  $U_1 \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $\lhd R U_2(\mathcal{Z}) \times \beta R U_2(\mathcal{T}) \subset R U_1(\mathcal{Z})$ . Furthermore, for  $\mathbb{U}_3\times\mathbb{U}_4\leq\mathbb{U}_2$  ,  $\mathbb{U}_1\times\mathbb{U}_1\leq\mathbb{U}_0$  , we have

Because, if  $\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}_i \in \mathcal{O}_3(\widehat{\mathcal{Z}})$ ,  $\widetilde{\mathcal{J}}_i \in \mathcal{O}_3(\widehat{\mathcal{J}})$ , but  $\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}_i = d\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}_i + \beta\widetilde{\mathcal{J}}_i \in \mathcal{O}_3(\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}})$ , then we can find  $W_o \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $W_o(Z_i)U_o(Z)=0$ , and  $W_o \in \mathcal{U}$  such that

 $W_i \leq U_i$ ,  $\forall R W_i(\widehat{x}_i) \times \beta R W_i(\widehat{x}_i) \subset R W_i(\widehat{x}_i)$ . On the other hand, since we conclude

 $\Psi_i(\widetilde{x}_i) \subset U_3(\widehat{x}_i) \subset U_i \times U_i(\widehat{x}) \subset U_i(\widehat{x}),$ 

156

and similarly  $W_{i}(\tilde{y}_{i}) \subset \mathcal{V}_{i}(\tilde{z})$ , we have

Consequently we obtain  $\alpha R W_1(\widetilde{x}_1) \times \beta R W_2(\widetilde{x}_1) \times \beta R W_2(\widetilde{x}_1) \subset R U_1(\widetilde{x}_1)$ .

Consequently we obtain  $\alpha R W_1(\widetilde{x}_1) \times \beta R W_1(\widetilde{x}_1) = 0$ , contradicting that R is dense in  $\widetilde{R}$  by the induced topology  $\gamma^M$ . Therefore we have proved that if  $\widetilde{Z} = \alpha Z + \beta \widetilde{\gamma}$ , then for any  $U_0 \in \mathcal{M}$  we can find  $U \in \mathcal{M}$  such that (\*)  $\Delta U(\widetilde{x}_1) \times \beta U(\widetilde{x}_1) \subset U_0(\widetilde{x}_1)$ .

We shall denote merely by  $\Upsilon$  the induced topology  $\Upsilon^{\mathcal{H}}$  in  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  by  $\mathcal{H}$  in the sequel. We obtain by (\*) that for any  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{H}$  and  $\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}$ ,  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  we can find  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $\mathcal{U}(\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}) + \widetilde{\mathcal{U}} \supset \mathcal{U}, (\widetilde{\mathcal{X}} + \widetilde{\mathcal{U}})$ . Thus for any  $A \in \Upsilon$  and  $\widetilde{\mathcal{L}} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$ , if  $\widetilde{\mathcal{X}} \in A$ , then there is by  $\S 27(2)$   $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{H}$  such that  $A \supset \mathcal{U}(\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}})$ , and hence we can find  $\mathcal{U} \in \mathcal{H}$  such that

 $A + \tilde{\alpha} \supset \sigma(\tilde{x}) + \tilde{\alpha} \supset \sigma_i(\tilde{x} + \tilde{\alpha}).$ 

Therefore we conclude that  $A \in \Upsilon$  implies  $A + \widetilde{a} \in \Upsilon$  for every  $\widetilde{a} \in \widetilde{R}$ . We also can prove likewise that  $A \in \Upsilon$  implies  $A \in \Upsilon$  for every  $A \neq \emptyset$ . Thus for an arbitrary manifold A of  $\widetilde{R}$  and  $A \neq \emptyset$ , as  $A^{\circ} \in \Upsilon$ , we obtain  $A = A^{\circ} \subset (A = A)^{\circ}$ . Accordingly we have further  $(A = A)^{\circ} \subset A \subset (A = A)^{\circ} = A = A^{\circ}$ . Therefore we have

(4+) (dA)° = dA° for d =0.

If  $0 \in A \in \Upsilon$ , then we can find  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $\nabla \cdot (0) \subseteq A$ . For such  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$ , as  $\nabla^R \in \mathcal{U}^{Q^2}$ , we can find a star  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$  such that

 $(\nabla \times \nabla) + z \subset R \mathcal{D}(z)$  for every  $z \in R$ ,

and further U, & W such that

 $V+x=RV_1(x)$  for every  $x \in R$ .

Then, as R is dense in  $\widetilde{R}$ , for any  $\widetilde{\pi} \in \widetilde{R}$  we can find  $x \in R$  such that  $\widetilde{x} \in \mathcal{T}_{0}^{\infty}(x)$ , and hence we have

~ ( T, ° (x) C ( T+ x) ".

From this relation we conclude by (\*\*) for  $0 < \alpha \le 1$ 

d 2 € (d V +d x) ~ < (V + dx).

Let  $\alpha$  be a positive number such that  $\alpha < 1$  and  $\alpha \times \in V$ . Then we have

(T+XX) C T (0) CA.

Thus, if  $0 \in A \in \mathcal{I}$ , then for any  $\mathcal{T} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $\alpha \widetilde{\mathcal{X}} \in A$ .

From (\*\*) we conclude easily by §43(16)

 $(\alpha A)^- = \alpha A^-$  for  $\alpha \neq 0$ .

157

Thus, if A is a symmetric star, then  $A^-$  also is a symmetric star, because  $\lambda A \subset A$  implies  $\lambda A^- \subset A^-$ . If  $a \in A \in \mathcal{I}$ , then there is  $v \in \mathcal{V}$  such that  $v^-(a) \subset A$  and for such  $v \in \mathcal{V}$  we can find a symmetric star  $v \in \mathcal{V}$  such that  $v \subset R v(a)$ . Then we have for  $1 \leq 1 \leq 1$ 

A > 0 (0) > 0 - > 5 0 - > 5 0 - 0 .

Finally we see at once by (\*) that if  $o \in A \in \mathcal{I}$ , then there is  $v \in \mathcal{U}$  such that  $v \in (0) \times v \in (0) \subset A$ . Therefore there exists uniquely by §54 Theorem 8 a linear topology  $v \in A$  on  $v \in A$  such  $v \in A$  is the induced topology by  $v \in A$ . Then for the relative linear topology  $v \in A$  as the induced topology in  $v \in A$  coincides with that in  $v \in A$  by  $v \in A$  coincides with that in  $v \in A$  by  $v \in A$  coincides with  $v \in A$  furthermore, as the induced uniformity by  $v \in A$  coincides with  $v \in A$  in a dense set  $v \in A$  we see by §30 Theorem 3 that  $v \in A$  is the induced uniformity in  $v \in A$  by  $v \in A$ . Therefore  $v \in A$  is complete. We can conclude the uniqueness from the uniqueness of completion for uniformity.

If R is not separated by V, then, putting  $S = \{e\}$ , we obtain by §54 Theorem 4 a closed linear manifold S, and hence the quotient space R/S is by §56 Theorem 6 separated by the relative linear topology  $V^{R/S}$ . Therefore there exists uniquely a completion  $\widetilde{R}$  of R/S. Then we conclude easily that the product space  $(\widetilde{R}, S)$  is a completion of (R/S, S). As (R/S, S) is by §56 Theorem 10 isohomeomorphic to R, we see that there exists uniquely a completion of R within a homeomorphism.

Theorem 2. For a linear topological space with a sequential linear topology, its completion also is of a sequential linear topology.

Proof. The completion of a linear topological space R with a sequential linear topology is a completion of R for the induced uniformity, and hence it is by §37 Theorem 2 sequential too.

# §61 Finite-dimensional linear spaces

Let a linear space R be finite-dimensional with the dimension  $\times$  , and  $\times_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\,2,\ldots,\kappa$ ) a basis of R . Every element of R may be

Dinear TOPOLOGICAL STATES represented uniquely as a linear combination of  $x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ).

If we put

$$V_0 = \left\{ \sum_{\nu=1}^{N} \xi_{\nu} \chi_{\nu} : |\xi_{\nu}| \le 1 \quad (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa) \right\},$$

then we see easily that  $V_o$  is a symmetric convex vicinity in R, and the pseudo-norm of  $V_o$  is given by

As  $V_s$  is a symmetric convex vicinity, there exists by §53 Theorem 3 uniquely a linear topology  $V_s$  on R of which  $V_s$  is a basis. This linear topology  $V_s$  is obviously of single vicinity and R is separated by  $V_s$ . Furthermore  $V_s$  is complete. Because, if  $a_{\mu} = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \alpha_{\nu_i \mu_i} a_{\nu_i \mu_i} a$ 

If we set

$$\varphi_{\mu}\left(\stackrel{\times}{\underset{\sim}{\sum}} \xi_{\nu} \chi_{\nu}\right) = \xi_{\mu} \qquad (\mu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa),$$

then we see easily that the induced uniformity by  $\Psi_{\epsilon}$  coincides with the weak uniformity by these linear functionals  $\mathcal{F}_{\mu}$  ( $\mu=1,2,\ldots,\times$ ). By virtue of §57 Theorem 4, every bounded manifold by  $\Psi_{\epsilon}$  is bounded by the induced uniformity, and hence totally bounded by §34 Theorem 11.

If R is separated by a linear topology  $\mathcal P$ , then we have  $\mathcal V=\mathcal V_0$ . Because, for any  $\nabla \in \mathcal V$  we can find by definition a symmetric star  $\nabla \in \mathcal V$  such that  $\nabla \times \nabla = 0$ , and  $\nabla \times \nabla = 0$  such that  $\nabla \times \nabla = 0$  for  $0 \le x \le x$ , y = 1, y = 1, y = 1. Then we have for y = 1, y = 1

that is,  $\ll V_o \subset V$ . Therefore we have  $V_o \supset V$  by definition. Of the other hand, let L be a closed star basis of V. Then we have

 $TI \lambda V = \{0\},$ 

as R is separated by V by assumption. As V, V, we have by §55 Theorem 4 V, and hence V is closed by V for every  $V \in \mathcal{L}$  and V > 0. If we put

then A is obviously bounded by  $\mathscr{C}_{o}$  and hence totally bounded by the in-

duced uniformity  $\mathcal{H}^{\mathcal{H}}$  by  $\mathcal{C}_{o}$ , as proved just above. Furthermore we see easily that A is complete by  $\mathcal{C}_{o}$ , and hence closed by the induced topology  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{H}_{o}}$ . Thus A is by §35 Theorem 5 compact by  $\mathcal{T}^{\mathcal{H}_{o}}$ . As

we can find by §7 Theorem 3 a finite number of vicinities  $\nabla_{\mu} \in \mathcal{L}$  and  $\lambda_{\mu} > 0$   $(\mu = 1, 2, ..., \sigma)$ ,) such that  $(\prod_{\mu = 1}^{m} \lambda_{\mu} \nabla_{\mu}) A = 0$ . Since  $\prod_{\mu = 1}^{m} \lambda_{\mu} \nabla_{\mu}$  is a star vicinity, we obtain hence  $\prod_{\mu = 1}^{m} \lambda_{\mu} \nabla_{\mu} \subset \nabla_{\sigma}$ . Therefore we obtain  $\mathcal{V} > \mathcal{V}_{\sigma}$ . Consequently we have  $\mathcal{V} = \mathcal{V}_{\sigma}$ . Thus we can state

Theorem 1. In a finite-dimensional linear space, there exists uniquely a separative linear topology, which is convex and of single vicinity, and

$$\left\{\sum_{\nu=1}^{\infty} \left\{ x_{\nu} : | \left\{ \nu = 1, 2, ..., x \right\} \right\} \right\}$$

is a basis of this linear topology for a basis  $x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) of R.

For an arbitrary linear topology V on R, putting  $S = \{o\}^r$ , we see by §56 Theorem 6 that the quotient space R/S is separated by the relative linear topology  $V^{R/S}$  of V, and further by §56 Theorem 10 that R is isohomeomorphic to the product space (R/S, S). Thus we have

Theorem 2. In a finite-dimensional linear space, every linear to-pology is convex, complete, and of single vicinity; and every bounded manifold is totally bounded by the induced uniformity.

As an immediate consequence of Theorem 2 we have

Theorem 3. If a linear manifold A of a linear topological space is finite-dimensional, then A is closed by the induced topology.

Theorem 4. For a linear topological space R with a separative linear topology  $\varphi$  of finite character, if there is a vicinity  $V, \in \varphi$ , which is totally bounded by the induced uniformity, then R is finite-dimensional.

<u>Proof.</u> We can assume obviously that  $\mathbf{V}_o$  is a symmetric star vicinity of finite character. Then there is a positive number  $\mathbf{X}$  such that for the pseudo-norm  $\mathbf{W} \times \mathbf{W}_{\mathbf{V}_o}$  of  $\mathbf{V}_o$  we have

(\*) ||x+y||<sub>v₀</sub> ≤ x (||x||<sub>v₀</sub> + ||y||<sub>v₀</sub>).

R is separated by V., that is,  $\|x\|_{V_0} = 0$  implies x = 0.

cause, if  $\|a\|_{V_0} = 0$ ,  $a \neq 0$ , then we have  $\|x + a\|_{V_0} = 0$  for every real number x, and hence  $x \in V$ , for every x. As x is separative by assumtion, there is  $x \in V$  such that  $x \in V$  for some x, and hence x, is not bounded by x, contradicting by x Theorem 5 the assumption that x is totally bounded by the induced uniformity.

For a finite-dimensional linear manifold S, if  $\inf_{x\in S} \|a-x\|_{V_0} = 0$ , then we can find a sequence  $z_\mu \in S$  ( $\mu=1,2,\ldots$ ) such that  $\lim_{x\to\infty} \|a-z_\mu\|_{V_0} = 0$ , and hence by (\*)  $\lim_{x\to\infty} \|z_\mu-z_\mu\|_{V_0} = 0$ . Since S is by Theorem 2 complete by the linear topology on S of which  $V_0^S$  is a basis, there exists then  $z_n \in S$  such that  $\lim_{x\to\infty} \|z_\mu-z_\nu\|_{V_0} = 0$ . On account of (\*), we obtain therefore  $\|z_0-\alpha\|_{V_0} = 0$ , and consequently  $a=z_0 \in S$ . Thus if  $a\in S$ , then, putting

$$d = \inf_{x \in S} \|a - x\|_{V_{\alpha}} > 0$$

we can find  $\chi_0 \in S$  such that  $\| \alpha - \chi_0 \|_{\nabla_0} < 2 \alpha$ . For such  $\chi_0 \in \hat{S}$ , putting  $d = \frac{1}{2 \| \alpha - \chi_0 \|_{\nabla_0}} (\alpha - \chi_0),$ 

we have  $\| \| \|_{V_0} = \frac{1}{2}$ , and for every  $x \in S$ , as  $x_0 + 2\| a - x_0\|_{V_0} = S$ ,

$$\|\mathbf{d} - \mathbf{x}\|_{\mathbf{F}_0} = \frac{\|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{x}_0 - 2\|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{x}_0\|_{\mathbf{F}_0} \mathbf{x}\|}{2\|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{x}_0\|_{\mathbf{F}_0}} \ge \frac{\mathbf{d}}{4\mathbf{d}} = \frac{1}{4}$$

Therefore, if R is not finite-dimensional, then there is a sequence of elements  $z_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1$ , 2,...) such that

Then we have by the formula  $\S49(2)$   $\varkappa_{\nu} \in V_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), but  $\{\varkappa_{1}, \varkappa_{2}, ...\}$  is not totally bounded by the induced uniformity. Because, if  $\{\varkappa_{1}, \varkappa_{2}, ...\} \subset \sum_{\nu=1}^{N} \left(\frac{1}{2^{\nu}} V_{\nu} + a_{\nu}\right)$ 

for some finite number of elements  $a_{\nu} \in \mathcal{R}(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , then we can find  $\nu$  and  $\rho \neq \beta$  such that  $\pi_{\mu}, \pi_{\rho} \in (\frac{1}{\beta \chi} \nabla_{\sigma} + a_{\nu})$ . This relation yields by  $\S49(2) \| \mathbf{x}_{\mu} - a_{\nu} \|_{\Psi_{\sigma}} \leq \frac{1}{\beta \chi}$ ,  $\| \mathbf{x}_{\rho} - a_{\nu} \|_{\Psi_{\sigma}} \leq \frac{1}{\beta \chi}$ , and hence by (\*)  $\| \mathbf{x}_{\mu} - \mathbf{x}_{\rho} \|_{\Psi_{\sigma}} \leq \frac{1}{\beta}$ , contradicting  $\| \mathbf{x}_{\mu} - \mathbf{x}_{\rho} \| \geq \frac{1}{4}$ .

# \$62 Weak linear topologies

Let R be a linear topological space with a linear topology  $\mathscr V$ . A functional  $\mathscr V$  on R is said to be <u>continuous</u> by  $\mathscr V$ , if  $\mathscr V$  is continuous

by the induced topology  $\gamma^{\varphi}$ , and  $\varphi$  is said to be <u>uniformly continuous</u> by  $\gamma^{\varphi}$ , if  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous by the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{M}^{\varphi}$ .

LINEAR TOPOLOGY

With this definition we have

§61, §62)

Theorem 1. In order that a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R be continuous, it is necessary and sufficient that we can find a symmetric convex vicinity  $V \in \mathscr{V}$  such that  $\varphi$  is bounded in V, that is,

$$\|\varphi\|_{\varphi} = \sup_{x \in \mathcal{T}} |\varphi(x)| < +\infty$$
.

Proof. If f is continuous, then, putting

we have  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$ , because we can find  $\nabla_{x} \in \mathcal{V}$  such that  $\nabla_{x} \in \mathcal{V}$ . Furthermore  $\nabla$  is symmetric and convex, because  $|\varphi(x)|$ ,  $|\varphi(y)| \le 1$  implies for  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda$ ,  $\mu \ge 0$ 

14 (xx+ mg) = |x 4cx) + m 4cg) | ≤ x 14(x) 1+ m 14cg) | ≤ 1.

Conversely, if  $\| \varphi \|_{\Psi} < +\infty$  for a symmetric convex vicinity  $\Psi \in Q^{\circ}$ , then for any  $z, \in R$  and  $\varepsilon > 0$  we have by the formula §52(2)

$$\mathcal{E}V + \mathcal{X}_{o} \subset \left\{ \left. \mathcal{X} + \mathcal{X}_{o} : \left. \left| \varphi(\mathbf{x}) \right| \leq \|\varphi\|_{\mathcal{E}V} = \mathcal{E} \|\varphi\|_{V} \right\} \right.$$

$$= \left\{ \left. \mathcal{X} : \left. \left| \varphi(\mathbf{x}) - \varphi(\mathbf{x}_{o}) \right| \leq \mathcal{E} \|\varphi\|_{V} \right\} \right.$$

Therefore  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous by the induced uniformity  $\mathcal{N}^{\mathscr{P}}$ , and hence naturally continuous by the induced topology  $\Upsilon^{\mathscr{P}}$ .

In this Proof we obtain further

Theorem 2. If a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R is continuous by  $\varphi$ , then  $\varphi$  is uniformly continuous by  $\varphi$ .

Now let R be merely a linear space and P a linear functional on R. Putting  $V = \{x : | \P(x)| \le 1\}$ , we obtain a symmetric convex vicinity V in R, as proved just above. Thus there exists uniquely by §53 Theorem 4 a linear topology  $P^{P}$  on R of which V is a basis. By virtue of Theorem 1, we see at once that P is continuous by this linear topology  $P^{P}$ . For a linear topology  $P^{P}$  on R, if  $P^{P}$  is continuous by  $P^{P}$ , then  $P^{P}$  must contain naturally  $P^{P}$ , and hence  $P^{P}$  is the weakest linear topology by which  $P^{P}$  be continuous. This linear topology  $P^{P}$  is called the weak linear topology of  $P^{P}$  by a linear functional  $P^{P}$ . As  $EV + \Delta = \{x : | P^{P}(x) - P^{P}(\Delta) | S E \}$ , we see easily that

§62)

the induced uniformity by & f coincides with the weak uniformity of R by  $\mathscr C$  , and hence the induced topology by  $\mathscr C$  coincides with the weak topology of R by 9.

For a collection of linear functionals f on R, there exists the weakest linear topology on R by which every linear functional of f' be Because, for the weak linear topology  $\P^{\mathcal{A}}$  by  $\mathcal{G} \in \mathcal{F}$  , putting  $\mathcal{V} = \bigcup_{g \in \mathcal{F}} q^g$ , we see easily that every  $g \in \mathcal{F}$  is continuous by  $\mathcal{V}$ , and every linear topology on R , by which every  $\mathscr{G} \in \mathscr{F}$  is continuous, is stronger than ". This linear topology " on R is called the weak linear topology of R by F. Every weak linear topology of R is obviously convex by \$55 Theorem 3.

With this definition we obtain by §55 Theorem 2

Theorem 3. For a collection of linear functionals f on R, the totality of manifolds  $\{z: |q_{\nu}(z)| \le 1 \ (\nu=1, 2, ..., \varkappa)\}$  for every finite number of linear functionals 4. ef ( = 1, 2, ..., x) is a basis of the weak linear topology of R by F.

Recalling \$55 Theorem 5, we obtain further

The induced topology and the induced uniformity by the Theorem 4. weak linear topology by a collection of linear functionals & coincide respectively with the weak topology and the weak uniformity by F.

Let f and q be two collections of linear functionals For the week linear topologies w, , v respectively by 5 , 7 , in order that V 5 > V 3, it is necessary and sufficient that the linear manifold generated by  $\mathcal F$  in the associated space  $\widetilde{\mathcal R}$  of  $\mathcal R$  contains  $\mathcal F$ .

Let  $\widetilde{\mathcal{F}}$  be the linear manifold generated by  $\mathcal{F}$  in the associated space  $\widetilde{R}$  of R . It is obvious by definition that every  $\varphi \in \widetilde{F}$ is continuous by  $\mathscr{C}^{\mathfrak{F}}$ . Thus the weak linear topology of  $\mathcal{R}$  by  $\widetilde{\mathcal{F}}$  coincides by definition with that of R by F. Therefore, if  $\tilde{\mathcal{F}} \supset q$ , then To is by definition stronger than V. Conversely, if V. is stronger than  $\mathcal{G}^{\mathcal{B}}$ , then for any  $\mathcal{V} \in \mathcal{G}$  we can find by Theorem 3 a finite number of linear functionals  $\mathcal{G}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) and  $\mathcal{E} > 0$  such that

 $\{x: |\varphi_{\nu}(x)| \le \mathcal{E} \quad (\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)\} \subset \{x: |\psi(x)| \le 1\}.$ 

163 that is,  $|\varphi_{\nu}(x)| \le \varepsilon$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) implies  $|\psi(x)| \le 1$ . any  $\alpha > 0$ ,  $|\varphi_{\nu}(\alpha)| \le \frac{\mathcal{E}}{\alpha} (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  implies  $|\psi(\alpha \kappa)| \le 1$ , and hence  $|\psi(z)| \le \frac{1}{a}$ . Therefore we conclude that  $\varphi_{\nu}(z) = 0 \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ implies y(z) = 0. If we set

 $A = \{x : \varphi_{\nu}(z) = 0 \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)\}$ then A is obviously a linear manifold of R , and considering  $\mathscr{C}_{\nu}$  as a linear functional on the quotient space  $\mathcal{R}$  /A , we see by §45 Theorem 6

that every linear functional on R/A is a linear combination of  $\mathcal{G}_{\nu}$  $(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ . As  $\psi(x)=0$  for every  $\kappa \in A$ ,  $\psi$  may be considered as a linear functional on R/A , and hence  $\Psi$  is a linear combination of  $\mathcal{G}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ). Thus we have  $\psi \in \widetilde{f}$  for every  $\psi \in \mathcal{G}$ .

In order that the weak linear topology of R by a collection of linear functionals & be of single vicinity. it is necessary and sufficient that the linear manifold generated by f in the associated space R of R be finite-dimensional.

If  $\mathcal{F}$  is contained in a linear manifold generated by a Proof. finite number of linear functionals  $\mathscr{G}_{\nu}$  ( $u=1,\ 2,\dots, imes$  ), then the weak linear topology of R by f is by Theorem 3 of single vicinity with a basis

 $\{x: |\Psi_{\nu}(x)| \leq 1 \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)\}$ 

Conversely, if the weak linear topology of of R by of is of single vicinity, then we can find by Theorem 3 a finite number of linear functionals  $\mathcal{Q}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\{x : |\mathcal{Q}_{\nu}(x)| \le 1 \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)\}$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{Q}^{\mathcal{F}}$ and hence we conclude by Theorem 5 that f is contained in the linear manifold generated by  $\mathscr{G}_{\nu}$  (  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$  ).

In order that a manifold A of R be bounded by the Theorem 7. week linear topology  ${f v}^{\it F}$  by a collection of linear functionals  ${\it F}$  , it is necessary and sufficient that we have

 $\sup_{x \in A} |\varphi(x)| < +\infty \quad \text{for every } \varphi \in \mathcal{F}.$ 

If A is bounded by  $\varphi^{\mathcal{F}}$ , then for each  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$  , as we have Proof. by Theorem 3  $\{z: |4(z)| \le 1\} \in \mathcal{Q}^{\mathfrak{F}}$ , we can find by definition  $\ll > 0$ such that

 $A < \propto \{x : |\varphi(x)| \le 1\} = \{x : |\varphi(x)| \le \alpha\}.$ 

\$62. \$65)

and hence  $\sup_{x \in A} |\mathscr{C}(x)| \le d$ . Conversely, if  $\sup_{x \in A} |\mathscr{C}(x)| < +\infty$  for every  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$ , then for every finite number of linear functionals  $\mathscr{C}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $\sup_{x \in A} |\mathscr{C}_{\nu}(x)| \le \alpha$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ , and then we have

 $A \subset d \{x : |q_{\nu}(x)| \le 1$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., x \}$ . Thus A is bounded by Theorem 3.

Recalling \$54 Theorem 11, we conclude immediately from Theorem 7

Theorem 8. If a manifold A of R is bounded by the weak linear topology of of R for a collection of linear functionals f, then A is totally bounded by V.f.

Theorem 9. If a linear manifold A of R is closed by the weak linear topology  $\mathcal{C}^{\mathcal{F}}$  of R for a collection of linear functionals  $\mathcal{F}$ , then for any  $\pi$ ,  $\in A$  we can find  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\varphi(\pi_0) \neq 0$  but  $\varphi(\pi) = 0$  for every  $\pi \in A$ .

Proof. For a linear manifold A of R, if  $\varphi(x) = 0$  for every  $x \in A$ ,  $\varphi \in \mathcal{F}$ , implies  $\varphi(x_0) = 0$ , then for every finite number of linear functionals  $\varphi_{\nu} \in \mathcal{F}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), considering  $\varphi_{\nu}$  as linear functionals on A,  $\sum_{i=1}^{n} \xi_{i} \varphi_{\nu} = 0$  implies  $\sum_{i=1}^{n} \xi_{i} \varphi_{\nu}(x_0) = 0$ , and hence there is by §46 Theorem 4  $A \in A$  such that  $\varphi_{\nu}(x_0) = \varphi_{\nu}(x_0)$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ). Thus, if A is closed by the weak linear topology  $\varphi(x_0)$ , then we must have  $x_0 \in A$ .

Theorem 10. The weak linear topology of R by a collection of linear functionals 5 is separative, if and only if f is fundamental.

<u>Proof.</u> If the weak linear topology  $\psi^f$  is separative, then for any  $x \ne 0$  we can find by Theorem 3  $\psi \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\psi(x) \ne 0$ , and hence  $\mathcal{F}$  is fundamental. Conversely, if  $\mathcal{F}$  is fundamental, then for any  $x \ne 0$  we can find  $\psi \in \mathcal{F}$  such that  $\psi(x) \ne 0$ , and hence we conclude by Theorem 3 that the weak linear topology  $\psi^f$  is separative.

#### §63 Quasi-normed linear spaces

A linear space R associated with a quasi-norm NxM (xeR) is

called a quasi-normed linear space. With this definition we see easily that, putting  $\nabla_{a} = \{x : \| x \| \| \le a \}$  for a > 0, we obtain a symmetric star vicinity  $\nabla_{a}$  for every a > 0, and we have

because  $\mathbb{R} \times + \mathcal{G} = \mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R} + \mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R}$  for every  $\mathbb{R}$ ,  $\mathcal{G} \in \mathbb{R}$ . Therefore there exists uniquely by §55 Theorem 3 a linear topology  $\mathbb{C}$ , on  $\mathbb{R}$  such that  $\mathbb{V}_{\mathbf{x}}(\mathbf{x} > 0)$  is a basis of  $\mathbb{C}$ . This linear topology  $\mathbb{C}$  is called the induced linear topology by a quasi-norm  $\mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R}$ .

Since  $\nabla_{\frac{1}{\nu}}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) is obviously a basis of  $\sqrt[4]{r}$ , we obtain Theorem 1. The induced linear topology by a quasi-norm is sequential.

Furthermore we have obviously by definition

Theorem 2. A quasi-norm is proper if and only if the induced linear topology is separative.

Theorem 3. In order that the induced linear topology by a quasinorm NIXN (XER) be of single vicinity, it is necessary and sufficient
that we can find & >0 such that

lim sup mīzn =0.

<u>Proof.</u> If the induced linear topology  $V_0$  is of single vicinity, then we can find d>0 such that  $V_{cl}$  is a basis of  $V_0$  for the notation indicated just above, and for any  $\ell>0$  we can find  $\lambda>0$  such that  $\lambda V_{cl} \subset V_{\ell}$ , that is,

 $\label{eq:main_problem} \mathbb{M} \, \lambda \, \kappa \, \, \mathbb{M} \, \leqq \, \epsilon \qquad \text{for } \, \mathbb{M} \, \approx \, \mathbb{M} \, \, \& \, \, \delta \, .$  This relation yields obviously

lim sup  $\| \mathbf{x} \times \mathbf{w} \| = 0$ . Conversely, if this relation holds for some  $\alpha > 0$ , then we see easily that  $V_{\alpha}$  is a basis of  $V_{\alpha}$  for such  $\alpha > 0$ .

Theorem 4. If a quasi-norm is of finite character, then the induced linear-topology is of single vicinity.

Proof. If a quasi-norm  $\mathbb{N} \times \mathbb{N}$  ( $x \in R$ ) is of finite character, then we can find by definition two positive numbers  $x \in Y$  such that

1 Nxn≥n xn for nxn≤d,

and hence we have for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

Thus we have

lim sup uşzn=0.

Therefore  $V_{\rm ed}$  is a basis of the induced linear topology by Theorem 3.

Theorem 5. A quasi-norm  $g_{\mathcal{Z}} = (\mathcal{Z} \in \mathcal{R})$  is uniformly continuous by the induced linear topology.

Proof. As we have by definition for every z, y & R

we conclude easily by definition our assertion.

We have defined already in \$50 the completeness of a quasi-norm. As the induced linear topology by a quasi-norm is sequential by Theorem 1, we have obviously by the definition of completeness in \$59

Theorem 6. A quasi-norm is complete if and only if the induced linear topology is complete.

Recalling §50 Theorem 3, we obtain immediately

Theorem 7. For a sequential linear topology on a linear space

R there is a quasi-norm on R by which of is the induced linear topology.

Furthermore we have by \$50 Theorem 4

for some positive number X.

#### CHAPTER IX

#### ADJOINT SPACES

#### \$64 Adjoint topology

Let R be a linear topological space with a linear topology  $\mathscr C$ . A linear functional  $\mathscr C$  on R is said to be bounded, if we have

sup 14(x) | < +00

for every bounded manifold A of R by V. With this definition we shall prove firstly

Theorem 1. Every continuous linear functional is bounded.

Proof. If a linear functional  $\mathcal P$  is continuous, then we can find by §62 Theorem 1 a syymetric convex vicinity  $V \in \mathcal P$  such that

sup | \( \alpha \) < +00.

For any bounded manifold A we can find by definition < > 0 such that A < < v. Then we have by the formula 52(2)

 $\sup_{x \in A} |\varphi(x)| \le \sup_{x \in A^{\vee}} |\varphi(x)| = ||\varphi||_{A_{\nabla}} = d||\varphi||_{\Psi} < +\infty.$  Therefore  $\varphi$  is bounded by definition.

Theorem 2. If a linear topology % is equivalently strongest or standard, then every bounded linear functional is continuous.

Proof. Let  $\varphi$  be a bounded linear functional on R. Putting  $V = \{x : || \varphi(z)| \le 1\}$ .

we see easily that  $V_s$  is a symmetric convex vicinity. Thus there is uniquely by §53 Theorem 4 a linear topology  $V_s$ , of which  $V_s$  is a basis. Then, for each bounded manifold A by  $V_s$ , putting  $d = \sup_{x \in A} | V_s(x)|$ , we have  $A \subset dV_s$ , because  $d \in V_s = \{dx : |V_s(x)| \le 1\} = \{x : |V_s(x)| \le d\}$ . Thus every bounded manifold by  $V_s$  also is bounded by  $V_s$ . Therefore we see easily by §55 Theorem 2 that  $V_s = V_s$  is equivalent to  $V_s$ . As  $V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s$ . Therefore  $V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s$ . Therefore  $V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s$ . Therefore  $V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s$ . Therefore  $V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s$ . Therefore  $V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s$ . Therefore  $V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s = V_s$ .

The totality of bounded linear functionals on R is called the adjoint space of R by a linear topology  $\mathcal O$  and denoted by  $\overline{R}^{\mathcal O}$ . With this definition we see easily that the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{\mathcal O}$  is a linear ma-

168

Let  ${\mathfrak A}$  be the totality of bounded manifolds of  ${\mathfrak K}$  by  ${\mathscr C}$  . Corraspending to every  $A\in \mathcal{Q}$  , putting for  $\overline{z}\in \overline{\mathcal{R}}^{\mathscr{R}}$ 

 $\nabla_A = \{ \vec{z} : |\vec{z}(a)| \leq 1 \quad \text{for every } a \in A \}.$ cause [X(e) 151, [g(a) [51 for every a & A implies

1(22+ Mg)(a) = 2 | 2(a) + M | g (a) | # 1 for  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda$ ,  $\mu \ge 0$ . For such  $\overline{\psi}_{\alpha}$  we have opviously for every > >0.  $a \, \overline{\nabla}_{a} = \overline{\nabla}_{a} a$ 

As  $A \in \mathcal{R}$  implies at  $A \in \mathcal{R}$  and  $A, B \in \mathcal{R}$  implies  $A + B \in \mathcal{R}$ , we see Therefore there exists uniquely a linear conditions in §53 Theorem 3. topology To on R of which the system V (A & R ) is a basis. linear topology W is called the adjoint topology of W. definition we see at once that a linear topology equivalent to V has the same adjoint topology with V.

A collection of bounded manifolds & in & by V is called a root of &, if for any bounded manifold A by W we can find B & R such that For a root & of &, we see easily by definition that

' {Z : sup |Z (z)|<+== for every A < R} is the adjoint space of R. by (2), and the system

| R : |R (R)|≤| for every x ∈ A }  $(A \in \mathcal{R})$ is a basis of the adjoint topology \$\vec{v}\$ of \$\varphi\$. Because for any bounded manifold 8 we can find  $A \in \mathbb{R}$  such that  $B \subset A$ , and then

 $\{\vec{z}: |\vec{z}(z)| \le 1 \text{ for every } z \in 8\} \supset \{\vec{z}: |\vec{z}(z)| \le 1 \text{ for every } z \in A\}$ 

The adjoint topology is convex and separative. Theorem 3.

The adjoint topology \$\vec{\psi}\$ of \$\psi\$ is obviously convex by de-Proof. For  $\bar{a} \in \bar{R}^{\mathcal{P}}$ , if  $\bar{a} \neq 0$ , then we can find  $a \in R$  such that finition. For such  $a \in R$ , putting  $\overline{v} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(a)| \leq 1\}$ , we have 及(0)>1.  $\overline{a}$   $\overline{\epsilon}$   $\overline{V}$  but  $\overline{V}$   $\epsilon$   $\overline{V}$ , because a is itself a bounded manifold of R by V. Thus W is separative.

For each a ER, putting

 $a(\overline{x}) = \overline{x}(a)$  for every  $\overline{x} \in \overline{x}^{P}$ 

we can consider  $\alpha$  as a linear functional on  $\mathbb{R}^{\mathcal{R}}$  . Then we have Theorem 4.

Every element a & R is continuous by the adjoint topology \$\overline{\phi}\$ of \$\psi\$ as a linear functional on \$\overline{\rho}\$\$ by the relation

ADJOINT SPACES

 $a(\overline{x}) = \overline{x}(a)$  for  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}^p$ 

Every  $\alpha \in R$  is bounded by  $\varphi$  as a manifold. ting  $\nabla = \{ \vec{z} : | \vec{z}(\alpha) | \leq 1 \}$ , we have  $\nabla \in \mathcal{C}$ , and hence we conclude by §6: Theorem 1 that a is continuous by  $\overline{R}$  as a linear functional on  $\overline{R}$ 

In order that a manifold A of the adjoint space R ? Theorem 5. be bounded by the adjoint topology  $\overline{\psi}$  , it is necessary and sufficient that for every bounded manifold A of R by % we have

ZeA, zeA |Z(z) | < +00.

If A is bounded by the adjoint topology V, then for each bounded manifold A of R by Q, putting

 $\overline{V}_A = \{ \overline{z} : |\overline{z}(a)| \le 1 \text{ for every } a \in A \}$ 

we have  $\overline{V}_A \in \widetilde{V}$  , and hence we can find by definition of >0 such that  $\widetilde{A} \le$ al  $\overline{\mathbb{V}}_4$  . For such d > 0 we have

sup  $|\overline{z}(z)| \le \sup_{\overline{z} \in \overline{A}, z \in A} |\overline{z}(z)| \le \alpha \le \sup_{\overline{z} \in \overline{A}, z \in A} |\overline{z}(z)| \le \alpha$ .

Conversely, if  $\sup_{\overline{z} \in \overline{A}, z \in A} |\overline{z}(z)| <+\infty$  for every bounded manifold Aof R, then, putting  $\alpha = \sup_{\vec{x} \in \vec{x}, \vec{x} \in A} |\vec{x}(x)|$ , we have

 $\overline{A} \subset \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(a)| \leq \alpha \text{ for every } a \in A\}$ 

 $= \{ d\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(a)| \le 1 \text{ for every } a \in A \} = d\overline{V}_A$ .

As the system of  $\overline{\mathbb{V}}_A$  for all bounded manifold A of R is by definition a basis of  $\overline{\mathscr{Q}}$  ,  $\overline{A}$  is therefore bounded by  $\overline{\mathscr{Q}}$  .

Theorem 6. For every V & ??, the manifold

 $\{\overline{\mathbf{z}}: |\overline{\mathbf{z}}(\mathbf{x})| \leq 1 \quad \text{for every } \mathbf{x} \in \overline{\mathbf{v}}\}$ 

is closed and bounded by the adjoint topology  $\overline{V}$  of V .

For each bounded manifold  ${\cal A}$  of  ${\cal R}$  we can find by defini-Proof. tion  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $A < \alpha \nabla$ . Thus, putting

 $\vec{A} = |\vec{z} : |\vec{x}(z)| \le 1$  for every  $z \in \nabla$ ,

we have  $\sup_{\overline{x} \in \overline{A}, x \in A} |\overline{x}(x)| \le \sup_{\overline{x} \in \overline{A}, x \in A} |\overline{x}(x)| \le d \sup_{\overline{x} \in \overline{A}, x \in V} |\overline{x}(x)| \le d.$  Thus  $\overline{A}$  is by Theorem 5 bounded by  $\overline{\varphi}$ . Furthermore  $\overline{A}$  is closed by  $\overline{\varphi}$ , be-

§64, §65)

171

cause  $\overline{A} = \prod_{z \in \mathcal{V}} \{\overline{z} : |\overline{z}(z)| \le 1\}$  and every  $z \in \overline{V}$  may be considered by Theorem 4 as a continuous linear functional on the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{(2)}$  by  $\mathscr{C}$ ,

Theorem 7. If  $\emptyset$  is convex, then for any  $\nabla \in \widehat{\nabla}$ ,  $\{z: |\overline{z}(z)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{z} \in \widehat{\nabla}\}$ 

#### is a bounded manifold of R by V.

Proof. For every closed convex vicinity V & V, as V is by \$54
Theorem 2 scalar-closed, putting

 $\widetilde{A} = \{ \overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \quad \text{for every } x \in \overline{Y} \},$  we have by §52 Theorem 3

 $\nabla = \{ \times : | \pi(z) | \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{z} \in \overline{A} \}.$  As  $\overline{A}$  is bounded by Theorem 6, for any  $\overline{V} \in \overline{V}$  we can find z > 0 such that  $z \in \overline{A} \subset \overline{V}$ , and hence

 $\{x: |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{V}\}$   $C\{x: |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A}\}$   $=\{\frac{1}{2}x: |\alpha \overline{x}(\frac{1}{2}z)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A}\} = \frac{1}{\alpha} \overline{V}.$ 

Theorem 8. If  $\psi$  is equivalently strongest or standard, then for every bounded manifold  $\overline{A}$  of  $\overline{R}^{\psi}$  we have

{ z : | ₹(z)| ≤ 1 for every \$ € Ā } € \$.

Proof. Putting  $V_0 = \{x : |\vec{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \vec{x} \in \vec{A} \}$ , we see easily that  $V_0$  is a symmetric convex vicinity in R. Thus there is by §53 Theorem 4 a linear topology  $V_0$  on R such that  $V_0$  is a basis of  $V_0$ . For each bounded manifold A of R by  $V_0$ , as we have by definition  $\{\vec{x} : |\vec{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in A\} \in \vec{V}$ , there is  $\vec{x} > 0$  such that

 $\vec{A} \subset \alpha \left\{ \vec{x} : |\vec{x}(x)| \le 1 \right\}$  for every  $\vec{x} \in \vec{A}$ =  $\left\{ \vec{x} : |\vec{x}(x)| \le 1 \right\}$  for every  $\vec{x} \in \left\{ \vec{A} \right\}$ ,

and hence  $|\tilde{x}(x)| \leq 1$  for  $\tilde{x} \in \tilde{A}$ ,  $x \in \frac{1}{\alpha}A$ . Therefore we have  $\frac{1}{\alpha}A \subset V_o$ . Consequently every bounded manifold A by V is bounded by  $V_o$  too. Thus  $V = V_o$  is equivalent to V. As V is equivalently strongest or standard by assumption, we obtain hence  $V = V = V_o$ .

A manifold  $\vec{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\vec{R}^{\mathcal{P}}$  is said to be uniformly bounded, if we can find  $\forall \, \in \, \mathcal{V}$  such that

sup |\( \var{z} \) | < + =0 .

With this definition we see easily

Theorem 9. If a manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  is uniformly bounded by  $\overline{V}$ , then  $\overline{A}$  is bounded by  $\overline{V}$ .

Theorem 10. If V is convex and every bounded manifold of  $\overline{R}^{V}$  is uniformly bounded by the adjoint topology  $\overline{V}$ , then V is standard.

<u>Proof.</u> Let  $V_o$  be a standard linear topology equivalent to V. The existence of such  $V_o$  is obvious by §57 Theorem 8. For every symmetric closed convex vicinity  $V \in V_o$ , putting

 $\widetilde{A} = \{ \, \overline{z} \, : \, | \, \overline{z} \, (z) | \leq 1 \quad \text{for every } z \in V \, \},$  we have by §52 Theorem 3

 $\nabla = \{x : |\overline{x}(z)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A} \}.$ 

Recalling Theorem 6, we see that  $\overrightarrow{A}$  is bounded by  $\overrightarrow{\Psi}$ , because  $\overrightarrow{\Psi}$  also is the adjoint topology of  $\Psi_0$ . Thus  $\overrightarrow{A}$  is uniformly bounded by assumption, and hence there is by definition  $\overrightarrow{v} \in \Psi$  such that  $|\overrightarrow{\pi}(x)| \leq 1$  for  $\overrightarrow{\pi} \in \overrightarrow{A}$ ,  $x \in \overrightarrow{V}$ . Hence we have  $\overrightarrow{v} < \overrightarrow{v}$ , and consequently  $\overrightarrow{V} \in \Psi$ . Therefore we conclude  $\Psi \supset \Psi_0$ , and hence naturally  $\Psi = \Psi_0$ .

## §65 Weak topology

Let R be a linear topological space with a linear topology P,  $\overline{R}^{P}$  the adjoint space of R by P, and  $\overline{P}$  the adjoint topology of P. Every element  $A \in R$  may be considered as a linear functional on  $\overline{R}^{P}$  by the relation:  $A(\overline{R}) = \overline{X}(A)$  for every  $\overline{X} \in \overline{R}^{P}$ . The weak linear topology of  $\overline{R}^{P}$  by the system of linear functionals A ( $A \in R$ ) in this sense, is called the <u>weak topology</u> of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{P}$ . Since every  $A \in R$  is continuous by §64 Theorem 4 as a linear functional on  $\overline{R}^{P}$  by  $\overline{P}$ , the weak topology of  $\overline{R}^{P}$  is by definition weaker than the adjoint topology  $\overline{P}$ . Recalling §62 Theorem 10, we see further that the weak topology of  $\overline{R}^{P}$  is convex and separative.

A manifold  $\overline{A}$  of  $\overline{R}^{Q}$  will be said to be weakly bounded, weakly totally bounded, weakly closed, or weakly compact, if  $\overline{A}$  is so respectively by the weak topology of  $R^{\mathcal{R}}$ . On the other hand we shall say merely that a manifold  $\overline{A}$  of  $R^{\mathcal{R}}$  is bounded, totally bounded, closed, or open, if  $\overline{A}$  is so respectively by the adjoint topology  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$ .

Recalling §62 Theorem 7 we have obviously

Theorem 1. A manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{\mathcal{V}}$  is weakly bounded, if and only if  $\sup_{\overline{Z} \in \overline{A}} |\overline{Z}(z)| < +\infty$  for every  $z \in R$ .

We obtain further by §62 Theorem 8

Theorem 2. Every weakly bounded manifold  $\tilde{A}$  of  $\tilde{R}^{\circ}$  is weakly totally bounded.

Theorem 3. For every vicinity v in R,

{z: |z(z)| \leq 1 for every x \in V}

#### is weakly bounded.

Proof. For each  $x \in \mathbb{R}$  we can find x > 0 such that  $x \in \mathbb{V}$ . Putting  $\overline{A} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in \mathbb{V}\}$ , we have for such x > 0  $|\overline{x}(xx)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A},$  and hence  $\sup_{\overline{x} \in \overline{A}} |\overline{x}(x)| \le \frac{1}{\alpha}$ . Therefore  $\overline{A}$  is weakly bounded by Theorem 1.

Theorem 4. For every vicinity  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$ ,  $\{ \vec{x} : | \vec{x}(x) | \leq 1 \text{ for every } x \in \vec{V} \}$ 

# is weakly compact.

Proof. Putting  $\overline{A}=\{\overline{x}:|\overline{x}(x)|\leq i \text{ for every } x\in V\}$ , we see by Theorem 3 that  $\overline{A}$  is weakly bounded. Thus, corresponding to every  $x\in R$  we can find by Theorem 1  $X_x>0$  such that

 $-\mathcal{X}_{x} \leq \overline{\mathcal{X}}(x) \leq \mathcal{X}_{x}$  for every  $\overline{\mathcal{X}} \in \overline{\mathcal{A}}$ .

For a functional  $\Psi$  on R subject to the condition:

 $-Y_{z} \leq \varphi(x) \leq Y_{z} \qquad \text{for every $z \in R$},$  putting  $\overline{A}_{x,\xi} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x) - \varphi(x)| < \xi\}$ , if  $\overline{A} \stackrel{\text{TI}}{\coprod} \overline{A}_{x,\xi} \neq 0$  for every finite number of elements  $x_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) and  $\varepsilon > 0$ , then  $\varphi$  is a linear functional on R. Because, for two elements x,  $y \in R$  and real numbers  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$ , for any  $\varepsilon > 0$  we can find  $\overline{x} \in \overline{A}_{x,\varepsilon} \stackrel{\text{A}}{A}_{y,\varepsilon} \stackrel{\text{A}}{A}_{\alpha \times +} \beta y \cdot \varepsilon$ . For such  $\overline{x}$  we have naturally  $|\overline{x}(x) - \varphi(x)| < \varepsilon$ ,  $|\overline{x}(y) - \varphi(y)| < \varepsilon$ .

17 (dx+by) - 4 (dx+by) 1 < E,

and hence  $|x \varphi(x) + \beta \varphi(y) - \varphi(\alpha x + \beta y)| \le (|\alpha| + |\beta|) \varepsilon$ . As  $\varepsilon > 0$  may be arbitrary, we obtain therefore  $\varphi(\alpha x + \beta y) = \alpha \varphi(x) + \beta \varphi(y)$ .

Furthermore, for any  $z \in V$  and  $\varepsilon > 0$  we can find  $\widetilde{z} \in \widetilde{AA}_{z,\varepsilon}$ , and we have  $|\P(z)| \leq |\widetilde{z}(z)| + \varepsilon \leq 1 + \varepsilon$ . Thus we conclude  $|\P(z)| \leq 1$  for every  $z \in V$ . Accordingly  $\varphi$  is continuous by  $\Psi$  and  $\varphi \in \widetilde{A}$ . Therefore  $\widetilde{A}$  is weakly compact by §19 Theorem 4.

Theorem 5. If a bounded manifold A of R 1s weakly closed, then A is weakly compact.

<u>Proof.</u> We can assume obviously that V is equivalently strongest. Then for a bounded manifold  $\widetilde{A}$  of  $\widetilde{R}$  V, putting

 $\nabla = \{ x : | \vec{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \vec{x} \in \vec{A} \},$ 

we have \( \cdot \varphi \) by \\$64 Theorem 8, and obviously

 $\overline{A} \subset \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1$  for every  $x \in V$ .

Therefore, if  $\overline{A}$  is weakly closed, then we conclude by Theorem 4 that  $\overline{A}$  is weakly compact.

Recalling §62 Theorem 9, we conclude easily

Theorem 6. In order that a linear manifold  $\overrightarrow{A}$  of  $\overrightarrow{R}$  be weakly closed, it is necessary and sufficient that for any  $\overrightarrow{x}$ ,  $\overrightarrow{e}$   $\overrightarrow{A}$  we can find  $x \in R$  such that  $\overrightarrow{x}$ ,  $(x) \neq 0$  but  $\overrightarrow{x}$  (x) = 0 for every  $\overrightarrow{x}$  e  $\overrightarrow{A}$ .

Theorem 7. If a linear functional  $\varphi$  on  $\overline{R}^{\varphi}$  is weakly continuous, then we can find  $x \in R$  such that  $\varphi(\overline{x}) = \overline{x}(x)$  for every  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}^{\varphi}$ .

Theorem 8. Let a linear topology  $\mathscr V$  on R be equivalently strongest or standard. If a linear manifold  $\overline{A}$  of  $\overline{R}$  is weakly closed, then putting  $A = \{ \varkappa : \overline{\varkappa}(\varkappa) = 0 \text{ for every } \overline{\varkappa} \in \overline{A} \}$ ,  $\overline{A}$  coincides with the adjoint space  $\overline{R}/A$  of R/A by the relative linear topology of  $\mathscr V$ , considering every  $\overline{\varkappa} \in \overline{A}$  as a linear functional on the quotient space R/A.

Proof. We conclude by §62 Theorem 9

 $\vec{A} = \{\vec{x} : \vec{x}(z) = 0 \quad \text{for every } x \in A\}.$  As every  $\vec{x} \in \vec{A}$  is by §64 Theorem 2 continuous in R by  $\varphi$ , recalling the

174 definition of the relative linear topology, we see that every  $\tilde{\pi}\in \widetilde{\mathcal{A}}$  is continuous in the quotient space R /A by the relative linear topology of V, and hence  $\overline{A} \subseteq \overline{R/A}$ . On the other hand, we see easily that for every bounded manifold 8 of R , B/A also is a bounded manifold of the quotient space R / A , and hence we conclude  $\overline{R/A}$   $\stackrel{\text{\tiny $V$}}{\subset} \overline{A}$  . Thus we obtain our assertion  $\overline{A} = \overline{R/A}$  %.

#### \$66 Normality

Let R be a linear topological space with a linear topology  $\mathscr{C}$ . W is said to be normal, if W contains all closed convex vicinities.

If the induced topology 7 by V is of the second category, then V is normal.

For an arbitrary vicinity  $V_o$  we have by definition Proof.

$$R = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \nu \nabla_{o}$$
.

As R is of the second category by  $\mathfrak{I}^{\mathfrak{P}}$  by assumption, if  $\nabla_a$  is convex and closed by  $\Psi$  , then we can find hence  $\nabla \in \Psi$  ,  $x \in R$  , and  $\nu$  such that  $\nabla + x \subset \nu \nabla_o$  , and then we have

VCVVXVVOC2VVO.

that is,  $\frac{1}{2k}$   $\nabla \subset \nabla_0$ . Thus we conclude  $\nabla_a \in \mathcal{V}$  , if  $\nabla_a$  is a closed con-Therefore V is normal by definition. vex vicinity.

Recalling §59 Theorem 2, we obtain by Theorem 1

If  $\psi$  is sequential and complete, then  $\psi$  is normal. As the weak topology of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{\,\,\mathcal{V}}$  is weaker than the adjoint topology  $\overline{V}$  of V , every bounded manifold of  $\overline{R}^{V}$  is weakly bounded by definition. Conversely we have

If \$\psi\$ is normal and equivalently strongest or standard, then every weakly bounded manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{P}$  is bounded by the adjoint topology  $\overline{V}$ , and hence the weak topology of  $\overline{R}^{\,\,V}$  is equivalent to the adjoint topology 7.

Putting  $\nabla = \{x : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A}\},$ 

we see easily that  $\vec{V}$  is convex. By virtue of §65 Theorem 1, for every  $x \in R$  we have  $\sup_{x \in R} |x(x)| < +\infty$ , and hence we can find  $\lambda > 0$  such that  $\sup_{x\in\mathcal{A}}|\widehat{z}(\xi x)|\leq |\text{ for }|\xi|\leq \lambda. \qquad \text{ Thus } \forall \text{ is a vicinity in } \mathcal{R} \text{ by definition.}$ As V is equivalently strongest or standard by assumption, every  $\overline{z}\in\overline{\mathcal{R}}^{\mathcal{P}}$ is continuous by §64 Theorem 2 , and we have obviously

 $V = \prod_{i} \{x : |\overline{x}(x)| \leq 1\}$ 

Hence V is closed by V. As V is normal by assumption, we obtain therefore  $\mathbf{T} \in \mathbf{Y}$  by definition, and we have obviously

 $\vec{A} \subset \{\vec{x} : |\vec{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in \vec{V}\}$ 

Recalling §64 Theorem 6, we conclude thus that  $\overline{A}$  is bounded by  $\overline{\Psi}$ .

Let V be normal and equivalently strongest or stan-For a sequence  $\overline{a}_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}^{\mathcal{V}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), if  $\overline{a}_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}^{\mathcal{V}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is convergent for every  $z\in R$  , then there exists  $\tilde{a}\in \tilde{R}^{\ \ \ \ }$  such that  $\lim_{z \to \infty} \bar{a}_{\nu}(z) = \bar{a}(z) \qquad \text{for every } z \in \mathcal{R}.$ 

By virtue of §65 Theorem 1, { \$\overline{a}\_1, \overline{a}\_2, \ldots \cdot \} is weakly bounded in  $R^{\mathscr{C}}$ , and hence it is bounded by the adjoint topology  $\overline{\mathscr{C}}$  of  $\mathscr{C}$ , according to Theorem 3. Therefore, putting

 $\nabla = \{x: |\overline{a}_{\nu}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \nu = 1, 2, \dots\},$ 

we have  $\mathcal{T} \in \mathcal{V}$  by §64 Theorem 8. If we set

 $\varphi(x) = \lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{a}_{\nu}(x) \quad \text{for every } x \in \mathbb{R},$ 

then we see easily that  $\mathcal{G}$  is a linear functional on  $\mathcal{R}$ . Furthermore, as  $|a_{\nu}(x)| \le 1$  for every  $x \in V$  and  $\nu = 1, 2, ...,$  we obtain  $|\varphi(x)| \le 1$  for every  $x \in V$ , and hence  $\varphi \in \overline{R}^{V}$  by Theorems 1 in §62 and 1 in §64.

## §67 Completeness

Let R be now merely a linear space and R the associated space of  ${\cal R}$  . Considering every  ${\it x}\in {\it R}$  as a linear functional on  $\widetilde{\it R}$  by the relation:  $z(\tilde{z}) = \tilde{z}(z)$  for every  $\tilde{z} \in \tilde{R}$ , we obtain a weak linear topology of R by x (xeR). This weak linear topology is called the weak topology of the associated space  $\widetilde{\mathbf{R}}$  . With this definition we have

The weak topology of the associated space R of a li-Theorem 1.

§67, §68)

near space R is complete.

176

For a functional  $\varphi$  on  $\mathbb{R}$  , if for  $\widetilde{\mathbf{x}} \in \widetilde{\mathbb{R}}$ 前(元: 「モ(スレ) - 中(スレ) 「当多 (レニー1, 2,..., 2) 「キロ for every finite number of elements  $\mathbb{Z}_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  and  $\ell > 0$ , then we have for every real numbers  ${\not \sim}$  ,  ${\beta}$  and  ${\not \sim}$  ,  ${y}$   ${\not \sim}$   ${\cal R}$  that for any  ${\it E}>{\it 0}$ we can find Z & R such that

 $\{\Sigma(z) - \varphi(z)\} \leq \varepsilon$ ,  $\{\Sigma(z) - \varphi(z)\} \leq \varepsilon$ ,

(元(dx+gy) - 4(dx+fy)) 言 E, and hence  $(\alpha \varphi(x) + \beta \varphi(y) - \varphi(\alpha x + \beta y)) \le \varepsilon$ . As  $\varepsilon > 0$  may be arbitrary, we obtain  $\varphi(dx+\beta y) = d\varphi(x) + \beta \varphi(y)$  for every x,  $y \in R$  and real numbers  $\mathcal{A}$  ,  $\beta$  , that is,  $\varphi \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  . As the number uniformity is complete, we conclude by §35 Theorem 8 that  $\widetilde{R}$  is complete by the weak uniformity, which is by §55 Theorem 5 the induced uniformity by the weak topology of K.

If a linear manifold A of the associated space R is Theorem 2. fundamental in R, then  $\widetilde{A}$  is dense in  $\widetilde{R}$  by the weak topology.

Let  $\widetilde{a} \in \widetilde{R}$  be arbitrary. For every finite number of elements  $z_{\nu} \in \mathcal{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ),  $\sum_{i=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2}, z_{\nu} = 0$  implies obviously  $\sum_{i=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2}, \tilde{a}(z_{\nu})$  $\equiv$  0. Thus, considering every  $\varkappa_{\nu}$  as a linear functional on  $\widetilde{A}$  by the relation:  $z_{\nu}(\widehat{x}) = \widehat{z}(z_{\nu})$  for  $\widehat{x} \in \widehat{A}$ , we can find by §46 Theorem 4  $\widehat{z} \in \widehat{A}$ such that  $\widetilde{x}(\pi_{\nu}) = \widetilde{a}(\pi_{\nu})$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa$ . Thus  $\widetilde{a}$  is a contact point of  $\widetilde{A}$  by the weak topology. Therefore  $\widetilde{A}$  is dense in  $\widetilde{\mathbb{R}}$ by the weak topology.

Let R be next a linear topological space with a linear topology  ${\boldsymbol{Y}}$  . We shall prove firstly:

The adjoint topology \( \varphi \) of \( \varphi \) is complete. Theorem 3.

We can assume by definition that  ${\mathscr C}$  is equivalently strong-Proof. Let A. (A & A ) be a Cauchy system by the adjoint toest or standard. Since the weak topology of the adjoint space  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}^{\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,}$  is weaker pology \$\overline{\psi}\$. than  $\overline{\Psi}$  ,  $\overline{A_{\lambda}}$  (  $\lambda \in A$  ) also is a Cauchy system by the weak topology. the associated space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$  is by Theorem 1 complete by the weak topology, there exists a limit  $\widetilde{a}_{o} \in \widetilde{R}$  of  $\widetilde{A}_{\lambda}$  (  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) for the weak topology.

As  $\overrightarrow{A_{\lambda}}$  ( $\lambda\in\Lambda$  ) is a Cauchy system by  $\overrightarrow{V}$  , for each bounded manifold  $\mathcal B$  of R we can find  $\lambda_o \in A$  such that  $\overline{X}$ ,  $\overline{y} \in \overline{A}_{\lambda_o}$  implies  $|\overline{X}(\pi) - \overline{y}(\pi)| \le 1$ for every z ∈ B, because { Z : | Z(z) | ≤ ! for every z ∈ B } ∈ ♥ by de-For any  $z \in \mathcal{B}$  and  $\varepsilon > \theta$  we can find  $\overline{y} \in \overline{A}_{\lambda_{\theta}}$  such that we have  $|\overline{y}(x) - \widetilde{\alpha}_{o}(x)| < \varepsilon$ , because  $\widetilde{\alpha}_{o}$  is a limit of  $\overline{A_{\lambda}}$  ( $\lambda \in \Lambda$ ) by the weak topology of  $\widetilde{R}$  . Then we have  $|\widetilde{x}(x) - \widetilde{a}, (x)| < i+\epsilon$  for every  $\vec{x} \in \vec{A}_{\lambda_0}$ . As  $x \in \mathcal{B}$  and  $\xi > 0$  may be arbitrary, we conclude hence

 $|\tilde{z}(x) - \tilde{a}_{o}(x)| \le 1$  for every  $\tilde{z} \in \tilde{A}_{a_{o}}$  and  $x \in B$ . From this relation we conclude further that  $\widetilde{\mathbf{a}}_{s}$  is a bounded linear functional on R by  $\boldsymbol{\mathcal{P}}$  , that is,  $\widetilde{\boldsymbol{a}}, \in \widetilde{\boldsymbol{\mathcal{R}}}^{\boldsymbol{\mathcal{V}}}$  , and for such  $\boldsymbol{a}_o$ 

 $\overline{A}_{\lambda_n} < \{\overline{z} : |\overline{z}(z) - \widetilde{a}_{\delta}(z)| \le 1 \text{ for every } z \in B\}.$ Thus, putting  $\overline{V}_{a} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in B \}$ , we have  $\overline{A}_{\lambda_{o}} \subset \overline{V}_{a} + \widehat{a}_{o}$ . This relation yields by the definition of the adjoint topology  $\overline{V}$  that  $\widetilde{a}_{\bullet}$ is a limit of  $\widehat{A}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda\in\Lambda$ ) by  $\widehat{\mathcal{V}}$ . Therefore  $\widehat{\mathcal{R}}^{\mathcal{V}}$  is complete by  $\widehat{\mathcal{V}}$ .

If  $\Psi$  is normal and equivalently strongest or standard, then the weak topology of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{\ V}$  is conditionally complete.

<u>Proof.</u> If a manifold  $\overline{A}$  of  $\overline{R}^{\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,}$  is weakly bounded, then  $\overline{A}$  is bounded by §66 Theorem 3. Thus, if  $\overrightarrow{A}$  is furthermore weakly closed, then  $\widetilde{A}$  is by §65 Theorem 5 weakly compact, and hence naturally complete by the weak topology. Therefore the weak topology of  $\overline{R}^{\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,}$  is conditionally complete by definition.

Recalling Theorems 1 in §58 and 2 in §66, we conclude immediately from Theorem 2

Theorem 5. If  $\psi$  is sequential and complete, then the weak topology of the adjoint space  $\bar{R}^{\mathcal{R}}$  is conditionally complete.

# \$68 Reflexibility

Let  ${\mathcal R}$  be a linear topological space with a linear topology  ${\mathcal C}$ , and weak linear topology of R by  $\overline{R}^{\,\,Q\!\!Q}$  will be called the weak topology of R

§68)

by W. If a manifold A of R is bounded, closed, or compact by the weak topology of R, then we shall say that A is weakly bounded, weakly closed, or weakly compact.

Theorem 1. If % is convex, then every weakly bounded manifold of R is bounded.

<u>Proof.</u> Let a manifold A of R be weakly bounded. For each symmetric convex vicinity  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$ , the adjoint norm  $\| \widehat{\sigma}_{R} \|_{\nabla}$  is by §52 Theorem 1 complete in the adjoint space  $\widetilde{R}_{\nabla}$  of  $\nabla$ . As  $\widetilde{R}_{\nabla} \subset \overline{R}^{\nabla}$  by Theorems 1 in §62 and 1 in §64, we have by §62 Theorem 7

 $\sup_{\chi \in \mathcal{A}} |\widetilde{\chi}(\chi)| < +\infty \qquad \text{for every } \widetilde{\chi} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}_{\widetilde{Y}}.$  Considering every  $\chi \in \mathcal{R}$  as a linear functional on  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}_{\widetilde{Y}}$  by the relation:  $\chi(\widetilde{\chi}) = \widetilde{\chi}(\chi) \quad \text{for every } \widetilde{\chi} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{R}}_{\widetilde{Y}}, \text{ we obtain then by $52$ Theorem 5}$ 

 $\sup_{\chi \in A} \|\sup_{\chi \leq 1} \|\chi(\chi)\|^{\frac{1}{2}} < +\infty,$  and hence  $\sup_{\chi \in A} \|\chi\|_{\chi} < +\infty \text{ by $52$ Theorem 4.}$  Therefore A is bounded to  $X \in A$  by \$57 Theorem 1.

If  $\mathcal{V}$  is equivalently strongest or standard, then every  $\overline{\mathbf{x}} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}^{\mathcal{V}}$  is by §64 Theorem 2 a continuous linear functional on  $\mathcal{R}$  by  $\mathcal{V}$ , and hence the weak topology of  $\mathcal{R}$  is by definition weaker than  $\mathcal{V}$ . However we have conversely

Theorem 2. If V is convex, then every closed linear manifold of R is weakly closed.

<u>Proof.</u> Let Abe a closed linear manifold of R. By virtue of §56 Theorem 6, the quotient space R/A is separated by the relative linear topology  $R^{R/A}$  which also is convex by Theorems 5 in §51 and 4 in §56. For each  $x \in A$  there exists by definition  $X_0 \in R/A$  such that  $X_0 \in X_0$ , and then we can find by Theorems 2 in §52 and 1 in §62 a continuous linear functional P on R/A such that  $P(X_0) \neq 0$ . If we consider P as a linear functional on P, then P is obviously continuous,  $P(X_0) = 0$  for every  $X \in A$ , and  $P(X_0) = P(X_0) \neq 0$ . Therefore we can conclude that  $P(X_0) = P(X_0) = P(X_0$ 

logy  $\widetilde{V}$ . Thus, if  $\widetilde{R}^{\widetilde{V}}$  is fundamental in R, then we can consider R as a linear manifold of the adjoint space of  $\widetilde{R}^{\widetilde{V}}$  by the adjoint topology  $\widetilde{V}$ . On account of §67 Theorem 5, we obtain immediately

ADJOINT SPACES

Theorem 3. If the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{\mathscr{C}}$  of R by  $\mathscr{C}$  is fundamental in R, then, denoting by  $\overline{R}^{\mathscr{C}}$  the adjoint space of  $\overline{R}^{\mathscr{C}}$  by the adjoint topology  $\overline{\mathscr{C}}$ , R is dense in  $\overline{R}^{\mathscr{C}}$  by the weak topology of  $\overline{R}^{\mathscr{C}}$ 

Even if  $\overline{R}^{\mathcal{V}}$  is fundamental in  $\mathcal{R}$ , the linear topology  $\mathcal{V}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$  is not necessarily the relative linear topology of the adjoint topology of the adjoint topology  $\overline{\mathcal{V}}$ . If  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}^{\mathcal{V}}$  is fundamental in  $\mathcal{R}$  and  $\mathcal{V}$  coincides with the relative linear topology of the adjoint topology  $\overline{\mathcal{V}}$ , considering  $\mathcal{R}$  as a linear manifold of the adjoint space  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}^{\mathcal{V}}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}^{\mathcal{V}}$ , then  $\mathcal{V}$  is said to be reflexive.

Theorem 4. A linear topology % is reflexive if and only if % is separative and standard:

<u>Proof.</u> If  $\mathscr C$  is reflexive, then  $\mathscr C$  is separative and convex by §64 Theorem 3, and for any bounded manifold  $\mathscr A$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{\mathscr R}$  we have by the definition of the adjoint topology

 $\{\pi: \{\overline{\pi}(\pi)\} \leq 1 \quad \text{for every } \overline{\pi} \in \overline{A} \ \} \in \mathscr{C}.$  Thus we conclude by §64. Theorem 10 that  $\mathscr{C}$  is standard.

Conversely, if  $\mathscr C$  is separative and standard, then the adjoint space  $\widetilde R$  is fundamental in R by Theorems 2 in §52 and 1 in §62. For each closed symmetric convex vicinity  $\mathscr V \in \mathscr V$ , putting

 $\widehat{A}=\{\widehat{z}: |\widehat{z}(z)| \leq 1 \quad \text{for every } z \in V\},$  we obtain by §64 Theorem 6 a bounded manifold  $\widehat{A}$  of  $\widehat{R}^V$  and we have by §52 Theorem 3  $V=\{z: |\widehat{z}(z)| \leq 1 \text{ for every } \widehat{z} \in \widehat{A}\}.$  Furthermore, for every bounded manifold  $\widehat{A}$  of  $\widehat{R}^V$  we have by §64 Theorem 8

 $\{\,\chi:\,\,|\vec{\chi}\,(\chi)| \leq 1 \qquad \text{for every $\vec{\chi} \in \widehat{A}$} \,\} \in \,\mathcal{V}\,.$  Therefore  $\,\mathcal{V}\,$  is reflexive.

If  $\mathscr V$  is reflexive, and further  $\mathscr R$  coincides with the adjoint space  $\overline{\widetilde{R}}^{\,\mathscr V}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{\widetilde{R}}^{\,\mathscr V}$ , then we shall say that  $\mathscr V$  is regular, or that  $\mathscr R$  is regular by  $\mathscr V$ .

Theorem 5. In order that a linear topological space R be re-

\$68, \$69)

gular by its linear topology V, it is necessary and sufficient that both of and its adjoint topology of be reflexive and the weak topology of R by V be conditionally complete.

If arphi is regular, then the adjoint topology  $\widetilde{arphi}$  is by de-Every weakly bounded manifold A of R finition naturally reflexive. is by Theorem 1 bounded, and hence if A is furthermore weakly closed, then A is weakly compact by §65 Theorem 5. Therefore the weak topology of R by W is conditionally complete.

Conversely, we assume that both arphi and  $\widetilde{arphi}$  are reflexive and the weak topology of R by  $\Psi$  is conditionally complete. Let  $\overline{\mathbb{R}}^{\Psi}$  be the adjoint space of the adjoint space  $X^{\mathcal{C}}$ . As  $\tilde{\mathcal{C}}$  is standard by Theorem 4, for each  $\overline{z}\in \overline{\mathbb{R}}^{\mathscr{D}}$  we can find by §64 Theorem 2 and §62 Theorem 1 a symmetric convex vicinity  $\nabla \in \widehat{V}$  such that  $|\widehat{Z}(\widehat{z})| \le 1$  for every  $\widehat{z} \in \widehat{V}$ . such  $\overline{\nabla} \in \overline{\mathscr{P}}$ , we can find by definition a bounded manifold B of R such that, putting  $\overline{\mathbf{v}}_i = \{\overline{\mathbf{x}} : |\overline{\mathbf{x}}(\mathbf{x})| \le i \text{ for every } \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{B}\}$ , we have  $\overline{\mathbf{v}} \ni \overline{\mathbf{v}}_i \subset \overline{\mathbf{v}}$ .  $A = \{ z : \sup_{\overline{x} \in \overline{x}} |\overline{x}(x)| < +\infty \},$  $\overline{U} = \{x : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{V}_{\epsilon}\}.$ 

then A is a linear manifold of R and V is a symmetric convex vicinity As T >B, we have in the subspace A .

 $\{\vec{x}: |\vec{x}(z)| \leq 1 \text{ for every } \vec{x} \in \vec{\nabla}\} \subset \vec{\nabla},$ and hence for every finite number of elements  $\bar{\pi}_{\nu} \in \bar{R}^{q_{\nu}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), considering the adjoint norm by T , we have

1 盖 私 支 (死) = 1 章 (差 乱死) 1 ≤ 1 差 乱死 11 元. Accordingly we can find by §52 Theorem 8 x 6 20 such that  $\overline{\chi}_{\nu}(z) = \overline{\chi}(\overline{\chi}_{\nu}) \quad (\nu = 1, 2, \dots, \varkappa).$ 

Therefore  $\overline{z}$  is a contact point of 2V by the weak topology. other hand, as  $2\nabla = \{x : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 2 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{\nabla}, 1, \overline{\nabla}, \epsilon \overline{V} \text{, we see} \}$ by §65 Theorem 1 that 20 is weakly bounded and furthermore by definition that 20 is weakly closed in R. Since the weak topology of R is conditionally complete by assumption, 2 T is weakly compact, and hence 27 is weakly closed in \$ 90. Thus we obtain \$ 520. we conclude R = FV.

Let R be regular by its linear topology . Theorem 6. Fer a closed linear manifold A of R, if the relative linear topology PA of \$\text{\$\partial}\$ and its adjoint topology \$\text{\$\partial}\$ are standard, then \$\text{\$\partial}\$^A is regular.

ADJOINT SPACES

As  $\mathscr{C}$  is separative, both  $\mathscr{C}^A$  and  $\overline{\mathscr{C}^A}$  are reflexive by Proof. As  $\mathcal A$  is a closed linear manifold of  $\mathcal R$  by assumption,  $\mathcal A$ assumption. is weakly closed by Theorem 2, and hence the weak topology of the subspace A is conditionally complete, because the weak topology of R is so by Thus & A is regular by Theorem 5. Theorem 5.

Theorem 7. If V is reflexive, complete, and its adjoint topology V is regular, then V also is regular.

by assumption. Furthermore R is by §35 Theorem 3 a closed linear ma-by Theorem 6.

# §69 Sequential roots

Let K be a linear topological space with a linear topology  $\mathscr{C}$  . If there is a sequence of bounded manifolds  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) in R such that  $A_{\nu}$  (  $\nu=1$  , 2,...) is a root of  $\mathscr C$  , that is, for any bounded manifold A of R we can find  $\nu$  for which  $A \subset A_{\nu}$ , then such a root  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1$ , 2, ...) is called a sequential root of V.

Theorem 1. If  $\psi$  has a sequential root A ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), then the adjoint topology of V is sequential.

<u>Proof.</u> Putting  $\overline{\nabla}_{\nu} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in A_{\nu}\}$ , we obtain by definition a basis  $\overline{V}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) of  $\overline{V}$ . Thus  $\overline{V}$  is sequential by definition.

If  $\mathscr{V}$  is convex and its adjoint topology  $\widetilde{\mathscr{V}}$  is se-Theorem 2. quential, then  $oldsymbol{arphi}$  has a sequential root.

For a decreasing basis  $\nabla_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ...$ ) of  $\tilde{\Psi}$ , putting Proof. A, = {z : |\(\overline{\pi}\) | \(\overline{\pi}\) | for every \(\overline{\pi}\) \(\overline{\pi}\). \(\overline{\pi}\).

we obtain by 64 Theorem 7 bounded manifolds  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2,...$ ) in K by For each bounded manifold A of R , putting

1.82

 $\overline{v} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in A\}.$ 

we have ₹ € v by definition, and hence we can find > such that ₹ > v,. Then we have obviously

ACIR: 12(2)151 for every Zetl A... Therefore  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1$ , 2,...) is a sequential root of  ${\cal C}$  .

Theorem 3. If W is sequential, then its adjoint topology W has a sequential root.

For a decreasing basis  $\mathbf{V}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) of  $\mathcal{V}$ , putting  $\bar{\lambda} = \{\bar{x} : |\bar{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in \bar{V}_{\nu} \}$ 

we obtain by §64 Theorem 6 a sequence of bounded manifolds  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) in the adjoint space  $\bar{R}^{\Psi}$ . As  $\Psi$  is equivalently strongest by §58 Theorem 1, for each bounded manifold  $\vec{A}$  of  $\vec{R}^{\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,}$ , putting

 $V = \{x : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A}\}.$ 

we have TET by \$64 Theorem 8. For such VET, we can find & such that V > V, and then

 $\vec{A} \subset \{\vec{z}: \{\vec{z}(z)\} \leq i \text{ for every } z \in \vec{V}\} \subset \vec{A}$ . Thus  $\overline{A}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is a sequential root of  $\overline{\psi}$ .

Theorem 4. If V is standard and its adjoint topology V has a sequential root, then V is sequential.

For a sequential root  $\overline{A}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2...$ ) of  $\overline{V}$ , putting  $\nabla_{\nu} = \{x : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A}_{\nu}\},$ 

we have by §64 Theorem 8  $\nabla_{\nu} \in \mathcal{V}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ). For each closed convex veV. putting

 $\vec{A} = \{\vec{x} : |\vec{x}(x)| \le t \text{ for every } x \in \vec{V}\}.$ 

find  $\nu$  such that  $\vec{A} \subset \vec{A}_{\nu}$ . Since we have by §52 Theorem 3

 $\nabla = \{x : |\bar{x}(z)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \bar{x} \in \bar{A}\}.$ 

we obtain thus  $\nabla \supset \nabla_{\nu}$  for such  $\nu$ . Therefore  $\nabla_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is

a basis of 🏈

\$69)

If  $\mathscr V$  is sequential, complete, and has a sequential Theorem 5. root, then V is of single vicinity.

If  $\ensuremath{\mathscr{C}}$  is sequential and complete, then the induced topo-more if  $\mathscr{C}$  has a sequential root  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ), then we have

$$R = \sum_{r=1}^{\infty} A_{r},$$

because every  $\kappa \in \mathcal{R}$  is itself a bounded manifold of  $\mathcal{R}$  . Thus we can find  $\nu$  such that  $A_{\nu}^{-\circ} \neq 0$  by the induced topology  $\gamma^{\circ \circ}$ . is bounded by §57 Theorem 2, we can conclude by §58 Theorem 5 that  ${\mathscr C}$  is of single vicinity.

Theorem 6. If  $\psi$  is of single vicinity, then its adjoint topology v also is of single vicinity.

<u>Proof.</u> Let V be a basis of V. By virtue of 64 Theorem 6, putting  $\overline{\mathbf{v}} = \{\overline{\mathbf{x}} : |\overline{\mathbf{x}}(\mathbf{x})| \le 1 \text{ for every } \mathbf{x} \in \mathbf{V} \}$  we obtain a bounded manifold  $\overline{\mathbf{v}}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{\mathbf{R}}^{\mathbf{v}}$  As  $\overline{\mathbf{v}}$  is a bounded manifold of  $\mathbf{R}$  , we have further  $\overline{\mathbb{V}}\in\overline{\mathcal{V}}$  by definition. Therefore, recalling the formula §54(8), we conclude by §58 Theorem 5 that  $\overline{\mathscr{C}}$  is of single vicinity.

Theorem 7. If V is standard and its adjoint topology V is of single vicinity, then  $\varphi$  also is of single vicinity.

<u>Proof.</u> Let  $\overline{V}$  be a basis of  $\overline{V}$ . By virtue of \$64 Theorem 7, putting  $\nabla = \{z : |\overline{z}(z)| \le 1$  for every  $\overline{z} \in \overline{\nabla}\}$ , we obtain a bounded manifold  $\nabla$  of R . As  $\overline{\nabla}$  is a bounded manifold of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}^{\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,\,}$ we have further  $V \in V$  by §64 Theorem 8. Therefore V is of single vicinity by §58 Theorem 5.

Theorem 8. If both \$\psi\$ and its adjoint topology \$\psi\$ are sequential, then  $\overline{V}$  is of single vicinity.

Recalling Theorem 3, we conclude from assumption that  $\overline{\mathscr{V}}$ has a sequential root. On the other hand,  $\overline{V}$  is obviously complete by §67 Theorem 3. Furthermore,  $\widehat{\mathscr{V}}$  is sequential by assumption. Therefore, we can conclude by Theorem 5 that the adjoint topology  $\widehat{\mathscr{C}}$  is of sigle vicinity.

970)

If W is convex, sequential, and its adjoint topolo-Theorem 9. gy 7 is sequential, then Y is of single vicinity.

By virtue of Theorem 9 we see at once by assumption that Proof. As p is standard by §58 Theorem 1, we con-F is of single vicinity. clude by Theorem 7 that V is of single vicinity.

On account of \$58 Theorem 1 and \$68 Theorem 4, we have obviously A sequential linear topology V is reflexive if and only if V is convex and separative.

# §70 Strongest convex linear topologies

By virtue of §53 Theorem 3, we see Let R be a linear space. easily that there exists uniquely a linear topology  $\mathscr{C}_{\mathfrak{o}}$  on  $\mathcal R$  such that the totality of convex vicinities in R is a basis of  $V_{\mathfrak{d}}$ . This linear topology  $V_{\bullet}$  is called the strongest convex linear topology on R . deed,  $\mathscr{C}_{\mathbf{A}}$  is obviously stronger than every other convex linear topology on R . With this definition we have

The atrongest convex linear topology V on R is Theorem 1. standard, normal, and separative.

It is obvious by definition that  $\mathscr{C}_{\mathfrak{o}}$  is standard and norm-Proof. By virtue of §44 Theorem 2, for any element  $\mathcal{Z}_0 \neq 0$  we can find a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R such that  $\varphi(x_0) = 1$ .

V= { Z : 14(Z)| ≤ + }

we obtain a convex vicinity  ${f V}$  , and hence  ${f V}$   ${f e}$   ${f V}_o$  by definition, but  ${f V}$   ${f \exists}$   ${f z}_o$  . Therefore  $\mathcal{V}_{\mathfrak{o}}$  is separative by definition.

If a manifold A of R is bounded by the strongest Theorem 2. convex linear topology 4%, then A is contained in a finite-dimensional linear manifold of R .

If there is a sequence  $a_{\nu} \in A$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that each  $a_{\nu}$  is linearly independent from the others, then we can find by §44 Theorem 3 a linear functional  $\mathcal{G}$  on  $\mathcal{R}$  such that  $\mathcal{G}(a_{\nu}) = \nu$  for every  $\nu =$ 1, 2,..., and putting  $\mathbf{V} = \{x : |\varphi(x)| \le 1\}$ , we obtain a convex vicinity  $\nabla$ 

in R ... For such V , we have by definition  $V \in V$  , but  $a_{\nu+1} \in VV$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$  Thus  $\alpha_{\nu} (\nu = 1, 2, \ldots)$  is not bounded by  $\mathcal{Q}_{\sigma}$ .

ADJOINT SPACES

Theorem 3. The adjoint space of R by the strongest convex 11near topology V. coincides with the associated space X of R and the adjoint topology of  $C_0$  coincides with the weak topology of  $\widetilde{R}$  .

For every linear functional  $\varphi$  on R, we have obviously by definition  $\{x : |\Psi(x)| \le 1\} \in \mathcal{C}_{\epsilon}$ . We conclude hence by Theorems 1 in  $\S62$  and 1  $\S64$  that  $\widetilde{R}$  is the adjoint space of R by  $V_s$  . bounded manifold  $\emph{A}$  of  $\emph{R}$  by  $\emph{V}_{\emph{e}}$  , as  $\emph{A}$  is contained by Theorem 2 in a finite-dimensional linear manifold, we can find by §61 Theorem 1 a finite number of linearly independent elements  $a, \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) such that

 $A \subset \left\{ \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} a_k a_k : |a_k| \le 1 \text{ for every } \nu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa \right\}$ Then, putting  $\overline{V} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(a_{\nu})| \leq \frac{1}{\kappa} \text{ for every } \nu = 1, 2, \dots, \kappa \}$ , we have obviously  $\overline{\psi} \subset \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(z)| \le 1$  for every  $x \in A$ . Therefore we conclude by definition that the adjoint topology of % coincides with the weak topology of R.

Theorem 4. If R has a basis of linearly independent countable elements  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), then, putting for  $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ 

Au = { \( \sum\_{\text{alpha}} a\_{\text{pi}} : |a\_{\text{pi}}| \le \( \text{pi} = 1, 2, \ldots, \( \text{p} \) \), we obtain a sequential root  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) of the strongest convex linear topology 40, on R , the weak topology of the associated space R of R is sequential, and V. 1s regular.

If a manifold A of R is bounded by  $V_{s}$ , then we can find Proof. by Theorem 2,  $\nu_e$  such that A is contained in the linear manifold S generated by  $a_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ..., \nu_{\nu}$ ). Then A is naturally bounded in S by the relative linear topology of  $\mathscr{C}_{\theta}$  , and hence we can find by §61 Theoremit d > 0 such that  $A \subset \{\sum_{m=1}^{\infty} d_m a_m : |d_m| \le d \ \{m=1, 2, ..., N_0\}\}$ , and for  $\nu \ge \max \{d, \nu_0\}$  we have obviously  $A \subset A_{\nu}$ . Therefore  $A_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2$ , ...) is a sequential root of & Recalling Theorem 4, we see by §69 Theorem 1 that the weak topology of  $\widetilde{R}$  is sequential, and consequently standard by §58 Theorem 1. Accordingly, we conclude easily by Theorems 2 in §64 and 7 in §65 that  $m{\mathscr{U}}_e$  is regular

# CHAPTER X NORMED SPACES

#### §71 Induced linear topologies

A linear space R associated with a norm NRN (x  $\in$  R) is called a normed space. A normed space R is naturally a quasi-normed linear space, and hence we defined already in §63 the induced linear topology. This induced linear topology is called the norm topology of R. With this definition, we see easily that the norm topology is separative, of single vicinity, and further  $\{x : \|x\| \le 1\}$  is a basis of it, because

This vicinity  $\{x : \|x\| \le 1\}$  is called the <u>unit sphere</u> of R. The unit sphere is convex, because,  $\|x\| \le 1$ ,  $\|y\| \le 1$ ,  $\lambda + \mu = 1$ ,  $\lambda = 0$  implies

112x+121 5 211x11+111/11 5 2+1=1.

Therefore we have

Theorem 1. The norm topology is separative, convex, of single vicinity, and the unit sphere is a convex basis of it.

Conversely we have obviously by the formula \$49(2)

Theorem 2. If a linear topology V on a linear space R is separative, convex, of single vicinity, and a symmetric convex vicinity V is a basis of V, then the pseudo-norm  $\|x\|_{\mathscr{P}}$  of V is a norm on R and the norm topology coincides with V.

By virtue of §61 Theorem 4 we obtain immediately

Theorem 3. If the unit sphere of a normed space R is totally bounded by the norm topology, then R is finite-dimensional.

We have defined already in \$50 the completeness of quasi-norms.

As a norm is naturally a quasi-norm, we have by \$63 Theorem 6

Theorem 4. A normed space R is complete by the norm, if and only

if R is complete by the norm topology.

For two norms  $\|x\|_1$  and  $\|x\|_2$  on a linear space R, we shall say that  $\|x\|_1$  is weaker than  $\|x\|_2$ , or that  $\|x\|_2$  is stronger than  $\|x\|_2$ , if the norm topology by  $\|x\|_1$  is weaker than that by  $\|x\|_2$ .

Theorem 6. In order that a norm  $\|x\|_1$  be weaker than a norm  $\|x\|_2$  on R, it is necessary and sufficient that we can find  $\infty > 0$  such that  $\|x\|_1 \le \|x\|_2$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ 

Proof. For a normed space R, denoting by U the unit sphere of R, we see by Theorem 1 that the pseudo-norm  $\|x\|_{\mathcal{U}}$  of U coincides with the norm of R and U is a basis of the norm topology. Therefore we conclude our assertion by §58 Theorem 6.

For two norms #x#, and #x#, on a linear space R, we shall say that #x#, is equivalent to  $#x#_2$ , and write  $#x#_1 \sim #x#_2$  ( $x \in R$ ), if  $#x#_1$  is weaker and stronger than  $#x#_2$  at the same time, that is, the norm topology of  $#x#_1$  coincides with that of  $#x#_2$  an R.

With this definition we have obviously by Theorem 6

Theorem 7. We have  $11\times11_2 \sim 11\times11_2 (\times \in \mathbb{R})$  if and only if we can find two positive numbers  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$  such that

dixing 5 nx n, < plant. for every xer.

Recalling \$59 Theorem 4, we obtain further

A normed space R is said to be separable or completely separable, if it is so by the norm topology, as defined in \$14.

Recalling \$36 Theorem 7 we have then

Theorem 9. If a normed space R is separable, then R is completely separable.

A linear menifold A of a normed space R may be considered itself as a normed space with the norm of R. In this sense, A will be called a <u>subspace</u> of R.

Theorem 10. For a sequence of elements  $a_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) in a normed space R, the least closed linear manifold containing all  $a_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is separable as a subspace of R

<u>Proof.</u> Let A be the linear manifold generated by  $e_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ). The closure  $A^-$  by the norm topology also is a linear manifold by §54 Theorem 5, and hence  $A^-$  is the least closed linear manifold con-

(Chapter X

199

taining  $a_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ). Denoting by 8 the totality of linear canbinations Z d, av from a. (v = 1, 2,...) for all rational numbers of  $(\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \varkappa)$ , we see easily that B is countable and dense in A too, and hence  $A^-$  is separable by definition.

#### §72 Adjoint spaces

Let R be a normed space and T the unit sphere of R. joint space of W associated with the adjoint norm of W, as defined in Thus the adjoint space R of \$52, is called the adjoint space of R. Since the norm of R coincides obviously R also is a normed space. by definition with the pseudo-norm of U, we have by \$52(1)

- (元 E 戻 ) ||天|| = sup ||天(ス)| (1) and by \$52 Theorem 4 further
  - (x e R . \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ |京(丸)| 海川元川||木川 (2)
  - (スの尺。元の页)。 Furthermore we have by \$52 Theorem 1

The norm of the adjoint space is complete. Theorem 1.

The adjoint space R of R coincides with the adjoint Theorem 2. space of R by the norm topology, and the norm topology of R coincides with the adjoint topology of the norm topology of R .

As the unit sphere V of R is obviously by definition Proof. bounded by the norm topology of R , we see at once by definition that the adjoint space R of R is composed of all bounded linear functionals by the norm topology of R . Furthermore, for the unit sphere  $\overline{\nabla}$  of  $\overline{R}$  , as we have by (1)

 $\overline{U} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in U\}.$ 

we conclude by \$64 Theorem.6 that T is bounded by the adjoint topology, and by definition further that  $\overline{V}$  is a vicinity of the adjoint topology. Thus we obtain by definition that  $\widetilde{\mathbf{U}}$  is a basis of the adjoint topology. Therefore the norm topology of R coincides by \$71 Theorem 1 with the adjoint topology of the norm topology of R.

Let R be the adjoint space of a normed space R and T the unit sphere of  $\overline{R}$  . For a linear manifold  $\overline{A}$  of  $\overline{R}$  , if  $\overline{A}$  is fundamental in R , then, putting

- $\|x\|_{\widetilde{A}} = \sup_{x \in \pi \widetilde{A}} |\overline{x}(x)| \qquad (x \in R),$ we obtain a norm  $\|x\|_{\frac{\pi}{d}}$  on R. Indeed, we see easily that  $\|x\|_{\frac{\pi}{d}}$  is a pseudo-norm on R. If  $\|z\|_{\widetilde{A}} = 0$ , then  $\overline{z}(z) = 0$  for every  $\widehat{z} \in \widetilde{A}$ , and hence  $\varkappa=\vartheta$  , because  $\widetilde{A}$  is fundamental in  $\aleph$  by assumption. thermore, as  $\overrightarrow{v}\overrightarrow{A} \subset \overrightarrow{U}$ , we have by (3)
- 11×11 = 11×11 (xeR), (5) that is, this norm  $\|x\|_{\overline{A}}$  is weaker than that of R. If this norm Nx N  $_{A}$  is equivalent to the norm of R , that is, if we can find  $\lambda > 0$ such that  $\lambda \|x\|_{\overline{A}} \ge \|x\|$  for every  $x \in R$ , then  $\overline{A}$  is said to be of finite character, and
- $\chi = \sup_{0 \neq z \in R} \frac{\|z\|}{\|x\|_{\overline{A}}}$ (6) is called the character of a fundamental linear manifold  $\overline{A}$  of  $\overline{R}$  .  $\widetilde{A}$  is not of finite character, then the character arkappa of  $\widetilde{A}$  is defined as +00.

For a manifold  $\widetilde{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  , we denote by  $\widetilde{A}$  the closure of  $\overline{A}$  by the weak topology of  $\overline{R}$  . Then we have

Theorem 3. For a fundamental linear manifold A of the adjoint space R , we have

$$(\overline{\nabla} \overline{A})^{W^{-}} \supset \frac{1}{Y} \overline{\nabla},$$

if and only if  $f \ge \chi$  for the character  $\chi$  of  $\overline{A}$ .

If  $\chi < +\infty$  , then for any  $\overline{a} \in \frac{1}{T} \ \overline{\nabla}$  and for every finite number of elements  $\mathbf{z}_{\nu} \in \mathcal{K}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ), we have by (6)

 $|\tilde{Z}_{1}, \bar{a}(x_{\nu})| = |\bar{a}(\tilde{Z}_{1}, x_{\nu})| \leq \frac{1}{N} |\tilde{Z}_{1}, x_{\nu}| \leq |\tilde{Z}_{1}, x_{\nu}| \leq |\tilde{Z}_{1}, x_{\nu}| = |\tilde{Z$ Considering  $z_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\kappa$ ) as linear functionals on  $\widehat{\mathcal{A}}$  by the relation:  $\pi_{\nu}(\Xi) = \overline{\pi}(\mathbf{x}_{\nu})$  for every  $\overline{\mathbf{x}} \in \overline{A}$ , we conclude hence by §52 Theorem 8 that for any  $\xi > 0$  we can find  $\overline{\chi}_{o} \in (1+\xi)(\overline{\mathcal{J}}\overline{A})$  such that  $\overline{\chi}_{o}(\chi_{o}) = \overline{a}(\chi_{o})$ for every  $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots,\kappa$  , and consequently we have  $\frac{1}{4+2}\,\,\overline{x},\,\in\,\overline{\mathcal{D}}\,\,\overline{\mathcal{A}}$  and  $\left|\frac{1}{1+\overline{\varepsilon}}\overline{x}_{\sigma}(x_{\nu}) - \overline{\alpha}(z_{\nu})\right| \leq \frac{\varepsilon}{1+\varepsilon}\left|\overline{\alpha}(x_{\nu})\right| \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, ..., K).$ 

Thus we obtain by definition that  $\overline{\mathcal{A}} \in (\overline{\mathcal{U}}\overline{\mathcal{A}})^{W^{-}}$ . Therefore we have

\$72, \$73)

# \$ ₹ C (7 1 ) W-

Conversely, if  $\frac{1}{b}$   $\overline{\partial} \subset (\overline{\partial} \overline{A})^{W^*}$  for a positive number  $\delta$  , then for any  $\varkappa\in\mathcal{R}$  and  $\varepsilon>0$  , corresponding to every  $\widetilde{\varkappa}\in\widetilde{\mathcal{T}}$  we can find  $\widetilde{\varkappa}_o\in\widetilde{\mathcal{T}}\widetilde{A}$ such that  $\left|\frac{4}{2}\vec{\chi}(z)-\vec{z}_{o}(z)\right|<\mathcal{E}$  , and hence for every  $\vec{z}\in\vec{\nabla}$ 1一元(2)15色ナノズ。(2)1至色ナリスリオ・

LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES

Thus we obtain  $\frac{1}{2} \|x\| \le \xi + \|x\|_{2}$  by the formula (3). be arbitrary, and hence we conclude wall & Y Hall for every zeR. Accordingly we have  $7 \ge \%$  by the definition (6).

A fundamental linear manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  is said to be norm fundamental in R , if the character of  $\overline{A}$  is 1, that is, if

 $\|\mathbf{z}\| = \sup_{\mathbf{Z} \in \mathcal{P} \mathbf{A}} \|\mathbf{Z}(\mathbf{z})\|$  for every  $\mathbf{Z} \in \mathbb{R}$ .

With this definition we have obviously by Theorem 3

A fundamental linear manifold A of the adjoint apace Theorem 4. R is norm fundamental, if and only if of is dense in v by the week topology of R .

For the unit sphere T of the adjoint space R we have obviously  $\overline{U} = \{\overline{X} : |\overline{X}(X)| \le 1 \text{ for every } X \in \overline{U}\}.$ 

Thus we obtain immediately by §65 Theorem 4

The unit aphere T of the adjoint space R is weakly Theorem 5. compact.

Recalling Theorems 2 in \$68 and 9 in \$62, we obtain immediately

For a closed linear manifold A of a normed space R Theorem 6. and an lement  $x \in A$ , we can find  $\overline{a} \in \overline{R}$  such that  $\overline{a}(x) = 0$  for every  $x \in A$  and  $\overline{a}(x_0) = 1$ .

If the adjoint space R is separable, then R is se-Theorem 7. parable too.

Let  $\overline{A}_{\nu} \in \overline{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) be dense in  $\overline{R}$  by the norm to-Proof. Recalling the definition of the adjoint norm, we can pology of R. find a sequence  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\overline{a}_{\nu}(a_{\nu}) \ge \frac{1}{2} \|\overline{a}_{\nu}\|_{2} \|a_{\nu}\|_{2} = 1$ . Let A be the least closed linear manifold containing  $a_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ). Then A is by §71 Theorem 10 separable as a subspace of R . does not coincides with R , then, as A is weakly closed by §68 Theorem 2,

for an element  $a\in R-A$ , we can find by §62 Theorem  $9\ \vec{a}\in \vec{R}$  such that  $\overline{a}(x) = 0$  for every  $x \in A$ ,  $\overline{a}(a) \neq 0$ , and  $\|\overline{a}\| = 1$ . Por such  $\overline{a} \in \overline{R}$ we have for every > = 1, 2, ...

$$\|\bar{\alpha}_{\nu} - \bar{\alpha}\| \ge \|\bar{\alpha}_{\nu}(\alpha_{\nu}) - \bar{\alpha}(\alpha_{\nu})\| = \|\bar{\alpha}_{\nu}(\alpha_{\nu})\| \ge \frac{1}{2}\|\bar{\alpha}_{\nu}\|,$$
 $\|\bar{\alpha}_{\nu} - \bar{\alpha}\| \ge \|\bar{\alpha}\| - \|\bar{\alpha}_{\nu}\| = 1 - \|\bar{\alpha}_{\nu}\|,$ 

and hence  $\|\bar{a}\| = \bar{a}\| \geq \max\{\frac{1}{2}\|\bar{a}\|, \|-\|\bar{a}\|\} \geq \frac{1}{3}$ , contradicting that  $\overline{a}_{r}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) are dense in  $\overline{R}$ . Thus we obtain A=R, and hence R is separable by definition.

### \$73 Quotient spaces

Lot R be a normed space. For a linear manifold A of R, we have defined the quotient space R/A in §46 and the relative pseudo-norm on R/A in §51 as  $||X|| = \inf_{Z \in X} ||X||$  for  $X \in R/A$ . NX is convex by §51 Theorem 6. If A is closed by the norm topology of R , then we see easily by  $\S51$  Theorem 7,  $\S56$  Theorems 4 and 5 that the relative pseudo-norm  ${\tt H} \times {\tt H}$  is proper and hence a norm on  ${\tt R} \ / \ {\tt A}$  . for a closed linear manifold A of R we obtain a quotient space R / A as a normed space with the relative pseudo-norm, and we have

Theorem 1. The norm topology of a quotient space R/A by a closed linear manifold A coincides with the relative linear topology of the norm topology of R on the quotient space R /A.

Furthermore we obtain by \$59 Theorem 5

Theorem 2. If the norm of R is complete, then the norm of the quotient space R / A by a closed linear manifold A is complete too.

If a linear manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  is Theorem 3. weakly clased, then for the linear manifold

 $A = \{x : \bar{x}(x) = 0 \text{ for every } \bar{x} \in \bar{A} \},$ considering every  $\tilde{\varkappa}\in\tilde{\mathcal{A}}$  as a linear functional on the quotient space R/A, A coincides with the adjoint space R/A of R/A as a normed space.

By virtue of 165 Theorem 8,  $\overline{A}$  coincides with  $\overline{R/A}$  as Proof.

Thus we need only prove that the norm of A coincides a linear space. with that of R/A . As || X || S || x || for every z & X , we have

 $\sup_{\|X\| \le 1} \|\widehat{\mathcal{Z}}(X)\| \ge \sup_{\|X\| \le 1} \|\widehat{\mathcal{Z}}(X)\| \qquad \text{for every } \widehat{\mathcal{Z}} \in \widehat{\mathcal{A}}.$ On the other hand, for any  $\chi \in R/A$  subject to  $11 \times 11 < 1$ , we rem find  $x \in X$  for which  $\|x\| < 1$ , and hence

 $\sup_{\|X\| \le 1} \|\overline{z}(X)\| = \sup_{\|X\| \le 1} \|\overline{z}(X)\| \le \sup_{\|X\| \le 1} \|\overline{z}(\pi)\|.$  Therefore we have  $\|\overline{z}\| = \sup_{\|X\| \le 1} \|\overline{z}(X)\| \quad \text{for every } \overline{z} \in \overline{A}.$ 

182

For a linear manifold  $\overline{\mathcal{A}}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}$  , putting

$$A = \{x : \overline{x}(x) = 0 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A} \},$$

we obtain a closed linear manifold A of R . Then we can consider by Theorem 3  $\widetilde{A}$  as a linear manifold of the adjoint space  $\widetilde{R/A}$  of the quo-The character of a linear manifold  $\widetilde{A}$  of the adtiont space R/A . joint space  $\overline{R}$  is defined by the character of  $\overline{\mathcal{A}}$  as a linear manifold of the adjoint space R/A . Denoting by  $A^{W}$  the closure of a manifold A of the adjoint space R by the weak topology, we conclude easily from \$72 Theorem 3

For a linear manifold A of the adjoint space R , we Theorem 4. have  $(\vec{\nabla}\vec{A})^{w-} > \frac{1}{\lambda} \vec{\nabla} \vec{A}^{w-}$  if and only if  $\delta \ge \chi$  for the character  $\chi$  of A and the unit sphere of R.

A linear manifold A of the adjoint space R is said to be norm fundamental, if  $\overline{A}$  is so as a linear manifold of the adjoint space  $\overline{R/A}$  of the quotient space R/A for  $A = \{x : \overline{x}(x) = 0 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A} \}$ .

With this definition we have obviously by Theorem 4

A linear manifold A of the adjoint space R is norm Theorem 5. fundamental, if and only if  $\overline{v} \overline{A}$  is dense in  $\overline{v} \overline{A}^{w-}$  by the weak topology.

For a linear manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  , Theorem 6. putting  $A = \{x: \bar{x}(x) = 0 \text{ for every } \bar{x} \in \bar{A}^{\dagger}\}$ , we have

$$\bar{A}^{W^{-}} = \{\bar{\pi} : \bar{\kappa}(\kappa) = 0 \text{ for every } \kappa \in A\}.$$

Putting  $\vec{B} = \{\vec{z} : \vec{z}(z) = 0 \text{ for every } z \in A \}$ . we obtain obviously by definition a weakly closed linear manifold  $\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}$  of  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  , and on account of Theorem 3, B coincides with the adjoint space RIA of the quotient space R/A . As  $\widetilde{A}$  is obviously fundamental in the quotient space R/A ,  $\widetilde{A}$  is weakly dense in  $\widetilde{B}$  by Theorem 5. Finally we will prove

Theorem 7. (Banach) When the norm of K is complete, for a linear manifold A of then adjoint space R , 1f TA 18 weakly closed for the unit sphere v of R , then A also is weakly closed.

As  $\alpha(\overline{\tau}\overline{A}) = (\alpha\overline{\tau})(\alpha\overline{A}) = (\alpha\overline{\tau})\overline{A}$  for every  $\alpha \neq 0$ , we see Proof. by assumption that  $(\mathcal{A}\overrightarrow{\sigma})\widetilde{A}$  is weakly closed for every  $\mathscr{A}>0$  . element  $\overline{A} \in \overline{A}$ , we can find  $\varepsilon > 0$  such that  $\overline{A}(\varepsilon \overline{\nabla} + \overline{A}) = 0$ . cause, as  $\overline{A}$  (2# $\overline{a}$ # $\overline{v}$ ) is closed naturally by the norm topology, we can find a positive number  $\varepsilon < n \bar{x} \bar{n}$  such that  $\bar{A}(a + \bar{a} + \bar{a}) (\varepsilon \bar{v} + \bar{a}) = 0$ , and we have obviously ミヴィなく 2 man で. For such &, we have obviously

Since  $\pounds E \overline{v} + \overline{a} \subset 4\pi\pi\pi\overline{v}$ , and  $\overline{A}(4\pi\pi\pi\overline{v})$  is weakly compact by §72 Theorem 5, we can find a finite number of elements  $x_{i,p}$   $(p=1, 2, ..., p_i)$ such that bx, p # \$ 1 and

A TT 1 = : 1 = (x1, m) - T (x1, m) 1 ≤ € } (2 € T + T) = 0. Similarly we can find consecutively  $x_{\nu,\mu}$  ( $\mu=1, 2, \ldots, \mu$ ;  $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that II x , , , i = 1 and

 $\overline{A} \stackrel{\mathcal{H}}{\pitchfork} \{\overline{\pi}: \{\overline{\pi}: |\overline{\pi}(x_{n,\mu}) - \overline{\pi}(x_{n,\mu}) | \leq 2^{\nu} \hat{\epsilon}\} (2^{\kappa} \hat{\epsilon} \overline{\sigma} + \overline{a}) = 0.$ As  $\sum_{i=1}^{n} \overline{A} (2^{n} \mathcal{E} \overline{\nabla} + \overline{a}) = \overline{A}$ , we obtain hence

 $\overline{A} \prod_{n,m} \left\{ \overline{x} : |\overline{x} \left( \frac{1}{2^{n}E} x_{n,m} \right) - \overline{a} \left( \frac{1}{2^{n}E} x_{n,m} \right) | \leq 1 \right\} = 0.$ Thus we can find a sequence of elements  $x_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that

Let C be a space of number sequences  $y = (\xi_1; \nu = 1, 2, ...)$  subject to the condition:  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} \chi_{\nu} = 0$  , with the norm

Then we see easily that, putting

$$\overline{A_o} = \{ (\overline{x}(z_{\nu}): \nu = 1, 2, ...) : \overline{x} \in \overline{A} \},$$
 we obtain a linear manifold  $\overline{A_o}$  of  $C$ , and, putting  $\overline{y_o} = \{\overline{a}(z_{\nu}): \nu = 1, 2, ... \},$ 

we have  $|| y - y_s || \ge 1$  for every  $y \in \overline{A_s}$ . Thus we can find by \$72 Theorem 6 a continuous linear functional  $\varphi$  on C such that  $\varphi(y)=0$  for every  $\mathfrak{F} \in \widetilde{\mathcal{A}}$ , and  $\mathfrak{P}(y_0) = \emptyset$ . For such  $\mathfrak{P}$ , putting

dm = q(ym), Im = ( for \$ 20=0 for + + m, Im = 1), we see easily that  $\mathscr{C}(\S_1,\S_2,\ldots)=\sum_{i=1}^n \mathscr{C}(\S_i)$ , and hence  $\sum_{i=1}^n |\mathscr{C}_i|<+\infty$ . As R is complete by assumption, we obtain hence an element: 2, & R as Zo = \$ 0, Zv,

and we have for every  $\tilde{\mathcal{A}} \in \tilde{\mathcal{A}}$ 

194

$$\overline{X}(x_0^*) = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} d_i \, \overline{X}(x_0) = 0,$$

$$\overline{a}(\pi_0) = \underbrace{\widetilde{\Xi}}_{a} \alpha_{\nu} \overline{a}(\pi_{\nu}) = \varphi(y_0) = 1$$

Therefore every  $\overline{a} \in \overline{A}$  is not a contact point of  $\overline{A}$  by the weak topology, that is, A is weakly closed.

#### §74 Wesk convergence

A sequence of elements  $\alpha_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = \lambda_{\nu}$ Let A be a normed space. 2,...) is said to be norm convergent to a limit  $\alpha \in R$ , if

$$\lim_{n\to\infty} \|a_n - a\| = 0,$$

that is, if  $\lim_{n\to\infty} a_n = a$  for the norm topology. As the norm topology is separative, we see easily that such a limit a is determined uniquely, if it exists.

Concerning norm convergence, we can prove easily

If  $\lim a_{i} = a$ ,  $\lim \ell_{i} = \ell$ , then we have  $\lim (\alpha a_{\nu} + \beta \delta_{\nu}) = \alpha a_{\nu} + \beta \delta_{\nu}.$ 

lim a = a, lim d = a implies lim d a = da. Theorem 2.

lim a, = a implies lim na, s = nan. Theorem 3.

Let R be the adjoint space of R. A sequence of elements a. R ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) is said to be weakly convergent to a limit  $\tilde{a} \in \tilde{R}$ , if

$$\lim_{x\to\infty} \overline{a}_{\nu}(x) = \overline{a}(x) \qquad \text{for every } x \in \mathbb{R},$$

and then we shall write

w-lim 
$$\bar{a}_{\nu} = \bar{a}_{\nu}$$

We recognize easily by definition the uniqueness of such a limit \$ \$ \$ \$ \$,

if it exists.

5741

w-lim a, = a implies lim H av H ≥ H AH.

For any  $\varepsilon > 0$  we can find by the definition of the ad-Proof. joint norm  $x \in R$  such that  $\overline{A}(x) \ge \|\overline{A}\| - \mathcal{E}$ ,  $\|x\| = 1$ . we have by assumption  $\widetilde{a}(x) = \lim_{\nu \to \infty} \widetilde{a}_{\nu}(x) \leq \lim_{\nu \to \infty} \pi \widetilde{a}_{\nu} \pi$ , and hence lim Ha, H & Hall-g for every E > 0

Thus we obtain our assertion.

Theorem 5. Let R he complete. If  $\overline{a}_{-}(x) (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ is convergent for every  $x \in R$ , then  $\overline{a}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is weakly convergent and we have  $\sup_{k=1,2,...}$  if  $\tilde{a}_{\nu}$  if  $<+\infty$ .

As R is complete by assumption, we conclude by Theorems Froof. 1 in \$58 and 2 in \$66 that the norm topology is standard and normal. Thus we obtain by §66 Theorem 4 that  $\overline{a}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) is weakly convergent, and further by \$66 Theorem 3 that  $\sup_{z=1,2,...}$  ||  $\overline{a}_{z}$  || < +  $\infty$  .

If R is complete, then w-lim  $\overline{a}_{\iota} = \overline{a}$ ,  $\lim_{\iota \to \infty} a_{\iota} = a$ Theorem 6. implies  $\lim_{n \to \infty} \bar{a}_{\nu}(a_{\nu}) = \bar{a}(a)$ .

As we have by the formula \$72(2) Proof.

$$|\overline{a}_{\mu}(a_{\nu}) - \overline{a}(a)| \leq |\overline{a}_{\nu}(a_{\nu}) - \overline{a}_{\nu}(a)| + |\overline{a}_{\nu}(a) - \overline{a}(a)|$$

and  $\sup_{k \in \mathbb{N}} \| \{ \widehat{a}_k \| < + \infty \text{ by Theorem 5, we conclude by assumption} \}$ 

$$\lim_{\nu \to \infty} |\overline{a}_{\nu}(a_{\nu}) - \overline{a}(a)| = 0.$$

If R is separable, then every bounded sequence a, eR  $(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  contains a weakly convergent subsequence.

Let  $\alpha_{\rho} \in \mathcal{R}$  (f=1, 2,...) be dense in  $\mathcal{R}$  by the norm to-From  $\overline{a}_{\nu} \in \overline{R}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) we can find by the diagonal method pology. a subsequence  $\bar{a}_{\nu\mu}$  ( $\mu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that  $\bar{a}_{\nu\mu}(a_p)$  ( $\mu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) is convergent for every  $f=1, 2, \ldots$  As  $\overline{a}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) is bounded by assumption, we can find  $\ell > 0$  such that  $\|\widetilde{\alpha}_{\nu_{p^{n}}}\| \leq \ell$  for every  $\mu = 1$ , 2,... Let x be an arbitrary element of R. For any  $\xi > 0$  we can find by assumption  $\rho$  such that  $\|\alpha_{\rho} - x\|^{2} < \mathcal{E}$ , and then for every  $\mu$ ,  $\mu' = 1$ , 2,...

(Chapter X

≤ 11 am 111 ap - 211 + 11 am 111 ap - 211 + 1 am (ap) - ain. (ap) < 288 + | aux (ap) - aux (ap) 1.

Thus we conclude that  $\tilde{a}_{\nu_{\mu}}(z)$  ( $\mu=1,2,...$ ) is convergent for every  $z\in\mathcal{K}$ , and hence, putting  $\varphi(z) = \lim_{n \to \infty} \tilde{\Delta}_{\nu_n}(z)$  for every  $z \in \hat{R}$  , we obtain a linear functional 9 on R. Furthermore we have for every zeR

14(x) = 11m | av (x) | 5 8 || x || .

Therefore we conclude  $\varphi \in \tilde{R}$  , and consequently  $\tilde{\alpha}_{\nu\mu}$  ( $\mu=1,\,2,\ldots$ ) is weakly convergent by definition.

A sequence of elements  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is said to be meakly convergent to a limit a < R , if

 $\lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{x}(a_n) = \overline{x}(a) \qquad \text{for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{R},$ 

and then we shall write w-lim  $a_{\nu} = a$ .

Every a & R may be considered as a linear functional on the adjoint space R of R by the relation: a(x) = x(a) for every ReR, and we have by the formula §72 (5)

11all = sup | \( \overline{\pi} \) (a)].

Thus we have by Theorem 4

196

w-lim a, = a implies lim na, n ≥ nan. Theorem 8.

As the adjoint space R is complete by \$72 Theorem 1, we obtain by Theorems 5 and 6

we lim  $a_{\nu} = a$ , lim  $\bar{a}_{\nu} = \bar{a}$  implies Theorem 9.

 $\lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{a}_{\nu}(a_{\nu}) = \overline{a}_{\nu}(a_{\nu}), \qquad \sup_{n \to \infty} \|a_{\nu}\| < +\infty.$ 

#### \$75 Regularity

The norm topology of R is by \$71 Theo-Let R be a normed space. rem 1 and \$58 Theorem 1 separative, standard, and hence reflexive by \$68 Furthermore we see by the formula §72(3) that R may be Theorem 4. considered as a subspace of the adjoint space  $\bar{R}$  of the adjoint space  $\bar{R}$ by the relation:  $\chi(\bar{\chi}) = \bar{\chi}(\chi)$  for every  $\bar{\chi} \in \bar{R}$  and  $\chi \in R$ , and then R is norm fundamental in R. Thus we obtain by §72 Theorem 4

Theorem 1. The unit sphere U of R is weakly dense in the unit sphere T of the adjoint space R of the adjoint space R.

\$74. \$75)

We shall consider the regularity of R by the norm topology in the sequel.

Theorem 2, R is regular by the norm topology if and only if the unit sphere v of R is weakly compact.

If  $\mathcal R$  is regular, then the unit sphere  $\mathcal V$  of  $\mathcal R$  coincides Proof. with the unit sphere 罗 of 夏, and hence weakly compact by \$72 Theorem 5. Conversely, if the unit sphere v of R is weakly compact, then v coincides by Theorem 1 with the unit sphere  $\overline{\nabla}$  of  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}$  , and hence  $\mathcal{R}$  coincides with E.

Theorem 3. If R is regular, then every closed linear manifold of & is regular as a subspace of R .

If a linear manifold A of R is closed, then A is weakly Proof. closed by §68 Theorem 2. As R is regular by assumption, the unit sphere U of R is weakly compact by Theorem 2. Accordingly UA 1s weakly compact. Since every bounded linear functional on A may be extended by §44 Theorem 4 to a bounded linear functional on R , the unit sphere  $\nabla A$  of the subspace A is weakly compact. Thus A is regular by Theorem 2.

Theorem 4. If R is complete and the adjoint space R of R is regular, then R also is regular.

If the adjoint space R is regular, then the adjoint space Proof.  $ar{ar{\mathcal{R}}}$  of  $ar{\mathcal{R}}$  is regular by definition. As  $ar{\mathcal{R}}$  is complete by assumption,  $ar{\mathcal{R}}$ may be considered as a closed linear manifold of  $\overline{R}$  . Therefore R also is regular by Theorem 3.

Theorem 5. If R is regular and separable by the norm topology. then the adjoint space R of R is separable by the norm topology.

If R is regular, then R may be considered by definition Proof. as the adjoint space of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  . Thus, if R is separable, then  $\overline{R}$  is separable by §72 Theorem 6.

If R is regular, then every bounded sequence of els-Theorem 6. ments a. & R (v=1, 2,...) contains a weakly convergent subsequence.

<u>Proof.</u> Let A be the least closed linear manifold containing all  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ). As R is regular by assumption, A also is regular as a subspace of R, by Theorem 5. Furthermore A is separable by §71 Theorem 10. Consequently we see by Theorem 5 that the adjoint space  $\overline{A}$  of A is separable too. Thus we can conclude by §74 Theorem 7 that  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) contains a weakly convergent subsequence.

Theorem 7. If R is separable and every bounded sequence of elements  $x_i \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) contains a weakly convergent subsequence, then R is regular.

Proof. Let  $\alpha_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) be dense in  $\mathbb{R}$  by the norm topology. Then we can find by the formula §72(3) a sequence of elements  $\overline{\alpha}_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that  $\overline{\alpha}_{\nu}(\alpha_{\nu}) \geq \frac{1}{2} \|\alpha_{\nu}\|_{1} \|\overline{\alpha}_{\nu}\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2} \|1\|_{2$ 

 $|\tilde{Z}_{s_1} \mathcal{F}(\tilde{a}_s)| = |\varphi(\tilde{Z}_{s_1} \tilde{a}_s)| \leq ||\varphi|| ||\tilde{Z}_{s_1} \tilde{a}_s ||,$  we can find by §52 Theorem 8  $z_p \in R$  (p = 1, 2, ...) such that

 $\bar{a}_{\nu}(x_{\ell}) = \varphi(\bar{a}_{\nu})$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \gamma$ ,

Nucli Elight 1 for every f= 1, 2,...

From this sequence  $x_{f}$  ( $f=1, 2, \ldots$ ) we can select by assumption a weakly convergent subsequence  $x_{f_{f^{m}}}$  ( $f=1, 2, \ldots$ ), and, putting f=1 we see easily that we have for every  $f=1, 2, \ldots$ 

$$\bar{\alpha}_{\nu}(x) = \lim_{n \to \infty} \bar{\alpha}_{\nu}(x_{\rho_{\mu}}) = \varphi(\bar{\alpha}_{\nu}).$$

Therefore there exists an element  $x \in \mathcal{R}$  such that

$$\tilde{a}_{\nu}(x) = \varphi(\tilde{a}_{\nu})$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

For an arbitrary  $\vec{x}\in\vec{R}$ , considering  $\vec{x}$ ,  $\vec{a}_1$ ,  $\vec{a}_2$ ,... instead of  $\vec{a}_1$ ,  $\vec{a}_2$ ,..., we can find likewise an element  $y\in R$  such that

Then we have naturally  $\overline{A}_{\nu}(x) = \varphi(\overline{A}_{\nu})$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ . Then we have naturally  $\overline{A}_{\nu}(x) = \overline{A}_{\nu}(y)$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ . Putting  $\overline{A} = \{\overline{Z} : \overline{X}(x) = \overline{Z}(y)\}$ , we obtain obviously a weakly closed linear manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$ . If  $\overline{A}$  does not coincides with the whole  $\overline{R}$ , then we can find by §62 Theorem 9  $X_{\nu} \in R$  such that  $X_{\nu} \neq 0$  but  $\overline{X}(X_{\nu}) = 0$  for every  $\overline{X} \in \overline{A}$ . For such  $X_{\nu} \in R$ , as  $\overline{A}_{\nu} \in \overline{A}$  ( $\nu = 1$ ,

2,...), we have  $\|a_{\nu} - x_{0}\| \ge \|\bar{a}_{\nu}(a_{\nu}) - \bar{a}_{\nu}(x_{0})\| = \bar{a}_{\nu}(a_{\nu}) \ge \frac{1}{2}\|a_{\nu}\|$ . As  $\|a_{\nu} - x_{0}\| \ge \|x_{0}\| - \|a_{\nu}\|$ , we obtain hence for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ 

contradicting that  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,2,...$ ) is dense in  $R\sim$  Therefore A coincides with R, and hence x=y. Accordingly we obtain  $R(x)=\varphi(R)$ . As  $R\in R$  may be arbitrary, we conclude hence  $R(x)=\varphi(R)$  for every  $R\in R$ . Thus R is regular by definition.

# \$76 Uniformly convex norms

Let R be a normed space. ... If for any two positive numbers  $\varepsilon > \varepsilon'$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\|x\|$ ,  $\|y\| \le \frac{1}{\varepsilon'}$ ,  $\|x\| - \|y\| \| \le \varepsilon'$ ,  $\|x - y\| \ge \varepsilon$  implies  $\|x\| + \|y\| \| \ge \|x + y\| + \delta$ , then we shall say that R is uniformly convex.

Theorem 1. In order that the norm of R be uniformly convex, it is necessary and sufficient that for any E > 0 we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\|x\| = \|y\| = 1$ ,  $\|x - y\| \ge E$  implies  $\|x + y\| \le E - S$ .

<u>Proof.</u> As the necessity is trivial, we shall prove the sufficiency. For two positive numbers  $\xi > \xi'$  we can find by assumption  $\xi_* > \delta$  such that

$$RRH = HgH = 1$$
,  $HR - gH \ge E'(E - E')$ 

implies  $||x+y|| \le 2 - \varepsilon$ . If  $||y|| - \varepsilon' \le ||x|| \le ||y|| \le \frac{1}{\varepsilon}$ ,  $||x-y|| \ge \varepsilon$ , then

$$H \frac{1}{n \times n} \times - \frac{1}{n \times n} \quad \forall \quad H = H \frac{1}{n \times n} \quad (x - y) + \frac{n \times n - n \times n}{n \times n \times n \times n} \quad \forall \quad H$$

$$\geq \frac{1}{n \times n} \| x - y \| - \frac{n + n - n \times n}{n \times n} \geq \frac{1}{n \times n} (\varepsilon - \varepsilon') \geq \varepsilon' (\varepsilon - \varepsilon').$$

and hence we obtain  $\|\frac{1}{8\times 8} \times + \frac{1}{8 \times 8} y \| \le 2 - \delta_0$ . On the other hand,

Consequently we have #x#+ #y# ≥ #x+y#+ So #x#. As

we have  $2 ||x|| \ge \xi - \xi'$ , and hence we obtain

$$\|x\| + \|y\| \ge \|x + y\| + \delta_0 \frac{\varepsilon - \varepsilon'}{2}$$

\$76, \$77)

Theorem 2. Let R be uniformly convex. For a manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$ , if  $\lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{x}(a_n) = \overline{x}(a_n)$  for every  $\overline{x} \in \overline{A}$ 

 $\lim_{t\to\infty}\|a_v\|\leq\|a_o\|,\qquad \|a_o\|=\sup_{\tilde{z}\in\tilde{\mathcal{A}}}\frac{|\tilde{z}(a_o)|}{\|\tilde{z}\|},$ 

then we have  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} a_{\nu} = a_{o}$ .

<u>Proof.</u> We can assume obviously that  $a_s \Rightarrow 0$ . For each  $\overline{z} \in \overline{A}$  we have by assumption

 $|\overline{\chi}(a_0)| = \lim_{n \to \infty} |\overline{\chi}(a_0)| \leq \lim_{n \to \infty} |\overline{\chi}| \|a_0\|_{2}$ 

and hence  $\|A_0\| = \sup_{\pi \in A} \frac{\|\overline{x}(o_0)\|}{\|\pi\|} \le \lim_{n \to \infty} \|a_n\|$ . Accordingly we conclude by assumption

 $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} \|a_{\nu}\| = \|a_{\sigma}\|.$ 

If we have not  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty}a_{\nu}=a_{o}$ , then we can find  $\ell>0$  and a subsequence  $a_{\ell,\mu}$  ( $\mu=1,\,2,\ldots$ ) such that

 $\|a_{\nu_m} - a_{\sigma}\| \ge \mathcal{E}$  for every  $\mu = 1, 2, ...$ 

As R is uniformly convex by assumption, for a positive number

$$\mathcal{E}' < \min \left\{ \frac{1}{n\alpha_{0}n}, \mathcal{E} \right\}$$

we can find by definition  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\|x\|, \|y\| \le \frac{1}{\epsilon}$ ,  $\|x\| - \|y\| \le \epsilon$ ;  $\|x - y\| \ge \epsilon$  implies  $\|x\| + \|y\| \ge \|x + y\| + \delta$ . As  $\|a_0\| < \frac{1}{\epsilon}$ , and  $\lim_{\epsilon \to \infty} \|a_0\| = \|a_0\|$ , we can find  $\mu_0$ , such that  $\|a_0\| < \frac{1}{\epsilon}$ ,  $\|a_0\| + \|a_0\| \le \epsilon$  for every  $\mu \ge \mu_0$ , and hence we have for every  $\mu \ge \mu_0$ .

Have + a. II = Have II + Ha. II - 8.

Accordingly we have for every  $M \ge M$ , and  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$ 

「元(avm)+元(ao)」 = 11元11(11avm)+11ao11-8).

As  $\lim_{n\to\infty} \overline{\chi}(a_{\nu_{\beta^n}}) = \overline{\chi}(a_{\delta})$  for every  $\overline{\chi} \in \overline{A}$  by assumption, we obtain hence

 $2|\bar{x}(a_0)| \le \|\bar{x}\|(2\|a_0\| - \delta)$  for every  $\bar{x} \in \bar{A}$ .

and consequently by assumption

 $\|a_0\| = \sup_{\widetilde{x} \in \mathcal{X}} \frac{|\widetilde{x}(\alpha_0)|}{\|\widetilde{x}\|} \leq \|a_0\| - \frac{1}{2}\delta,$ 

contradicting  $\delta > 0$ . Therefore we have  $\lim_{k \to \infty} a_k = a_k$ .

Recalling the formula \$72(3), as a special case of Theorem 2 we have

Theorem 3. If R is uniformly convex, then

 $w-\lim_{n\to\infty}a_n=a,\qquad \lim_{n\to\infty}\|a_n\|=\|a_n\|$ 

implies  $\lim_{t\to\infty} a_t = a$ .

§77 Uniformly even norms

Let R be a normed space. If for any two positive numbers  $\mathcal{E}$  ,  $\mathcal{E}'$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\|x\|$ ,  $\|y\| \ge \delta'$ ,  $\|x-y\| \le \delta$  implies

日本リナログリ 至日又十岁リナ モリスーダル。

then we shall say that R is uniformly even, or that the norm of R is uniformly even.

Theorem 1. In order that the norm of R be uniformly even, it is necessary and sufficient that for any  $\varepsilon > 0$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\|x\| = 1$ ,  $\|y\| \le \delta$  implies

リスナタリナリスータリム2+モリタリ、

<u>Proof.</u> If the norm of R is uniformly even, then for any positive number  $E < \frac{1}{2}$  we can find by definition a positive number  $S < \frac{1}{2}$  such that  $\|x\|$ ,  $\|y\| \ge E$ ,  $\|x-y\| \le 2S$  implies

 $\|x\| + \|y\| \le \|x + y\| + \frac{\varepsilon}{2} \|x - y\|.$ 

For such  $\xi$ ,  $\delta$ , if  $\|\alpha\| = 1$ ,  $\|\xi\| \le \delta$ , then, putting  $x = a + \ell$ ,  $y = a - \delta$ , we have  $\|x\|$ ,  $\|y\| \ge \|a\| - \|\xi\| > \frac{1}{2}$ ,  $\|x - y\| = 2\|\xi\| \le 2\delta$ , and consequently  $\|a + \ell\| + \|a - \delta\| \le 2 + \varepsilon \|\xi\|$ .

Conversely, if #x # = 1 , ### ≤ 8 implies

リスナタリナルスータの 無 2 ナ モルタイ。

then, putting  $\mathcal{E}_0 = \min \{ \varepsilon \mathcal{E}_0, \varepsilon \}$ , we see that for  $\| \alpha \|_0, \| \mathcal{E}_0 \|_0 \ge \varepsilon$ , as  $\| \alpha + \mathcal{E}_0 \|_0 \ge 2 \| \alpha \|_0 + \| \alpha - \mathcal{E}_0 \|_0 \ge \varepsilon$ , putting

$$z = \frac{1}{8a + g_{R}}(a + \ell), \quad y = \frac{1}{8a + g_{R}}(a - \ell).$$

we have  $\|x\| = 1$ ,  $\|y\| \le \frac{\delta_p}{\varepsilon} \le \delta$ , and hence

 $\frac{2 \ln \alpha H}{\ln \alpha + 8 H} + \frac{2 \ln \beta H}{\ln \alpha + 8 H} \leq 2 + \epsilon \frac{\ln \alpha - \beta H}{\ln \alpha + 6 H},$ 

that is,  $\|a\| + \|b\| \le \|a + b\| + \frac{\epsilon}{2} \|a - b\|$ . Therefore R is uniformly even by definition.

Theorem 2. If R is uniformly convex, then the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  of R is uniformly even.

Proof. If R is uniformly convex, then for any  $\varepsilon > 0$  we can find by Theorem 1 in §76  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\|z\| = \|z\| = 1$ ,  $\|z - z\| \ge \varepsilon$  implies  $\|z + z\| \le 2 - 2\delta$ . For such  $\varepsilon$ ,  $\delta$ , if  $\|z\| = 1$ ,  $\|z\| \le \delta$ .

 $\vec{x}$  ,  $\vec{y}$   $\in \vec{R}$  , then we have by the definition of the adjoint norm

 $=\sup_{\substack{n=1\\ n\neq n=0\\ n\neq n}} \{ \overline{x} (x \diamond y) + \overline{y} (x-y) \} \leq \sup_{\substack{n\geq n \leq n \leq 1\\ n\neq n}} \{ nx + yn + n\overline{y} n nx - yn \}.$ 

Here, if  $||x-y|| \ge \varepsilon$ , then, as  $||x-y|| \le 2$ , we have

202

 $\|x + y\| + \|\overline{y}\| \|x - y\| \le 2 - 2\delta + 2\delta = 2$ .

Thus we obtain  $\|\vec{x} + \vec{y}\| + \|\vec{x} - \vec{y}\| \le 2 + \varepsilon \|\vec{y}\|$ . Therefore the adjoint space  $\vec{R}$  is uniformly even by Theorem 1.

Theorem 3. If R is uniformly even, then the adjoint space R is uniformly convex.

Proof. If R is uniformly even, then for any  $\ell > 0$  we can find by Theorem 1  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\|x\| = 1$ ,  $\|y\| \le \delta$ , x,  $y \in R$  implies  $\|x + y\| + \|x - y\| \le 2 + \frac{2}{4}\|y\|$ .

For such  $\mathcal{E}$ ,  $\mathcal{S}$ , if  $\|\vec{x}\| = \|\vec{y}\| = 1$ ,  $\|\vec{x} - \vec{y}\| \ge \mathcal{E}$ ,  $\vec{z}$ ,  $\vec{y} \in \vec{R}$ , then we can find by the formula §72(1)  $\vec{y} \in \vec{R}$  such that

$$\|y\| = \delta, \qquad (\bar{x} - \bar{y})(y) \ge \frac{1}{2} \epsilon \delta,$$

and we have then  $\{\vec{x} + \vec{y}\} = \sup_{\|\vec{x}\| = 1} \{(\vec{x} + \vec{y})(\vec{x})\}$   $= \sup_{\|\vec{x}\| = 1} \{\vec{x}(x + y) + \vec{y}(x - y) - (\vec{x} - \vec{y})(y)\}$   $\leq \sup_{\|\vec{x}\| = 1} \{\|\vec{x} + y\| + \|\vec{x} - y\| - \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon\delta\}$  $\leq 2 + \frac{\varepsilon}{6}\|y\| - \frac{1}{6}\varepsilon\delta = 2 - \frac{1}{4}\varepsilon\delta$ .

Therefore the adjoint space R is uniformly convex by §76 Theorem 1.

Theorem 4. If R is uniformly convex and complete, then R is regular by the norm topology.

<u>Proof.</u> If R is uniformly convex, then the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  of R is uniformly even by Theorem 2. Thus the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  of  $\overline{R}$  is uniformly convex by Theorem 3. For an arbitrary  $\overline{Z} \in \overline{R}$ , we can find by the formula §72(1) a sequence  $\overline{X}_{\nu} \in \overline{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\overline{Z}(\overline{X}_{\nu}) \geq \|\overline{X}\|_{2} + \frac{1}{2}$ ,  $\|\overline{X}_{\nu}\|_{2} = 1$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ).

For such  $\overline{z}_{\nu} \in \overline{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), as

 $|\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \xi_{\nu} \widehat{Z}(\widehat{Z}_{\nu})| = |\widehat{Z}(\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \xi_{\nu} \widehat{Z}_{\nu})| \leq ||\widehat{Z}|| ||\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \xi_{\nu} \widehat{Z}_{\nu}||$  for every finite number of real numbers  $\xi_{\nu}(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , we can find by §52 Theorem 8 a sequence  $\kappa_{\rho} \in R(\rho=1, 2, ...)$  such that

$$\overline{z}_{\nu}(z_{\nu}) = \overline{\overline{z}}(\overline{z}_{\nu})$$
 for  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \gamma$ ,

normed spaces

 $\|x_p\| \le \|\overline{z}\| + \frac{1}{p}$  for  $p = 1, 2, \dots$ 

Then we have obviously for every  $\nu = 1$ , 2,...

 $\lim_{p\to\infty} \overline{Z}_{\nu}(x_p) = \overline{X}(\overline{x}_{\nu}),$ 

and further

§77)

ル元 1 = , aup ... | 豆(元, )1.

Thus, considering R as a subspace of R by the relation:

we obtain by §76 Theorem 2

As R is complete by assumption, we conclude hence  $\overline{z} \in R$ . Therefore R is regular by definition.

Theorem 5. If R is uniformly even and complete, then R is regular by the norm topology.

Proof. If R is uniformly even, then the adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  of R is uniformly convex by Theorem 3 and complete by \$72 Theorem 1. Thus  $\overline{R}$  is regular by Theorem 4. As R is complete by assumption, we conclude hence by \$75 Theorem 4 that R is regular.

#### §78)

#### MODULARED SPACES

205

#### CHAPTER XI

#### MODULARED SPACES

#### \$78 Medular conditions

A mapping of R into ( ]: 0 = [ = + co ] Let R be a linear space. is said to be a modular on R , 11 m satisfies the modular conditions:

- m(0) = 0,
- m(-x) = m(x)for every  $x \in R$ ,
- for any  $x \in R$  we can find  $\lambda > 0$  such that  $m(\lambda x) < +\infty$ .
- $m(\xi x) = 0$  for all  $\xi > 0$  implies x = 0, 4)
- $d+\beta=1$ ,  $d,\beta\geq 0$  implies  $m(dz+\beta y)\leq dm(x)+\beta m(y)$ ,
- $m(x) = \sup_{0 \le \frac{\pi}{2} \le 1} m(\frac{\pi}{2}x)$  for every  $x \in R$ .

A linear space R associated with a modular on is called a modulared space, and m(x) the modular of an element  $x \in R$ .

We see easily by 5), Let R be a modulared space in the sequel. 6) that  $m(\S x)$  is a convex non-decreasing function of  $\S \ge c$  and left Thus we see further by 2) that if  $m(\alpha \kappa) < +\infty$ hand continuous. for some d>0, then m(xx) is a continuous convex function of x for 1815 0.

From 2), 5) we conclude easily

(1) 
$$m(x+y) \leq \frac{1}{2}m(2x) + \frac{1}{2}m(2y)$$
,

(2) 
$$m\left(\sum_{i=1}^{n} d_{i} \chi_{i}\right) \leq \sum_{i=1}^{n} |d_{i}| m(\chi_{i})$$
 for  $\sum_{i=1}^{n} |d_{i}| \leq 1$ .

As  $x = (1-\varepsilon)Y + \varepsilon(Y + \frac{1}{\varepsilon}(x-y))$ , we obtain further

(3) 
$$m(x) \le m(y) + \varepsilon m(y + \frac{1}{\varepsilon}(x-y))$$
 for  $0 < \varepsilon \le 1$ .

A sequence of elements  $a_{\nu} \in \mathcal{R} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  is said to be modular convergent to a limit as R and denoted by

$$m-\lim_{n\to\infty} a_n = a_n$$

If we have  $\lim_{k\to\infty} m(\xi(a_k-a))=0$  for every  $\xi \ge 0$ . Such a limit a is determined uniquely, if  $a_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) is modular convergent. cause, if  $\lim_{k\to\infty} m(\xi(a_k-k)) = \lim_{k\to\infty} m(\xi(a_k-k)) = 0$  for every  $\xi \ge 0$ , then, as  $m(\frac{1}{2}\xi(a-\xi)) \leq \frac{1}{2}m(\xi(a_k-a)) + \frac{1}{2}m(\xi(a_k-\xi))$  by (1), we conclude  $w(\xi(\alpha-\ell))=0$  for every  $\xi\geq 0$ , and hence  $\alpha-\ell=0$  by 4).

By virtue of the formula (1), we can prove easily

m-lim a, = a, m-lim f, = f implies Theorem 1. m-lim (da+ plu) = da+ pl.

m-lim  $a_1 = a_2$ ,  $\lim_{n \to \infty} \alpha_n = a_n$  implies m-lim  $\alpha_1 a_2 = a_n$ .

If m-lim  $a_{\nu} = a$  and  $m(\mathcal{F}a_{\nu}) < +\infty$  for every  $\nu = 1$ , 2,..., then we have  $\lim_{n\to\infty} m(a_r) = m(a) < +\infty$ .

On account of the formula (3) and the modular condition 5), we have obviously for  $\sigma < \varepsilon < \epsilon$ 

 $m(4a) \leq m(4ac) + \frac{\epsilon}{2} \{m(8ac) + m(\frac{8}{5}(a_s - a))\},$ 

and hence m (4a) < + co by assumption. Furthermore we obtain likewise  $m(2a) \leq m(2a) + \frac{E}{a} \{ m(4a) + m(\frac{4}{a}(a_{n-a})) \}$ 

and hence we conclude by assumption for every  $\xi > 0$ 

$$\lim_{z\to\infty} m(2a_z) \leq m(2a) + \frac{\varepsilon}{2} m(4a).$$

Thus we have  $\lim_{n\to\infty} m(2a_n) \le m(2a) < +\infty$ . Similarly, from  $m(a) \leq m(a_v) + \frac{\varepsilon}{2} \{m(\varepsilon a_v) + m(\frac{\varepsilon}{\varepsilon}(a_v - a))\}$ 

we conclude hence  $m(a) \leq \frac{\lim_{r \to a_{r}} m(a_{r})}{r}$ , and from

$$m(a_0) \leq m(a) + \frac{E}{2} \{m(2a) + m(\frac{2}{2}(a_1 - a))\}$$

we obtain likewise  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(a_n) \leq m(a)$ Therefore we have  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(a_n) = m(a) < +\infty.$ 

If m-lim  $a_{\mu} = a$ , m-lim  $a_{\mu,\nu} = a_{\mu}$  ( $\mu = 1, 2, ...$ ),

then we can find  $\nu_{\mu}$  ( $\mu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\min_{\mu \to \infty} a_{\mu}, \nu_{\mu} = a$ .

We can find by assumption  $\nu_{\mu}$  ( $\mu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $m(\mu(\alpha_{\mu},\nu_{\mu}-\alpha_{\mu})) \leq \frac{1}{\mu}$  for every  $\mu=1, 2, ...$ 

Then we have by the formula (1) for  $M \ge 2\lambda > 0$ 

$$\frac{1}{2} m \left( \lambda (\alpha_{ps, \nu_{ps}} - \alpha_{s}) \right) \leq \frac{1}{2} m \left( 2 \lambda (\alpha_{ps, \nu_{ps}} - \alpha_{ps}) \right) + \frac{1}{2} m \left( 2 \lambda (\alpha_{ps} - \alpha_{s}) \right)$$

$$\leq \frac{1}{2 p a} + \frac{1}{2} m \left( 2 \lambda (\alpha_{ps} - \alpha_{s}) \right),$$

and consequently  $\lim_{M\to\infty} m(\lambda(a_{\mu,\nu_M}-a))=0$  for every  $\lambda>0$ .

If a sequence  $\alpha_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) is modular convergent, then we see easily by (1)  $\lim_{\beta>0} m(\lambda(a_{\beta}-a_{\delta})) = 0$  for every  $\lambda \ge 0$ . sequence  $a_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) subject to the condition:

$$\lim_{\mu,\nu\to\infty} m\left(\lambda\left(2\mu-\alpha_{\nu}\right)\right) = 0 \qquad \text{for every } \lambda \ge 0,$$

is modular convergent, then we shall say that R is modular complete, or

that the modular of R is complete.

For a sequence  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), if we have

$$m-\lim_{n\to\infty} (a_1+a_2+\cdots+a_k)=a_k$$

then we shall say that a series  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} a_{i}$  is modular convergent with sum  $a_{i}$ , and we shall write  $a_{i} = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} a_{i}$ .

Theorem 4. If R is modular complete, then for every sequence  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) subject to  $\sup_{\nu = 1, 2, \ldots} m(a_{\nu}) < +\infty$ , and for every absolutely convergent series  $\sum_{\nu = 1}^{\infty} \alpha_{\nu}$ , the series  $\sum_{\nu = 1}^{\infty} \alpha_{\nu}$  as is modular convergent.

Proof. Recalling the formula (2) we have by assumption

 $\lim_{\mu, f \to \infty} m \left( \sum_{i=\mu}^{\mu} \alpha_{i} \alpha_{i} \right) \leq \lim_{\mu, f \to \infty} \sum_{i=\mu}^{\mu} |\alpha_{i}| m(\alpha_{i}) = 0.$  Accordingly the series  $\sum_{i=1}^{\mu} \alpha_{i} \alpha_{i}$  is modular convergent, because R is modular complete by assumption.

#### §79 Modular bounded linear functionals

Let R be a modulared space. A linear functional 9 on R is said to be modular bounded, if

$$\sup_{\infty(x)\leq 1} |\varphi(x)| < +\infty.$$

Theorem 1. In order that a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R be modular bounded, it is necessary and sufficient that we can find two positive numbers  $\alpha$ ,  $\gamma$  such that  $\alpha \varphi(x) \leq \gamma + m(x)$  for every  $x \in R$ .

Proof. If  $\varphi$  is modular bounded, then we can find by definition d>0 such that  $\sup_{m(x) \le 1} |\alpha \varphi(x)| \le 1$ . If  $1 \le m(x) < +\infty$ , then we can find  $\lambda > 0$  such that  $m(\lambda x) = 1$ ,  $0 < \lambda \le 1$ , and we have by the modular condition 5)  $1 = m(\lambda x) \le \lambda m(x)$ . For such  $\lambda$  we have hence

$$d \varphi(x) = \frac{1}{\lambda} d \varphi(\lambda x) \leq \frac{1}{\lambda} \leq m(x).$$

Therefore we conclude of  $\varphi(x) \le 1 + m(x)$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ . The inverse is evident by definition.

Theorem 2. Let A be a linear manifold of R. If a linear functional 9 on A satisfies

$$\varphi(x) \leq \ell + m(x)$$
 for every  $x \in A$ ,

then we can find a linear functional y on R such that

§78. §79)

$$\Psi(x) = \Psi(x)$$
 for every  $x \in A$ ,

$$\Psi(x) \leq f + m(x)$$
 for every  $x \in R$ .

<u>Proof.</u> We consider all linear functionals  $\mathcal{C}_{\lambda}$  on a linear manifold  $A_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in \mathcal{A}$ ) such that  $A \subset A_{\lambda}$  for every  $\lambda \in \mathcal{A}$ ,

$$\Psi_{\lambda}(x) = \Psi(x)$$
 for  $x \in A$ .

$$\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}(z) \leq \chi + m(z)$$
 for  $z \in A_{\lambda}$ .

For two elements  $\lambda_1$  ,  $\lambda_2$   $\in$   $\Lambda$  , we shall write  $\mathscr{C}_{\lambda_1} \subset \mathscr{C}_{\lambda_2}$  , if

$$A_{\lambda_1} \subset A_{\lambda_2}$$
,  $Y_{\lambda_1}(\kappa) = Y_{\lambda_2}(\kappa)$  for every  $\kappa \in A_{\lambda_1}$ .

By virtue of Maximal Theorem, we can find a maximal system  $\Gamma \subset \Lambda$  such that for any  $\lambda_1$ ,  $\lambda_2 \in \Gamma$  we have  $\mathcal{C}_{\lambda_1} \subset \mathcal{C}_{\lambda_2}$  or  $\mathcal{C}_{\lambda_2} \subset \mathcal{C}_{\lambda_1}$ . For such a maximal system  $\Gamma$ , putting  $A_0 = -\sum_{\lambda \in \Gamma} A_{\lambda_1}$ ,

$$Y_0(x) = \varphi_{\lambda}(x)$$
 for  $x \in A_{\lambda}$ ,  $\lambda \in P$ 

we obtain a linear functional  $\Psi_o$  on a linear manifold  $\mathcal{A}_o$  such that we have  $\Psi_\lambda \subset \Psi_o$  for every  $\lambda \in \Gamma$ , and hence there is  $\lambda_o \in \Gamma$  for which we have  $\Psi_o = \Psi_{\lambda_o}$ , because  $\Gamma$  is a maximal system subject to the indicated condition. For such  $\lambda_o \in \Gamma$  we need only prove  $\mathcal{A}_{\lambda_o} = \mathcal{R}$ .

Now we assume that  $x_o \in \mathcal{K}$  but  $x_o \in \mathcal{A}_{\lambda_o}$ . For every  $x_o, y_o \in \mathcal{A}_{\lambda_o}$  and positive numbers  $\lambda_o, \rho$  we have by the modular condition 5)

$$\lambda \left\{ x + m \left( x + \frac{1}{\lambda} x_0 \right) - Y_0(x) \right\} + \mu \left\{ x + m \left( y - \frac{1}{\mu} x_0 \right) - Y_0(y) \right\}$$

$$= \lambda m \left( x + \frac{1}{\lambda} x_0 \right) + \mu m \left( y - \frac{1}{\mu} x_0 \right) + (\lambda + \mu) x - Y_0 \left( \lambda x + \mu y \right)$$

$$\geq (\lambda + \mu) \left\{ m \left( \frac{\lambda x + \mu x}{\lambda + \mu} \right) + x - Y_0 \left( \frac{\lambda x + \mu y}{\lambda + \mu} \right) \right\} \geq 0,$$
and consequently

 $\lambda \left\{ x + m \left( x + \frac{1}{\lambda} x_o \right) - Y_o(x) \right\} \ge M \left\{ Y_o(y) - x - m \left( y - \frac{1}{M} x_o \right) \right\}.$  Therefore there exists a real number of such that

 $\lambda \left\{ T + m \left( x + \frac{1}{N} x_o \right) - Y_o(x) \right\} \ge \alpha \ge \mu \left\{ Y_o(y) - Y - m \left( y - \frac{1}{\mu} x_o \right) \right\}$ for every  $x, y \in A_{\lambda_n}$  and positive numbers  $\lambda$ ,  $\mu$ . Putting

 $\forall (x+\xi x_o)=\psi_o(x)+\xi o(\qquad \text{for } x\in A_{\lambda_o}\,,\,-\infty<\xi<+\infty,$  we see easily that  $\psi$  is a linear functional on the linear manifold generated by  $A_{\lambda_o}$  and  $x_o$ . Furthermore, for  $\xi>0$ , putting  $\lambda=\frac{1}{\xi}$ ,  $\mu=\frac{1}{\xi}$ , we have

$$\Upsilon(x+\xi x_0)=\Upsilon_0(x)+\xi \alpha$$

208

$$\leq \Psi_{0}(x) + \{S + m(x + \xi x_{0}) - \Psi_{0}(x)\} = T + m(x + \xi x_{0}),$$

$$\Psi(x - \xi x_{0}) = \Psi_{0}(x) - \xi d$$

$$\leq \Psi_{0}(x) - \{\Psi_{0}(x) - \delta - m(x - \xi x_{0})\}$$

$$= \xi + m(x + \xi x_{0}).$$

Thus we have  $Y_o \subset Y$  but  $Y_o \neq Y$ , contradicting that  $\Gamma$  is a maximal system subject to the indicated condition. Therefore we have  $A_{A_o} = R$ , and hence  $Y_o$  satisfies our requirement.

Theorem 3. For an element  $a \in R$ , if there is E > 0 such that  $m((1+E)a) < +\infty$ , then, putting

 $Y = \alpha - m(\alpha), \qquad \alpha = \lim_{\varepsilon \to +0} \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \left\{ m((1+\varepsilon)\alpha) - m(\alpha) \right\},$ we can find a linear functional  $\varphi$  on R such that

$$\varphi(\alpha) = \gamma + m(\alpha)$$

 $\varphi(x) \leq x + m(x)$  for every  $x \in R$ .

<u>Proof.</u> Putting  $\mathcal{G}_{\theta}(\xi a) = \xi \prec (-\infty \prec \xi \prec +\infty)$ , we obtain obviously a linear functional  $\mathcal{G}_{\theta}$  on the linear manifold generated by a single element  $\alpha$ . As  $m(\xi \alpha)$  is a convex function of  $\xi$ , we have

$$\frac{m(\alpha)-m(\xi\alpha)}{1-\xi} \begin{cases} \leq d & \text{for } 0 \leq \xi < 1, \\ \geq d & \text{for } \xi > 1, \end{cases}$$

and hence  $m(a) - m(\xi a) \le d(1 - \xi)$  for every  $\xi \ge 0$ . Therefore  $\Psi_0(\xi a) = \xi d \le k + m(\xi a)$  for every  $\xi \ge 0$ .

Especially we obtain  $3 \ge 0$ , putting 5 = 0. As  $4 \ge 0$ , we have hence  $9_0(5 a) \le 5 + \infty(5 a)$  for every real number 5,

and further  $Y_0(\alpha) = \alpha = y + m(\alpha)$ . Then we can find by Theorem 2 a linear functional Y on R such that

$$\varphi(a) = \varphi_0(a) = \gamma + m(a),$$
  
 $\varphi(z) \leq \gamma + m(z)$  for every  $z \in R$ .

### §80 Modular adjoint spaces

Let R be a modulared space and  $\overline{R}$  the totality of modular bounded linear functionals on R. We see easily by definition that  $\overline{R}$  constitutes a linear space. Now, putting

(1)  $\overline{m}(\overline{x}) = \sup_{z \in R} \{\overline{z}(z) - m(z)\}$  for every  $\overline{z} \in \overline{R}$ , we shall prove that  $\overline{m}$  satisfies the modular conditions in §78.

It is obvious by definition

- $1!) \qquad \widetilde{m}(0) = 0,$
- 2')  $\overline{m}(-\overline{x}) = \overline{m}(\overline{x})$  for every  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$ ,

Recalling §79 Theorem 1, we obtain immediately by definition

5') for any  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$  we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $\overline{m} (\alpha \, \overline{x}) < +\infty$ . If  $\overline{m} (\S \, \overline{x}) = 0$  for every  $\S > 0$ , then we have by definition

$$\xi \tilde{x}(x) \leq m(x)$$
 for every  $x \in R$  and  $\xi > 0$ .

On the other hand, for any  $x \in R$  we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $m(\alpha x) < -\infty$ , and for such  $\alpha$  we have hence for every x > 0

$$\overline{x}(x) \leq \frac{m(dx)}{\xi d}, \quad \overline{x}(-x) \leq \frac{m(dx)}{\xi d}.$$

Making  $\xi$  tend to  $+\infty$ , we obtain therefore  $\tilde{z}(x) = 0$ . Thus we have

4')  $\widetilde{m}(\xi \overline{x}) = 0$  for every  $\xi > 0$  implies  $\overline{x} = 0$ .

For  $\alpha + \beta = 1$ ,  $\alpha', \beta \ge 0$  we have by definition  $\overline{m}(\alpha \overline{x} + \beta \overline{y}) = \sup_{x \in R} \{\alpha(\overline{x}(x) + \beta \overline{y}(x) - m(x)\}$   $\le \alpha \sup_{x \in R} \{\overline{x}(x) - m(x)\} + \beta \sup_{x \in R} \{\overline{y}(x) - m(x)\}.$ 

Therefore we have

5')  $d + \beta = 1 , d, \beta \ge 0 \text{ implies } \overline{m}(d\overline{x} + \beta \overline{y}) \le d\overline{m}(\overline{x}) + \beta \overline{m}(\overline{y}).$  For every  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$  we have by definition

 $\overline{m}(\overline{x}) = \sup_{\overline{x} \in \mathbb{R}^2} \left( \sup_{0 \le \overline{x} < 1} \left\{ \overline{x} \overline{x}(x) - m(x) \right\} \right) = \sup_{0 \le \overline{x} < 1} \overline{m} \left( \overline{x} \overline{x} \right),$  that is, we have

6°)  $\widetilde{m}(\widetilde{z}) = \sup_{\alpha \leq \varepsilon} \widetilde{m}(\xi \widetilde{z})$  for every  $\widetilde{z} \in \widetilde{R}$ .

Thus  $\widetilde{m}$  is by definition a modular on  $\widetilde{R}$ . This modular  $\widetilde{m}$  is called the <u>adjoint modular</u> of m, and the linear space  $\widetilde{R}$  associated with the adjoint modular  $\widetilde{m}$  is called the <u>modular adjoint space</u> of R. For the adjoint modular  $\widetilde{m}$  we have obviously by the definition (1)

(2) |元(x)| 益死(x) + m(x) for 元 e R, x e R.

Theorem 1. The modular adjoint space R of R is modular complete.

<u>Proof.</u> For a sequence  $\overline{a}_{\nu} \in \overline{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ), if

 $\lim_{\mu,\nu\to\infty} \overline{m} \left( \xi \left( \overline{a}_{\mu} - \overline{a}_{\nu} \right) \right) = 0 \quad \text{for every } \xi \ge 0,$  then, since we have by the formula (2) for every  $x \in R$  and  $x \ge 0$ 

and since for any  $\times$  4 R we can find by the modular condition 3) Y>0

such that  $m(fx) < +\infty$ , we have hence for such f > 0

$$\overline{\lim}_{\mu,\nu\to+\infty} |\overline{a}_{\mu}(x) - \overline{a}_{\nu}(x)| \leq \frac{m(rx)}{\xi \delta} \qquad \text{for every } \xi > 0.$$

Making  $\xi$  tend to  $+\infty$  , we obtain consequently

$$\lim_{x\to\infty} |\bar{a}_{\mu}(x) - \bar{a}_{\nu}(x)| = 0.$$

Therefore, putting  $\varphi(z) = \lim_{k \to \infty} \bar{a}_{k}(z)$  for every  $z \in R$ , we obtain a

linear functional  $\varphi$  on R and we have for every  $\xi > 0$ 

$$\xi \varphi(x) - \xi \bar{a}_{\nu}(x) \leq \lim_{\mu \to \infty} \bar{m} (\xi(\bar{a}_{\mu} - \bar{a}_{\nu})) + m(x).$$

Therefore we see easily by §79 Theorem 1 that such  $\varphi$  is modular bounded, that is,  $\varphi \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}$ , and we have by the definition (1) for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ 

$$\overline{m}(\S(9-\overline{a}_{\nu})) \leq \lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{m}(\S(\overline{a}_{m}-\overline{a}_{\nu})).$$

Consequently we obtain  $\lim_{n \to \infty} \pi(\xi(\varphi - \overline{a}_{\nu})) = 0$  for every  $\xi > 0$ .

Theorem 2. For every x e R we have

$$m(x) = \sup_{\vec{x} \in \mathcal{X}} \{\vec{x}(x) - m(\vec{x})\}.$$

Proof. We have obviously by the formula (2) for every  $a \in R$   $m(a) \ge \sup_{x \in R} \{ \overline{x}(a) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) \}$ .

For an element  $\alpha \in \mathbb{R}$ , if there is  $\xi > \sigma$  such that  $m((i \div \xi)\alpha) < +\infty$ , then we have by §79 Theorem 3

(\*) 
$$m(a) = \sup_{\overline{x} \in \overline{x}} \{ \overline{x}(a) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) \}.$$

Furthermore, if  $m(\lambda a) < +\infty$  for every positive number  $\lambda < 1$ , then

$$m(\lambda \alpha) = \sup_{\overline{\chi} \in \overline{\chi}} \{ \overline{\chi}(\lambda \alpha) - \overline{m}(\overline{\chi}) \}$$

for  $0 \le \lambda < 1$ , as proved just above, and hence we obtain by the modular condition 6)  $m(\alpha) = \sup_{0 \le \lambda < 1} m(\lambda \alpha) = \sup_{0 \le \lambda < 1} \sup_{\overline{\pi}(2) \ge 0} \left\{ \overline{\pi}(\lambda \alpha) - \overline{m}(\overline{\pi}) \right\}$ 

$$= \sup_{\widetilde{\mathbf{z}}(\mathbf{x}) \geq 0} \left\{ \widetilde{\mathbf{z}}(\mathbf{a}) - \widetilde{m}(\widetilde{\mathbf{z}}) \right\} = \sup_{\widetilde{\mathbf{z}} \in \widetilde{\mathbf{z}}} \left\{ \widetilde{\mathbf{z}}(\mathbf{a}) - \widetilde{m}(\widetilde{\mathbf{z}}) \right\},$$

Therefore we need only prove (\*) in the case where we can find a positive number  $\mathcal{E} < 1$  such that  $m((1-\mathcal{E})a) = +p^{\alpha}$ . For this purpose, we set  $\varphi(\xi a) = \xi \quad (-\infty < \xi < +\infty)$ . Then we have for every  $\delta > 0$ .  $\delta \varphi(\xi a) \leq \delta(1-\mathcal{E}) + m(\xi a) \qquad (-\infty < \xi < +\infty),$ 

because  $w((1-E)\Delta)=+\infty$  by assumption. Accordingly we can find by §79 Theorem 2  $\overline{a}_b \in \overline{R}$  such that

$$\overline{a}_{r}(\xi a) = \xi' \varphi(\xi a) \qquad (-\infty < \xi < +\infty)$$

 $\overline{a}_{f}(z) \leq f(1-\varepsilon) + m(z)$  for every  $z \in R$ .

For such  $\tilde{\alpha}_x \in \tilde{R}$  we have by the definition (1)

$$m(\bar{a}_r) \leq r(1-\epsilon),$$

and hence  $\bar{\alpha}_{\ell}(\alpha) - \bar{m}(\bar{\alpha}_{\ell}) \ge \ell \varphi(\alpha) - \ell (1-\ell) = \ell \xi$ . Therefore we have for every  $\ell > 0$ 

$$\sup_{\overline{x} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}} \left\{ \overline{x}(\alpha) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) \right\} \ge \delta \varepsilon.$$

Making & tend to +00, we conclude from this relation

$$\sup_{\vec{x}\in \vec{R}} \left\{ \vec{z}(a) - \vec{m}(\vec{x}) \right\} = +\infty = m(a),$$

as we wish to prove.

(082

Theorem 3. For a manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the modular adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  of  $\overline{R}$ , if  $\lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{x}(a_n) = \overline{x}(a) \qquad \text{for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A},$   $m(a) = \sup_{n \to \infty} \{\overline{x}(a) - \overline{m}(\overline{x})\},$ 

then we have  $m(a) \leq \lim_{\nu \to \infty} m(a_{\nu})$ .

Proof. For any  $\bar{z} \in \bar{A}$  we have by the formula (2)

$$\overline{x}(a_{\nu}) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) \leq m(a_{\nu})$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

From this relation we conclude by assumption

$$\mathbb{R}(a) - \overline{m}(\overline{z}) \leq \lim_{n \to \infty} m(a_n)$$
 for every  $\overline{z} \in \overline{A}$ ,

and hence further by assumption

$$m(a) \leq \lim_{n \to \infty} m(a_n).$$

Recalling Theorem 2, we obtain as a special case of Theorem 3

Theorem 4. If  $\lim_{k \to \infty} \overline{x}(a_k) = \overline{x}(a)$  for every  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$ , then we have  $m(a) \leq \lim_{k \to \infty} m(a_k)$ .

For a modulared space R, every linear manifold A of R may be considered itself as a modulared space associated with the same modular of R. In this sense, A will be called a <u>subspace</u> of R.

As the modular adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  of R also is a modulared space by the adjoint modular  $\overline{m}$ , we can consider further the modular adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  of  $\overline{R}$  with the adjoint modular  $\overline{m}$  of  $\overline{m}$ . Then, by wirtue of Theorem 2, R may be considered as a subspace of  $\overline{R}$  by the relation:

$$\chi(\overline{\chi}) = \overline{\chi}(\chi)$$
 for every  $\chi \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $\overline{\chi} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}$ .

If R coincides with the whole  $\overline{R}$  in this sense, then we shall say that R is <u>regular</u>, or that the modular m of R is regular.

§81)

纞

#### §81 Modular norms

Let R be a modulared space. For every  $\lambda > 0$  , putting

(1.) V<sub>2</sub> = { z : ∞ (x) ≦ λ }。

we obtain a scalar-closed symmetric convex vicinity in R. In fact, for every  $x \in R$ , as  $\lim_{\xi \to 0} m(\xi x) = 0$ , we see easily that  $U_{\lambda}$  is a vicinity in R. It is evident by the modular condition 2) that  $U_{\lambda}$  is symmetric. For every x,  $y \in U_{\lambda}$ ,  $\alpha + \beta = 1$ ,  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta \ge 0$  implies by the modular condition 5)  $m(\alpha x + \beta y) \le \alpha m(x) + \beta m(y) \le \lambda$ , that is,  $\alpha x + \beta y \in U_{\lambda}$ , and hence  $U_{\lambda}$  is convex. Furthermore we see at once by the modular condition 6) that  $U_{\lambda}$  is scalar-closed.

The vicinity  $\nabla_\lambda$  defined by (1) will be called  $\lambda$  sphere of R . Concerning spheres of R we have obviously by definition

(2)  $\nabla_{\rho} \supset \nabla_{\lambda}$  for  $f > \lambda > 0$ .

For a positive number  $\xi < 1$  we have by the modular condition 5)  $m(\xi x) \leq \xi m(x) \quad \text{for every } x \in R.$ 

Thus we have

(3)  $\mathcal{E} \, \mathcal{T}_{\lambda} \subset \mathcal{T}_{\mathcal{E}\lambda}$  for  $0 < \mathcal{E} \leq 1$ .

From this relation we conclude earlly

(4):  $\nabla_{\alpha_{\lambda}} \subset \alpha \nabla_{\lambda}$  for  $\alpha \geq 1$ .

For every  $\lambda > o$ , as  $V_{\lambda}$  is a symmetric convex vicinity, we obtain uniquely a linear topology  $V^{m}$  on R such that  $U_{\lambda}$  is a basis of  $V^{m}$ .

Furthermore we see by the relations (2) and (5) that this linear topology  $V^{m}$  is the same for every  $\lambda > o$ . This same linear topology  $V^{m}$  is called the modular topology of R. Thus we have

Theorem 1. Every sphere  $U_{\lambda}$  of R is itself a basis of the modular topology of R for all  $\lambda > 0$ .

Theorem 2. The modular topology of R is of single vicinity, convex, and separative.

<u>Froot</u>. The modular topology  $\mathcal{C}^{\infty}$  is obviously of single vicinity by Theorem 1, and furthermore convex, because  $\mathbb{U}_{\lambda}$  is symmetric and convex. For any element  $\mathbb{X} \neq 0$ , we can find by the modular condition 4)

d>0 such that m(dx)>0. Then, for a positive number  $\lambda < m(dx)$  we have obviously  $dx \in V_{\lambda}$ , and hence  $x \in \frac{1}{d} V_{\lambda}$ . As  $V_{\lambda}$  is a basis of the modular topology  $V^{m}$ , we see that  $V^{m}$  is separative.

Theorem 3. We have  $m-\lim_{\nu\to\infty} a_{\nu} = a_{\nu}$  if and only if  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty} a_{\nu} = a_{\nu}$  by the modular topology  $\mathcal{C}^{\infty}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$ .

<u>Proof.</u> If  $m-\lim_{\nu\to\infty} a_{\nu}=a$ , then for any  $\xi>0$  we have by definition  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty} m\left(\xi\left(a_{\nu}-a\right)\right)=0$ , and hence for any  $\lambda>0$  we can find  $\nu_0$  such that  $\xi\left(a_{\nu}-a\right)\in U_{\lambda}$  for  $\nu\geq\nu_0$ , that is,  $a_{\nu}\in\frac{1}{\xi}U_{\lambda}+a$  for  $\nu\geq\nu_0$ . As  $U_{\lambda}$  is a basis of  $V^{\infty}$ , we have hence  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty}a_{\nu}=a$  by the modular topology  $V^{\infty}$ .

Conversely, if  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty}\alpha_{\nu}=a$  by  $\psi^{\infty}$ , then for any two positive numbers  $\xi$ ,  $\lambda$  we can find  $\nu_{o}$  such that  $\alpha_{\nu}\in\frac{1}{2}\mathbb{V}_{\lambda}+a$  for  $\nu\geq\nu_{o}$ , and hence  $\xi(a_{\nu}-a)\in\mathbb{V}_{\lambda}$  for  $\nu\geq\nu_{o}$ , that is,  $m(\xi(a_{\nu}-a))\leq\lambda$  for  $\nu\geq\nu_{o}$ . Therefore we have  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty}m(\xi(a_{\nu}-a))=0$  for every  $\xi>0$ , that is, we have  $\lim_{\nu\to\infty}a_{\nu}=a$ .

For every  $\lambda > 0$ , as  $\mathcal{O}_{\lambda}$  is symmetric and convex, we see easily by Theorems 1 and 2 that the pseudo-norm of  $\mathcal{O}_{\lambda}$  is a norm on  $\mathcal{R}$  and the modular topology of  $\mathcal{R}$  coincides with the norm topology by this norm. The pseudo-norm of 1 sphere  $\mathcal{O}_{\lambda}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$  will be called the <u>modular norm</u> of  $\mathcal{R}$  and denoted by  $\mathcal{H} \times \mathcal{H}$  ( $z \in \mathcal{R}$ ).

Concerning the modular norm M x M we have obviously by definition

(5) {z: mxn≤1} = {x: m(π)≤1}.

From this relation we conclude easily

(6)  $\|x\| = \inf_{\mathbf{w} \in \mathbb{R}_{\lambda} \le 1} \frac{1}{|x|}$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ ,

Theorem 4.  $\|x\| \le 1$  implies  $m(x) \le \|x\|$ , and  $\|x\| > 1$  implies  $m(x) \ge \|x\|$ .

Proof. If  $0 < \mathbb{H} \times \mathbb{H} \le 1$ , then we can find  $\xi \ge 1$  such that we have  $\mathbb{H} \xi \times \mathbb{H} = 1$ . Then we have by (5)  $m(\xi \times) \le 1$ , and hence by the modular condition 5)  $\xi m(x) \le m(\xi \times) \le 1$ . Consequently we obtain  $m(x) \le \frac{1}{k} = \mathbb{H} \times \mathbb{H}$ .

If  $\| \, z \, \| \, > \, i$  , then for any  $\xi$  subject to  $1 < \, \xi < \, \| \, z \, \|$  , we have obviously  $\| \, \frac{1}{r} \, \, z \, \| \, > \, i$  , and hence by the formula (5) and the modular condi-

tion 5)  $\frac{4}{5}$  m(z)  $\geq$  m( $\frac{4}{5}$ z) > 1, that is,  $1 < \frac{5}{5} < M \times M$  implies m(z) > 3 . Therefore we have m(z) Z M z M , if M z M > 1.

As the norm topology by the modular norm coincides with the modular topology of R . we have obviously by Theorem 3

We have m-lim a, = a if and only if Theorem 5. IIm 11 a. - a 11 = 0.

Therefore we have further

A modulared space R is modular complete, if and only Theorem 6. if the modular norm of R is complete.

Recalling the definition in §79, we see at once that a linear functional 4 on R is modular bounded, if and only if 4 is bounded by the Therefore we have modular norm.

The modular adjoint space of R coincides with the Theorem 7. adjoint space of R by the modular norm.

Therefore we have by Theorem 5

m-lim  $a_{\nu} = a_{\nu}$  implies  $\lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{x}(a_{\nu}) = \overline{x}(a)$  for  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$ . Theorem 8.

#### \$82 Quotient spaces

Lat R be a modulared space and A a linear manifold of R. For the quotient space R / A , if we set

 $m(X) = \sup_{0 \le \lambda < 1} \{\inf_{x \in X} m(\lambda x)\}$  for  $X \in R/A$ , then we see easily that m(X) satisfies the modular conditions except If A 1s closed by the modular topology  $q^m$  of R, then m(X)satisfies furthermore the modular condition 4). In fact, if for an element  $X_0 \in R/A$ ,  $m(X_0)=0$  for every  $X_0 \ge 0$ , then we can find by definition a sequence of elements  $\pi_{\nu} \in X$ ,  $(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  such that

 $m(\nu \pi_{\nu}) < \frac{1}{\nu}$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ...,$ m-lim  $x_{\nu} = 0$  by definition. As A is closed by assumption, every residue class X & R / A is closed by the modular topology & " too, and hence we obtain  $\theta \in X_{\theta}$  by Theorem 2 in §81, that is,  $X_{\theta} = A$ .

Therefore, if a linear manifold A of R is closed by V", then m(X)

defined by (1) is a modular on the quotient space R/A. This modular m(x) will be called the relative modular of the modular m of R.

 $m(x) \le \inf_{z \in Y} m(z) \le m((1+\varepsilon)x)^{-1}$  for every  $\varepsilon > 0$ .

Concerning the relative modular we have obviously by (1)

 $\sup_{\substack{m(X) \le 1 \\ \text{Inf} \ m(X) \ge 1}} m(\alpha X) \le \sup_{\substack{m(X) \le 1 \\ m(X) \ge 1}} m(\beta X) \quad \text{for } d > \beta > 0.$ 

Furthermore we conclude easily from (2)

§81, §82)

If  $m((1+\epsilon)\times)<+\infty$  for some  $\epsilon>0$ , then we have Theorem 1.  $m(X) = \inf_{x \in X} m(x).$ 

The modular norm of the quotient space R/A is the Theorem 2. relative norm of the modular norm of R, that is,

MX M = inf MX M for every X & R/A,

Putting  $\| X \| = \inf \| \| x \|$  for  $X \in R/A$ , we obtain the Proof. relative pseudo-norm of MxM on R / A, as defined in §51.  $\lambda > \| \times \|$ , we have then  $\| > \| \frac{1}{2} \times \|$ , and hence we can find  $x \in \frac{1}{2} \times \|$  such that ||x||| < ||x||, which yields  $m(x) \le 1$  by the formula \$81(5). this relation we conclude by (2) that  $m(\frac{1}{2} \times 1) \le 1$ , and hence  $\| \frac{1}{2} \times \| \le 1$ . that is,  $\lambda \geq N \times N$ . Therefore we have

HXII Z IIX II for every X & R/A.

On the other hand, for any  $\lambda > 00 \times 00$ , considering  $\lambda'$  subject to  $\lambda > \lambda' > \| X \|$ , we have  $\| \frac{1}{\lambda'} X \| < 1$ , and hence we conclude likewise by (1) and  $\S 81(5)$  that we can find  $\kappa \in \frac{1}{2} \times$  such that  $m(\kappa) \le 1$ , which yields  $\|x\| \le 1$  by §81 Theorem 4. Thus we have  $\|\frac{1}{\lambda} \times \| \le 1$ , and consequently  $\|X\| \le \lambda$ . Therefore we conclude  $\|X\| \le \|X\|$  for every  $X \in R/A$ .

If a linear manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the modular adjoint space R of R is weakly closed, then, putting

 $A = \{x : \overline{x}(x) = 0 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{A} \}$ 

 $\overline{A}$  coincides with the modular adjoint space of the quotient space R/Aas a modulared space.

Recalling \$73 Theorem 3, we see easily by Theorem 2 that Proof.  $\overline{A}$  coincides with the adjoint space of R/A by the modular norm. Thus we conclude by \$81 Theorem 7 that  $\widetilde{A}$  coincides with the modular ad-

Therefore we need only prove that the adjoint joint space of R/A. modular modular of m in A coincides with the adjoint modular of the relative modular m(x) ( $x \in R/A$ ), that is,

 $\mathfrak{M}(\overline{X}) = \sup_{X \in R/A} \{ \overline{X}(X) - \mathfrak{M}(X) \} \text{ for every } \overline{X} \in \overline{A}.$ 

In fact, we have by Theorem 1 and the modular condition 6)

216

$$\sup_{X \in \mathbb{R}/A} \left\{ \overline{\mathcal{R}}(X) - m(X) \right\} = \sup_{X \in \mathbb{R}/A} \left\{ \overline{\mathcal{R}}(X) - \inf_{x \in X} m(x) \right\}$$

$$= \sup_{X \in \mathbb{R}/A} \sup_{X \in X} \left\{ \overline{\mathcal{R}}(x) - m(x) \right\} = \overline{m}(\overline{x}).$$

Theorem 4. For a firste number of elements a, e R and real numbers  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \varkappa$ ), if  $\frac{\mu}{2}$   $\frac{\pi}{2}$ ,  $\tilde{\alpha}_{\nu}=0$  implies  $\frac{\mu}{2}$   $\frac{\pi}{2}$ ,  $\alpha_{\nu}=0$ , and for a positive number /, if

for every finite number of real numbers  $\xi$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \varkappa$ ), then for any positive number & < 1 we can find an element x & R such that

$$m((1-\xi)x) \le Y$$
,  $\overline{a}_{\nu}(x) = \alpha_{\nu}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ .

Putting  $A = \{x : \overline{\Delta}_{\nu}(x) = 0 \text{ for every } \nu = 1, 2, ..., \nu\},$ Proof. we obtain a closed linear manifold A of R , and the quotient space R/Ais by \$46 Theorem 3 finite-dimensional, and further the modular adjoint space of R/A is composed of all linear combination from  $\overline{A}_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, ...$ As  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \tilde{a}_{i} = 0$  implies  $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \tilde{b}_{i} = 0$  by assumption, we can find by \$45 Theorem 4 an element X < R/A such that

$$\overline{\mathcal{A}}_{\nu}(X_{\bullet}) = \mathcal{A}_{\nu}$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ .

For such  $X_a \in R / A$  we have by the second assumption

$$\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \xi_{k} \overline{a}_{k}(X_{0}) = \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \xi_{k} \alpha_{k} \leq \delta + \overline{m} \left( \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \xi_{k} \overline{a}_{k} \right)$$

for every finite number of real numbers  $\xi_{\nu}$  (  $\nu=1, 2, \ldots, \kappa$  ), and hence we conclude by §80 Theorem 2 that  $m(x_p) \leq r$ . Therefore for any positive number  $\xi < 1$  we can find by the definition (1)  $x_0 \in X_0$  such that m((1-E) zo) ≤ 8.

and for such  $x_a \in X_a$  we have obviously for every y = 1, 2, ..., $\tilde{a}_{\nu}(x_0) = \tilde{a}_{\nu}(X_0) = \alpha_{\nu}$ 

Let R be a modulared space. The modular adjoint space R of R is itself a modulared space, and hence the modular norm is defined on  $\overline{R}$  . We obtain thus a norm on R as the adjoint norm of the modular norm of  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$ that is. as

MODULARED SPACES

- $||x|| = \sup_{\mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{N}} |\mathbb{R}(x)|$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ . This norm  $||x|| (x \in R)$  is called the associated norm of R. By virtue of the formula §81(5) we also can define the associated norm as
  - (2)|| T || = Sup |元(\*)| | 元(元)点1 for every zeR. From (1) we conclude immediately
  - (ズモ尺。元モ戸)。 |元(な)| 五 ||又日|||元|| (3)

The associated norm is equivalent to the modular Theorem 1. norm and we have for every x & R

如太明 5 1 太月 5 2 日本日 .

If  $0 \times 0 \le 1$ , then we have  $m(x) \le 1$  by the formula [8] Proof. (5), and hence by the formula \$80(2)

Thus we conclude fix # < 2 M x M for every x & R .

§82, §83)

We suppose now  $0 \le i \le 1$ . If  $1 \le m(x) < +\infty$ , then we can find  $\lambda > 0$  such that  $\overline{m}(\lambda \overline{x}) = 1$ ,  $0 < \lambda \le 1$ , and then we have by the formula (2) and the modular condition 5)

 $\overline{x}(x) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) = \frac{1}{2} \lambda \overline{x}(x) - \overline{m}(\frac{1}{2}\lambda \overline{x}) \le \frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{2} \overline{m}(\lambda \overline{x}) = 0$ Thus  $\overline{m}(\overline{x}) \geq 1$  implies  $\overline{x}(x) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) \leq 0$ . Accordingly we have by \$80 Theorem 2

 $m(x) = \sup_{\overline{x} \in \mathbb{R}^n} \left\{ \overline{x}(x) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) \right\} \leq \sup_{\overline{x} \in \mathbb{R}^n} \overline{x}(x) = \|x\| \leq 1$ and hence  $||x|| \le 1$  by the formula \$80(2). Therefore we conclude for every zek.

The adjoint norm of the modular norm coincides with Theorem 2. the associated norm of the modular adjoint space R of R, that is,

Let R be the modular adjoint space of R and R the Modular of  $\overline{R}$  . Then we have by the definition (2)

$$||\overline{x}|| = \sup_{\overline{x} \in \overline{X}} |\overline{x}(\overline{x})|$$
 for every  $\overline{x} \in \overline{X}$ .

218

By virtue of §80 Theorem 2, A may be considered as a subspace of R by the relation:  $\pi(\tilde{\pi}) = \tilde{\pi}(x)$  for every  $R \in \tilde{R}$ . Thus we have obviously

REMESON RELATIONS OF EVERY RER.

For an element  $\overline{z} \in \overline{R}$ , we can find obviously a sequence of elements  $\overline{z}_{\nu} \in \overline{\overline{z}}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that

$$\overline{Z}_{\nu}(\overline{z}) = \overline{\chi}(x_{\nu}), \quad m((1-\frac{1}{\nu})x_{\nu}) \leq 1.$$

For such  $\pi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) we have

$$\bar{Z}((1-\frac{1}{4})Z_{k}) = (1-\frac{1}{4})\bar{Z}_{k}(\bar{Z}) \geq (1-\frac{1}{4})(11\bar{Z}11-\frac{1}{4}).$$

Thus we have for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

$$\sup_{m(n) \le 1} |\bar{z}(x)| \ge (1 - \frac{1}{U})(||\bar{z}|| - \frac{1}{U}),$$

and consequently, making v tend to ee, we obtain

Therefore we have by the formula \$81(5)

Recalling the formula \$72(3) we obtain obviously by Theorem 2

(4) NxN = sup |Z(x)| for every xer.

Consequently we have naturally

Concerning the associated norm, I. Amamiya obtained

(6) 
$$\|x\| = \inf_{\xi>0} \frac{1 + m(\xi x)}{\xi}$$
.

In fact, putting  $d = \inf_{\xi>0} \frac{1}{\xi} (1+m(\xi z))$ , as  $\xi d \leq 1+m(\xi x)$  for every real number  $\xi$ , we can find by §79 Theorem 2  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}_{\rho} \in \overline{\mathcal{R}}$  such that  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}_{\rho}(x) = d$  and  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}(\overline{\mathcal{R}}_{\rho}) \leq 1$ , and consequently  $\|x\| \geq d$  by definition. On the other hand, we have by definition

$$\|\xi x\| = \sup_{\overline{\mathcal{M}}(X) \le 1} |\overline{x}(\xi x)| \le 1 + m(\xi x),$$

and hence || x || \le \d.

§84 Simplemess

Let R be a modulared space. If m(x) = 0 implies x = 0, then we shall say that R is simple, or that the modular m of R is simple.

Theorem 1. In order that the modular adjoint space ? of R be simple, it is necessary and sufficient that

$$\lim_{k \to 0} \frac{m(kx)}{k} = 0 \qquad \qquad \text{for every } x \in R.$$

Proof. As m(x) is a convex function of x, there exists obviously the limit  $\lim_{x\to +0}\frac{m(x)}{x}$ . If  $\lim_{x\to +0}\frac{m(x)}{x}\geq x$  for some  $x\in \mathbb{R}$  and for some x>0, then we have obviously  $x\in m(x)$  for every real number x, and hence we can find by \$79 Theorem 2  $x\in \mathbb{R}$  such that

$$\overline{A}(A) = \delta$$
,  $\overline{A}(X) \leq m(X)$  for every  $X \in \mathbb{R}$ .

For such  $\overline{a} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}$ , we have  $\overline{m}(\overline{a})=0$  by the definition §80(1), but  $\overline{a}(a)\neq 0$ . Consequently  $\overline{R}$  is not simple by definition.

Conversely, if  $\overline{m}(\overline{a}) = c$  and  $\lim_{\xi \to 0} \frac{m(\xi x)}{\xi} = 0$  for every  $x \in R$ ; then we have by the definition  $\S 80(1)$   $\overline{A}(x) - m(x) \le 0$  for every  $x \in R$ , and hence for any  $x \in R$  we have

$$|\overline{\alpha}(x)| \le \frac{m(\overline{x}x)}{\overline{x}}$$
 for every  $\xi > 0$ .

Making  $\xi$  tend to  $\theta$ , we obtain hence  $\overline{\Lambda}(x) = \theta$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ , that is,  $\overline{\Lambda} = \theta$ . Therefore  $\overline{\mathbb{R}}$  is simple by definition.

Theorem 2. In order that we have

$$\lim_{\xi \to c} \frac{\overline{m}(\xi \overline{z})}{\xi} = 0 \qquad \qquad \text{for every } \overline{z} \in \overline{R} ,$$

it is necessary and sufficient that  $\lim_{n\to\infty} m(x_n) = 0$  implies

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{\chi}(\chi_{\nu}) = 0 \qquad \text{for every } \overline{\chi} \in \overline{R} .$$

Proof. For an element  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$ , if we can find a sequence  $x_{\nu} \in R$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) and Y > 0 such that  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} m(x_{\nu}) = 0$ ,  $\overline{x}(x_{\nu}) > Y$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ , then there is obviously a sequence  $\alpha_{\nu} > 0$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} \alpha_{\nu} = 0$ ,  $\frac{1}{\alpha_{\nu}} m(x_{\nu}) < \frac{1}{2} Y$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ . Then we have for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ 

$$\alpha_{\nu} \overline{\chi}(x_{\nu}) - m(x_{\nu}) > \frac{1}{2} \alpha_{\nu} \gamma$$

From this relation we conclude by the formule §80(2)

$$\frac{\overline{m}(\omega, \overline{z})}{\omega} \ge \frac{1}{2} \quad \text{for every } \nu = 1, 2, \dots,$$

but  $\lim_{t\to\infty} d_t = 0$ .

Goaversely, if we can find  $\tilde{\alpha} \in \tilde{R}$  and  $\tilde{\epsilon} > 0$  such that

$$\lim_{\substack{k \to +0}} \frac{m(k\bar{a})}{k} > \epsilon > 0, \qquad m(\bar{a}) < +\infty,$$

then there is by the definition  $\S 80(1)$  a sequence  $\pi_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\frac{1}{16}\bar{\alpha}(x_{\nu}) - m(x_{\nu}) > \frac{1}{16} \gamma$ . From this relation we conclude by the formula  $\S 80(2)$   $\widetilde{m}(\widetilde{a}) + m(x_{\nu}) \ge \widetilde{a}(x_{\nu}) > \widetilde{\delta} + \nu m(x_{\nu})$  and hence  $\overline{m}(\overline{a}) - \gamma > (\nu - 1) m(z_{\nu})$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

Making v tend to ∞ , we obtain therefore

 $\lim_{n\to\infty} m(x_n) = 0, \quad \text{but} \quad \lim_{n\to\infty} \overline{\alpha}(x_n) \ge 1.$ 

From Theorems 1 and 2 we conclude immediately

In order that the modular adjoint space g of the modular adjoint space R of R be simple, it is necessary and sufficingt  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(x_n) = 0 \quad \underline{\text{implies}} \quad \lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{\pi}(x_n) = 0 \quad \underline{\text{for every}} \quad \overline{\pi} \in \mathbb{R} \ .$ 

If the modular adjoint space R of R is simple, Theorem 4.  $\lim_{x \to \infty} \overline{\pi}(\overline{x}_{\nu}) = 0 \quad \text{implies} \quad \lim_{x \to \infty} \overline{x}_{\nu}(x) = 0 \quad \text{for every } x \in \mathbb{R}.$ We have by the formula  $\S 80(2)$  for every  $x \in R$  and x > 0

 $|\overline{x}_{\nu}(\overline{x}z)| \leq \overline{m}(\overline{x}_{\nu}) + m(\overline{x}z)$ 

Thus we obtain by assumption for  $\geqslant > a$ 

$$\overline{\lim}_{\nu \to \infty} |\overline{x}_{\nu}(x)| \leq \frac{m(\frac{5}{5}x)}{8}$$

 $\lim_{x\to\infty}|\overline{x}_{\nu}(x)|\leq\frac{m(3x)}{3}.$  As  $\lim_{x\to\infty}\frac{m(3x)}{3}=0$  by Theorem 1, we obtain therefore  $\lim_{x\to\infty}\overline{x}_{\nu}(x)=0$ .

If the modular adjoint space R of R is simple, then for any sequence  $\overline{Z}_{\nu} \in \overline{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) subject to the condition:

we can find uniquely  $\bar{x} \in \bar{R}$  such that  $\lim_{x \to \infty} \bar{m} (\bar{x}, -\bar{x}) = 0$ .

If  $\lim_{n\to\infty} \overline{m} (\overline{x}_n - \overline{x}_n) = 0$ , then we have by Theorem 4  $\lim_{n \to \infty} |\tilde{x}_{pn}(n) - \tilde{x}_{pn}(n)| = 0 \quad \text{for every } n \in \mathbb{R}.$ 

Thus, putting  $\varphi(x) = \lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{x}_n(x)$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ , we obtain a linear functional \( \text{on } \mathbb{R} \), and we conclude by the formula \( \frac{9}{80}(2) \)

$$\vec{z}_{\nu}(z) - \varphi(z) \leq \lim_{n \to \infty} \vec{m} (\vec{z}_{\mu} - \vec{z}_{\nu}) + m(z)$$

for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$  From this relation we conclude further  $\varphi \in \overline{R}$ and we have by the definition  $\S 80(1)$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ 

$$\overline{m}(\overline{\chi}_{\nu}-9) \leq \lim_{\substack{n \to \infty \\ n \to \infty}} \overline{m}(\overline{\chi}_{\mu}-\overline{\chi}_{\nu}).$$

Making & tend to 🗢 , we obtain therefore by assumption

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \overline{m} (\overline{x}_{\nu} - \varphi) = 0.$$

If  $\lim_{n\to\infty} \overline{\pi}(\bar{x}_n - \bar{x}) = 0$ ,  $\lim_{n\to\infty} \overline{\pi}(\bar{x}_n - \bar{y}) = 0$ , then we have by the formula  $\S78(1)$   $\widetilde{m}$   $(\frac{1}{2}(\overline{x}-\overline{y}))=0$ , and hence  $\overline{x}-\overline{y}=0$ , because  $\overline{x}$  is Thus such Z is unlouely determined. simple by assumption.

Let R be simple in the sequel. Then we can introduce a new concaption of convergence. A sequence of elements  $\alpha_{\nu} \in \mathcal{R} \ (\nu = 1, 2, ..., 1)$ is said to be conditionally modular convergent to a limit a FR , if we can find of > a such that

$$\lim_{k\to\infty} m(d(a_k-a))=0,$$

and then we shall write  $c-m-\lim_{n\to\infty} a_n = a_n$ .

\$84, §85)

If a sequence  $a_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) is conditionally modular convergent, then the limit is determined uniquely.

 $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(\alpha(a_n - a)) = 0, \qquad \lim_{n \to \infty} m(\beta(a_n - d)) = 0$ for two positive numbers of,  $\beta$ , then, putting  $\gamma = \frac{1}{2} \sin \{ \alpha, \beta \}$ , we conclude by the formula  $\S 80(2)$  on (f(a-f))=0, and hence a=f, as R is simple by assumption.

It is evident by definition that the conditionally modular convergence is weaker than the modular convergence, that is,

m-lim 
$$a_{\nu} = a$$
 implies c-m-lim  $a_{\nu} = a$ .

Concerning the conditionally modular convergence, we can prove easily by the formula \$80(2)

If  $c-m-\lim a_{r}=a_{r}$ ,  $c-m-\lim d_{r}=d_{r}$ , then we have Theorem 5. c-m-lim (da,+ pd,) = da+ pd,

and further c-m-lim d, a, = da for lim d = d.

### §85 Uniformly simple modulars

Let R be a modulared space.

 $\inf_{|x| \in \mathbb{R}^2} w(\xi x) > 0 \qquad \text{for every } \xi > 0,$ then we shall say that R is uniformly simple, or that the modular m of R is uniformly simple. If R is uniformly simple, then R is simple, because for any element x & 0, as m( x x) is a non-decreasing convex function of  $\S \geq 0$  , we can find by the modular condition 4) < > 0 such

that m(dx) > i.

222

In order that & be uniformly simple, it is necessary Theorem 1. and sufficient that the conditionally modular convergence coincides with the modular convergence, i. e.,  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(x_n) = 0$  implies  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(\xi x_n) = 0$ for every 2 >0.

We suppose firstly that R is uniformly simple. Proof.  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(n_{\nu}) = 0, \quad n_{\nu} \neq 0 \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, \ldots),$ 

then, as  $m(\xi z)$  is a non-decreasing convex function of  $\xi \ge 0$ , we can find a sequence  $\lambda_{\nu} > 0$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that

$$m(\xi x_{\nu}) \begin{cases}
> i & \text{for } \xi > \lambda_{\nu}, \\
\le i & \text{for } 0 \le \xi \le \lambda_{\nu}.
\end{cases}$$

For such  $\lambda_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2,...$ ), we have obviously for every  $\nu=1, 2,...$ 

$$m(x_{\nu}) = m\left(\frac{1}{2\lambda_{\nu}}(2\lambda_{\nu}x_{\nu})\right), \quad m(2\lambda_{\nu}x_{\nu}) > 1$$

As R is uniformly simple by assumption, if  $\lim_{\delta \to 0} \frac{1}{2\lambda} > \delta$  for some  $\delta > 0$ , then we have  $\lim_{x\to\infty} m(x_0) \ge \inf_{m(x)\ge 1} m(\delta x) > 0$ , contradicting the assumption:  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(n_n) = 0$ . Therefore we have  $\lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{1}{2\lambda_n} = 0$ . Thus, for any  $\xi > 0$  we can find  $\nu_0$  such that  $\frac{\xi}{\lambda} < 1$  for every  $\nu \ge \nu_0$ , and hence by the modular condition 5)

$$m(\xi x_{\nu}) \leq \frac{\xi}{\lambda_{\nu}} m(\lambda_{\nu} x_{\nu}) < \frac{\xi}{\lambda_{\nu}}$$
 for  $\nu \geq k_{0}$ .

Therefore we have  $\lim_{n\to\infty} m(\xi x_n) = 0$  for every  $\xi \ge 0$ .

Secondly, if R is not uniformly simple, then we can find by dering tion  $\delta > 0$  such that  $\inf_{m(x) \ge 0} m(\delta x) = 0$ , and hence we can find a sequence  $x_{\nu} \in \mathbb{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(\delta x_{\nu}) = 0$  but  $m(x_{\nu}) \ge 1$ for every  $y = 1, 2, \dots$ 

Recalling §81 Theorem 5, we obtain immediately by Theorem 1

If R is uniformly simple, then for any E > 0 we can Theorem 2. find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $M \times M \ge \mathcal{E}$  implies  $m(x) \ge \delta$ .

A modulared space R is said to be uniformly monotone, or we shall say that the modular m of R is uniformly monotone, if

$$\lim_{\xi \to 0} \frac{1}{\xi} \sup_{m(x) \le \xi} m(\xi x) = 0,$$

With this definition we hav

If R is uniformly simple, then the modular adjoint Theorem 3.

space R of R is uniformly monotone.

As  $m(\xi x)$  is a non-decreasing convex function of  $\xi \ge 0$ . corresponding to every element  $\varkappa \neq 0$  of  $\Re$  , there is by the modular condition 4)  $\hat{\lambda}_{\infty} > 0$  such that

$$m(\xi z) \begin{cases} \geq 1 & \text{for } \xi > \lambda z, \\ \leq 1 & \text{for } 0 \leq \xi \leq \lambda z. \end{cases}$$

Then we have naturally  $m(2\lambda_x z) > 1$  for every  $z \in R$ , and hence

inf 
$$m(2\lambda_x \delta x) > 0$$
 for every  $\delta > 0$ , oxion

because R is uniformly simple by assumption. Thus, putting

$$\mathcal{E} = \inf_{0 \le x \le R} m(2\lambda_x \delta x),$$

we have by the modular condition 5) and the formula \$80(2) that if

$$0 < \frac{\xi}{4} < \frac{\varepsilon}{4\delta}$$
,  $\beta > \delta$ ,  $\overline{m}(\overline{x}) \leq 1$ .

then we have

(85)

$$\overline{Z}(2\lambda_{x} f z) - \frac{1}{\xi} m(2\lambda_{x} f z) \leq 2 f \overline{Z}(\lambda_{x} z) - \frac{\beta}{\xi \delta} m(2\lambda_{x} \delta z)$$

$$\leq 2 f \{ \overline{m}(\overline{z}) + m(\lambda_{x} z) \} - \frac{\beta \xi}{\xi \delta}$$

$$\leq 49\left(1-\frac{E}{488}\right)<0.$$

Therefore we conclude by  $\S 80(1)$  that  $0 < \xi < \frac{L}{45}$ ,  $m(\bar{x}) \le 1$  implies

$$\frac{1}{3} \overline{m}(\overline{x}\overline{z}) = \sup_{0 < f \le \delta, \ 0 + x \in \mathbb{R}} \{ \overline{x} (2\lambda_x f x) - \frac{1}{3} m(2\lambda_x f x) \}$$

$$\leq \sup_{0 < f \le \delta, \ 0 + x \in \mathbb{R}} \overline{x} (2\lambda_x f x) \leq \sup_{0 + x \in \mathbb{R}} 2\delta | \overline{x} (\lambda_x x) |$$

and consequently  $\lim_{\xi \to +c} \frac{1}{\xi} \sup_{\pi(\xi) \le 1} \overline{\pi}(\xi \overline{\chi}) \le 4\delta$ . As  $\delta > 0$  may be arbitrary, we obtain hence  $\lim_{\xi \to 0} \frac{1}{\xi} \sup_{\pi \in \mathcal{R}(\xi) \le 1} \overline{\pi}(\xi \, \overline{\chi}) = 0$ .

If R is uniformly monotone, then the modular adjoint space R of R is uniformly simple.

If \( \bar{z} \) ≥ 1, \( \bar{z} \) ∈ \( \bar{z} \), \( \bar{z} \) then we have \( \bar{u} \times \bar{u} \) ≥ 1 by \( \bar{u} \) Theorem 4, and hence NIN ≥ NIN ≥ 1 by \$85 Theorem 1.

$$|\overline{x}|| = \sup_{m(x) \le 1} |\overline{x}(x)|$$

by §83 Theorem 2, we can find then  $\alpha \in \mathbb{R}$  such that  $\mathbb{Z}(a) > \frac{1}{2}$ ,  $m(a) \leq 1$ . For such  $A \in \mathbb{R}$  we have by the definition  $\S 80(1)$  for every  $\xi$  ,  $\ell > 0$ 

$$\overline{m}(\xi\overline{z}) \geq \xi\overline{z}(\rho a) - m(\rho a) \geq \rho \{\frac{\overline{z}}{\rho} - \frac{1}{\rho}m(\rho a)\}.$$

As R is uniformly monotons by assumption, for any  $\xi>0$  we can find f > 0 such that  $m(x) \le 1$  implies  $\frac{1}{6} m(fx) < \frac{1}{44} \xi$ , and hence

From this relation we conclude

$$\inf_{\overline{m}(\overline{x})\geq 1} \overline{m}(\overline{x}\overline{z}) \geq \frac{\overline{x}p}{4} > 0.$$

Thus R is uniformly simple by definition.

### 686 Finiteness

An element a & R is said to be Let R be a modulared space. finite, if  $m(\xi a) < +\infty$  for every  $\xi > 0$ .

With this definition we have obviously by \$75 Theorem 2

Theorem 1. If  $m-\lim_{\nu\to\infty}a_{\nu}=a$  and every  $a_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2,...$ ) is finite, then the limit a also is finite and we have for every F  $m(\xi a) = \lim_{n \to \infty} m(\xi a_n).$ 

As m(\$x) is a non-decreasing convex function of \$20, we have obviously by §81 Theorem 4

For a finite element ack we have || all = 1 if and Theorem 2. only if m(a) = 1.

If every element of R is finite, then we shall say that R is finite, With this definition, we can or that the modular me of R is finite. conclude immediately from Theorem 2

If R is finite, then we have Theorem 3.

$$m\left(\frac{1}{|M\times M|}\times\right)=1$$
 for  $0\neq x\in R$ .

A modulared space R is said to be uniformly finite, or we shall say that the modular m of R is uniformly finite, if

 $\sup_{m(x)\leq 1} m(\xi x) < +\infty \qquad \text{for every } > 0.$ 

If R is uniformly finite, then for any E >0 we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $|1 - 11 \times 11| \le \delta$  implies  $|1 - m(x)| \le \epsilon$ .

As R is uniformly finite by assumption, we can put Proof.

$$\alpha = \sup_{m(n) \le 1} m(2x) < +\infty$$
.

If  $m(a) = \{$ , then, as  $m(\xi a)$  is a non-decreasing convex function of \$ 20, we see easily that we have

$$m(\xi a) \le 1 + (d-1)(\xi - 1)$$
 for  $1 \le \xi \le 2$ ,

 $m(\xi a) \ge 1 + (d-1)(\xi - 1)$  for  $0 \le \xi \le 1$ .

Thus  $m(a) = 1, |\xi - 1| < 1$  implies  $|m(\xi a) - 1| \le (\alpha - 1)|\xi - 1|$ For an arbitrary element  $z \Rightarrow 0$ , as  $w(\frac{1}{|y| \times N} x) = 1$  by Theorem 3, we obtain hence  $|m(x)-1| \le (\alpha-1) |\|x\|\| - 1|$  for  $|\|x\|\| - 1| < 1$ . From this relation we conclude easily our assertion.

A modulared space K is said to be uniformly increasing, or we shall say that the modular me of R is uniformly increasing, if

$$\lim_{\xi \to \infty} \frac{1}{\xi} \inf_{m(z) \ge 1} m(\xi z) = +\infty.$$

If R is uniformly increasing, then for any two positive numbers  $\ell$ ,  $\ell'$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $m(x) \ge \delta$ ,  $\overline{m}(\overline{x}) \le \ell'$ implies  $m(x) - \tilde{x}(x) \ge \hat{\epsilon}$ .

<u>Proof.</u> If  $m(n) \ge 1$ ,  $\overline{m}(\overline{x}) \le \varepsilon'$ , then we can find  $\alpha$  such that m(dz)=1,  $0 < d \leq 1$ ,

and we have than by the formula \$80(2)

\$86)

 $\overline{\mathcal{R}}(\mathcal{R}) = \frac{1}{2} \overline{\mathcal{R}}(\mathcal{A}\mathcal{R}) \leq \frac{1}{2} \left( \overline{m}(\overline{\mathcal{R}}) + m(\mathcal{A}\mathcal{R}) \right) \leq \frac{1}{2} \left( \mathcal{E}' + 1 \right).$ 

As R is uniformly increasing by assumption, we can find  $\lambda > 0$  such that

$$\frac{1}{7}\inf_{\pi(x)\geq 1} m(x) \geq \ell + \ell' + 1 \qquad \text{for } x \geq \lambda.$$
 For such  $\lambda$ , if  $m(x) < \mathbb{K}(x) + \ell$ , then we have

and hence  $\frac{1}{2} < \lambda$ . This relation yields

$$m(z) < \frac{1}{d}(\xi + \xi' + 1) < \lambda(\xi + \xi' + 1).$$

Therefore, putting  $S = \text{Nex} \{\lambda(\xi + \xi' + 1), 1\}$ , we see that  $m(z) \ge S$  $\overline{m}(\overline{z}) \leq \varepsilon'$  implies  $m(z) \geq \overline{z}(z) + \varepsilon$ .

Theorem 6. If R is uniformly increasing, then the modular adjoint space R of R in uniformly finite.

If R is uniformly increasing, then for any  $\lambda > 0$  we can-Proof. find by definition ? ≥ 1 such that

$$\inf_{m(x) \ge 1} \frac{1}{3} m(\xi x) \ge 2\lambda \qquad \text{for } \xi \ge \beta.$$

If  $\overline{m}(\overline{z}) \le 1$ ,  $1 \le m(x) < +\infty$ , then there is  $\xi > 0$  such that

$$m\left(\frac{1}{2}x\right)=1, \quad 0<\frac{1}{2}\leq 1,$$

and hence by the formula §80(2)

$$\overline{\chi}(\frac{1}{\xi}\chi) \leq \overline{m}(\overline{\chi}) + m(\frac{1}{\xi}\chi) \leq \ell.$$

For such  $\xi$ , if  $\xi \ge \rho$ , then we have

$$\lambda \vec{x}(x) - m(z) = \xi \left\{ \lambda \vec{z} \left( \frac{1}{\xi} z \right) - \frac{1}{\xi} m \left( \xi \frac{1}{\xi} x \right) \right\} \leq 0,$$

and if o < ? & ? , then we have

If  $\widetilde{m}(\widetilde{z}) \le 1$ ,  $m(z) \le 1$ , then we have obviously by \$80(2)

人豆(z) - m(x) 
$$\leq \lambda$$
 (  $\overline{m}$  (  $\overline{x}$  ) +  $m$  (z) ) -  $m$  (z)  $\leq 2\lambda$ .

Furthermore it is evident that if  $\overline{m}(\vec{x}) \leq 1$ ,  $m(x) = +\infty$ , then

Consequently we obtain by the definition §80(1)

Therefore  $\widetilde{R}$  is uniformly finite by definition.

Theorem 7. If R is uniformly finite, then the modular adjoint space R of R is uniformly increasing.

Proof. If  $\overline{m}(\overline{x}) \ge 1$ , then we have by Theorems 4 in §81 and 1 in §83  $\|\overline{x}\| \ge \|\overline{x}\| \ge 1$ , and hence we can find by §83 Theorem 2  $x \in \mathbb{R}$  such that  $\overline{x}(x) > \frac{1}{2}$ ,  $m(x) \le 1$ . For such x, we have by §80(2)

$$\frac{1}{2} \widetilde{m}(||\overline{z}||) \ge \widetilde{\mathbb{Z}}(||z|) - \frac{1}{2} m(||z||) \ge \frac{1}{2} f - \frac{1}{2} m(||z||)$$
 for every  $||f|| > 0$ . As  $|A|$  is uniformly finite by assumption, for

any f > 0 , putting  $\lambda_0 = \sup_{m \in \mathcal{M}} m(f \times) < +\infty$ , we have

$$\frac{1}{4} m(32) \ge \frac{1}{2} s - 1 \qquad \text{for every } s \ge \lambda_0.$$

Therefore we obtain for every f > 0

$$\frac{\lim_{\overline{y}\to\infty}\frac{1}{\overline{y}}\inf_{\overline{z}\to\infty}\overline{\overline{z}}\widehat{m}(\overline{y}\overline{z})\geq\frac{1}{2}\beta-1,}{\lim_{\overline{y}\to\infty}\frac{1}{\overline{y}}\inf_{\overline{z}\to\infty}\overline{\overline{z}}\widehat{m}(\overline{y}\overline{z})=+\infty.}$$
 Thus  $\overline{R}$  is uniformly increasing by definition.

# §87 Uniformly convex modulars

A modulared space R is said to be uniformly convex, or we shall say that the modular m of R is uniformly convex, if for any two  $\mathcal{E}$ ,  $\mathcal{F} > 0$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that m(x),  $m(y) \leq \mathcal{F}$ ,  $m(x-y) \geq \mathcal{E}$  implies  $\frac{1}{2} \{m(z) + m(y)\} \geq m(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)) + \delta.$ 

With this definition, we will prove firstly

Theorem 1. Let R be uniformly convex. For a manifold  $\overline{A}$  of the moduler adjoint space  $\overline{R}$  of R, if

$$\lim_{n\to\infty} \mathbb{R}(a_n) = \mathbb{R}(a) \qquad \qquad \underbrace{\text{for every }}_{\mathbb{R}\in\widehat{A}} \mathbb{R}$$

$$m(a) = \sup_{\mathbb{R}\in\widehat{A}} \left\{ \mathbb{R}(a) - \overline{m}(\mathbb{R}) \right\},$$

$$\lim_{n\to\infty} m(a_n) \leq m(a) < \infty,$$

then  $\lim_{n\to\infty} m(a_{\nu}-a)=0$ .

§86. §87)

<u>Proof.</u> If we can find  $\ell > 0$  and a subsequence  $\alpha_{\nu_{\ell}}$  ( $\rho = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) from  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that

$$m(a_{\nu_{\mu}}-a) \ge \varepsilon$$
 for every  $\mu=1, 2, ...,$ 

then there is by assumption  $\delta > 0$  such that we have for every  $p = 1, 2, \ldots$ 

$$\frac{1}{2}$$
 {  $m(a_{y_n}) + m(a)$  }  $\geq m(\frac{1}{2}(a_{y_n} + a)) + \delta$ .

Then, as we have by the definition \$80(1) for every  $\bar{z} \in \bar{\mathbb{R}}$ 

$$m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(a_{\nu\mu}+a\right)\right) \geq \overline{\chi}\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(a_{\nu\mu}+a\right)\right) - \overline{m}\left(\overline{\chi}\right),$$

we obtain by assumption for every  $\mathbb{Z}\in\widetilde{\mathcal{A}}$ 

 $m(a) \ge \overline{\lim}_{n\to\infty} \frac{1}{2} \left\{ m(a_{p_n}) + m(a) \right\} \ge \overline{\mathcal{R}}(a) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) + \delta,$  contradicting the assumption:  $m(a) = \sup_{\overline{\mathcal{R}} \in \mathcal{X}} \left\{ \overline{\mathcal{R}}(a) - \overline{m}(\overline{x}) \right\}.$ 

Theorem 2. If R is uniformly convex and uniformly simple, then  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} \overline{\pi}(a_{\nu}) = \overline{\pi}(a) \qquad \text{for every } \overline{\pi} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}} ,$   $\overline{\lim} \ m(a_{\nu}) \leq m(a) < +\infty$ 

 $\underline{\text{implies}} \qquad \text{m-lim} \quad \alpha_{\nu \to \infty} = \alpha .$ 

Proof. By wirtue of \$80 Theorem 2, we have for every a e R

$$m(\alpha) = \sup_{\overline{z} \in \Sigma} \{\overline{z}(\alpha) - \overline{m}(\overline{z})\}.$$

Thus we can conclude by Theorem 1 from our assumption

$$\lim_{\nu \to \infty} m (a_{\nu} - a) = 0.$$

As  $\mathcal R$  is uniformly simple by assumption, this relation yields by §85 Theorem 1  $m-\lim_{k\to\infty} \alpha_k = \alpha$ .

Theorem 3. If R is uniformly simple, uniformly finite, and uniformly convex, then the modular norm # x # of R is uniformly convex.

<u>Proof.</u> As R is uniformly simple by assumption, for any  $\varepsilon > 0$  we can find by §85 Theorem 2  $\varepsilon' > 0$  such that  $\|x\| \ge \varepsilon$  implies  $m(x) \ge \varepsilon'$ . For such  $\varepsilon'$ , as R is uniformly convex by assumption, we can find by definition  $\delta' > 0$  such that m(x),  $m(x) \le 1$ ,  $m(x-y) \ge \varepsilon'$  implies

(87)

(Chapter XI

 $\frac{1}{2}\{m(z)+m(y)\}\geq m(\frac{1}{2}(z+y))+\delta'.$ 

Furthermore, as R is uniformly finite by assumption, for such  $\delta'$  we can find by §86 Theorem 4  $\delta > 0$  such that

 $|1 - \|x\|| \le \delta$  implies  $|1 - m(x)| \le \frac{1}{2}\delta'$ .

If  $m \times n = m \times m = 1$ ,  $m \times -y = 2 \in 1$ , then we have m(x) = m(y) = 1 by §86 Theorem 2, and  $m(x-y) \ge E'$  by the definition of E'. Consequently we obtain  $1 = \frac{1}{2} \{m(x) + m(y) \} \ge m(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)) + S$ , and hence  $1 - m(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)) \ge S'$ . This relation yields  $1 - m(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)) \ge S'$  by the definition of S. Therefore  $m \times m = my = 1$ ,  $m \times -y = S$  implies  $1 - 2S \ge mx + ym$ , and hence the modular norm is uniformly convex by §76 Theorem 1.

By wirtue of §77 Theorem 4, if a normed space is uniformly convex and complete, then it is regular. Therefore, recalling §81, we see by Theorem 3 that if a modulared space R is uniformly simple, uniformly finite, uniformly convex, and modular complete, then R is regular. However we can prove the regularity of R under weaker assumptions:

Theorem 4. If R is uniformly simple, uniformly convex, and mo-

Proof. Let  $\overline{R}$  be the modular adjoint space of the modular adjoint space  $\overline{R}$ . For any  $\overline{R} \in \overline{R}$  subject to  $\overline{\overline{M}}(\overline{X}) < +\infty$ , we can find by the definition §80(1) a sequence  $\overline{R}_* \in \overline{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that

Then, as we have by the formula §80(2)

for every finite number of real numbers  $\xi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\,2,\ldots,\kappa$ ), we can find by §82 Theorem 4 a sequence  $\varkappa_{\rho}\in\mathbb{R}$  ( $\rho=1,\,2,\ldots$ ) such that

$$\overline{z}_{\nu}(x_{\ell}) = \overline{\overline{z}}(\overline{z}_{\nu})$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots, \ell$ ,

$$m((1-\frac{1}{p})\chi_p) \leq \overline{m}(\overline{\chi})$$
 for every  $f=1, 2, ...$ 

For such  $x_{\rho}$  (  $\rho = 1, 2, ...$ ) we have

$$\lim_{N_1 \nu \to \infty} m \left( \left( 1 - \frac{1}{\nu} \right) \chi_{\nu} - \left( 1 - \frac{1}{\mu} \right) \chi_{\mu} \right) = 0.$$

Because, if we can find  $\mathcal{E} > 0$  and two subsequences  $\lambda_{\nu}$ ,  $\mu_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) from { 1, 2,...} such that we have for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ 

$$m((1-\frac{1}{\lambda_{\nu}})z_{\lambda_{\nu}}-(1-\frac{1}{\mu_{\nu}})z_{\mu_{\nu}})\geq \varepsilon,$$

then, as  $\mathcal{R}$  is uniformly convex by assumption, we can find by definition  $\mathcal{E} > 0$  such that  $\frac{1}{2} \left\{ m \left( \left( 1 - \frac{1}{\lambda_{\nu}} \right) \pi_{\lambda_{\nu}} \right) + m \left( \left( 1 - \frac{1}{\rho_{\nu}} \right) \pi_{\rho_{\nu}} \right) \right\}$   $\geq m \left( \frac{1}{2} \left( \left( 1 - \frac{1}{\lambda_{\nu}} \right) \pi_{\lambda_{\nu}} + \left( 1 - \frac{1}{\rho_{\nu}} \right) \pi_{\rho_{\nu}} \right) + \delta$ 

for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$  On the other hand we have

and by the definition  $\S 80(1)$  for  $\S 3_{\triangleright}$ ,  $\nearrow \triangleright$ 

$$m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(\left(1-\frac{1}{2\nu}\right)z_{h\nu}+\left(1-\frac{1}{p\nu}\right)z_{\mu\nu}\right)\right)$$

$$\geq \bar{\chi}_{\rho}\left(\frac{1}{2}\cdot\left(\left(1-\frac{1}{2\nu}\right)z_{h\nu}+\left(1-\frac{1}{p\nu}\right)z_{\mu\nu}\right)\right)-\bar{m}\left(\bar{\chi}_{\rho}\right)$$

$$=\left(1-\frac{1}{22\nu}-\frac{1}{24\nu}\right)\bar{z}\left(\bar{\chi}_{\rho}\right)-\bar{m}\left(\bar{\chi}_{\rho}\right).$$

Thus we obtain for such &

$$\vec{m}(\vec{z}) \ge (1 - \frac{1}{2z_0} - \frac{1}{2m_0}) \vec{z}(\vec{x}_p) - \vec{m}(\vec{x}_p) + \delta$$

for every  $f \leq \lambda_{\nu}$ ,  $\mu_{\nu}$ . Making  $\nu$  tend to  $\infty$  , we conclude hence

元(元) 
$$\geq$$
 元(元)  $-$  元(元)  $+$   $\delta$   $\geq$  元(元)  $-\frac{1}{p}$   $+$   $\delta$  for every  $f = 1, 2, ...$ , contradicting  $\delta > 0$ .

As R is uniformly simple and modular complete by assumption, there exists by 985 Theorem 1 x e R such that  $m-\lim_{n\to\infty} (1-\frac{1}{n}) \times_n = \infty$ , and then we have by Theorems 7 in §81 and 5 in §80

$$m(x) \leq \lim_{\nu \to \infty} m((1-\frac{1}{\nu})x_{\nu}) \leq \overline{m}(\overline{x}),$$

$$\overline{x}_{\nu}(x) = \overline{x}(\overline{x}_{\nu}) \qquad \text{for every } \nu = 1, 2, \dots.$$

For an arbitrary  $\overline{x}\in\overline{\mathcal{R}}$ , we also can apply the same process to  $\overline{x}$ ,  $\overline{x}_1,\overline{x}_2,\ldots$  instead of  $\overline{x}_1,\overline{x}_2,\ldots$ , and we obtain likewise  $x_0\in\mathcal{R}$  such that

$$m(x_s) \leq \overline{m}(\overline{x}), \quad \overline{x}(x_s) = \overline{x}(\overline{x}),$$

$$\overline{z}_{\nu}(z_0) = \overline{z}(\overline{z}_{\nu})$$
 for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$ 

For such  $x_0$ , if  $m(x-x_0)>0$ , then, as R is uniformly convex by assumption, we can find  $\delta>0$  such that

$$\frac{1}{2}\left\{m(z)+m(z_0)\right\} \geq m\left(\frac{1}{2}(z+z_0)\right)+\delta,$$

and then we have by \$80(2) for every  $\mathcal{S}=1,\ 2,\ldots$ 

$$\overline{n}(\overline{z}) \ge m(\frac{1}{2}(x+x_0)) + \delta \ge \overline{x}_0(\frac{1}{2}(x+x_0)) - \overline{n}(\overline{x}_0) + \delta$$

$$= \overline{z}(\overline{x}_0) - \overline{n}(\overline{x}_0) + \delta \ge \overline{m}(\overline{z}) - \frac{1}{2} + \delta,$$

contradicting  $\delta > 0$ . Therefore we have  $m(x - x_0) = 0$ , and hence  $x = x_0$ , because R is uniformly simple by assumption. Accordingly

we have  $\overline{z}(x) = \overline{z}(x_0) = \overline{z}(\overline{x})$ . As  $\overline{z} \in \overline{R}$  may be arbitrary, we conclude that  $\overline{z}(x) = \overline{z}(\overline{x})$  for every  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$ . Thus R is regular.

### §88 Uniformly even modulars

A modulared space R is said to be <u>uniformly even</u>, or we shall say that the modular m of R is <u>uniformly even</u>, if for any two positive numbers E, F we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that m(x),  $m(y) \le F$ ,  $MX - yM \le S$  implies  $\frac{1}{2} \{m(x) + m(y) \} \le m(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)) + 2 M x - yM$ .

With this definition we have

Theorem 1. If R is finite and uniformly even, then for any two positive numbers  $\mathcal{E}$ ,  $\mathcal{X}$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $m(\mathcal{X})$ ,  $m(\mathcal{Y}) \leq \mathcal{X}$ ,  $m(\mathcal{X}) \leq \delta$ ,  $d + \beta = 1$ ,  $d + \beta \geq 0$  implies

dm(x)+ βm(y) ≤ m(dx+βy)+ E用X-9間.

Proof. For any  $\mathcal{E}$ ,  $\mathcal{E}$  > 0 we can find by definition  $\mathcal{E}$  > 0 such that m(x),  $m(y) \leq \mathcal{E}$ ,  $m(x-y) \leq \mathcal{E}$  implies

 $\frac{1}{2}\{m(x)+m(y)\} \le m(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)) + \frac{5}{2}\|x-y\|.$ 

For such  $\mathcal{E}$  ,  $\mathcal{F}$  ,  $\mathcal{F}$  , we shall prove firstly by the induction that

m(z),  $m(y) \leq y$ ,  $mx - y m \leq \delta$  implies

 $\frac{Z}{2}m(x) + \frac{B}{2^{+}}m(y) \leq m\left(\frac{Z}{2^{+}}x + \frac{B}{2^{-}}y\right) + \varepsilon \parallel x - y \parallel$ 

for every pair of natural numbers  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$  subject to  $\alpha + \beta = 2^{\nu}$ .

It is evident in the case:  $\nu=1$ . We suppose that it holds in the case  $\nu$ , and  $\alpha+\beta=2^{\frac{\nu+1}{2}}$ ,  $\alpha<\beta$ . Then, as  $\alpha<2^{\nu}$ , we have  $\frac{\alpha!}{2^{\nu+1}}\,m(z)+\frac{\beta}{2^{\nu+1}}\,m(z)-m\left(\frac{\alpha!}{2^{\nu+1}}\,z+\frac{\beta}{2^{\nu+1}}\,z\right)$   $=\frac{1}{2}\left\{\frac{\alpha}{2^{\nu}}\,m(z)+\frac{2^{\nu}-\alpha}{2^{\nu}}\,m(y)-m\left(\frac{\alpha!}{2^{\nu}}\,z+\frac{2^{\nu}-\alpha}{2^{\nu}}\,z\right)\right\}$   $+\frac{1}{2}\left\{m\left(\frac{\alpha!}{2^{\nu}}\,z+\frac{2^{\nu}-\alpha}{2^{\nu}}\,y\right)+m(y)\right\}-m\left(\frac{\alpha!}{2^{\nu+1}}\,z+\frac{\beta}{2^{\nu+1}}\,z\right)$   $\leq \frac{1}{2}\left\{n(z-y)+\frac{1}{2}\left\{n(z+z)+\frac{2^{\nu}-\alpha}{2^{\nu}}\,z+\frac{2^{\nu}-\alpha}{2^{\nu}}\,z-\frac{\alpha}{2^{\nu}}\,z+\frac{\beta}{2^{\nu+1}}\,z\right\}$ 

because we have by the modular condition 5)

 $m(\frac{d}{2^{1}}x + \frac{2^{1}-d}{2^{1}}y) \le \frac{d}{2^{1}}m(x) + \frac{2^{1}-d}{2^{1}}m(y) \le \delta,$   $\frac{d}{d}x + \frac{2^{1}-d}{2^{1}}y - y = \frac{d}{2^{1}}nx - yn \le \delta.$ 

Thus-the case v + 1 is proved.

In general, if  $\alpha + \beta = 1$ ,  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta \ge 0$ , then we can find obviously

two sequences of natural numbers  $\alpha_{\nu}$  ,  $\beta_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots$ ) such that

$$d_{\nu} + \beta_{\nu} = 2^{\nu}$$
  $(\nu = 1, 2, ...),$ 

$$\lim_{\nu \to \infty} \frac{d_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}} = \alpha \,, \qquad \qquad \lim_{\nu \to \infty} \frac{\beta_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}} = \beta \,.$$

Then we have by §78 Theorem 1

$$\mathbf{m}\text{-}\lim_{k\to\infty}\left(\frac{\alpha_k}{2^k}x+\frac{\beta_k}{2^k}y\right)=\alpha x+\beta y.$$

As R 1s finite by assumption, we obtain hence by §78 Theorem 2

$$\lim_{\nu\to\infty} m\left(\frac{d\nu}{2^{\nu}}x + \frac{\rho_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}}y\right) = m(\alpha x + \rho y).$$

On the other hand we have for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ 

 $\frac{d_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}} m(x) + \frac{\beta_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}} m(y) \leq m\left(\frac{d_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}} x + \frac{\beta_{\nu}}{2^{\nu}} y\right) + 2 m x - y m_{y}$  as proved just above, and consequently we obtain

$$d m(x) + \beta m(y) \leq m(dx + \beta y) + \varepsilon \|x - y\|$$
.

Theorem 2. If R is finite and uniformly even, then the modular norm of R is uniformly even.

<u>Proof.</u> As R is finite and uniformly even by assumption, for any  $\xi>0$  we can find by Theorem 1 a positive number  $\delta<\frac{1}{2}$  such that

m(x),  $m(y) \le 1$ ,  $||x-y|| \le 85$ ,  $\alpha + \beta = 1$ ,  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta \ge 0$  implies

For such  $\mathcal{E}$ ,  $\mathcal{S}$ , if  $M \times M = 1$ ,  $M \times M \leq \mathcal{S}$ , then, putting

$$d = Mx + yM$$
,  $\beta = Mx - yM$ .

we have by §86 Theorem 3

$$m\left(\frac{1}{\alpha}\left(x+y\right)\right)=m\left(\frac{1}{\beta}\left(x-y\right)\right)=1.$$

As  $d \ge m \times m - m \cdot y = 1 - \delta > \frac{1}{2}$ ,  $\beta \ge m \times m - m \cdot y = 1 - \delta > \frac{1}{2}$ , and  $|\alpha - \beta| \le m \cdot (x + y) - (x - y) = 2 m \cdot y = 2 \delta$ , we have

$$\|\frac{1}{a}(x+y) - \frac{1}{b}(x-y)\| \le |\frac{1}{a} - \frac{1}{b}| \|x+y\| + \frac{2}{b} \|y\| \le 8\delta.$$

Therefore

 $\frac{\alpha}{\alpha+\beta} m\left(\frac{1}{\alpha}(x+y)\right) + \frac{\beta}{\alpha+\beta} m\left(\frac{1}{\beta}(x-y)\right) \leq m\left(\frac{2}{\alpha+\beta}x\right) + \frac{\varepsilon}{3} \|y\|,$ that is,  $1 \leq m\left(\frac{2}{\alpha+\beta}x\right) + \frac{\varepsilon}{3} \|y\|.$ 

On the other hand we have by the modular condition 5)

 $m\left(\frac{2}{\alpha+\beta}x\right) \leq \frac{\alpha}{\alpha+\beta} m\left(\frac{1}{\alpha}(x+y)\right) + \frac{\beta}{\alpha+\beta} m\left(\frac{1}{\beta}(x-y)\right) = 1,$  and hence by Theorem 4 in §81

$$m\left(\frac{2}{a+\beta}\chi\right) \leq \|\frac{2}{a+\beta}\chi\|.$$

Thus we obtain  $\alpha + \beta \leq 2 \| \mathbf{z} \| + (\alpha + \beta) \frac{\epsilon}{\delta} \| \mathbf{y} \| \leq 2 + \epsilon \| \mathbf{y} \|$ 

(Chapter XI

Therefore the modular norm because  $\alpha + \beta \le 2 (m \times m + m y m) \le 3$ . is uniformly even by \$77 Theorem 1.

Recalling Theorems 5 in §77 and 6 in §81, we obtain by Theorem 2 If R is finite, uniformly even, and modular complete, Theorem 5. then & is regular.

If R is uniformly simple, uniformly increasing, and Theorem 4. uniformly convex, then the modular adjoint space R of R is uniformly even

As R is uniformly increasing by assumption, for any  $\mathcal{F}>\theta$ Proof. we can find by \$86 Theorem 5 ず'> 1 such that 帯 (文)全ず, デベス) をすっ implies  $\tilde{\chi}(x) - m(\pi) \leq 0$ . Thus we have by  $\S 80(1)$  that  $\tilde{m}(\tilde{x}) \leq \tilde{f}$  $\overline{m}(\overline{x}) = \sup_{m(x) \leq \overline{x}'} \{\overline{x}(x) - m(x)\}.$ implies

Therefore, if m(Z), m(B) 5 7, then we have

 $\frac{1}{2}\left\{\overline{m}\left(\overline{z}\right)+\overline{m}\left(\overline{y}\right)\right\}=\frac{1}{2}\sup_{m(z),\,m(y)\leq y'}\left\{\overline{z}\left(z\right)+\overline{y}\left(y\right)-m\left(z\right)-m\left(y\right)\right\}.$ On the other hand we have by the formulas §80(2) and §83(3)

 $\overline{x}(x) + \overline{y}(x) = (\overline{x} + \overline{y})(\frac{1}{2}(x + y)) + (\overline{x} - \overline{y})(\frac{1}{2}(x - y))$  $\leq 2 \, \overline{m} \, (\frac{1}{2} (\overline{z} + \overline{y})) + 2 \, m \, (\frac{1}{2} (x + y)) + \frac{1}{2} \, || \, \overline{z} - \overline{y} \, || \, || \, x - y \, ||$ 

Consequently we have · [ m(Z)+ m(g)]≤ m(=(Z+g))

+ sup (1 + mx - y mux-yn + m (1 (x+y)) - 1 (m(x)+m(y))). As R is uniformly simple by assumption, for any 2>0 we can find by §85 Theorem 2  $\varepsilon' > 0$  such that  $\mathbb{H} \times \mathbb{H} \ge 2 \varepsilon$  implies  $m(x) \ge \varepsilon'$ . such  $\mathcal{E}'$ , as  $\mathcal{R}$  is uniformly convex by assumption, we can find by definition  $\delta' > 0$  such that m(z),  $m(y) \le b'$ ,  $m(x-y) \ge \epsilon'$  implies  $\frac{1}{2}\left\{m(x)+m(y)\right\}\geq m\left(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)\right)+\delta'.$ 

Now, putting  $S = \frac{S'}{x_i}$  , we assume that

丽(豆),丽(豆)盖下, 川京一子川盖分。

If m(z),  $m(y) \le y'$  and  $||x-y|| \ge 4 \varepsilon$ , then we have by §83 Theorem 1 川工一岁川至 青月又一岁川至之を,

and hence  $m(x-y) \ge \varepsilon'$  by the definition of  $\varepsilon'$ . As we conclude by Theorems 1 in §83 and 4 in §81

HX-9月至 2月水-3月至 2 (用不用+用3用)至 华 下。 we obtain hence

1 11 2 - 7 11 12 - 31 + m (1 (x+x)) - 1 (m(x) + m(x))  $\leq \delta \delta' - \delta' = 0$ 

Theregore we have

(88)

and hence

 $\frac{1}{2}\left\{m\left(z\right)+m\left(\overline{g}\right)\right\}\leq \overline{m}\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(z+\overline{g}\right)\right)+\frac{1}{2}\left(z-\overline{g}\right)+\varepsilon.$ because  $m(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)) - \frac{1}{2}(m(x) + m(y)) \le 0$ . Accordingly  $\overline{R}$  is uniformly even by definition.

Theorem 5. If R is uniformly finite, uniformly increasing, and uniformly even, then the modular adjoint space R is uniformly convex.

As  $\hat{R}$  is uniformly increasing by assumption, for any  $\gamma > 0$ we can find by §86 Theorem 5 f'>1 such that  $\Re(Z) \leq \delta$ ,  $\Re(Z) \geq f'$ implies  $\overline{x}(x) - m(x) \le 0$ . Thus we have by \$30(1)

 $\overline{m}(\overline{z}) = \sup_{m(x) \le T} \{\overline{z}(x) - m(x)\} \text{ for } \overline{m}(\overline{z}) \le T.$ If  $\overline{m}(\overline{x})$ ,  $\overline{m}(\overline{y}) \leq \overline{y}$ , then we have by the modular condition 5) 元(童(元+夏)) = 童(知(元)+ 成(夏)) = 下,

 $\overline{m}\left(\frac{1}{2}(\overline{x}+\overline{y})\right) = \sup_{m(x) \leq x'} \left\{\frac{1}{2}(\overline{x}(x)+\overline{y}(x)) - m(x)\right\}.$ On the other hand we have by §80(2) for every x, 3 & A

$$\bar{x}(x) + \bar{y}(x) = \bar{x}(x+y) + \bar{y}(x-y) - (\bar{x}-\bar{y})(y)$$

≤ m(z)+m(g)+m(x+y)+m(x-y)-(x-g)(y).

Thus we obtain for every x & R

$$\frac{1}{2} \{ \vec{m}(\vec{x}) + \vec{m}(\vec{y}) \} \ge \vec{m} (\frac{1}{2} (\vec{x} + \vec{y})) + \frac{1}{2} (\vec{x} - \vec{y})(\vec{y}) \\ - \sup_{m(\vec{x}) \le \vec{y}} , \{ \frac{1}{2} (m(\vec{x} + \vec{y}) + m(\vec{x} - \vec{y})) - m(\vec{x}) \}.$$

For any positive number  $\mathcal{E} < 1$ , if  $\overline{m} (\overline{x} - \overline{y}) \ge \mathcal{E}$ , then we have by Theorems 4 in §81 and 1 in §83  $\# \overline{z} - \overline{y} \| \ge \# \overline{z} - \overline{y} \| \ge \varepsilon$ , and hence we can find by §83 Theorem 2  $y_o \in R$  such that

$$(\overline{z} - \overline{y})(y_0) > \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon$$
,  $y_0 = 1$ ,

and consequently  $m(y_s) = 1$  by §86 Theorem 2. As R is uniformly finite by assumption, putting

 $f''=\sup_{x\in X} m(2f'x)<+\infty$ we have that  $m(x) \le y'$  implies  $m(2x) \le y''$ . Because we have by the modular condition 5)  $m(\frac{1}{Y}, x) \le \frac{1}{Y} m(x) \le 1$ , m(2x) = m(2)(1/2x)).

For such 5", as R is uniformly even by assumption, we can find by definition a positive number S < 1 such that

 $\frac{1}{2} \{ m(x) + m(y) \} \le m(\frac{1}{2}(x+y)) + \frac{2}{15} ||x-y||$ for m(x),  $m(y) \leq x''$ ,  $mx-y = 2\delta$ . Then  $m(x) \leq x'$  implies  $m(x \pm \delta y_0) \le \frac{1}{2} \{m(2x) + m(2\delta y_0)\} \le \delta''$ 

because  $0 < S < 1 < \delta'$ ,  $m(g_0) = 1$ .

 $m(x + \delta y_0) - (x - \delta y_0) n = 2 \delta n y_0 n = 2 \delta$ 

we have therefore that  $m(x) \leq 3'$  implies

$$\frac{1}{2}\left\{m\left(x+\delta y_{0}\right)+m\left(x-\delta y_{0}\right)\right\}\leqq m\left(x\right)+\frac{\varepsilon\delta}{6}.$$

Consequently we obtain

234

 $\sup_{m(z) \leq \delta'} \frac{1}{2} (m(x + \delta y_0) + m(x - \delta y_0)) - m(x) \leq \frac{\varepsilon \delta}{\delta}.$ Furthermore, as  $\frac{1}{2} (\bar{x} - \bar{y})(\delta y_0) > \frac{\varepsilon \delta}{4}$ , we conclude hence  $\frac{1}{2} \{ m(\bar{z}) + m(\bar{z}) \} \ge m(\frac{1}{2}(\bar{z} + \bar{y})) + \frac{\epsilon d}{2} - \frac{\epsilon d}{2}$ = 爾(皇(至+夏)) + 皇皇.

Therefore R is uniformly convex by definition.

# §89 Lp(+) spaces

For two measurable functions x(t) and x(t) on the closed interval  $0 \le t \le 1$ , we shall write x = y, if  $\{ t : x(t) \ne y(t) \}$  is a point set Then we see easily that the . of measure zero in the sense of Lebesgue. totality of measurable functions constitutes a linear space in this sense, namely the quotient space of the linear space composed of all measurable functions by the linear space composed only of all measurable functions which vanish up to a set of measure zero.

Let p(t) be a measurable function subject to the condition:

We shall denote by Lp(t) the We admit for p(t) to assume + 00 . totality of measurable functions  $\mathscr{Z}(t)$  for which we can find  $\lambda>0$ such that

$$\int_0^1 \frac{1}{p(t)} \left| \lambda \chi(t) \right|^{p(t)} dt < +\infty.$$

Here we adopt the convention:  $\frac{1}{+\infty} x^{+\infty} = \lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{1}{n} x^{-n}$ , that is,

$$\frac{1}{1+\cos} \propto \frac{1}{1+\cos} \sim \frac{1}{1+\cos} \propto \frac{1}{1+\cos} \sim \frac{1}$$

Then, putting

§88. §89)

$$m(x) = \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{p(t)} |x(t)|^{p(t)} dt,$$

we see easily that  $\mathcal{L}_{p(4)}$  constitutes a modulared space.

L p(2) 1s modular complete.

If  $\lim_{M,\nu\to\infty} m\left(\xi(x_{p^{\prime}}-x_{\nu})\right)=0$  for every  $\xi>0$ , then we can find a subsequence  $\pi_{\nu_{jk}}$  ( $\mu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) from  $\pi_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1, 2, \ldots$ ) such that  $m(2^{\mu}(x_{\mu}, -x_{\nu})) \leq 1$ . Then we have by §78(2)

$$m\left(\sum_{n=1}^{\infty}|x_{\nu_{n+1}}-x_{\nu_{n}}|\right)\leq\sum_{n=1}^{\infty}\frac{1}{2^{n}}<1$$

for every  $\kappa = 1, 2, \ldots$  Accordingly we see that

is convergent up to a point set of measure zero.

$$x(t) = x_{\nu_1}(t) + \sum_{p=1}^{\infty} \{x_{\nu_{p+1}}(t) - x_{\nu_p}(t)\}$$

we see easily that  $m(x-x_{\nu_i}) \le i$ , and hence  $x \in \angle_{p(x)}$ . Furthermore we have by the formula §78(2)

 $m \left( 2^{g} \sum_{\mu=2g}^{n} (z_{\nu_{\mu+1}} - z_{\nu_{\mu}}) \right) \leq \sum_{\mu=2g}^{n} \frac{g^{g}}{g^{\mu}} \leq \frac{1}{2^{g+1}},$ and hence  $w(2^{f}(x-x_{\nu_{2f}})) \leq \frac{1}{2^{f-1}}$  for every  $f=1, 2, \ldots$ . we conclude m-lim  $x_{\nu_{\mu}}=x$ . From this relation we see easily that we have  $m-\lim_{n\to\infty} x_n = x$ .

Theorem 2. If  $\angle p(t)$  is finite, then p(t) is bounded up to a point set of measure zero.

Let  $\chi_x$  be the characteristic function of the point set Proof.  $\{t: \nu \leq p(t) < \nu + i\} \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, ...).$ 

If there is a sequence  $\nu_{\mu}$  ( $\mu=1, 2,...$ ) such that

$$\int_0^1 \chi_{\nu_{\mu\nu}}(t) dt \neq 0 \qquad \text{for every } \mu = 1, 2, \dots,$$

then we can find  $\alpha_{\mu} > 0$  ( $\mu = 1, 2, ...$ ) such that

$$\int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{P(t)} \, d\mu^{P(t)} \, \chi_{\nu\mu}(t) \, dt = 1 \qquad (\mu = 1, 2, ...),$$
and, putting  $\chi(t) = \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} d_{\mu} \chi_{\nu\mu}(t)$ , we see easily that  $m(x) = +\infty$ 
but  $m(\frac{1}{2}x) \leq \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2^{2}\mu} < +\infty$ . Thus we obtain our assertion.

Theorem 3. If p(t) is bounded, then  $\angle p(t)$  is uniformly finite and uniformly simple.

Proof. If  $p(t) \leq \delta$ , then  $m(\pi) \leq 1$  implies  $m(\xi \pi) \leq \xi^{\delta}$  for every  $\xi \geq 1$ . Thus  $L_{p(t)}$  is uniformly finite. Furthermore  $m(\chi) \geq 1$  implies  $m(\xi \pi) \geq \xi^{\delta}$  for  $0 < \xi \leq 1$ . Hence  $L_{p(t)}$  is uniformly simple by definition.

Theorem 4. If  $\angle p(*)$  is uniformly simple, then p(\*) is bounded up to a point set of measure zero.

Proof. If  $d = \inf_{m(x) \ge 1} m(\frac{1}{2}x) > 0$ , then for a positive number  $\beta$  such that  $\frac{1}{2^{\beta}} < \alpha$ , denoting by  $\chi$  the characteristic function of  $\{t: p(t) > \beta\}$  we have  $\int_0^1 \chi(t) dt = 0$ . Because, if we have  $\int_0^1 \chi(t) dt \neq 0$ , then we can find  $\frac{\pi}{2} > 0$  such that

$$\int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{p(t)} \, \xi^{p(t)} \, \chi(t) \, dt = 1,$$

and, putting  $\chi(t) = \frac{1}{2}\chi(t)$ , we have m(x) = 1 but  $m(\frac{1}{2}x) = \frac{1}{2^n} < \alpha$ .

Theorem 5.  $\angle p(t)$  is simple, if and only if p(t) is finite up to a point set of measure zero.

<u>Proof.</u> Denoting by  $\chi_{\infty}$  the characteristic function of the point set  $\{t: p(t) = +\infty\}$ , we have obviously by definition

$$\int_0^1 \frac{1}{p(t)} \left( \chi_{\infty}(t) \right)^{p(t)} dt = 0.$$

Thus, if  $L_{P(t)}$  is simple, then  $\chi_{\infty}(t)=0$  up to a point set of measure zero. Conversely, if  $1 \leq p(t) < t > \infty$ , then we see easily by definition that  $m(\pi) = 0$  implies  $\chi(t) = 0$  up to a point set of measure zero.

The totality of finite elements in  $L_{p(t)}$  is called the <u>finite</u> subspace of  $L_{p(t)}$  and denoted by  $L_{p(t)}^{f}$ . We see easily that the finite subspace  $L_{p(t)}^{f}$  is a linear manifold of  $L_{p(t)}$ . As  $L_{p(t)}$  is modular complete by Theorem 1, we obtain by §86 Theorem 1

Theorem 6. The finite subspace  $L_{p(t)}^f$  of  $L_{p(t)}$  is finite and modular complete.

Theorem 7. For a sequence  $x_{\nu} \in L_{p(+)}^{f}$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ , if  $\lim_{t \to \infty} x_{\nu}(t) = 0 \qquad (0 \le t \le 1)$ 

and there is  $x_0 \in L^{\frac{1}{p}}(t)$  such that  $|x_0(t)| \le x_0(t)$  ( $0 \le t \le 1$ ), then we have  $\lim_{t \to \infty} ||x_0|| = 0$ .

Proof. In account of Lebesgue's theorem, we conclude from our

assumption that  $\lim_{n\to\infty} m(x_n) = 0$  for every x>0, and hence by §81 Theorem 5  $\lim_{n\to\infty} \|x_n\| = 0$ .

MODULARED SPACES

Corresponding to p(t), we define f(t) ( $0 \le t \le 1$ ) as  $\frac{1}{p(t)} + \frac{1}{g(t)} = 1 \qquad (0 \le t \le 1).$ 

Denoting by  $\mathcal{B}^+$  the totality of bounded positive measurable functions on the closed interval:  $0 \le t \le 1$ , we have then for every positive measurable function  $\mathcal{Y}(t)$ 

(\*)  $\int_{0}^{t} \frac{1}{t(t)} y(t)^{\frac{p(t)}{2}} dt = \sup_{z \in B^{+}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{t} z(t) y(t) dt - \int_{0}^{t} \frac{1}{p(t)} z(t)^{\frac{p(t)}{2}} dt \right\}.$ Because, we have by Young's inequality

 $\int_{0}^{t} \pi(t) y(t) dt \leq \int_{0}^{t} \frac{1}{p(t)} \pi(t)^{p(t)} dt + \int_{0}^{t} \frac{1}{q(t)} y(t)^{q(t)} dt.$ On the other hand, denoting by  $\chi_{\infty}$  the characteristic function of the point set  $\{t: y(t) = +\infty\}$ , if

$$\int_0^1 \frac{1}{\ell(t)} \, \gamma(t)^{\ell(t)} \, \chi_{\infty}(t) \, dt = 0,$$

then we can find a sequence  $\gamma_{\nu} \in \mathcal{B}^* (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$  such that

$$\lim_{\nu \to \infty} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{q(t)} y_{\nu}(t)^{\frac{q(t)}{q(t)}} dt = \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{q(t)} y_{\nu}(t)^{\frac{q(t)}{q(t)}} dt,$$
ting

 $x_{i} = y_{i}(t)^{\frac{\gamma(t)}{p(t)}} (1 - \chi_{\infty}(t)),$ 

we have

(88)

$$\int_{0}^{1} x_{\nu}(t) y_{\nu}(t) dt - \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{p(t)} x_{\nu}(t)^{p(t)} dt = \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{q(t)} y_{\nu}(t)^{q(t)} dt.$$

I

$$\int_0^1 \frac{1}{2/t} y(t)^{2(t)} \chi_{\infty}(t) dt = +\infty,$$

then, we have

$$\lim_{\xi \to \infty} \{ \int_0^1 \xi \chi_{\infty}(t) y(t) dt - \int_0^1 \frac{1}{P(t)} (\xi \chi_{\infty}(t))^{P(t)} dt \}$$

$$= \lim_{\xi \to \infty} \xi \{ \int_0^1 \chi_{\infty}(t) y(t) dt - \int_0^1 \chi_{\infty}(t) dt \} = +\infty,$$
and  $\xi \chi_{\infty} \in \mathcal{B}^+$  for every  $\xi > 0$ .

Making use of the notation

 $m(x) = \int_0^1 \frac{1}{p(t)} |x(t)|^{p(t)} dt, \quad \overline{m}(x) = \int_0^1 \frac{1}{\ell(t)} |x(t)|^{\ell(t)} dt,$  we see easily by Young's inequality that if  $x \in L_{p(t)}$  and  $\overline{x} \in L_{\ell(t)}$ , then  $\overline{x}(t) |x(t)|$  is integrable and

$$\left|\int_{0}^{1}\overline{\chi}(t)\,\chi(t)\,dt\right|\leq m\left(\chi\right)+\overline{m}\left(\overline{\chi}\right).$$

Thus, putting

$$\overline{\chi}(x) = \int_0^1 \overline{\chi}(t) \, \chi(t) \, dt$$

we see that  $\angle_{q(t)}$  is contained in the modular adjoint space of  $\angle_{p(t)}$  as a subspace.

Now we shall consider the case where  $\angle p_{(t)}$  is simple, that is,  $1 \le p(t) < +\infty$  ( $0 \le t \le 1$ ). Denoting by  $X_{\nu}$  the characteristic function of  $\{t: p(t) \le \nu\}$ , we see easily that  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} X_{\nu}(t) = 1$  ( $0 \le t \le 1$ ), and that  $X \in \angle p_{(t)}$  implies  $X_{\nu} \in \angle p_{(t)}$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, \ldots$ . For each modular bounded linear functional Y on  $\angle p_{(t)}$ , as Y is bounded by the modular norm, we see easily by Theorem 7 that for any bounded sequence of measurable functions  $Z_{\mu}(t)$  ( $\mu = 1, 2, \ldots$ ),  $\lim_{\mu \to \infty} X_{\mu}(t) = 0$  ( $0 \le t \le 1$ ) implies

 $\lim_{\mu\to\infty} \varphi\left(\pi_{\mu}\chi_{\nu}\right) = 0 \qquad \text{for every } \nu=1,\ 2,\dots,$  because  $\pi_{\mu}\in L_{p(t)}$  for every  $\mu=1,\ 2,\dots$ . Therefore we obtain by Radon-Nikodym's theorem a measurable function  $\mathbb{X}\left(t\right)$  such that for any characteristic function of measurable set  $\chi$  we have

 $\mathcal{G}(\chi\chi_{\nu}) = \int_{0}^{1} \chi(t) \chi(t) \chi_{\nu}(t) dt \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, ...)$ 

From this relation we conclude easily by Theorem 7 that

 $\varphi(z) = \int_{z}^{t} \bar{x}(t) \pi(t) dt$  for every  $x \in L_{p(t)}$ .

Furthermore we obtain by (\*)

238

$$\widetilde{m}(\varphi) = \int_0^t \frac{1}{2(t)} \left[ \widetilde{z}(t) \right]^{\xi(t)} dt.$$

Therefore we have

Theorem 8. If  $L_{p(t)}$  is simple, then the modular adjoint space of the finite subspace  $L_{p(t)}^{t}$  coincides with  $L_{p(t)}$  for  $\frac{1}{p(t)} + \frac{1}{q(t)} = 1$ . Recalling Theorems 2 and 3, we obtain therefore

Theorem 9. The modular adjoint space of  $\angle p(t)$  coincides with  $\angle p(t)$  if and only if  $\sup_t p(t) < +\infty$  up to a point set of measure zero. Since we have  $\sup_t p(t) < +\infty$  if and only if  $\inf_t p(t) > 1$ , we conclude easily from Theorem 9

### up to a point set of measure zero.

Recalling Theorems 3 in §85 and 7 in §86, we obtain by Theorem 3 Theorem 11. If inf p(t) > 1, then  $\angle_{p(t)}$  is uniformly mono-

tons and uniformly increasing.

Theorem 12. If  $1 < \inf_{t} p(t) \leq \sup_{t} p(t) < \infty$ , then  $\angle p(t) = \sup_{t} p(t) < \infty$  is uniformly convex and uniformly even at the same time; and both the modular norm and the associated norm of  $\angle p(t)$  are uniformly convex and uniformly even at the same time.

MODULARED SPACES

Proof. Let  $\chi_s$  be the characteristic function of  $\{t:p(t)\geq 2\}$  and  $\chi$ , that of  $\{t:p(t)<2\}$ . Then we see by definition that we have for every  $\chi\in L_{P(t)}$ 

$$m(x\chi_s) + m(x\chi_s) = m(x)$$

For two positive numbers  $\mathcal{F}$  ,  $\mathcal{E}$  , we assume

$$m(a)$$
,  $m(4) \leq 7$ ,  $m(a-4) \geq \epsilon$ .

Then we have  $m((a-4)Y_0) \ge \frac{1}{2} E$  or  $m((a-3)X_1) \ge \frac{1}{2} E$ .

If  $m((a-\ell)X_a) \ge \frac{1}{2} \ell$ , then by virtue of the inequality

$$\frac{|5|^{p}+|7|^{p}}{2} \ge \left|\frac{5+7}{2}\right|^{p} + \left|\frac{5-7}{2}\right|^{p} \qquad \text{for } p \ge 2.$$

we obtain

(26)

$$\frac{1}{2}\left\{m\left(a\chi_{o}\right)+m\left(\xi\chi_{o}\right)\right\}\geq m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(a+\delta\right)\chi_{o}\right)+m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(a-\delta\right)\chi_{o}\right).$$

On the other hand, putting  $p_s = \sup p(t) \ll t \infty$ , we have

$$m(\frac{1}{2}(a-f)\chi_0) \ge \frac{1}{2P_0}m((a-f)\chi_0) \ge \frac{1}{2P_0+1} \xi$$

Furthermore we have by the modular condition 5)

$$\frac{1}{2}\left\{m\left(\alpha\chi_{i}\right)+m\left(\delta\chi_{i}\right)\right\}\geq m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(\alpha+\delta\right)\chi_{i}\right).$$

Therefore we obtain  $\frac{1}{2} \{ m(a) + m(f) \} \ge m(\frac{1}{2}(a+f)) + \frac{1}{2f^{+1}} \mathcal{E}$ .

Secondly we consider the other case:  $m\left((a-\ell)\chi_1\right) \geq \frac{1}{2}\ell$ , If we put  $\ell' = \min\left\{\frac{\ell}{2\ell}, \frac{1}{2}\right\}$  and denote by  $\chi_2$  the characteristic function of  $\{\pm: |\alpha(t)-\ell(t)| \geq \ell'(|\alpha(t)|+|\ell(t)|), |\beta(t)| \leq 2j$ , then we have

$$m((a-l)(\chi_1-\chi_2)) \leq m(\epsilon'(|a|+|b|))$$

$$\leq \frac{1}{2} \left\{ m(2\epsilon'a) + m(2\epsilon'4) \right\} \leq 2\epsilon' \tilde{r} \leq \frac{\epsilon}{4}$$

and hence  $m((\alpha-\xi)\chi_2) \ge \frac{\varepsilon}{2} - \frac{\varepsilon}{4} = \frac{\varepsilon}{4}$ . By virtue of the inequality  $\frac{|\xi|^p + |\eta|^p}{2} \ge \left|\frac{\varepsilon + \eta}{2}\right|^p + \frac{p(p-1)}{2}\left|\frac{\xi - \eta}{|\xi| + |\eta|}\right|^{2-p}\left|\frac{\xi - \eta}{2}\right|^p$ 

for  $1 \le p \le l$ , putting  $1 + 6 = \inf p(t)$ , we obtain

 $\frac{1}{2}\left\{m\left(a X_2\right)+m\left(\ell X_2\right)\right\} \ge m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(a+\ell\right)X_2\right)+\frac{6}{2}\left(m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(a-\ell\right)X_2\right)\right).$  On the other hand, we have

$$m(\frac{1}{2}(a-b)\chi_2) \ge \frac{1}{4}m((a-b)\chi_2) \ge \frac{\varepsilon}{16}$$

and by the modular condition 5)

 $\frac{1}{2} \{ m(a(1-\chi_2)) + m(b(1-\chi_2)) \} \ge m(\frac{1}{2}(a+b)(1-\chi_2)).$ Therefore we obtain

LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES

$$\frac{1}{2}\left\{m(a)+m(b)\right\}\geq m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(a+b\right)\right)+\frac{G\varepsilon'\varepsilon}{32}.$$

Consequently we have

$$\frac{1}{2}\left\{m(a)+m(\ell)\right\} \geq m\left(\frac{1}{2}\left(a+\ell\right)\right) + \min\left\{\frac{\ell}{2^{p_0+1}}, \frac{6\ell'\ell}{32}\right\}.$$

Thus  $\angle_{p(t)}$  is uniformly convex. Accordingly we conclude by §88 Theorem 4 that  $\angle_{p(t)}$  is uniformly even. Furthermore, recalling §87 Theorem 3 and §88 Theorem 4, we see easily that the modular norm of  $\mathcal{L}_{P(\pm)}$ is uniformly convex and uniformly even at the same time; and hence further by Theorems 3 and 4 in §77 that the associated norm of  $\angle_{p(\psi)}$  also is so.

Finally we consider the special case where p(t) is a constant. In this case, putting P = P(t) (  $0 \le t \le i$  ), we see easily that the modular m(x), the modular norm  $H \times H$ , and the associated norm  $H \times H$  are given as follows:

$$m(x) = \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{p} |x(t)|^{p} dt,$$

$$mxm = \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{p} |x(t)|^{p} dt \right\}^{\frac{1}{p}}$$
for  $p < +\infty$ ,

$$\|x\| = \lim_{\lambda \to +\infty} \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |x(t)|^{\lambda} dt \right\}^{\frac{1}{\lambda}} \qquad \text{for } p = +\infty,$$

$$\|x\| = p^{\frac{1}{p}} q^{\frac{1}{p}} \|x\| \qquad \text{for } 1 
$$\|x\| = \|x\| \qquad \qquad \text{for } p = 1 \text{ or } +\infty.$$$$

# Lp-0 , Lp+0 spaces

For measurable functions  $\mathcal{X}(t)$  on the closed interval  $0 \leq t \leq 1$ , we shall make use of the notations:

$$\|x\|_{p} = \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |x(t)|^{p} dt \right\}^{\frac{1}{p}} \quad \text{for } 1 \leq p < +\infty,$$

$$\|x\|_{\infty} = \lim_{P \to +\infty} \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |x(t)|^{p} dt \right\}^{\frac{1}{p}}$$

On account of Hölder's inequality, we have then

 $\int_{0}^{1} |x(t)y(t)| dt \leq \|x\|_{p} \|y\|_{q} \quad \text{for } \frac{1}{p} + \frac{1}{q} = 1.$ Furthermore, denoting by B the totality of bounded measurable functions, we can prove easily for every measurable function y(t)

§89. §90)

" y " = sup | ( | x (+) y (+) | dt. By virtue of the inequality 11年 を1を197 至 11年 を1まります for \$ > 6 > 0. we obtain easily

We see easily that  $\|x\|_p$  is a norm on  $L_p$  and it is evident by definition that  $\|\mathbf{x}\|_{p}$  is equivalent to the modular norm of  $\mathcal{L}_{p}$ . Thus, denoting by  $\mathscr{Q}^{\,p}$  the modular topology of  $\mathcal{L}_{\,p}$  , we see that  $\mathscr{Q}^{\,p}$  is the induced linear topology of L, by the norm ||x||,

We have obviously by definition

(4) 
$$L_{\beta} \subset L_{\delta}$$
 for  $\beta > \delta \ge 1$ .  
For any  $\beta > 1$ , putting

we obtain a linear space  $L_{p-q}$ . Furthermore we define a linear topology V P-0 on Lp-0 as

considering every  $\Psi^{\frac{3}{2}}$  as the relative linear topology of  $\Psi^{\frac{3}{2}}$  in  $\mathcal{L}_{beau}$ Then  $\sqrt[p]{p-0}$  is sequential, because we can find a sequence  $p_1 < p_2 < \dots$ such that  $\lim_{n \to \infty} p_{\nu} = p$  , and we have by (3)

But  $\sqrt[p]{p-\theta}$  is not of single vicinity. Because, putting

$$(5) \quad \nabla_p = \{x : \|x\|_p \le 1\}.$$

we have by the relation (3) that  $U_{p_1} \supset U_{p_2} \supset \dots$  and  $U_{p_r} \downarrow_{p_{r-2}} (\nu = 1, 2, 2)$ ...) constitutes a basis of  $V^{p-s}$ . Thus, if  $V^{p-s}$  is of single viclinity, then we can find  $V_0$  such that  $U_{p_{\nu_0}} L_{p-o}$  is a basis of  $V^{p-o}$ , and hence the norm  $\|x\|_{p_{\nu}}$  must be equivalent to the norm  $\|x\|_{p_{\nu}}$  for every  $\nu \geq \nu$ , in  $\angle_{p-o}$ . However we have obviously B < L for every  $p \ge 1$ , and  $||x||_p$  is not equivalent to  $||x||_q$  in B for  $p \ne 6$ . In fact, if f > 5, then for every positive number  $\xi < 1$ , denoting by  $\chi_{\rm E}$  the characteristic function of the interval  $o < t < \epsilon$  , we see easily that  $\|\frac{1}{2k}\chi_{\varepsilon}\|_{p} = 1$  but  $\|\frac{1}{2k}\chi_{\varepsilon}\|_{p} = \varepsilon^{\frac{1}{p}}$ .

(Chapter XI

As every  $V^p$  is convex,  $V^{p-s}$  also is convex by §65 Theorem 3. As every  $V^p$  is separative,  $V^{p-s}$  also is so obviously by definition. Therefore  $V^{p-s}$  is reflexive by Theorems 1 in §58 and 4 in §68.

For 1≤ p <+∞, putting

we see easily by (4) that  $\angle_{p\to 0}$  is a linear space.

$$\frac{1}{p} + \frac{1}{2} = 1, \quad p > 1, \quad q < +\infty,$$

then for any  $\overline{x}\in L_{\frac{p}{2}+\delta}$ , we can find  $\gamma>\ell$  such that  $\overline{x}\in L_{\gamma}$ , and, putting  $\frac{1}{x}+\frac{1}{\gamma}=1$ , we have  $\xi< p$  and  $\overline{x}$  is a continuous linear functional on  $L_{\xi}$  by the relation

$$\tilde{Z}(z) = \int_{0}^{1} \tilde{Z}(t) X(t) dt$$
 for  $z \in L_{\tilde{z}}$ .

Consequently every  $\tilde{x} \in L_{q+\theta}$  may be considered as a continuous linear functional on  $L_{p+\theta}$  by  $\Psi^{p+\theta}$ . Furthermore, as  $L_{p+\theta}$  is standard, for each bounded linear functional  $\Psi$  on  $L_{p+\theta}$  we can find by §64 Theorem 2  $\tilde{x} \neq p$  such that  $\Psi$  is continuous by  $\Psi^{q}$  in  $L_{p+\theta}$ . As  $L_{p+\theta}$  is dense in  $L_{\tilde{x}}$  by  $\Psi^{q}$ , there exists uniquely  $\tilde{x} \in L_{q}$  such that

$$\tilde{\chi}(x) = \varphi(x)$$
 for every  $x \in L_{p-a}$ .

Therefore  $L_{q+\theta}$  coincides with the adjoint space of  $L_{p-\theta}$  by  $\mathcal{Q}^{p-\theta}$ .

Thus we can introduce the adjoint topology of  $\mathcal{Q}^{p-\theta}$  into  $L_{q+\theta}$ , which will be denoted by  $\mathcal{Q}^{q+\theta}$ .

If a linear functional  $\varphi$  on  $\mathcal{L}_{q+o}$  is bounded by  $V^{q+o}$ , then for any  $\xi < p$ , putting  $\frac{1}{\xi} + \frac{i}{\eta} = i$ , as  $V_{q}$  is by §64 Theorem 6 a bounded manifold of  $\mathcal{L}_{q+o}$  by  $V^{q+o}$ , there exists uniquely  $x_{\xi} \in \mathcal{L}_{\xi}$  such that

$$\varphi(\bar{x}) = \bar{x}(x_{\bar{x}})$$
 for every  $\bar{x} \in L_{\gamma}$ .

because  $L_{\frac{\pi}{2}}$  coincides by §89 Theorem 9 with the adjoint space of  $L_{\frac{\pi}{2}}$ . Furthermore, for any other  $\frac{\pi}{2} < p$ , such  $x_{\frac{\pi}{2}}$ , coincides with  $x_{\frac{\pi}{2}}$ . Because, if  $\frac{\pi}{2} < \frac{\pi}{2}$ , then, putting  $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2} = 1$ , we have  $\frac{\pi}{2} < \frac{\pi}{2}$ , and hence we have by the relation (4)

$$\overline{z}(z_x) = \overline{z}(z_y)$$
 for every  $\overline{z} \in L_y$ .

As  $B \subset L_{\eta} \subset L_{\eta}$ , and B is dense in  $L_{\eta}$ , by  $\psi^{\eta'}$ , we conclude hence

$$\overline{x}(x_{\xi}) = \overline{x}(x_{\xi'})$$
 for every  $\overline{x} \in L_{\eta'}$ .

Consequently we obtain  $x_{ij} \in L_{ij}$ , and  $x_{ij} = x_{ij}$ . Therefore we conclude

that Ky & Lp-s and

\$90)

 $\mathcal{G}(\mathcal{R}) = \mathcal{R}(\times_{\xi})$  for every  $\mathcal{R} \in \mathcal{L}_{q+0}$ .

Thus  $A_{p-\theta}$  is regular.

Now we can state:  $\angle_{p-\theta}$  is sequential and regular, but not of single vicinity.  $\angle_{q+\theta}$  is the adjoint space of  $\angle_{p-\theta}$  for  $\frac{1}{p}+\frac{1}{q}=1$ , p>1,  $q<+\infty$ .

Accordingly,  $\mathcal{L}_{q,r_0}$  also is regular and has a sequential root by §69 Theorem 2. By virtue of Theorems 1 in §67 and 1 §59, we see that  $\mathcal{L}_{p-0}$  is complete. We have obviously by definition that  $\mathcal{L}_{p-0} > \mathcal{L}_p$  but  $\mathcal{L}_{p-0}$ , does not coincides with  $\mathcal{L}_p$ . Because, as  $\mathcal{Q}^{p-0} \subset \mathcal{Q}^p$  in  $\mathcal{L}_p$  by definition, if  $\mathcal{L}_{p-0}$  coincides with  $\mathcal{L}_p$ , then we obtain by §59 Theorem 4 that  $\mathcal{Q}^{p-0} = \mathcal{Q}^p$ , contradicting that  $\mathcal{Q}^{p-0}$  is not of single vicinity. Therefore we see further that  $\mathcal{L}_{q+0} \subset \mathcal{L}_p$  but  $\mathcal{L}_{q+0}$  does not coincides with  $\mathcal{L}_q$ .

#### CHAPTER XII

### COMBINATION OF LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES

### §91 Product spaces

Let R and S be two linear topological spaces with linear topologies  $\mathcal W$  and  $\mathcal G$  respectively. For a basis  $\mathcal R$  of  $\mathcal W$  and a basis  $\mathcal G$  of  $\mathcal G$ , we obtain by \$56 Theorem 7 a basis  $(\mathcal V,\mathcal V)$  ( $\mathcal V\in\mathcal M$ ,  $\mathcal V\in\mathcal G$ ) of the product  $(\mathcal W,\mathcal V)$  which is the linear topology of the product space (R,S). In this  $\S$  we shall consider the adjoint space of the product space (R,S).

Theorem 1. For a bounded manifold A of (R, S) we can find a bounded manifold B of R and a bounded manifold C of S such that  $A \subset (B, C)$ .

<u>Proof.</u> Putting  $B = \{x : (x,y) \in A\}$ ,  $C = \{y : (x,y) \in A\}$ , we have obviously  $A \subset (B,C)$ . For any  $V \in W$  and  $V \in V$ , as A is bounded by assumption, we can find A > 0 such that  $A \subset (A \cup V, A \cup V)$ , and hence we have  $B \subset A \cup V$ ,  $C \subseteq A \cup V$ . Therefore B and C are bounded by definition.

Let  $\overline{R}$  be the adjoint space of R and  $\overline{S}$  that of S . For any  $\overline{z} \in \overline{R}$  and  $\overline{y} \in \overline{S}$  , putting

 $(\vec{x},\vec{y})(x,y)=\vec{x}(z)+\vec{y}(y) \quad (x\in R,y\in S)$  we obtain obviously a linear functional  $(\vec{z},\vec{y})$  on the product space (R,S). Furthermore  $(\vec{x},\vec{y})$  is bounded. Because, for any bounded manifold A of (R,S), we can find by Theorem 1 a bounded manifold B of R and C of S such that  $A\subset (B,C)$ . For such B, C, we have by definition  $\sup_{x\in R}|\vec{x}(x)|<+\infty$ ,  $\sup_{x\in R}|\vec{y}(y)|<+\infty$ , and hence

 $\sup_{(x,y)\in A}|(\bar{x},\bar{y})(x,y)|\leq \sup_{x\in B,y\in C}|\bar{x}(x)+\bar{y}(y)|<+\infty.$  Conversely, for any bounded linear functional  $\varphi$  on (R,S), putting

 $\bar{\chi}(\pi) = \varphi(\pi, 0), \quad \bar{\chi}(y) = \varphi(0, y) \quad (x \in R, y \in S),$  we obtain a linear functional  $\bar{\chi}$  on R and  $\bar{y}$  on S. For any bounded manifold B of R, as  $(B, \{0\})$  is a bounded manifold of (R, S), we have

 $\sup_{x\in B} |\widehat{x}(x)| = \sup_{(x,y)\in (B,\{0\})} |\varphi(x,y)| < +\infty,$  and hence  $\widehat{x}$  is bounded, that is, we have  $\widehat{x}\in \widehat{R}$ . We also can prove

likewise that \$ 6 \$ . Furthermore we have

$$(\bar{x}, \bar{y})(x, y) = \varphi(x, 0) + \varphi(0, y) = \varphi(x, y).$$

Therefore the product space  $(\vec{R}, \vec{S})$  may be considered as the adjoint space of (R, S) merely as a linear space.

Now we shall prove that the linear topology of (R, S) coincides with the adjoint topology of the product (W, V). Let  $\overline{W}$  be the adjoint topology of W and  $\overline{V}$  that of V. For any bounded manifold A of (R, S) we can find by Theorem 1 a bounded manifold B of R and C of S such that  $A \subset (B, C)$ . For such (B, C), putting

 $\overline{\nabla} = \{\overline{x} : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \quad \text{for every } x \in B\},$ 

 $\vec{\nabla} = \{\vec{y} : |\vec{y}(y)| \le 1 \text{ for every } y \in \mathcal{C}\},$ 

we have by definition  $(\vec{\nabla}, \vec{\nabla}) \in (\vec{W}, \vec{\nabla})$ , and

$$\{(\overline{x},\overline{y}): |(\overline{x},\overline{y})(x,y)| \leq 1 \quad \text{for every } (x,y) \in A\}$$

$$> |(\overline{x},\overline{y}): |\overline{x}(x)| + \overline{y}(y)| \leq 1 \quad \text{for every } x \in B, y \in C\}$$

$$> \{(\overline{x},\overline{y}): |\overline{x}(x)| \leq \frac{1}{2}, |\overline{y}(y)| \leq \frac{1}{2} \quad \text{for } x \in B, y \in C\}$$

$$= (\frac{1}{2}\overline{v}, \frac{1}{2}\overline{v}).$$

Thus the adjoint topology of  $(W, \psi)$  is weaker than  $(\overline{w}, \overline{\psi})$ . On the other hand, for any  $\overline{v} \in \overline{W}$  and  $\overline{v} \in \overline{W}$ , we can find a bounded manifold B of R and C of S such that

 $\overline{U} \supset \{\overline{x}: |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \quad \text{for every } x \in B\},$ 

 $\nabla \supset \{\bar{y}: |\bar{y}(y)| \leq 1$  for every  $y \in \mathcal{C}\}$ .

Here we can assume obviously that  $\mathcal B$  and  $\mathcal C$  are symmetric, that is, we have  $\mathcal B=(-1)\mathcal B$ ,  $\mathcal C=(-1)\mathcal C$ . Then  $(\mathcal B,\mathcal C)$  is obviously a bounded manifold of  $(\mathcal R,\mathcal S)$  and we have

$$\{(\overline{x}, \overline{y}): |\overline{x}(x) + \overline{y}(y)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in \mathbb{S}, y \in C\}$$

$$< \{(\overline{x}, \overline{y}): |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1, |\overline{y}(y)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in \mathbb{S}, y \in C\}$$

$$= (\overline{v}, \overline{v}).$$

Thus the adjoint topology of (  $\mathscr{U},\mathscr{V}$  ) is stronger than (  $\widetilde{\mathscr{U}}$  ,  $\widetilde{\mathscr{V}}$  ). Consequently we obtain

Theorem 2. The product space  $(\overline{R}, \overline{S})$  coincides with the adjoint space of the product space (R, S) by the relation:

$$(\overline{x}, \overline{y})(x, y) = \overline{x}(x) + \overline{y}(y)$$
  $(\overline{x} \in \overline{R}, \overline{y} \in \overline{S}, x \in R, y \in S),$ 

247

for the adjoint space R of R and that 3 of S.

If both & and S are standard, then the product space Theorem 3. (R,S) also is standard.

For any bounded manifold  $\widetilde{A}$  of  $(\widetilde{R},\widetilde{S})$  we can find by Theorem 1 a bounded manifold  $\overline{\mathcal{B}}$  of  $\overline{\mathcal{R}}$  and  $\overline{\mathcal{C}}$  of  $\overline{\mathcal{S}}$  such that  $\overline{\mathcal{A}}\subset(\overline{\mathcal{B}},\overline{\mathcal{C}})$ . For such  $\overline{\mathcal{B}}$ ,  $\overline{\mathcal{C}}$ , as both  $\mathcal{R}$  and  $\mathcal{S}$  are standard, putting

 $\nabla = \{z : | \overline{z}(z) | \leq 1 \text{ for every } \overline{z} \in \overline{S} \},$ 

 $\nabla = \{\chi : |\overline{\chi}(\chi)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{\chi} \in \overline{\mathcal{C}}\}.$ 

we have by  $\S64$  Theorem 8 that  $v \in \mathcal{U}$ ,  $v \in \mathscr{C}$ . and

Thus A is uniformly bounded by definition, and hance (R, S) is standard by §64 Theorem 10, because (R, S) is obviously convex by §56 Theorem 7.

If both R and S are separated, then (R, S) is obviously sepa-Therefore we obtain by Theorem 3 and \$68 Theorated by definition. rem 4

If both R and S are reflexive, then the product Theorem 4. space (R S) also is reflexive.

By virtue of Theorem 2, we conclude immediately

If both R and S are regular, then the product space (R, S) also is regular.

## \$92 Product norms

A norm #(x, y)# on the prc-Let R and S be two normed spaces. duct space (R, S) is said to be a product norm, if

 $\|(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{o})\| = \|\mathbf{z}\|$ 

for every zek,

11 (0, 2) 11 = 11 4 11

for every x e S,

for every x & R. J & S.  $\|(x,y)\| = \|(x,-y)\|$ 

Putting

(zek, yes),  $\|(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{y})\|_{\mathsf{M}} = \|\mathbf{z}\| + \|\mathbf{y}\|$ (1) This product norm is we obtain obviously a product norm \$(z, ;) || M.

called the maximum norm. And, putting

(92)

- (2) we obtain a product norm  $\|(x, y)\|_{\infty}$ . This norm is called the minimum For these two norms we have obviously for every  $z \in R$ ,  $z \in S$ norm.
  - 11(x, y) 11 m & 11(x, y) 11 m & 2 11(x, y) 11 m.

For every product norm  $\|(x, y)\|$  we conclude obviously by definition  $\|(x, y)\| = \|(x, o) + (o, y)\| \le \|x\| + \|y\|$ 

$$\|(x,y)\| = \|(x,-y)\| = \frac{1}{2} \{\|(x,y)\| + \|(x,-y)\|\}$$

$$\geq \frac{1}{2} \|(2x,0)\| = \|x\|,$$

and similarly  $\|(x, y)\| \ge \|y\|$ . Thus we have for every zeR. yeS

 $\mathbb{N}(x, y)\mathbb{I}_m \leq \mathbb{N}(x, y)\mathbb{I} \leq \mathbb{N}(x, y)\mathbb{I}_M$ 

Recalling §71 Theorem 7, we see by the relations (3) and (4) that the norm topology of the product space (R.S) is the same for every product norm. Furthermore we have

Theorem 1. The norm topology of (R.S) by a product norm coincides with the product of the norm topologies of R and S.

For the unit sphere  $\nabla$  of R and  $\nabla$  of S,  $(\nabla, \nabla)$  is by  $\S 56$  Theorem 7 a basis of the product of the norm topologies of  $\mathcal R$  and S , and we have obviously

$$(T, T) = \{(x, y) : ||(x, y)||_{\infty} \le i\}$$

Thus the product of the norm topologies is the norm topology of (R, S)by the minimum norm. Consequently we obtain our assertion by the relations (3) and (4).

Let  $\overline{R}$  be the adjoint space of R and  $\overline{S}$  that of S. product space  $(\widehat{R},\widehat{S})$  is by §91 Theorem 2 the adjoint space of the produst space (R, S).

For a product norm of (R, S), its adjoint norm is Theorem 2. a product norm of (R. S).

For a product norm  $\|(x, y)\|$  of (R, S) we have

 $\|(\widetilde{x}, \theta)\| = \sup_{\|(x, \delta)\| \le 1} |\widetilde{x}(x)| \le \sup_{\|x\| \le 1} |\widetilde{x}(x)| = \|\widetilde{y}\|_{\delta}$ because  $||x|| \le ||(x, y)||$  by the relation (4). On the other hand, as  $||x|| \le 1$  implies  $||(x, o)|| \le 1$ , we have

 $\|\bar{x}\| = \sup_{\substack{x \in \mathbb{Z}_1 \\ x \in \mathbb{Z}_1}} |\bar{x}(x)| \le \sup_{\substack{x \in \mathbb{Z}_1 \\ x \in \mathbb{Z}_1}} |\bar{x}(x)| = \|(\bar{x}, \sigma)\|.$ 

Thus we have  $\|\bar{x}\| = \|(\bar{x}, o)\|$ . We can prove likewise  $\|\bar{y}\| = \|(o, \bar{y})\|$ for every \$ 6 \$. Furthermore we have for every \$ 6 \$, \$ 6 \$

LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES

 $\sup_{\|(z,y)\| \le \|(z,-y)\|} \|(z,y)\| = \|(z,-y)\|.$ 

Therefore  $\|(\bar{x}, \bar{y})\|$  is a product norm on  $(\bar{R}, \bar{S})$  by definition.

For the maximum norm of the product space (R, S), Theorem 3. its adjoint norm is the minimum norm of  $(\vec{R}, \vec{S})$ . For the minimum norm of (R.S), its adjoint norm is the maximum norm of (R.S).

For the adjoint norm  $\|(\vec{x}, \vec{y})\|$  of the minimum norm, we Proof. have by definition

 $\|(\overline{x},\overline{y})\| = \sup_{\|x\| \le 1, \|x\| \le 1} \{\overline{x}(x) + \overline{y}(y)\} = \|\overline{x}\| + \|\overline{y}\|.$ For the adjoint norm (( 2, 3) ) of the maximum norm, we have further by definition

$$\begin{split} \|(\overline{x}, \overline{y})\| &= \sup_{\|x\| + \|y\| \le 1} \{\overline{x}(x) + \overline{y}(y)\} \\ &= \sup_{0 \le \frac{x}{2} \le 1} \{\sup_{\|x\| \le \frac{x}{2}, \|y\| \le 1 - \frac{x}{2}} \{\overline{x}(x) + \overline{y}(y)\}\} \\ &= \sup_{0 \le \frac{x}{2} \le 1} \{\overline{y}\| \overline{x}\| + (1 - \frac{x}{2})\| \overline{y}\| \} = \max_{0 \le \frac{x}{2} \le 1} \{\overline{y}\| \overline{x}\|, \|\overline{y}\| \}. \end{split}$$

## \$93 Product of modulared spaces

Let R and S be two modulared spaces. For the product space (R,S), putting

m(x, y) = m(x) + m(y) for  $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ ,

we see easily that m(x, y) is a modular on (R, S). This modulared space (R, S) is called the product space of two modulared spaces R and S.

The modular norm of the product space (R, S) is a Theorem 1. product norm on (R, S) for the modular norms of R and S.

We obtain by the formula  $\S 81(6)$  for every  $x \in R$ Proof.

 $\mathbb{M}(x,o)\mathbb{M}=\inf_{\substack{m\in\{x,v\}\leq 1}}\frac{1}{|x|}=\mathbb{M}x\mathbb{M},$ and likewise  $\mathbb{H}(0, \frac{1}{2})\mathbb{M} = \mathbb{H}\frac{1}{2}\mathbb{M}$  for every  $\frac{1}{2} \in \mathbb{S}$ . Furthermore, for every  $(x, y) \in (R, S)$  we have

$$\|(x, y)\| = \inf_{x \in (xx) + m(xy) \le 1} \frac{1}{|x|} = \|(x, -y)\|.$$

Therefore we obtain our assertion by definition.

Let R be the modular adjoint space of R and R that of R. Then we have

COMBINATION OF SPACES

Theorem 2. The product space (R, S) coincides with the adjoint space of the product space (R, S) by the relation:

for Zek, yes, zek, yes.

§92. §93)

Recalling \$81 Theorem 6, we see at once by Theorem 1 and \$91 Theorem 2 that (京、文) coincides with the modular adjoint space of (R.S) as a linear space. Furthermore, we have by definition for overy (元, 引) 6 (元。 S)

$$\overline{m}(\overline{x}, \overline{y}) = \sup_{z \in R, y \in S} \{\overline{x}(z) + \overline{y}(y) - m(z) - m(y)\}$$

$$= \overline{m}(\overline{x}) + \overline{m}(\overline{y}).$$

Thus we obtain our assertion by definition.

As the associated norm of (R, S) is by definition the adjoint norm of the modular norm of  $(\overline{R}, \overline{3})$ , we obtain hence by §92 Theorem 2

Theorem 3. The associated norm of the product space (R. S) is a product norm on (R, S) for the associated norms of R and S.

A modulared space R is said to be isometric to a modulared space S, if there is a transformation a from R to S such that

$$m(a(z)) = m(z)$$
 for every  $z \in R$ .

With this definition we have

The product space  $(L_{p_1(t)}, L_{p_2(t)})$  is isometric to Lpg(+), if we put

$$p_{3}(t) = \begin{cases} p_{1}(2t) & \text{for } 0 < t < \frac{1}{2} \\ p_{2}(2t-1) & \text{for } \frac{1}{2} < t < 1. \end{cases}$$

For every 
$$x \in L_{p,(t)}$$
,  $y \in L_{p_{x}(t)}$ , putting
$$(x,y)(t) = \begin{cases} \frac{1}{2 p_{x}(x)} & \text{for } 0 < t < \frac{1}{2} \\ \frac{1}{2 p_{x}(x)} & \text{for } \frac{1}{2} < t < 1 \end{cases}$$

we obtain a measurable function (x, y)(t) for 0 < t < 1, and we have  $\int_{0}^{t} \frac{1}{p_{2}(t)} \left| (x, y)(t) \right|^{p_{3}(t)} dt = 2 \int_{0}^{\frac{1}{2}} \frac{1}{|x_{2}(t)|} |x_{2}(xt)|^{p_{1}(2t)} dt$ 

(Chapter XII

Thus we see easily by definition that (  $L_{p_1(+)}, L_{p_2(+)}$ ) is isometric to  $L_{p_3(+)}$ .

### §94 Bilinear functionals

Let R and S be two linear spaces. A functional P on the product space (R, S) is said to be bilinear, if

 $\varphi(x,+x_2,y)=\varphi(x_1,y)+\varphi(x_2,y_2)\qquad \text{for }x_1,x_2\in R,\ y\in S,$   $\varphi(x,y_1,-y_2)=\varphi(x,y_1)+\varphi(x,y_2)\qquad \text{for }x\in R,\ y_1,y_2\in S,$  and for every real number  $\xi$ 

 $\varphi(\xi x, y) = \varphi(x, \xi y) = \xi \varphi(x, y)$  for  $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ .

For a linear functional  $\widetilde{z}$  on R and  $\widetilde{y}$  on S, we define  $\widetilde{z}\widetilde{y}$  to mean a bilinear functional on (R,S) by the relation

$$\widetilde{Z}\widetilde{g}(x,y) = \widetilde{x}(x)\widetilde{g}(y)$$
 for  $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ .

For two bilinear functionals  $\Psi$ ,  $\Psi$  on (R, S), we define of  $\Psi + \beta \Psi$  for every real numbers of,  $\beta$  to mean a bilinear functional on (R, S) by the relation:

 $(d\varphi + \beta \psi)(x, y) = d\varphi(x, y) + \beta \psi(x, y)$  for  $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ .

With this definition, we see easily that the totality of bilinear functionals on (R,S) constitutes a linear space. This linear space is called the biassociated space of (R,S) and denoted by  $\widehat{RS}$ .

For the associated space  $\widetilde{R}$  of R and that  $\widetilde{S}$  of S, we have then obviously that  $\widetilde{X} \in \widetilde{R}$ ,  $\widetilde{Y} \in \widetilde{S}$  1mplies  $\widetilde{X} \widetilde{Y} \in \widetilde{RS}$  and for every real number  $\widetilde{Y}$  ( $\widetilde{X}$ ,  $\widetilde{Y}$ )  $\widetilde{Y}$  =  $\widetilde{X}$ ( $\widetilde{Y}$ ) =  $\widetilde{Y}$   $\widetilde{Y}$   $\widetilde{Y}$  for  $\widetilde{X} \in \widetilde{R}$ ,  $\widetilde{Y} \in \widetilde{S}$ ,  $(\widetilde{X}_1 + \widetilde{X}_1)\widetilde{Y} = \widetilde{X}, \widetilde{Y} + \widetilde{X}_2\widetilde{Y}$  for  $\widetilde{X} \in \widetilde{R}$ ,  $\widetilde{Y}$ ,  $\widetilde{Y}$ ,  $\widetilde{Y}$   $\in \widetilde{S}$ .

Furthermore we see at once

Theorem 1. If  $\widetilde{x}_{\nu} \in \widetilde{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) are linearly independent, then  $\sum_{i=1}^{K} \widetilde{x}_{\nu} \widetilde{y}_{\nu} = 0$ ,  $\widetilde{y}_{\nu} \in \widetilde{S}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) implies  $\widetilde{y}_{\nu} = 0$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ . If  $\widetilde{y}_{\nu} \in \widetilde{S}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) are linearly independent, then  $\sum_{\nu=1}^{K} \widetilde{x}_{\nu} \widetilde{y}_{\nu} = 0$ ,  $\widetilde{x}_{\nu} \in \widetilde{R}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) implies  $\widetilde{x}_{\nu} = 0$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ .

Every element  $(z, y) \in (R, S)$  may be considered as a linear functional on the blassociated space  $\widetilde{RS}$  by the relation:

COMBINATION OF SPACES

$$(x,y)(Z) = Z(x,y)$$
 for every  $Z \in \widehat{RS}$ .

Thus we can introduce a weak linear topology into  $\widetilde{RS}$  by the system of linear functionals (x, y) for all  $x \in R$  and  $y \in S$ . This weak linear topology is called the <u>weak topology</u> of the biassociated space  $\widetilde{RS}$ .

On account of \$35 Theorem 8, we can prove likewise as \$67 Theorem 1

Theorem 2. The week topology of the biassociated space \$\tilde{\chi}\$ is complete.

Now let  $\mathcal R$  and  $\mathcal S$  be linear topological spaces with linear topologies  $\mathcal M$  and  $\mathcal V$  respectively.

Theorem 3. In order that a bilinear functional  $\mathscr C$  on the product space (R,S) be continuous by the product  $(\mathscr H,\mathscr C)$ , it is necessary and sufficient that we can find  $\mathscr V \in \mathscr U$  and  $\mathscr V \in \mathscr V$  such that

<u>Proof.</u> If  $\mathcal G$  is continuous by  $(\mathcal W, \mathcal V)$ , then we can find by §20 Theorem 2  $\mathcal V \in \mathcal W$  and  $\mathcal V \in \mathcal V$  such that

Conversely, we assume for some  $v \in \mathcal{V}$  and  $v \in \mathcal{V}$ 

and  $V_i$  be a star vicinity of  $V_i$  such that  $V_i \times V_i \subset V_i$ . Then for any  $\pi_i \in \mathcal{R}$ ,  $Y_i \in S$  we can find d>0 such that  $\pi_i \in d$  U,  $Y_i \in d$   $V_i$ , and for any positive number  $E < \infty$ , if  $(\pi_i, y) - (\pi_i, y_i) \in E(V_i, V_i)$ , then we have  $\frac{1}{E}(\pi_i - \pi_i) \in U$ ,  $\frac{1}{2}(y_i - y_i) \in V_i$ ,  $\frac{1}{2}(\pi_i - \pi_i) \in V_i$  and hence  $\frac{1}{2}y_i \in \frac{E}{2}$ ,  $x_i \in V_i \subset V_i$ . These relations yield by assumption  $|\varphi(\pi_i, y_i) - \varphi(\pi_i, y_i)| \le E \ll |\varphi(\frac{1}{E}(\pi_i - \pi_i), \frac{1}{2}y_i)|$ 

$$+ E \propto |\varphi(\frac{1}{d}x_0, \frac{1}{2}(y - y_0))| \leq 2E d \delta$$

Therefore \( \text{is continuous by the product (\( \text{\$\psi\_1\$}, \( \psi\_2 \)).

A bilinear functional  $\mathcal C$  on the product space  $(\mathcal R,\mathcal S)$  is said to be bounded. If we have for every bounded manifold  $\mathcal A$  of  $(\mathcal R,\mathcal S)$ 

Recalling [91 Theorem 1, we have then obviously that f is bounded, if and

§94, §95)

only if we have for every bounded manifolds B of R and C of S

252

sup x 6 8 | 4 (x, y) | < +00.

Theorem 4. If both R and S are sequential, then every bounded bilinear functional P on the product space (R, S) is continuous by the product (W, P).

<u>Proof.</u> Putting  $W = \{(x, y): | \Psi(x, y)| \le 1\}$ , we see at once that W is a vicinity in (R, S). Furthermore, for any bounded manifold A of (R, S), we can find  $\lambda > 0$  such that

 $\sup_{(x,y)\in \frac{1}{A}A} |\varphi(x,y)| = \sup_{(x,y)\in A} |\frac{1}{\lambda^2} \varphi(x,y)| \le 1.$  and hence  $\frac{1}{\lambda}A \subset W$ , namely  $A \subset \lambda W$ . As (R,S) is sequential by §58 Theorem 8, we obtain  $W \in (\mathcal{U}, \mathcal{V})$  by §58 Theorem 1. Therefore  $\mathcal{V}$  is continuous by Theorem 3.

### §95 Bladjoint spaces

Let R and S be two linear topological spaces with linear topologies M and M respectively. The totality of bounded bilinear functionals on the product space (R, S) is called the <u>biadjoint space</u> of (R, S) and denoted by  $\overline{RS}$ . Let M be the totality of bounded manifolds: of (R, S). We see easily by §53 Theorem 3 that, putting

 $\overline{U}_A = \{\overline{Z} : |\overline{Z}(\pi, \S)\} \le 1$  for  $(\pi, \S) \in A$ ,  $\overline{Z} \in \overline{RS} \}$  corresponding to every  $A \in \mathcal{O}$ , we obtain a symmetric convex vicinity  $\overline{U}_A$  in  $\overline{RS}$ , and there exists uniquely by §53 Theorem 3 a linear topology  $\overline{M}$  on  $\overline{RS}$  such that the system  $\overline{U}_A$  ( $A \in \mathcal{O}$ ) is a basis of  $\overline{M}$ . This linear topology  $\overline{M}$  is called the <u>biadjoint topology</u> of the product  $(\mathcal{M}, \mathcal{V})$  and denoted by  $\overline{M}\mathcal{V}$ . The biadjoint space  $\overline{RS}$  is defined as a linear topological space by the biadjoint topology  $\overline{M}\mathcal{V}$ .

Theorem 1. For any U & W and V & W.

 $\{\mathbb{Z} : |\mathbb{Z}(x,y)| \leq 1 \text{ for every } x \in \mathbb{U}, y \in \mathbb{V}\}$  is a bounded manifold of the biadjoint space  $\mathbb{R}S$ .

<u>Proof.</u> For any bounded manifold A of the product space (R,S) we can find by 91 Theorem 1 a bounded manifolds B of R and C of S

such that  $A \subset \{B,C\}$ . For such B, C we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $\alpha B \subset V$ ,  $\alpha C \subset V$ . Then we have obviously

 $-\{Z: |Z(x,y)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in V, y \in V\}$ 

 $\leq \{\overline{Z}: |\overline{Z}(x,y)| \leq 1 \text{ for every } x \in B, y \in C\}$ = $\{\overline{Z}: |\alpha^2 \overline{Z}(x,y)| \leq 1 \text{ for every } x \in B, y \in C\}$  $\leq \{\frac{1}{2\pi}\overline{Z}: |\overline{Z}(x,y)| \leq 1 \text{ for every } (x,y) \in A\}.$ 

Therefore  $\{\bar{z}: \{\bar{z}(z,y)\} \leq 1 \text{ for every } z \in V, y \in V\}$  is bounded by the definition of the biadjoint topology  $\widetilde{\mathcal{M}}_{V}^{G}$ .

Let  $\overline{R}$  be the adjoint space of R and  $\overline{S}$  that of S. For any  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$  and  $\overline{y} \in \overline{S}$ ,  $\overline{x} \cdot \overline{y}$  is obviously by definition a bounded bilinear functional on the product space (R, S).

Theorem 2. If both R and S are equivalently strongest or standard, then for any bounded manifolds  $\tilde{E}$  of  $\tilde{R}$  and  $\tilde{e}$  of  $\tilde{S}$ , putting  $\tilde{A} = \{\tilde{z}, \tilde{y}: \tilde{z} \in \tilde{B}, \tilde{y} \in \tilde{E}\}$ .

we obtain a bounded manifold A of the biadjoint space RS.

<u>Proof.</u> By virtue of  $\S64$  Theorem 8, as both R and S are by assumption equivalently strongest or standard, putting

 $\nabla = \{x : |\overline{x}(x)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{x} \in \overline{\mathcal{B}}\},$  $\nabla = \{y : |\overline{y}(y)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{y} \in \overline{\mathcal{C}}\}.$ 

we have  $\nabla \in \mathcal{U}$  and  $\nabla \in \mathcal{V}$ . For such  $\nabla$ ,  $\nabla$ , we have obviously

 $\overline{A} \subset \{\overline{Z}: |\overline{Z}(x,y)| \leq 1$  for every  $x \in V$ ,  $y \in V\}$ , because  $\overline{X}\overline{Y}(x,y) = \overline{X}(x)\overline{Y}(y)$ . Thus we see by §95 Theorem 1 that  $\overline{A}$  is a bounded manifold of  $\overline{RS}$ .

For any xek, yes, putting

 $\chi_{\mathcal{J}}(\overline{Z}) = \overline{Z}(\chi, \chi)$  for every  $\overline{Z} \in \overline{RS}$ , we obtain obviously a linear functional  $\chi_{\mathcal{J}}$  on the biadjoint space  $\overline{RS}$ . Thus, recalling §94, we obtain the weak linear topology of  $\overline{RS}$  by the system  $\chi_{\mathcal{J}}(\chi \in R, \chi \in S)$ . This weak linear topology of  $\overline{RS}$  is called the weak topology of  $\overline{RS}$ . As we have by definition

 $\{\overline{Z}: |\pi\chi(\overline{Z})| = |\overline{Z}(\pi, y)| \leq 1\} \in \overline{RS}$  for every  $\pi \in R$  and  $y \in S$ ,  $\pi y$  is a continuous linear functional on the bladjoint space  $\overline{RS}$ . Thus we have

§95, §96)

For every  $z \in R$  ,  $y \in S$  , we have obviously by definition 又以(范夏) = 克夏(又, y) = 豆(又)豆(为)

for every  $\tilde{z} \in \tilde{R}$ ,  $\tilde{y} \in \tilde{S}$ . Thus zy may be considered as a bilinear functional on the product space ( $\overline{k}$ ,  $\overline{s}$ ) by the relation:

$$zy(\overline{x}, \overline{y}) = \overline{x}(\overline{x})\overline{y}(\overline{y})$$
 ( $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}, \overline{y} \in \overline{S}$ ).

Then we have

For every xek, yes, xy is a continuous bi-Theorem 4. linear functional on the product space ( $\overline{R}$ ,  $\overline{S}$ ).

On account of \$64 Theorem 4, for any xeg and 3 & 6, Proof. we can find  $\vec{v} \in \vec{\mathcal{N}}$  and  $\vec{v} \in \vec{\mathcal{V}}$  for the adjoint topology  $\vec{\mathcal{N}}$  of  $\vec{\mathcal{U}}$  and that  $\overline{\psi}$  of  $\psi$  such that  $\sup_{\overline{\chi} \in \overline{\psi}} |\overline{\chi}(\chi)| < +\infty$ ,  $\sup_{\overline{\chi} \in \overline{\psi}} |\overline{\chi}(\chi)| < +\infty$ , and hence  $\sup_{\overline{z}\in\overline{\mathcal{T}},\ \overline{y}\in\overline{\mathcal{T}}}|x_{\overline{y}}(\overline{z},\overline{y})|<+\infty.$ 

Thus xx is continuous by Theorem 3 in §94.

If both R and S have sequential roots, then the Theorem 5. biadjoint space RS is sequential.

Let  $\delta_{\nu}(\nu=1, 2,...)$  be a sequential root of R and  $C_{\nu}$ ( $\nu = 1, 2, ...$ ) that of S . . Then we see easily by definition that {\(\overline{\pi}\) : |\(\overline{\pi}\) (\(\nu=\)) (\(\overline{\pi}\)) (\( is a basis of the biadjoint topology W. V.

Finally we shall prove

The biadjoint topology is complete. Theorem 6.

Let  $\overline{A}_{\lambda}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) be a Cauchy system by the biadjoint to-Proof. Since the weak topology of the bladjoint space RS is pology VIV. by Theorem 3 weaker than  $\widetilde{\mathcal{W}}$  ,  $\widetilde{\mathcal{A}}_{\lambda}$  (  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) also is a Cauchy system by As the biassociated space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{RS}}$  is complete by the the weak topology. weak topology by §94 Theorem 2, there exists hence a limit  $\widetilde{Z}_0 \in \widetilde{\mathcal{RS}}$  of  $\overline{A}$ , ( $\lambda \in A$ ) for the weak topology.

For every bounded manifolds B of R and C of S, as  $\{\overline{z}: |\overline{z}(z,y)| \le 1 \text{ for every } z \in \mathcal{B}, y \in \mathcal{C}\} \in \overline{\mathcal{WP}}.$ we can find  $\lambda_0 \in \Lambda$  such that  $\overline{u}$  ,  $\overline{v} \in \overline{A}_{\lambda_0}$  implies

| u(x, y) - v(x, y) | = 1 for every x & B, y & C, because  $\overline{A_{\lambda}}$  ( $\lambda \in A$ ) is a Cauchy system by  $\overline{WQ}$ . For any  $x \in B$ ,  $\beta \in C_{\pm}$ and  $\mathcal{E} > 0$  , we can find  $\overline{\mathcal{V}} \in \overline{A}_{\mathbf{A}_0}$  such that

COMBINATION OF SPACES

1 T (x, x) - Z (x, x) | < E,

because  $\widetilde{Z}_o$  is a limit of  $\overline{\mathcal{A}}_h$  ( $\lambda\in A$ ) by the weak topology. have  $|\vec{u}(x,y) - \vec{z}_o(x,y)| < 1 + \varepsilon$  for every  $\vec{u} \in \vec{A}_{z_o}$ . As  $x \in B$ ,  $y \in C$ . and  $\xi > 0$  may be arbitrary, we conclude hence

 $|\vec{u}(x,y) - \vec{z}_o(x,y)| \le 1$  for every  $\vec{u} \in \vec{A}_{\lambda_o}$ ,  $x \in B$ ,  $y \in C$ . From this relation we conclude that  $\widetilde{Z}_{o} \in \overline{\mathcal{RS}}$  and

 $\overline{A}_{\lambda_0} \subset \{\overline{z} : |\overline{z}(z,y) - \overline{z}, (x,y)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in B, y \in C\}.$ Thus  $\widetilde{Z}_o$  is a limit of  $\widetilde{A}_\lambda$  (  $\lambda \in \Lambda$  ) by the biadjoint topology  $\widetilde{\mathcal{W}}_V^{\varphi}$ . Consequently WV is complete by definition.

# \$96 Cross spaces

Let A and S be two linear spaces. For any zeR and yes, putting

- $\mathbb{Z}_{\mathcal{Y}}(\widetilde{\mathbf{Z}}) = \widetilde{\mathbf{Z}}(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{y}) \qquad (\widetilde{\mathbf{Z}} \in \widetilde{RS}).$ we obtain a linear functional xy on the biassociated space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{RS}}$  of the product space (R, S). For such linear functionals xy (  $x \in R$  ,  $y \in S$  ), we have obviously by the definition (1)
  - (2)  $(\xi z) y = x(\xi y) = \xi x y$  for every real number  $\xi$ ,
  - (5)  $(x_1+x_2)y = x_1y + x_2y$   $(x_1, x_2 \in R, y \in S)$
  - $x(y_1+y_2)=xy_1+xy_2$  (xex,  $y_1,y_2\in S$ )

Thus, if we denote by  $\widetilde{RS}$  the associated space of  $\widetilde{RS}$  , then we have  $xy \in \widetilde{RS}$  for every  $x \in R$  and  $y \in S$ . The linear manifold of  $\widetilde{RS}$  generated by the system Ry (x  $\in$  R, y  $\in$  S) is called the cross space of R and S , and denoted by RS.

Let  $\widehat{R}$  be the associated space of R, and  $\widehat{S}$  that of S. every  $\widetilde{x} \in \widetilde{R}$  and  $\widetilde{y} \in \widetilde{S}$  , as  $\widetilde{x} \ \widetilde{y} \in \widetilde{RS}$  , putting

 $Z(\widetilde{z},\widetilde{y}) = Z(\widetilde{x}\widetilde{y})$  (2  $\in$  RS), every Z & RS may be considered as a bilinear functional on the product

Especially we have by (1) and (5) space (₹, \$).

 $xy(\tilde{x}, \tilde{y}) = \tilde{x}(x)\tilde{y}(y) + (xeR, yes, \tilde{x} \in \tilde{R}, \tilde{y} \in \tilde{S}).$ (6)

If a linear manifold A of R is fundamental in R and a linear manifold  $\widetilde{g}$  of  $\widetilde{S}$  is fundamental in S, then  $z(\widetilde{x}, \widetilde{q}) = 0$ for every  $\tilde{z} \in \tilde{A}$ ,  $\tilde{y} \in \tilde{B}$  implies z = 0 for  $z \in RS$ .

LINEAR TOPOLOGICAL SPACES

On account of the definition of the cross space  $\ensuremath{\mathcal{R}}$  \$ , every 2 6 RS may be represented as a linear combination from xy  $(z \in R, z \in S)$ . Furthermore, for any  $z \in RS$  we can find  $z_i \in R$  $(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  and  $y_{\nu} \in S$   $(\nu=1, 2, ..., \kappa)$  such that

and  $\kappa_{\nu}$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ) are linearly independent. Because, if Xx = E d, X,

then we have by the relations (1), (3), and (4)

 $\sum_{\nu=1}^{N} x_{\nu} y_{\nu} = \sum_{\nu=1}^{N-1} x_{\nu} y_{\nu} + (\sum_{\nu=1}^{N-1} d_{\nu} x_{\nu}) y_{N} = \sum_{\nu=1}^{N-1} x_{\nu} (y_{\nu} + d y_{N}),$ If  $X_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1$ , 2,..., $\kappa$ ) are linearly independent, then  $X_{\nu}$  ( $\nu=1$ , 2,..., $\kappa$ ) also are linearly independent as linear functionals on  $\widetilde{A}$  by the relation:

for every  $\widetilde{\mathcal{A}}\in\widetilde{A}$  . ス(を) 二気(ス)

because  $\widetilde{A}$  is fundamental in R by assumption.

 $\tilde{Z}_{X_{\nu}}(Z)\chi_{\nu}(\tilde{y})=Z(\tilde{x},\tilde{y})=0$  for every  $\tilde{x}\in\tilde{A},\;\tilde{y}\in\tilde{B},$ 

then we have by §94 Theorem 1 for every  $\widetilde{\mathcal{A}} \in \widetilde{\mathbb{B}}$ 

$$\tilde{y}(y_{\nu}) = y_{\nu}(\tilde{y}) = 0 \qquad (\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa),$$

and hence  $\gamma_{\nu}=0$  ( $\nu=1,\ 2,\ldots, \times$ ), because  $\widetilde{\mathcal{B}}$  is fundamental in S by Therefore  $\mathcal{Z}(\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}},\widetilde{\widetilde{g}})=0$  for every  $\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}\in\widetilde{\mathcal{A}}$  ,  $\widetilde{\widetilde{g}}\in\widetilde{\mathcal{B}}$  implies assumption. z = 0.

The biassociative space RS of the product space Theorem 2. (R, S) coincides with the associative space of the cross space RS for zeRS. ZeRS.  $\tilde{Z}(Z) = Z(\tilde{Z})$ by the relation:

Every ZERS may be considered obviously as a linear functional on the cross space RS by the relation:

 $\tilde{Z}(Z) = Z(\tilde{Z})$  for every  $Z \in RS$ .

Furthermore, if  $\widetilde{Z}(Z)=0$  for every  $Z\in RS$ , then we have naturally  $\widetilde{Z}(x,y) = \chi y(\widetilde{z}) = \widetilde{Z}(xy) = 0$  for every  $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ ,

257 and hence  $\mathfrak{T} = a$ . On the other hand, for any linear functional 9 on RS , putting

COMBINATION OF SPACES

 $\varphi(x,y) = \varphi(xy)$  for every  $z \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ , we obtain obviously a bilinear functional  $\varphi$  on (R, S). Thus, we can find uniquely Z & RS such that

 $\varphi(x, y) = \widetilde{Z}(x, y)$  for every  $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ , and hence  $\mathcal{G}(xy) = \widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}(xy)$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ ,  $y \in \mathbb{S}$ .

 $A = \{z : \varphi(z) = \widetilde{z}(z), z \in RS\}.$ we obtain obviously a linear manifold  ${\mathcal A}$  of R S , which contains all xy ( $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ ). As RS is the linear manifold generated by xy (  $x \in R$  ,  $y \in S$  ) by definition, we conclude hence A = RS , and consequently  $\mathcal{G}(z) = \widetilde{\mathcal{I}}(z)$  for every  $z \in RS$ . Therefore we obtain our assertion.

By virtue of Theorem 1, we can state

Theorem 3. The cross space RS is a subspace of the blassociated space  $\widetilde{\widetilde{R}}$   $\widetilde{\widetilde{S}}$  of the product space  $(\widetilde{R}, \widetilde{S})$  by the relation:

$$Z(\widetilde{x},\widetilde{y}) = Z(\widetilde{x}\widetilde{y})$$
 for  $Z \in RS$ ,  $\widetilde{x} \in \widetilde{R}$ ,  $\widetilde{y} \in \widetilde{S}$ .

On account of Theorem 3, for the cross space  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$   $\widetilde{S}$  , every  $\widetilde{\mathcal{Z}}$   $\in$   $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$   $\widetilde{S}$ may be considered as a linear functional on the cross space R S.

In this sense we have

(96)

The cross space R S of the associated spaces R and  $\widetilde{S}$  is a subspace of the biassociated space  $\widetilde{RS}$  , that is, for  $\widetilde{Z} \in \widetilde{R}$   $\widetilde{S}$  .  $\widetilde{Z}(z) = 0$  for every  $z \in R \cdot S$  implies  $\widetilde{z} = 0$ .

Let  $\widetilde{\widetilde{R}}$  be the associated space of  $\widetilde{\widetilde{R}}$  and  $\widetilde{\widetilde{S}}$  that of  $\widetilde{\widetilde{S}}$  . Considering every  $\varkappa \in \mathcal{R}$  as a linear functional on  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  by the relation:  $\varkappa(\widetilde{\varkappa}) = \widetilde{\varkappa}(\varkappa)$  for every  $\widetilde{\varkappa} \in \widetilde{R}$ .

R is obviously a subspace of  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  and furthermore fundamental in  $\widetilde{\mathcal{R}}$  . Similarly, S is a subspace of  $\widetilde{S}$  and fundamental in  $\widetilde{S}$ . If  $\widetilde{Z}(z)=0$ for every  $Z \in RS$ , then we have naturally for every  $x \in R$  and  $y \in S$ 

$$\widetilde{Z}(x,y) = \widetilde{Z}(xy) = 0$$

and hence we obtain Z = 0 by Theorem 1.

For a subspace 8 of R and a subspace C of S, the Theorem 5.

\$96, \$97)

eross space &C is a subspace of the cross space & S.

Proof. We need by definition only prove that for  $x_1 \in B$ ,  $y_2 \in C$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , we have  $\sum_{i=1}^{N} x_i y_i = 0$  in BC, if and only if we have  $\sum_{i=1}^{N} x_i y_i = 0$  in RS. For any  $x_i \in B$ ,  $y_i \in C$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa)$ , we can find by the method applied in Proof of Theorem 1, linearly independent  $x_i' \in B$   $(\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa')$  such that we have

for some  $y_i' \in C$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa'$ ) in B C as well as in R S. Thus, if  $\sum_{i=1}^{N} x_i' y_i' = 0$  in BC, then we have  $y_i' = 0$  for every  $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa'$ , and hence  $\sum_{i=1}^{N} x_i' y_i' = 0$  in R S. Conversely, if  $\sum_{i=1}^{N} x_i' y_i' = 0$  in R S, then we conclude likewise  $\sum_{i=1}^{N} x_i' y_i' = 0$  in BC.

### §97 Cross topologies

A linear topology  ${\mathcal W}$  on the cross space  ${\mathcal R}$ S is said to be a <u>cross</u> topology, if

- 1) %/ is stendard,
- 2) for every bounded manifolds 5 ox R and C or S, {zy: zeB, yeC } is bounded by M?,
- 3) for every bounded manifolds B of R and C of S, {元算: 又6B, 項6C} is uniformly bounded by %?。

Let  $\overline{A}$  be the totality of bounded menifolds of the biadjoint space  $\overline{RS}$ . As every  $Z \in RS$  is by definition a linear functional on  $\overline{RS}$ , putting for each  $\overline{A} \in \overline{A}$ 

 $W_{\widetilde{A}} = \{ \ Z : \ | \ Z(\widetilde{Z}) | \le 1 \ \text{ for every } \widetilde{Z} \in \widetilde{A} \ \},$  we obtain a convex vicinity  $W_{\widetilde{A}}$  in the cross space RS. Furthermore

we see easily by §53 Theorem 3 that there exists uniquely a linear topology  $\mathcal{H}_{\mathcal{A}}$  on  $\mathcal{RS}$  such that  $\mathcal{H}_{\mathcal{A}}$  ( $\widetilde{\mathcal{A}}\in\widetilde{\mathcal{M}}$ ) is a basis of  $\mathcal{H}_{\mathcal{A}}$ . It is obvious by definition that  $\mathcal{H}_{\mathcal{A}}$  is convex. Recalling §95 Theorem 2, we see by definition that  $\mathcal{H}_{\mathcal{A}}$  satisfies the condition 3). For every bounded manifolds  $\mathcal{B}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$  and  $\mathcal{C}$  of  $\mathcal{S}$ , putting

 $\overline{W} = \{ \overline{Z} : | \overline{Z}(z,y) | \le 1 \text{ for every } z \in B, y \in C \},$  we have  $\overline{W} \in \overline{WV}$  by definition. Thus, for each bounded manifold  $\overline{A}$  of  $\overline{RS}$ , we can find  $\alpha > 0$  such that  $\overline{A} \leq \omega \overline{W}$ , and then we have

 $\{xy: x\in B, y\in C\} \subset \{z: |z(\overline{z})| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{z}\in \overline{w}\}$   $= o(\{z: |z(\overline{z})| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{z}\in \overline{w}\} \subset aw_{\overline{z}}.$ 

Consequently  $\{xy:x\in S,y\in C\}$  is a bounded manifold of RS by  $m_{A}$ . Therefore  $m_{A}$  satisfies the condition 2).

We is stronger than every other convex linear topology on RS subject to the conditions 2) and 3). Because, for a convex linear topology  $m_{\ell}$  on RS subject to the conditions 2) and 3), if we denote by  $RS^{(3)}$  the adjoint space of RS by  $m_{\ell}$ , then we see by §96 Theorem 2 that  $RS^{(3)}$  is a subspace of the biasociated space RS. Furthermore as we see by the condition 2) that every  $E \in RS^{(3)}$  is a bounded bilinear functional on (R, S),  $RS^{(3)}$  is a subspace of the biadjoint space RS. For any closed convex vicinity  $w \in m_{\ell}$ , as w is scalar-closed by §54 Theorem 2, putting

 $\overline{A}=\{\overline{z}: |\overline{z}(z)|\leq 1 \text{ for every } z\in W, \overline{z}\in \overline{RS}^{2p}\}$  we have by §52 Theorem 3

 $W = \{Z: |Z(z)| \le 1 \quad \text{for every } \overline{Z} \in \overline{A} \}.$  Furthermore  $\overline{A}$  is a bounded manifold of  $\overline{RS}$ . Because, for any bounded manifolds S of R and C of S, we can find by the condition S such that  $\{XY: X \in S, Y \in C\} \subset AW$ , and then

 $\vec{A} \subset \{\vec{z}: |\vec{z}(z)| \le 1 \text{ for every } z \in \vec{w}, \ \vec{z} \in \vec{RS} \}$ 

=  $\alpha(\overline{z}: |\overline{z}(z)| \le 1$  for every  $z \in dw$ ,  $\overline{z} \in \overline{RS}$ )

 $C \bowtie \{Z : |Z(x,y)| \le 1 \text{ for every } x \in B, y \in C\}.$ 

Thus  $\overline{A}$  is by definition a bounded manifold of  $\overline{KS}$ , and hence we have  $\overline{W} \in \mathcal{H}_{A}$  by definition. Therefore  $W_{A}$  is stronger than  $\mathcal{H}_{A}$ .

§97, §98)

By virtue of §57 Theorem 8, there exists the standard linear topology W which is equivalent to W.A. Such W satisfies obviously the conditions 2) and 3) too, and hence M.A. is stronger than W.A. as proved just above. Thus W.A. is standard, and consequently M.A. is a cross topology on R.S. Therefore we can state

Theorem 1. There exists the strongest cross topology  $m_{\tilde{p}_{s}}$  on the cross space RS, and for a root  $\tilde{R}$  of the biadjoint space RS

 $\{z: |z(\overline{z})| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{z} \in \overline{A}\}$   $(\overline{A} \in \overline{\alpha})$ 

is a basis of Ma.

260

Theorem 2. There exists the weakest cross topology  $m_{\rho_{\infty}}$  on the cross space RS, and  $m_{\rho_{\infty}}$  is equivalent to the linear topology on RS, of which for a root  $\overline{X}$  of  $\overline{R}$  and a root  $\overline{C}$  of  $\overline{S}$ 

 $\{z: |z(xy)| \le 1 \text{ for every } \overline{z} \in \overline{\mathbb{S}}, \overline{y} \in \overline{\mathbb{C}}\}$  ( $\overline{\mathbb{S}} \in \overline{\mathbb{S}}, \overline{\mathbb{C}} \in \overline{\mathbb{C}}$ )

<u>Proof.</u> By wirtue of §53 Theorem 3, we can introduce a linear topology  $pp_o$  into the cross space R S such that

 $\{Z: |Z(\overline{Z})| \leq 1 \text{ for every } \overline{Z} \in \overline{\mathcal{B}}, \ \overline{\mathcal{J}} \in \overline{\mathcal{C}}\} \quad (\overline{\mathcal{B}} \in \overline{\mathcal{K}}, \ \overline{\mathcal{C}} \in \overline{\mathcal{E}})$  is a basis of  $\mathcal{W}_o$ . Then  $\mathcal{W}_o$  satisfies obviously the condition 3). For every bounded manifold  $\mathcal{B}$  of  $\mathcal{R}$  and  $\mathcal{C}$  of  $\mathcal{S}$ , and for every  $\overline{\mathcal{B}} \in \overline{\mathcal{L}}$ ,  $\overline{\mathcal{C}} \in \overline{\mathcal{C}}$ , we have by §95 Theorem 2

consequently  $\mathcal{W}_{\sigma}$  satisfies the condition 2) too. As  $\mathcal{W}_{\sigma}$  is convex, there exists by \$57 Theorem 8 a standard linear topology  $\mathcal{W}_{\varpi}$  on  $\mathcal{R}$  5, which is equivalent to  $\mathcal{W}_{\sigma}$ . Then  $\mathcal{W}_{\varpi}$  also satisfies obviously the conditions 2) and 3), and hence  $\mathcal{W}_{\varpi}$  is a cross topology on  $\mathcal{R}$  5.

For any cross topology  $\mathcal W$  on  $\mathbb R$  S, every bounded manifold of  $\mathbb R$  S by  $\mathcal W$  is obviously by definition bounded by  $\mathcal W$ , too, and hence naturally bounded by  $\mathcal W_{\mathcal W}$ . Accordingly  $\mathcal W = \mathcal W_{\mathcal W}$  is equivalent to  $\mathcal W$ . As  $\mathcal W$  is standard, we obtain hence  $\mathcal W = \mathcal W_{\mathcal W} \in \mathcal W$ . This relation yields by definition  $\mathcal W_{\mathcal W} \in \mathcal W$ . Therefore  $\mathcal W_{\mathcal W}$  is the weakest cross topology on  $\mathbb R$  S.

By wirtue of 196 Theorem 2, the blassociated space RS coincides

with the associated space of the cross space RS. For the strongest cross topology  $mp_*$  on the cross space RS, if a linear functional q on RS is bounded by MA, then q is by definition a bounded bilinear functional on the product space (R, S), that is,  $q \in RS$ , because for any bounded manifolds B of R and C of S,  $\{x,y\}: x \in S, y \in C\}$  is a bounded manifold of RS. Conversely, every  $q \in RS$  is a continuous linear functional on RS by MA, as we see at once by the definition of MA. Thus the adjoint space RS of RS by MA coincides with RS as a linear space. And we see further that the adjoint topology of MA is stronger than the biadjoint topology MA. If a manifold A of RS is bounded by MA, then A is uniformly bounded in RS by MA, on account of the definition of MA. Thus we have

Theorem 3. The adjoint space  $\overline{RS}^{W_2}$  of the cross space RS by the strongest cross topology  $W_A$  coincides with the biadjoint space  $\overline{RS}$  of the product space (R, S) except for linear topologies. The adjoint topology  $W_A$  is stronger than the biadjoint topology but equivalent to this.

## \$98 Cross norms

Now let R and S be normed spaces. A bilinear functional G on the product space (R, S) is said to be norm bounded, if

 $\sup_{\substack{R\times R\leq 1,\,R\geqslant R\leq 1\\ R\ge R}} |\Upsilon(R,\beta)| <+\infty \qquad (\text{$x\in R$, $y\in S$}).$  With this definition, it is obvious that \$\Phi\$ is norm bounded if and only if \$\Phi\$ is bounded for the norm topologies of \$R\$ and \$S\$. Thus for the biadjoint space \$\overline{RS}\$ of \$R\$ and \$S\$ by the norm topologies, we can define a norm on \$\overline{RS}\$ by the relation:

(1)  $\|Z\| = \sup_{\|Z\| \leq 1, \|S\| \leq 1} \|Z(x, y)\|$  ( $x \in R, y \in S$ ). This norm on  $\overline{RS}$  is called the <u>biadjoint norm</u> of the norms on R and S. We see easily by definition that the norm topology of  $\overline{RS}$  by the biadjoint norm coincides with the biadjoint topology of the norm topologies on R and S. Thus we have by §95 Theorem 6 that the biadjoint norm

obviously by the definition (1)

(2) ungu=naugn (vek, ves).

As the cross space RS is by definition a subspace of the adjoint space of the biadjoint space RS, we obtain a norm on RS as the adjoint norm of the biadjoint norm. This norm on RS is called the maximum norm on the cross space RS and denoted by  $R2R_{max}$  ( $z \in RS$ ), that is,

(3)  $\|Z\|_{\max} = \sup_{RZ \in \mathbb{R}} \|Z(Z)\|$  ( $\overline{Z} \in \overline{RS}$ ,  $Z \in RS$ ). With this definition we have

(4)  $\|xy\|_{\max} = \|x\|\|y\|$   $(x \in R, y \in S)$ .

Bocause,  $||x|| \le 1$ ,  $||y|| \le 1$  implies by the definition (1)

 $\|xy\|_{\max} = \sup_{\|\tilde{z}\| \le 1} |\tilde{z}(x,y)| \le 1,$ 

and hence  $\|xy\|_{max} \le \|x\|\|y\|$ . On the other hand we have by the formula (2) and  $\S{7}{2}(3)$ 

 $\|xy\|_{\max} \ge \sup_{\|x\| \le 1} |x(x)y(y)| = \|x\|\|y\|.$  We have further obviously by \$97 Theorem 1

Theorem 1. The norm topology of the cross space R3 by the maximum norm 1s the strongest cross topology.

Recalling §58 Theorem 1, we obtain by §97 Theorem 3

Theorem 2. The adjoint space of the cross space RS by the maximum norm coincides with the biadjoint space RS, and we have

(5)  $\|\bar{z}\| = \sup_{\|z\|_{max} \le 1} |z(\bar{z})|$  ( $\bar{z} \in RS$ ,  $z \in RS$ )

For the biadjoint note  $\|\bar{z}\|$  ( $\bar{z} \in RS$ ).

Because we have by the definition (3)

On the other hand we have by the formula (4)

 $\|Z\| = \sup_{\substack{\|z\| \le 1, \|y\| \le 1}} |Z(z, y)| \le \sup_{\substack{\|z\|_{\max} \le 1}} |z(\overline{z})|.$  Concerning the maximum norm on the cross space RS we have further

Because, putting  $\|Z\|_{\max} = \inf_{Z = \sum_{i=1}^{n} x_i y_i} \sum_{k=1}^{n} \|x_i\|_{Y_i} \|$ .  $\|Z\|_{\max} = \inf_{Z = \sum_{i=1}^{n} x_i y_i} \sum_{k=1}^{n} \|x_i\|_{Y_i} \|$ , we have by (3)  $\|Z\|_{\max} = \inf_{Z = \sum_{i=1}^{n} x_i y_i} \sum_{k=1}^{n} \|x_i y_i\|_{\max} = \|Z\|_1.$ 

Thus, we see easily that NZN. ( $Z \in RS$ ) satisfies the norm conditions. Furthermore we have by this relation

COMBINATION OF SPACES

HRHIYH = | x y | maz & | x y | , & | m h h y | , and hence we obtain

laylle lange (xer yes).

Thus for the biassociated space RS we have

(86%

 $\sup_{\|z\|_1 \le 1} \|\widetilde{z}(z)\| \ge \sup_{\|z\| \le 1, \|z\| \le 1} \|\widetilde{z}(z, y)\| \qquad (\text{xer}, \text{yes}, \tilde{z} \in \widetilde{\mathbb{R}}).$  Accordingly we see by §96 Theorem 2 that the adjoint space  $\widetilde{\mathbb{R}}$  of the cross space  $\mathbb{R}$ S by the norm  $\|z\|_1$  ( $z \in \mathbb{R}$ S) is contained in the adjoint space of  $\mathbb{R}$ S by the maximum norm and

for the biadjoint norm  $\|\,\,\overline{Z}\,\,\|\,\,(\,\,\overline{Z}\,\,\varepsilon\,\,\overline{R}\,\,\overline{S}\,\,)\,.$  On the other hand we have by Theorem 2

$$||Z||_1 = ||Z||$$
 ( $Z \in \overline{ES}$ ).

Consequently we have by the formula §72(3)

HZN, =  $\sup_{n\geq n} |Z(z)| = \sup_{n\geq n} |Z(z)| = \|z\|_{\max}$ . As the biadjoint norm of the adjoint norm  $\|Z\|$  (Z(Z)) and  $\|Y\|$ 

( $\overline{J} \in \overline{S}$ ), we obtain a norm on the cross space RS. This norm is called the minimum norm of the cross space RS and denoted by RZ = 10 ( $Z \in RS$ ), that is,

(7)  $\|Z\|_{\min} = \sup_{\substack{\mathbb{R} \in \mathbb{R} \\ \mathbb{R} \subseteq \mathbb{R}}} \|Z(\overline{x}, \overline{y})\| (\overline{x} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}, \overline{y} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}).$  With this definition we have obviously by the formula §72(3)

(8)  $\|xy\|_{\min} = \|xn\|y\|$  (xeR, yeS).

Theorem 3. For a norm | | Z | | on the cross space R & , in order that the norm topology of R & be a cross topology, it is necessary and sufficient that we can find two positive numbers of , & such that

uzyu≦duzunyu (zer, yes),

12(元, 子)1≤ BNZHH京HH京H (ZERS, ZER, FEB).

Proof. If the norm topology of RS is a cross topology, then we have by the condition 2) in §97 that  $\|x\| \le 1$ ,  $\|y\| \le 1$  implies

265

Conversely, if a norm 424 ( $2 \in RS$ ) satisfies the indicated conditions, then we see easily that the norm topology satisfies the conditions 2) and 3) in §97. As the norm topology is standard, the norm topology is by definition a cross topology of RS.

A norm #2 N on the cross space RS is called a cross norm, if

- (10)  $|z| (\overline{z} \overline{y})| \le \|z\| \|\overline{z}\| \|\overline{y}\|$  ( $z \in RS, \overline{z} \in \overline{R}, \overline{y} \in \overline{S}$ ). With this definition, we see easily that both the maximum norm and the minimum norm on the cross space RS are cross norms. Furthermore we have

en the cross space RS, it is necessary and sufficient that we have

12 lmin & 12 ll & 12 ll max for every Z & R S.

<u>Proof.</u> If  $||z|| (z \in RS)$  is a cross norm, then we have by (10) and (7) for every  $z \in RS$ 

1121 } sup |2(29)| = 121 min.

and further by (9) and (6)

 $\|Z\| \leq \inf_{Z = \sum_{i=1}^{N} Z_{i,j}} \sum_{i=1}^{N} \|x_{i,j}\| = \inf_{Z = \sum_{i=1}^{N} Z_{i,j}} \sum_{i=1}^{N} \|x_{i,i}\| \|y_{i,i}\| = \|Z\|_{max}.$ 

Conversely, if  $\|Z\|_{mix} \le \|Z\| \le \|Z\|_{max}$  for every  $Z \in RS$ , then we have by (4) and (8)  $\|xy\| = \|x\|\|y\|$  (xeR, yeS), and by (7)

【Z(元星)】 至 月之川min 日元川月夏日 至 日工川月元川日子 日。

Consequently NZN ( $Z \in RS$ ) is a cross norm by definition.

## §99 Biadjoint modulars

Let R and S be modulared spaces. A bilinear functional T on the product space (R, S) is said to be modular bounded, if

sup (xeR, y)(<+00 (xeR, yeS).

With this definition we have

Theorem 1. In order that a bilinear functional 9 on the product space (R, S) be modular bounded, it is necessary and sufficient that we can find two positive numbers of and 8 such that

$$d\varphi(x,y) \leq \delta + \frac{1}{2} (m(x) + m(y))^2$$

for every x & R and y & S.

<u>Proof.</u> If  $\mathcal G$  is modular bounded, then we can find by definition  $\protect\ensuremath{\mbox{\ensuremath{\square}}}\ > \ensuremath{\mbox{\ensuremath{\square}}}\$  such that

 $\sup_{m(x) \le 1, \ m(y) \le 1} |\alpha \varphi(x, y)| \le \frac{1}{2}.$ If  $1 < m(x) < +\infty$ ,  $1 < m(y) < +\infty$ , then we can find positive numbers  $\frac{1}{2}$ ,  $\frac{1}{2} < 1$  such that  $m(\frac{1}{2}x) = 1$ ,  $m(\frac{1}{2}y) = 1$ . Then we have by the modular condition 5)  $\frac{1}{2}m(x) \ge 1$ ,  $\frac{1}{2}m(y) \ge 1$ , and hence

 $d\varphi(x,y) = \frac{1}{\frac{1}{27}} d\varphi(\frac{1}{2}x,\frac{1}{2}y) \leq \frac{1}{\frac{1}{277}} \leq m(x)m(y).$ If  $1 < m(x) < +\infty$ ,  $m(y) \leq 1$ , then we can find a positive number y < 1 such that  $m(\frac{1}{2}x) = 1$ . Then we have  $\frac{1}{2}m(x) \geq 1$ , and hence

 $d \varphi(x, y) = \frac{1}{2} d \varphi(x, y) \le \frac{1}{2^{2}} \le \frac{1}{2} m(x)^{2}.$ We conclude likewise that  $m(x) \le 1$ ,  $1 < m(y) < +\infty$  implies

$$\forall \varphi(x,y) \leq \frac{1}{2} m(y)^2$$

Therefore we have for every x & R and y & S

$$d\varphi(x,y) \leq \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2} (m(x) + m(y))^2$$

Conversely, if  $d \varphi(x, y) \le x + \frac{1}{2} (m(x) + m(y))^2$  for every  $x \in R$  and  $y \in S$ , then we have obviously

Recalling §8h Theorem 3, we see at once by definition that a bilinear functional  $\mathcal{G}$  on the product space (R,S) is modular bounded, if and only if  $\mathcal{G}$  is norm bounded by the modular norms of R and S, and hence, if and only if  $\mathcal{G}$  belongs to the biadjoint space  $\overline{RS}$  of R and S by the norm topologies for the modular norms. Thus the biadjoint space  $\overline{RS}$  will be called the modular biadjoint space of R and S.

Now, putting

(1)  $\overline{m}(\overline{z}) = \sup_{x \in R, y \in S} \{\overline{z}(x,y) - \frac{1}{2}(m(x) + m(y))^{k}\} (\overline{z} \notin \overline{RS}),$  we shall prove that  $\overline{m}$  satisfies the modular conditions.

It is evident by definition that

- 21) 死(0)=0.
- 元(-克)=元(克). 2:)

Recalling Theorem 1 we obtain immediately by definition

for any  $\overline{Z} \in \overline{RS}$  we can find  $\sigma > 0$  such that  $\overline{m}(\sigma(\overline{Z}) < t^{\infty}$ . If  $\overline{m}(\S\overline{z}) = 0$  for every  $\S > 0$ , then we have by definition

On the other hand, for any x e R for every zek, yes, and \$>0. and  $y \in S$  we can find two positive numbers  $\xi$ ,  $\eta$  such that  $m(\xi z) < + \infty$ . m(xy)<+co, and then

Consequently we obtain  $\mathbb{Z}(z, x) = 0$ . Thus we for every 4 > 0. hawo

 $\overline{m}$  ( $\xi \overline{z}$ ) = 0 for every  $\xi > 0$  implies  $\overline{z} = 0$ . 1.7)

Furthermore we can prove easily by definition

Furthermore we can prove states, 
$$d+\beta=1$$
,  $d,\beta\geq 0$  implies for every  $\overline{Z}_1, \overline{Z}_2 \in \overline{RB}$ 

$$\overline{m}(d\overline{Z}_1+\beta\overline{Z}_2)\leq d\overline{m}(\overline{Z}_1)+\beta\overline{m}(\overline{Z}_2),$$

61) 
$$\widetilde{m}(\overline{z}) = \sup_{0 \le \overline{z} < 1} \widetilde{m}(\overline{z}).$$

This modular To on the modular biadjoint space RS is called the bisdjoint modular of the modulars of R and S.

Conserving the biadjoint modular  $\overline{m}(\overline{z})$  ( $\overline{z}\in\overline{\mathcal{RS}}$ ), we have obviously by the definition (1)

(2)  $Z(x,y) \leq \overline{m}(Z) + \frac{1}{2} (m(x) + m(y))^2$  (x eR, y eS).

Let  $\|\overline{Z}\|$  (  $\overline{z} \in \overline{RS}$  ) be the bladjoint norm of the modular norm  $\|x\|$  $(x \in R)$  and  $\|y\|$   $(y \in S)$ , that is,

$$\|Z\| = \sup_{m(x) \le 1, m(y) \le 1} |Z(x, y)|$$

Then, we have obviously by the formula (2)

 $\mathfrak{R}(\mathbb{Z}) \leq 1$  implies  $\|\mathbb{Z}\| \leq 3$ .

On the other hand, we have already proved in Proof of Theorem 1 that  $||\overline{z}|| \le 1$  implies for  $m(\overline{z}) > 1$  or  $m(\overline{y}) > 1$ 

$$\bar{z}(z,y) \leq \frac{1}{2} (m(x) + m(y))^2$$
.

Thus we obtain by the definition (1) that  $\|\vec{Z}\| \le 1$  implies

$$\widetilde{m}(\widetilde{z}) = \sup_{m(x) \leq 1, \ m(y) \leq 1} \left\{ \widetilde{z}(x, y) - \frac{1}{2} \left( m(x) + m(y) \right)^2 \right\}.$$

Therefore we have

\$99. \$100)

(4)

By virtue of the relations (3) and (4), we conclude that the modular topology of RS coincides with the norm topology of RS by the biadjoint norm for the modular norms of R and S. Therefore we have by Theorem 6 in \$95

The biadjoint modular of the modulars of R and S is Theorem 2. complete, and the modular topology of the modular bisdjoint space RS coincides with the biadjoint topology of the modular topologies of g and Ţ

Recalling §81 Theorem 3, we obtain by (3) and (4) relation of the biadjoint norm and the modular norm of RS:

 $MZH \leq NZH \leq 3MZH$   $(Z \in \overline{RS})$ 

For the associated norms ||X|| ( $\overline{X} \in \overline{R}$ ) and  $||\overline{Y}||$  ( $\overline{Y} \in \overline{S}$ ), we have obviously by definition

 $\|\overline{x}\| = \|\overline{x}\|\|\overline{x}\| \qquad (\overline{x} \in \overline{x}, \overline{x} \in \overline{S})$ for the modular adjoint spaces R of R and S of S.

For every Z & R and W & S we have by definition

$$\overline{m}(\overline{x}y) = \sup_{x \in \mathbb{R}, y \in \mathbb{S}} \left\{ \overline{x}(x) \overline{y}(y) - \frac{1}{2} (m(x) + m(y))^{2} \right\} \\
\leq \sup_{x \in \mathbb{R}, y \in \mathbb{S}} \left\{ (\overline{m}(\overline{x}) + m(x)) (\overline{m}(\overline{y}) + m(y)) - \frac{1}{2} (m(x) + m(y))^{2} \right\} \\
\leq \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \overline{m}(\overline{x}) + \overline{m}(\overline{y}) \right\}^{2}.$$

Accordingly we have

(7) 
$$\overline{m}(\overline{x}\overline{g}) \leq \frac{1}{2} \{\overline{m}(\overline{\pi}) + \overline{m}(\overline{g})\}^2$$
  $(\overline{x} \in \overline{R}, \overline{g} \in \overline{S}).$ 

From (5), (6) we conclude immediately by §83 Theorem 1

田元等明 至 月克日11至日至 4 川克川田至川。

3 M Z I M Z A Z A Z A Z A M Z A M Z A M Z A M

Therefore we obtain by §81 Theorem 4 for every  $\overline{z} \in \overline{R}$ ,  $\overline{J} \in \overline{S}$ 

(8) - - श्री चार्म ≤ गर्मा ≤ गर्मा द्वाराष्ट्र 4 गर्मा गर्मा.

# \$100 Cross modulars

Let R and S be modulared spaces. We can define a modular on the eross space RS as the adjoint modular of the biadjoint modular  $\overline{m}$  ( $\overline{z}$ ) ( $\overline{z}$  6  $\overline{RS}$ ) for the modular biadjoint space  $\overline{RS}$ . This modular on the cross space RS is called the strong medular of RS, and denoted by  $m_A$ , that is,

 $m_{\Lambda}(z) = \sup_{\overline{z} \in \overline{RS}} \{ z(\overline{z}) - \overline{m}(\overline{z}) \} \qquad (z \in RS)$  for the biedjoint modular

$$\overline{m}(\overline{z}) = \sup_{x \in R, y \in S} \{\overline{z}(x, y) - \frac{1}{2}(m(x) + m(y))^2\} (\overline{z} \in \overline{RS}).$$

As  $\overline{Z}(x, y) \le \overline{m}(\overline{z}) + \frac{1}{2}(m(x) + m(y))^2$ , we obtain immediately

(1)  $m_{\Lambda}(xy) \leq \frac{1}{2} \{m(x) + m(y)\}^2$  (xeR, yeS). Furthermore, recalling the formula \$99(7), we have

 $m_A(z) \ge Z(\overline{z}\overline{y}) - \overline{m}(\overline{z}\overline{y}) \ge Z(\overline{z}\overline{y}) - \frac{1}{2} \{\overline{m}(\overline{z}) + \overline{m}(\overline{y})\}^2$ , that is,

(2)  $Z(\overline{x}\overline{y}) \leq m_A(\overline{z}) + \frac{1}{2} \{ \overline{m}(\overline{z}) + \overline{m}(\overline{y}) \}^2 \quad (\overline{x} \in \overline{R}, \overline{y} \in \overline{S})$ 

We shall denote by  $\| Z \|_{\Delta}$  ( $Z \in RS$ ) the modular norm for the strong modular  $m_{\Delta}$ . Then  $\| Z \|_{\Delta} \le 1$ ,  $\| X \| \le 1$ ,  $\| Y \| \le 1$  implies  $| Z (Z Y) | \le 2$ , because we have  $m_{\Delta}(Z) \le 1$ ,  $m_{\Delta}(Z) \le 1$ ,  $m_{\Delta}(Z) \le 1$ ,  $m_{\Delta}(Z) \le 1$  by §81 Theorem 4. Therefore we conclude

(3)  $|z(\overline{x}\overline{y})| \le 2 \|z\|_{\Delta} \|\overline{x}\| \|\overline{y}\|$  ( $z \in RS$ ,  $\overline{x} \in \overline{R}$ ,  $\overline{y} \in \overline{S}$ ). This relation yields by the formula §83(4) and §83 Theorem 1

刚不明明岁别 盖 名 肌又少用点。

On the other hand, if  $m \times m \le 1$ , my = 1, then we have  $m_A(xy) \le 2$  by (1), and hence  $m_A(\frac{1}{2}xy) \le \frac{1}{2}m_A(xy) \le 1$ . Thus we obtain  $\frac{1}{2} \|xy\|_A \le \|x\|\|y\|\|$ 

by \$81 Theorem 4. Consequently we have

(4)  $\frac{1}{2}$   $\ln x$   $\ln$ 

By virtue of Theorems 4 and 5 in §96, we see that the cross space R3 may be considered as a subspace of the biassociated space of the product space  $(\overline{R}, \overline{S})$ . Thus we can define a modular on RS as the biadjoint modular of the adjoint modulars  $\overline{m}(\overline{X})$  ( $\overline{X} \in \overline{R}$ ) and  $\overline{m}(\overline{Y})$  ( $\overline{Y} \in \overline{S}$ ). This modular on the cross space RS is called the weak modular of RS and denoted by  $m_{av}(z)$  ( $Z \in RS$ ), that is,

- (5)  $m_{w}(z) = \sup_{z \in \mathbb{R}, \ y \in \mathbb{T}} \{z(\pi y) \frac{1}{2}(\pi(x) + \pi(y))^{2}\}.$  With this definition we have obviously
- (6)  $Z(\overline{X}\overline{y}) \leq m_W(z) + \frac{1}{2} \{\overline{m}(\overline{x}) + \overline{m}(\overline{y})\}^2$  ( $\overline{x} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}, \overline{y} \in \overline{\mathbb{S}}$ ). Recalling the formula §99(7), we obtain furthermore
- (7)  $m_{w}(xy) \le \frac{1}{2} \{m(x) + m(y)\}^2$  (x \in R, y \in S).

  Denoting by  $\||x||_{w}$  (x \in RS) the modular norm for the weak modular  $m_{w}$ , we have by the formula \$99(5)
- (8)  $M \times M_{W} \leq K \times M \leq 3 M \times M_{W}$  (26RS) for the biadjoint norm

HZH = sup  $|Z(\overline{Z}\overline{Z})| = \sup_{\overline{Z}\in \mathbb{Z}_{2}} |Z(\overline{Z}\overline{Z})|$ . Consequently we have

- (9)  $|z(\overline{z}\overline{y})| \le 3 \|z\|_{W} \|\overline{z}\|_{W} \|\overline{y}\|$ . (26RS,  $\overline{z} \in \overline{R}$ ,  $\overline{y} \in \overline{S}$ ). Furthermore we obtain by the formula \$99(8)
  - (10)  $\frac{1}{3}$  Maximugh  $\leq$  Maxymu  $\leq$  Amammym (xeR, yeS). By virtue of Theorems 1 and 2 in §97, we obtain by definition
- Theorem 1. The modular topology of the cross space RS by the strong modular  $m_A$  is the strongest cross topology, and that by the weak modular  $m_{w_0}$  is the weakest cross topology.

A modular m on the cross space RS is called a cross modular, if

- (11)  $m(xy) \le \frac{1}{2} \{m(x) + m(y)\}^2$  for  $x \in R$ ,  $y \in S$ .
- (12)  $\mathbb{Z}(\overline{z}\overline{y}) \leq m(z) + \frac{1}{2} \{\overline{m}(\overline{z}) + \overline{m}(\overline{y})\}^2 \text{ for } z \in \mathbb{R}, \overline{z} \in \overline{\mathbb{R}}, \overline{y} \in \overline{\mathbb{S}}.$

With this definition we see at once that both the strong modular and the weak modular are cross modulars. We can prove further

Theorem 2. In order that a modular m on the cross space R S be a cross modular, it is necessary and sufficient that we have

 $m_W(1) \le m(2) \le m_A(2)$  for every  $2 \in \mathbb{R} S$  for the strong modular  $m_A$  and the weak modular  $m_W$  on  $\mathbb{R} S$ .

Proof. If  $m_1$  is a cross modular on the cross space RS, then for any element Z of the biassociated space  $\widetilde{RS}$  we have by (11)

 $\sup_{\mathcal{M}(z) \leq 1, \ m(z) \leq 1} |\widetilde{Z}(z, y)| \leq \sup_{\mathcal{M}_1(z) \leq L} |\widetilde{Z}(z)|.$  Thus we see by definition that the modular adjoint space  $\overline{RS}^{m_1}$  of RS by the modular  $m_1$  is contained in the biadjoint space  $\overline{RS}$  of (R, S).

For the adjoint modular  $\overline{m}_1(\overline{z})$  ( $\overline{z} \in \overline{R} \hat{S}^{m_1}$ ) of  $m_1$ , we have by (11)

$$\overline{m}_1(\overline{z}) = \sup_{z \in RS} \left\{ \overline{z}(z) - m_1(z) \right\}$$

 $\geq \sup_{x \in A, y \in S} \{ \overline{Z}(x, y) - \frac{1}{2} (m(x) + m(y))^2 \},$ 

and hence we obtain by the definition §99(1)

$$\overline{m}_{i}(\overline{z}) \ge \overline{m}(\overline{z})$$
 for every  $\overline{z} \in \overline{RS}^{m_{i}}$ 

for the biadjoint modular  $\overline{m}$  of R and S . Accordingly we have by §80 Theorem 2 for every  $Z \in R$  S

$$m_1(z) = \sup_{\overline{z} \in \overline{RS}} m_1 \left\{ \overline{z}(z) - \overline{m}_1(\overline{z}) \right\}$$

$$\leq \sup_{\overline{z} \in \overline{RS}} \left\{ \overline{z}(z) - \overline{m}(\overline{z}) \right\} = m_A(z).$$

Recalling the definition (5), we obtain furthermore by (12)

 $m_1(z) \ge \sup_{\overline{z} \in \overline{z}, \overline{y} \in \overline{S}} \left\{ Z(\overline{z}\overline{y}) - \frac{1}{2} (\overline{m}(\overline{z}) + \overline{m}(\overline{y}))^2 \right\} = m_w(z)$ for every  $Z \in RS$ .

Conversely, for a modular m; on the cross space RS, if

$$m_{w_{1}}(z) \leq m_{1}(z) \leq m_{A}(z)$$
 for every  $z \in RS$ ,

then we have by the formular (1) for every  $x \in R$  and  $y \in S$ 

$$m_1(xy) \leq m_2(xy) \leq \frac{1}{2} \{m(x) + m(y)\}^2$$

and furthermore by the formula (6) for every  $\overline{z} \in \overline{R}$  and  $\overline{y} \in \overline{S}$ 

$$z(\bar{z}\bar{g}) \leq m, (z) + \frac{1}{2} (\bar{m}(\bar{z}) + \bar{m}(\bar{g}))^2.$$

Therefore m, is a cross modular on the cross space RS by definition.

### NOTE I

## Definition of linear topologies

Linear topologies were defined first by Kolmogoroff as follows. Let R be a linear space. A topology  $\Upsilon$  on R is said to be a linear topology on R, if

- 1) the operation x+y ( $x,y\in R$ ) is continuous by  $\mathcal{I}$ , that is, for any a,  $b\in R$  and  $a+b\in U\in \mathcal{I}$ , we can find  $a\in V\in \mathcal{I}$ , and  $b\in W\in \mathcal{I}$  such that  $V\times W\subset U$ ,
- the operation  $\{x \ (x \in R) \ \text{is continuous by the number topology and } T$ , that is, for any  $\alpha \in R$  and real number of, if of  $\alpha \in T \in T$ , then we can find  $\alpha \in T \in T$  and E > 0 such that

Let  $\Upsilon$  be a linear topology on R in this sense. From the condition 1) we conclude that for every  $\alpha\in R$  , the transformation

$$or(x) = x - a$$

from R to R itself is continuous by  $\Upsilon$ , and hence  $A \in \Upsilon$  implies  $A + \alpha \in \Upsilon$  for every  $\alpha \in R$ . From the condition 2) we conclude likewise that  $A \in \Upsilon$  implies  $A \in \Upsilon$  for every real number of \*0. Furthermore we see by 2) that for any  $0 \in A \in \Upsilon$  and  $\alpha \in R$ , as  $0 = \alpha$ , we can find E > 0 such that  $\{\alpha \in A \text{ for } |\{\xi\} \le E\}$ , and that for any  $0 \in A \in \Upsilon$  we can find E > 0 and  $0 \in B \in \Upsilon$  such that  $\{\xi \in B \subset A \text{ for } |\{\xi\} \le I\}$ . Finally we see by 1) that for any  $0 \in A \in \Upsilon$  we can find  $0 \in B \in \Upsilon$  such that  $B \times B \subset A$ . Therefore there exists uniquely by  $\{54 \text{ Theorem 8 a linear topology } \P$  in the sense of the text such that the induced topology by  $\P$  coincides with  $\Upsilon$ .

Conversely it is obvious by definition that for a linear topology of in the sense of the text, the induced topology of by of satisfies the conditions 1) and 2). The definition of linear topologies in the text is due to won Neumann.

#### NOTE II

#### Linear quasi-metrics

A quasi-metric m(x,y) ( $x,y \in R$ ) on a linear space R is said to be a linear quasi-metric, if

- 1) for any  $\xi > 0$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  such that  $m(x, y) \subseteq \xi$  implies  $m(x+x, y+z) \subseteq \xi$  for every  $x, y, z \in R$ ,
- 2)  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} m(\alpha_{\nu,0}) = 0$  implies  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} m(\xi \alpha_{\nu,0}) = 0$  for every real number  $\xi$ ,
- 3)  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} \alpha'_{\nu} = 0$  implies  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} m(\alpha, x, 0) = 0$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ . With this definition it is obvious that the induced quasi-metric by a quasi-norm is a linear quasi-metric. Now let  $m(\alpha, y)$   $(x, y \in \mathbb{R})$  be a linear quasi-metric in the sequel.

From the condition 1) we conclude that  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(a_n, f_n) = 0$  implies  $\lim_{n \to \infty} m(a_n + n, f_n + n) = 0$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ .

Therefore we obtain by 3) that  $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} \alpha_{\nu} = \alpha$  implies

 $\lim_{\nu \to \infty} m (\alpha_{\nu} x, \alpha_{x}) = 0 \qquad \text{for every } x \in R,$ 

and hence, from the relation

 $|m(d_{i}x, 0) - m(dx, 0)| \leq m(d_{i}x, dx).$ 

we conclude that  $\lim_{n \to \infty} \alpha_n = \alpha$  implies

 $\lim_{\nu\to\infty} m(a_{\nu}x,0) = m(ax,0) \quad \text{for every } x \in R,$ 

that is, m(xx, 0) is a continuous function of  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ .

For an arbitrary  $\xi > 0$ , putting

 $\varphi(\xi) = \inf_{\mathfrak{M}(\xi \mathfrak{X}) > \xi} \mathfrak{M}(\mathfrak{X}, 0) \qquad \text{for } \xi > 0,$ 

we have obviously

 $\varphi(\xi) = \inf_{m(x,0) > \xi} m(\frac{i}{\xi}x,0) \quad \text{for } \xi > 0.$ 

As  $m(\frac{1}{2}x, 0)$  is a continuous function of  $\frac{1}{2} > 0$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ ,  $\varphi(\frac{1}{2})$  is upper semi-continuous for  $\frac{1}{2} > 0$ . Thus there exists a continuous point  $\frac{1}{2} > 0$  of  $\frac{1}{2}$ . For such  $\frac{1}{2}$ , we have  $\varphi(\frac{1}{2}) > 0$  by the condition 2), and hence for a positive number  $\delta < \varphi(\frac{1}{2})$ , we can find  $\delta' > 0$  such that  $|\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{2} \cdot \frac{1}{2} \cdot$ 

and hence we obtain

 $m((\eta+\xi_0)z,0)\leq \varepsilon, \quad m(\xi_0z,0)\leq \varepsilon$ 

For any  $\mathcal{E}'>0$  we can find by the condition 1)  $\mathcal{E}>0$  such that

$$m(x,y) \leq \varepsilon$$
 implies  $m(x+z,y+z) < \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon'$ .

For such  $\xi > 0$  we obtain thus

 $m(\eta x, 0) \leq m((\eta + \xi_0) x, \eta x) + m((\eta + \xi_0) x, 0) \leq \varepsilon + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon'.$  Therefore we conclude that for any  $\varepsilon > 0$  we can find  $\delta > 0$  and  $\delta' > 0$  such that  $|\xi| \leq \delta$ ,  $m(x, 0) \leq \delta'$  implies  $m(\xi x, 0) \leq \varepsilon$ .

Now, putting

$$\overline{V}_{\varepsilon} = \{ z : m(z, 0) \leq \varepsilon \} \qquad (\varepsilon > 0).$$

we see easily by 3) that every  $\mathcal{U}_{\xi}$  (  $\xi>o$  ) is a vicinity in  $\mathcal{R}$  , and it is obvious that we have

 $U_{\varepsilon} U_{\varepsilon'} = U_{\delta}$  for  $\delta = \min \{ \varepsilon, \varepsilon' \}$ 

For any  $\ell > o$  , we can find  $\delta > o$  and  $\delta' > o$  such that

$$\xi \, \sigma_{\delta} \, / \, \subset \, \sigma_{\varepsilon}$$
 for  $|\xi| \leq \delta$ ,

as proved just above. Furthermore for any  $\varepsilon>0$  we can find by 1) a positive number  $\delta<\frac{1}{2}\varepsilon$  such that  $w(x,y)\leq\delta$  implies

 $m(x+z,y+z) \le \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{E}$  for every  $z,y,z \in R$ , and hence we have that  $m(a,o) \le 5$ ,  $m(b,o) \le 5$  implies

 $m(a+b,0) \le m(a+b,b) + m(b,0) \le \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon + \delta \le \varepsilon,$  that is,  $\nabla_{\delta} \times \nabla_{\delta} \subset \nabla_{\varepsilon}$ .

Therefore, by virtue of §53 Theorem 3 there exists uniquely a linear topology  $\mathscr C$  on R, such that  $\mathcal U_{\mathcal E}$  ( $\mathcal E>0$ ) is a basis of  $\mathscr C$ . Such a linear topology  $\mathscr C$  is obviously sequential, and we see easily by 1) that the induced uniformity by  $\mathscr C$  coincides with the induced uniformity by the quasi-metric  $\mathscr M(\mathcal Z,\mathcal Y)$  ( $\mathcal X,\mathcal Y\in R$ ).

#### NOTE III

#### (C) spaces

Lat S be a topological space. The totality of bounded continuous functions on S constitutes obviously a linear space. near space is called a (C) space. We can introduce into the (C) space on a topological space S a norm by

$$\|\varphi\| = \sup_{x \in \mathbb{R}} |\varphi(x)| \qquad (\varphi \in C).$$

Then we see easily that C is a complete normed space by this norm.

Let R be a normed space and  $\overline{R}$  the adjoint space of R. of §72 Theorem 5, the unit sphere 77 of R is weakly compact, and we have by the formula \$72 (3)

 $\|x\| = \sup_{x \in \mathbb{R}} |\bar{x}(x)|$  for every  $x \in \mathbb{R}$ . Furthermore, it is obvious by definition that for every  $x \in R$  , putting

$$\mathscr{L}(\overline{z}) = \overline{\chi}(z) \qquad (\overline{z} \in \overline{\tau}).$$

we obtain a continuous function  $\mathscr{G}_{re}$  on the unit sphere  $\widetilde{\mathscr{T}}$  by the weak topology and

$$f_{xx+py} = d f_x + p f_y$$
 for every  $x, y \in R$ ,  
 $||x|| = \sup_{Z \in \mathcal{D}} ||\phi_z(Z)||$  for every  $x \in R$ .

Therefore we can state that for any normed space R there is a compact topological space T such that R is isometric to a linear manifold of the (C) space on T as a normed space.

#### NOTE IV

#### Inequalities

We have employed several inequalities without proof in \$69 and \$90. Now we shall prove them in the sequel.

As  $\frac{dt}{dt^2}(-\log t) \ge 0$  for t > 0,  $-\log t$  is a convex function of  $\frac{1}{5} > 0$ , and hence  $\frac{1}{p} + \frac{1}{2} = 1$ ,  $p, q \ge 1$ ,  $\frac{3}{3}, \frac{3}{7} > 0$  implies - log (+ 3++ + 7) ≤ - + log 3 - + log 7

that is,  $\frac{1}{b}$   $\frac{1}{5}$   $\frac{1}{7}$   $\frac{1}{2}$   $\frac{1}{5}$   $\frac{1}{7}$   $\frac{1}{7}$  Therefore we obtain Young's inequality

for 
$$\frac{1}{2}$$
,  $\frac{1}{2} \ge 0$ ,  $\frac{1}{p} + \frac{1}{q} \ge 1$ ,  $p, q \ge 1$ .

For positive measurable functions x(t) and y(t) ( $0 \le t \le 1$ ), putting

$$\alpha = \{ \int_0^1 \chi(t)^p dt \}^{\frac{1}{p}}, \qquad \beta = \{ \int_0^1 \chi(t)^p dt \}^{\frac{1}{p}}.$$

we obtain by the Young's inequality

$$\frac{1}{a\beta} \chi(t) \gamma(t) \leq \frac{1}{\beta} \left( \frac{1}{a} \chi(t) \right)^{\beta} + \frac{1}{\ell} \left( \frac{1}{\beta} \gamma(t) \right)^{\ell},$$

$$\frac{1}{\alpha \beta} \int_0^1 z(t) \, y(t) dt \leq \frac{1}{\beta} + \frac{1}{2} = 1.$$

Therefore we obtain Hölder's inequality

$$\int_0^1 z(t) y(t) dt \leq \left\{ \int_0^1 z(t)^n dt \right\}^{\frac{1}{p}} \left\{ \int_0^1 y(t) dt \right\}^{\frac{1}{p}}$$
for  $\frac{1}{p} + \frac{1}{q} = 1$ ,  $p, q \geq 1$ .

Putting

$$\varphi(\xi, \gamma) = (\xi + \gamma)^{\beta} + (\xi - \gamma)^{\beta} \quad \text{for } \xi \ge \gamma \ge 0.$$

we have

$$\begin{aligned} \mathcal{G}_{\xi}(\xi,\eta) &= \frac{1}{2\xi} \, \mathcal{G}(\xi,\eta) = \, p \, \{(\xi+\eta)^{p-1} + (\xi-\eta)^{p-1} \} \\ \mathcal{G}_{\xi}(\xi,\eta) &= \frac{1}{2\xi} \, \mathcal{G}_{\xi}(\xi,\eta) = \, p \, (p-1) \, \{(\xi+\eta)^{p-1} - (\xi-\eta)^{p-1} \} \, . \end{aligned}$$
 Thus, if  $p \geq 2$ , then we have

$$\varphi_{\xi\eta}(\xi, \xi) \ge 0$$
 for every  $\xi \ge \eta \ge 0$ .

Therefore we have for E > n > n

$$\varphi_{\xi}(\xi,\eta) \geq \varphi_{\xi}(\xi,0) = 2p\xi^{p-1}$$

and hence  $\varphi(\xi,\eta) - \varphi(\eta,\eta) \ge 2\xi^p - 2\eta^p$ . As  $p \ge 2$ , we obtain

$$\Psi(\xi, \gamma) \ge 2\xi^p + (2^p - 2)\gamma^p \ge 2(\xi^p + \gamma^p)$$

that is, we have

From this relation we conclude

$$\frac{|\xi|^{p} + |\eta|^{p}}{2} \ge \left| \frac{\xi + \eta}{2} \right|^{p} + \left| \frac{\xi - \eta}{2} \right|^{p} \qquad \text{for } p \ge 2$$

It is well known:

$$d_{\nu} = \frac{P(P-1)\cdots(P-\nu+1)}{\nu!} \qquad (\nu=1, 2, ...)_{\rho}$$

we have obviously

for > = 0, 1, 2, ...,

and henc for 0 5 8 < 1

$$(1+\xi)^p + (1+\xi)^p = 2 \sum_{\nu=0}^{\infty} d_{2\nu} \xi^{2\nu} \ge 2 + p(p-1) \xi^2.$$

Therefore we obtain for  $1 \le p \le 2$ ,  $|x| \ge |y|$ 

From this relation we conclude for  $1 \le p \le 2$ 

$$\frac{\|\tilde{z}\|^{p}+\|\tilde{\gamma}\|^{p}}{2}\geq \left\|\frac{\tilde{z}+\eta}{2}\right\|^{p}+\frac{p(p-1)}{2}\left\|\frac{\tilde{z}-\eta}{\|\tilde{z}\|+\|\tilde{\gamma}\|}\right\|^{2-p}\left\|\frac{\tilde{z}-\eta}{2}\right\|^{p}.$$

As 
$$\frac{d^2}{dt^2} t^p = p(p-1) t^{p-2} \ge 0$$
 for  $p > 1$ ,  $t \ge 0$ ,  $t^p(p > 1)$ 

is a convex function of  $t \ge 0$ , and hence we have

for every finite number of  $\xi_{\nu} \ge 0$  ( $\nu = 1, 2, ..., \kappa$ ). Putting  $p = \frac{\rho}{\sigma}$ 

in this inequality, we obtain immediately 
$$\{\frac{1}{2^{n}}\sum_{j=1}^{n}|f_{j}|^{p}\}^{\frac{1}{p}}\geq\{\frac{1}{2^{n}}\sum_{j=1}^{n}|f_{j}|^{p}\}^{\frac{1}{p}}\quad\text{for }p>6>0.$$

#### BIBLIOGRAPHY

Alaoghu, L. Week topologies of normed linear spaces, Ann. Math. 41(1940) 252-267.

Alexandroff, P. and Hoph, H. Topologie I, Berlin (1935).

Bamach, S. Théorie des opérations linéaires, Warsaw (1932).

Baurgin, D. G. Some properties of Banach spaces, Amer. Journ. Math. 64(1942) 597-612.

<u>Bochner, S.</u> Integration von Funktionen dered Werte die Elemente eines Vektorraumes sind, Fund. Math. 20(1933) 262-276.

Boothner, S. and Tayler, A. E. Linear functionals on certain spaces of abstractly valued functions, Ann. Math. 39(1938) 913-944.

Cech, E. On bicompact spaces, Ann. Math. 38(1939) 823-846.

Clarkson, J. A. Uniformly convex spaces, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 40(1936) 396-414.

Day, M. M. The space L<sup>p</sup> with  $\theta , Bull. Amer. Math. Soc. 46(1940) 816-823, Some more uniformly convex spaces, Bull. Amer. Math. Soc. 47(1941) 504-507.$ 

Dunford, N. Uniformity in linear spaces, Trans. Amer. Math. Sec. 44(1938) 305-356.

Fréchet, M. Les espace abstraits, Paris (1928).

Gelfand, I. Abstrackte Funktionen und lineare Operatoren, Rec. Nath. 7(1940) 301-308.

Goldstine, H. Weakly complete Banach spaces, Duke Math. Journ. 4(1938) 125-131.

Hausdorff, F. Mengenlehre, Berlin (1935)

Helly, E. Über Systeme linearer Gieichungen mit unendlich vielen Unbekannten, Monat. für Math. Phys. 31(1921) 60-91.

Hildebrandt, T. H. On bounded linear functional operations, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 36(1934) 868-875.

Hille, E. Functional analysis and semi-groups, Amer. Math. Soc. Col. Publ. 31(1948).

Hyers, D. H. A note on linear topological spaces, Bull. Amer.

Math. Soc. 44(1938) 76-80.

Kakutani, S. Weak topology and regularity of Banach spaces, Proc. Imp. Acad. Tokyo 25(1939) 169-173.

Kolmogoroff, A. Zur Mormierbarkeit eines allgemeinen topologischen linearen Raumes, Stud. Math. 5(1934) 29-33.

Krein, M. Sur quolques questions de la géometrie des ensembles convexes situé dans un espace lineaire normé et complet, Comp. Rend. URSS. 14(1937) 5-7.

Kuratowski, C. Topologie I, Warszawa (1933).

LaSalle, J. P. Fsaudo-normed linear spaces, Duke Math. Journ. 8(1941) 131-135.

Mackey, G. W. On infinite-dimensional linear spaces, Trans. Amer.

Math. Soc. 57(1945) 155-207. On convex topological linear spaces, Trans.

Amer. Math. Soc. 60(1946) 519-557.

Mazur, S. Uber konvex Mengen in linearen normierten Räumen, Stud. Math. 4(1933) 70-84. Sur les anneaux linéaires, C. R. Paris 207(1938) 1025-1027.

McSchene, E. J. Linear functionals on certain Banach spaces, Proc. Amer. Meth. Soc. 1(1950) 402-408.

Milman, D. On some criteria for regularity of spaces of the type (B), Comp. Rend. URSS. 20(1938) 243-245.

<u>Makano, H.</u> Modulared semi-ordered linear spaces, Tokyo (1950).

Modulared linear spaces, Journ. Fac. Sci. Univ. Tokyo I 5(1951) 85-131.

von Neumann, J. On complete topological spaces, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 37(1935) 1-20.

Orlicz, W. Über konjugierte Exponentenfolgen, Stud. Math. 3(1931) 200-211. Über eine gewisse Klasse von Räumen vom Typus (B), Bull. de l'Acad. Polonais des Sc. (1932) 207-220.

Orlicz, W. und Birnbaum, Z. W. Uber die Verallgemeinerung des Begriffes der zueinander konjugierten Potenzen, Stud. Math. 3(1931) 1-67.

Pettis, B. J. On integration in vector spaces, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 44(1938) 277-304. A note on regular Banach spaces, Bull. Amer. Math. Soc. 44(1938) 420-428. Differentiation in Banach spaces, Duke Math. Journ. 5(1939) 254-269.

Fhillips, R. S. On linear transformations, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 48(1940) 516-541. On weakly compact subsets of a Banach space, Amer. Journ. Math. 65(1943) 108-136.

Radon, J. Theorie und Anwendungen der absolut additiven Mengenfunktionen, Sitz.ber. Akad. Wiss. Wien 122(1913) 1295-1438.

Riesz, F. Sur le convergence en moyenne, Acta Szeged 4(1928/29) 58-64.

Schatten, R. On the direct product of Banach spaces, Trans. Amer.

Math. Soc. 53(1943) 195-217. A theory of cross-spaces, Princeton (1950).

Sirvint, G. Espace des fonctionelles linéaires, Comp. Rend. URSS. 26(1940) 123-126. Schwache Kompaktheit in den Banachschen Räumen, Comp. Rend. URSS. 28(1940) 199-202.

<u>Smulian, V.</u> Über lineare topologische Räume, Rec. Math. 7(1940) 425-448.

Tayler, A. E. The weak topologies of Banach spaces, Proc. Nat. Acad. Sci. U.S.A. 25(1939) 438-440.

Tychonoff, A. Über einen Metrizationssatz von P. Urysohn, Math. Ann. 95(1926) 139-142.

Wehausen, J. V. Transformations in linear topological spaces, Duke Math. 4(1938) 157-169.

Weil, A. Sur les espaces à structure uniforme, Actual. Sci. et Industr. Paris (1938).

abstract space 4

adding point 58

### INDEX

adjoint modular 209 dimension 114 discrete topology 4 --- norm 132 --- space 132, 167, 188 --- uniformity 65 --- topology 168 duality 8 associated norm 217 --- space 114 empty set 1 equivalent 149, 187 basis 65, 115, 138 equivalently strongest 149 --- condition 5, 65 Baire set 12 field 48 biadjoint modular 266 finite 224 --- norm 261 --- subspace 236 --- space 252 --- topology 252 ----dimensional ll4 biassociated space 250 first category 10 bilinear 250 function 44 bounded 44, 79, 147, 167, 251 functional 112 --- character 139 fundamental 116 Cauchy sequence 95 generated 49, 111. --- system 88 center 101 Hausdorff space 26 character 123, 124, 189, 192 homeomorphic 38 Choice Axiom 1 homeomorphism 38 closed 4, 36, 49, 67 --- interval 43 identical connector 62 closure 6 image 31 induced connector 70 commutative group 109 --- linear topology 165 compact 14, 24 --- extension 58 --- set 18 --- neighbourhood system 25 --- topology 66, 103, 140 compactification 58 --- quasi-metric 130 --- condition 58 complete 89, 104, 105, 130, 151, inner point 6 intersection 1. 62 --- extension 97 interval 43 completely normal 24 inverse image 31, 72 --- regular 54 --- transformation 32 --- separable 30, 187 isohomeomorphic 147 completion 97, 105, 155 isomorphic 120, 121 --- condition 97 isometric 249 composition 35 conditionally complete 151 --- modular convergent 221 221 limiting point 7 connector 62 linear 111, 112 constant 48 contact point 7 --- combination 110 --- manifold lll continuous 33, 45, 47, 160 --- extension 55 --- space 110 convergent 28, 45, 95 --- topology 138 convex 123, 125, 139 --- topological space 138 countable neighbourhood system --- transformation 120 28. 30 linearly independent 110 cross norm 264 locally compact 25 --- normal 23 ~-- space 255 --- topology 258 manifold 110 decreasing 93 mapping 31

decreasing basis 93, 149 dense 10 --- character 122, 124, 128, 139, 189 --- uniformity 102, 108, 140 limit 28, 45, 88, 95, 194, 196, 204,

```
Maximal Theorem 2
                                     scalar-closed 122
  maximum norm 246, 262
 metric 101
 --- condition 101
 --- space 101
 minimum norm 247, 263
 modular 204
 --- adjoint space 209
 --- bladjoint space 265
 --- bounded 206, 264
 --- complete 205
 --- condition 204
 --- convergent 204, 206
 --- norm 213
 --- topology 212
 modulared space 204
 neighbourhood system 5, 28
 norm 125, 174
 --- bounded 261
 --- convergent 194
 --- fundamental 190, 192
 --- topology 186
normable 151
normal 23, 24, 174
normed space 186
nowhere dense 10
number space 43
 --- topology 43
--- uniformity 74
open 4, 36, 67
--- basis 5
opener 6
partition 38, 39
--- mapping 39
--- space 38
--- topology 38
product 62, 146
--- norm 246
--- space 120, 248
proper 124, 127
pseudo-norm 124, 126
quasi-metric 101
----- space 101
---norm 127
----normed linear space 165
quotient mapping 118
--- space 117, 191
reflexive 179
regular 21, 179, 211
regularly open 10
relative linear topology 145, 146
--- modular 215
--- pseudo-norm 131
--- quasi-norm 104
--- topology 18
--- uniformity 71
--- vicinity 130, 131
residue class 117
```

root 168

```
scalar-open 122
 second category 12
 separable 30, 187
 separated 25, 26, 58, 66, 139
 separative 26, 139
 sequential 28, 93, 149
 --- root 181
 simple 219
 single vicinity 150
 sphere 101, 212
 --- connector 101
 star 122
 strong modular 268
 stronger 16, 68, 143, 186
 strongest convex linear topology 184
 --- weaker 16, 144
 subspace 112, 187, 211
 sum 206
 symmetric 64, 66, 122
 topological partition 39
 --- set 13
 --- Space &
 topology 4
 --- condition 4
 totally additive 13
--- bounded 81, 149
transformation 32
trivial linear topology 138
--- topology 4
--- uniformity 69
trunk 53
uniform space 66
uniformity 64
--- condition 64
uniformly bounded 170
--- continuous 72, 73, 74, 77, 161
--- --- extension 77
--- convergent 45
--- convex 199, 226
--- even 201, 230
--- finite 224
--- increasing 225
--- monotone 222
--- simple 221
unit sphere 186
union l
vicinity 122
weak linear topology 161, 162
--- modular 268
--- topology 40, 52, 171, 175, 177,
     251, 253
--- uniformity 84, 85, 86
weaker 16, 68, 143, 186
weakest stronger 16, 144
weakly 171, 178
--- continuous 175
--- convergent 194, 196
```

zero element 109